

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25

STATE OF NEVADA

PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD

In re: )  
)  
)  
Private )  
Investigators Licensing Board )  
Meeting. )  
)  
)  
\_\_\_\_\_)

BOARD MEETING

Taken on Wednesday, December 11, 2024

At 9:03 a.m.

By a Certified Court Reporter

At 700 East Warm Springs Road, Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada

Reported by: Johanna Vorce, CCR No. 913

Job No.: 55294, Firm No. 116F

- 1 APPEARANCES:
- 2 Board Counsel: Michael D. Detmer
- 3 Executive Director: Vincent Saladino
- 4 Board Chair: Tammy A. Nixon
- 5 Board Member: Katherine Cortez
- 6 Board Member: Robert Gronauer
- 7 Board Member: Tim Bezick (Via Zoom)
- 8 Investigator: Adriana Cuevas Manzo
- 9 Investigator: Zachary Swarthout
- 10 Investigator: Cassandra Blackmore
- 11 Investigator: Enrique Diaz (Via Zoom)
- 12 Investigator: Jessie Dumas (Via Zoom)

\* \* \* \* \*

- 13
- 14
- 15
- 16
- 17
- 18
- 19
- 20
- 21
- 22
- 23
- 24
- 25

1	I N D E X	
2		
3		PAGE
4	Meeting Called to Order	4
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		

1 STATE OF NEVADA PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD

2 WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 11, 2024, 9:03 A.M.

3 -oOo-

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Everyone, we'll go  
5 ahead and get started. We'll call the meeting to order.

6 Executive Director, can you do roll call for the  
7 board members?

8 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Yes, Madam Chair.

9 Executive Director Saladino for the record.

10 Board Chair Nixon?

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Here.

12 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Board Member Bezick?

13 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Here.

14 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Board Member Cortez?

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Here.

16 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Board Member

17 Gronauer?

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Here.

19 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: And Board Member

20 Rick Brown will be absent today.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. This is the section for  
22 public comment. Members of the general public may comment  
23 on matters appearing on the agenda and may bring matters not  
24 appearing on the agenda to the attention of the Board. The  
25 Board may discuss the matters not appearing on the agenda

1 but may not act on the matters at this meeting. If the  
2 Board desires, the matters may be placed on a future agenda  
3 for action. Public comments may be limited to five minutes  
4 per person at the discretion of the chairman but will not be  
5 restricted according to viewpoint.

6 Is there any public comment down south?

7 Yes, sir. Please -- where -- please go to the  
8 desk there. Yes.

9 Could you please state your name?

10 MR. STERN: Yes, ma'am. Good morning, everybody.  
11 My name is James Stern. It's my sincerest honor to speak at  
12 this gathering today.

13 I'm here today to address the Boards' decision to  
14 deny my polygraph license application. I'm here to request  
15 a special hearing of the Board regarding their decision to  
16 deny my polygraph license. I'll give you a little  
17 background.

18 My formal education, I received a bachelor's  
19 degree from the University of Southern California, USC, in  
20 international relations. I've lived in Nevada since 2003.  
21 I was a federal government employee for three years; six  
22 years in the Army, Army Intelligence; 25 years as an FBI  
23 agent. I spent 25 years as an FBI agent, SWAT team member,  
24 undercover agent, FBI headquarter supervisor. I was a  
25 polygraph examiner for eight years.

1 I conducted hundreds of FBI polygraph examinations  
2 including the following critical polygraph examinations: I  
3 conducted a majority of the September 11th, 2001, Al-Qaeda  
4 terrorist attack polygraphs. I polygraphed Saddam Hussein's  
5 bodyguard who was detained. I polygraphed Osama bin Laden's  
6 associates when we were looking for him in Pakistan. I  
7 polygraphed numerous FBI job applicants and numerous onboard  
8 employees for their security background update.

9 Notably, I've trained numerous law enforcement  
10 agencies throughout the U.S. and world on how polygraph  
11 works. I've been the guest speaker on how polygraph works  
12 during numerous law enforcement conferences, most recently  
13 in 2023 and 2024.

14 Just to tell you some of my significant polygraph  
15 tests, many of my international law enforcement polygraph  
16 exams that I conducted related to FBI investigations in  
17 Pakistan regarding the murders of American citizens before  
18 and after 9/11, the rocket attack on the U.S. Embassy in  
19 Pakistan, espionage case in Hong Kong, organized crime  
20 Yakuza case in Japan, the terrorism search for bin Laden in  
21 Af- -- in Pakistan, Canada Y2K investigations, the Bosnia  
22 Herzegovina postwar investigations and training.

23 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. What was the last  
24 one, and can you slow down a little bit?

25 Can you slow down a little bit and repeat the

1 last?

2 MR. STERN: The last what, ma'am?

3 THE COURT REPORTER: The last phrase that you  
4 said.

5 MR. STERN: Yeah. The postwar investigations and  
6 training in Bosnia Herzegovina.

7 Thailand, I did drug trafficking investigations,  
8 polygraph investigations. In Cambodia, I polygraphed an  
9 individual who was trying to destroy the U.S. Embassy in  
10 Phnom Penh. I polygraphed multiple suspects in the  
11 Philippines on the kidnapping of Americans. I've also  
12 testified as an expert witness before the U.S. Senate  
13 Judiciary Committee.

14 In my opinion, no polygraph examiner in the entire  
15 U.S., possibly the world, has more experience and knowledge  
16 than I do conducting exams. No licensed examiner in Nevada  
17 would have more knowledge and experience than I do.

18 Therefore, the Nevada PI Board denying me a Nevada polygraph  
19 license is beyond baffling, given my education, my extensive  
20 polygraph examiner career, and my service to the United  
21 States as a polygraph examiner since 1997. The Board denied  
22 my polygraph license application. I meet all the Nevada  
23 statutory requirements, yet the Board denied my application.

24 I understand the Board cannot take action on my  
25 application at today's meeting. I'm requesting a special

1 hearing with the Board because all the statutory  
2 requirements, and the Board has not provided me any notice  
3 or information as to why it denied the application.

4 Thank you for your time.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you, sir.

6 MR. STERN: Any questions?

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Not at this time.

8 Can I speak to Special Counsel? Are we able to --

9 (Inaudible discussion off the  
10 record.)

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: If -- if you would, please,  
12 Executive Director Saladino will reach out to you tomorrow,  
13 if we close out business today, and explain to you what's  
14 going on and, you know, work with you to -- to get a  
15 resolution.

16 MR. STERN: I appreciate that. Thank you so much  
17 for your time.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, did you have any other  
19 questions or --

20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: I did, but I think it  
21 would be handled through Executive Director.

22 MR. STERN: I'd be glad to answer any questions  
23 anybody has.

24 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: I think we'll have -- I  
25 think we're going to have him handle it.



1 MR. STERN: Okay. Thank you, sir.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

3 Any further comment down south?

4 Okay. Team up north, I can't see if you guys have  
5 any public up there.

6 Do you have public?

7 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: We do have public up here.

8 And no comments, correct?

9 No comments from the north.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you.

11 We'll move to the next agenda item. Board  
12 Executive Director, can you do announcements, reports, and  
13 updates, please.

14 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Yes, Board Chair.  
15 Executive Director Saladino for the record.

16 I went ahead and emailed the financials to the  
17 board members. In regards to the updates and the stats,  
18 I'll go ahead and turn that over to Supervisory Investigator  
19 Zachary Swarthout to go over the quarterly stats.

20 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Investigator Swarthout.  
21 Can you -- can you hear me?

22 THE COURT REPORTER: Speak up a little bit.

23 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: All right. For  
24 September of '23 for the -- for the Board meeting, we had 37  
25 applications in total, 26 that were approved, 11 that were

1 withdrawn and denied.

2 For September of '24 Board meeting, we had 62  
3 apply, 29 approved, 33 that were either withdrawn or denied.

4 For the work card applications for that same time  
5 period, it would be for July --

6 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. For what  
7 applications?

8 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Work card, the registered  
9 work card applications.

10 For July, August, and September of '23, we had a  
11 total of 3,250 that were received, 2,904 are active, zero  
12 are provisional, 225 were withdrawn, and 121 were denied.

13 For -- for 2024, for that same time period, we  
14 processed 3,263 applications, 2,730 are active, 179 are  
15 provisional still, 254 are withdrawn, and 100 were denied.

16 Right now, of those 179, we're waiting on  
17 fingerprint results back from the FBI. They're taking  
18 closer to 90 days and sometimes over. We are working with  
19 them to try and fix the issue and get those sped up and  
20 given to us.

21 For complaints and investigations, this past  
22 quarter we had 36. Thirty-five were closed. One is still  
23 open. Four violations were issued. We did some -- some  
24 compliance investigations with LVMPD, City of Las Vegas  
25 Business Licensing, Nevada DMV, NTA, and Reno Sparks Tribal

1 Police.

2 And then for the unlicensed activity citations  
3 2023 and 2024 comparison, 8 were issued in '23 for that same  
4 time period. Six for this year. Of -- for '23, seven of  
5 the them were the first offense. One was a third and  
6 sequential.

7 This year two of them were first offense, one is a  
8 second, and three are third and sequential.

9 THE COURT REPORTER: And three are what?

10 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Third and sequential.  
11 Repeat. Three. Three. That is it.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Quick question on the  
13 fingerprint results.

14 Are the delays on our end or just -- is that with  
15 DPS in general, the processing?

16 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: So, Madam Chair,  
17 Executive Director for the record.

18 We don't know what is going on with DPS, and we're  
19 not the only agency affected by it. There's multiple  
20 agencies, state agencies, that are having trouble receiving  
21 results.

22 Our fingerprint specialist is in constant contact  
23 with DPS to figure out, you know, what's going on. And we  
24 have resubmitted for -- for copies for the ones that we  
25 haven't received. And, you know, we're just trying to work

1 through it.

2 I have not reached out to DPS, their director,  
3 yet, but I probably will at the end of this week. We were  
4 hoping that we received the ones that we were missing for  
5 today's Board meeting today, but so far we haven't.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Because that was going  
7 to be, you know, my next question to the Board.

8 We had several without fingerprints, and,  
9 apparently, they're -- they're not here. So what we'll end  
10 up doing is going through each one individually and making a  
11 decision based off of not having the fingerprints and next  
12 steps.

13 Were there any questions on the licensing updates?

14 Okay. Any -- any questions on the budget?

15 Okay. Hearing there are no questions, I'll move  
16 to the next agenda item, review and approve transcripts for  
17 the September 18, 2024, Board meeting.

18 Were there any questions or changes that needed to  
19 happen from the Board?

20 Okay. Hearing there are no questions or concerns,  
21 I'll move for possible action.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez  
23 motioning to approve agenda item -- I'm sorry, the  
24 transcripts for the Board meeting September 18th, 2024, as  
25 written.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.

2 Do we have a second?

3 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

4 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
7 second.

8 All in favor say aye.

9 Aye.

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

14 Counsel Detmer, welcome back.

15 MR. DETMER: Thank you.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: And if you could, please swear  
17 in witnesses.

18 MR. DETMER: Thank you, Chair. Mike Detmer for  
19 the record.

20 For all those who are going to be presenting  
21 before the Board today on items -- subsequent items five, if  
22 you could, please stand and raise your right hand.

23 Do you hereby swear or affirm to tell the truth,  
24 the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

25 (Audience answers in the

1 affirmative.)

2 (Applicants and witnesses sworn by  
3 Counsel Detmer.)

4 MR. DETMER: Thank you.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you, everyone.

6 So the next agenda item is consent items for  
7 potential block vote. They are Items No. 6 through 25.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Madam Chair, this is Board  
9 Member Cortez.

10 Question for contingent consent Item No. 26. I  
11 just want to confirm.

12 Investigator Cuevas, the fingerprints for  
13 Mr. Douglas Marshall have not come in yet?

14 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Yes.

15 Investigator Cuevas for the record.

16 We haven't received the images yet, so we wouldn't  
17 have results for him.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Okay.

19 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: If you guys wanted to do  
20 that contingent --

21 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. Because why?

22 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: We haven't received the  
23 results in. If they would like to do the contingent and  
24 then just -- I could update once prints are received.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So my question to you, Madam

1 Chair, is: Did we want to include it, or would it be best  
2 if we did it separately?

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: I think it's best if we do  
4 that separately.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have Consent  
7 Items 6 through 25.

8 Were there any concerns on those items?  
9 Questions?

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

11 Number 19 and No. 23, I'd like to have pulled form  
12 the consent. Might have personal --

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: I wrote over my own notes.  
14 So 19 is Premier Security Services.  
15 And what was the other number?

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Nineteen and twenty-three,  
17 please.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Twenty-three is SLS  
19 Consulting. So those two would be removed out of the  
20 consent.

21 Any other Board members need to pull anything?

22 Okay. So then the potential block vote would be  
23 for Agenda Item No. 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16,  
24 17, 18, 20, 21, 22, 24, and 25.

25 I'll entertain a motion.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez  
2 motioning to approve -- approve the block potential vote for  
3 the items indicated per Madam Chair.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.  
5 Do we have a second?

6 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.  
8 We have a second.

9 All in favor say aye.

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

13 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

15 So if you're one of the agenda items that we  
16 listed off as a part of the consent vote, you're free to  
17 leave. We are quite entertaining, so you can also stay if  
18 you'd like, but otherwise you're free to leave.

19 So then we'll go to Agenda Item No. nine- --

20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: We didn't lose anybody.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Huh?

22 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: We didn't lose anybody.

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Oh, yeah. That's pretty good.

24 So we'll go -- they know how entertaining we are.

25 We'll go to Agenda Item No. 19, Premier -- Premier



1 Security Services.

2 Is Mr. Page here?

3 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Madam Chair, I don't  
4 believe we were able to get in touch with him.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

6 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: It was -- Monday was  
7 when we received notice that he had to attend. We had him  
8 down as a consent item. And as far as right now, our  
9 licensing specialist was not able to get ahold of him.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Understood.

11 So do we want to trail this or --

12 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: We can -- we can  
13 trail 19. I just messaged to see if we were able to get  
14 ahold of him.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

16 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. Can you repeat  
17 that?

18 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: We -- we messaged  
19 the office to see if we can get ahold of Mr. Page.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So then we have Agenda Item  
21 No. 23, SLS Consulting.

22 Is Steven Meriwether here?

23 MR. ARMBRUSTER: Steven Armbruster. Steve  
24 Meriwether couldn't make it.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Is --

1 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: So, Madam Chair --  
2 Madam Chair, Executive Director again for the record.

3 We found out on Monday that some of these consent  
4 items needed to attend the meeting. We were able to get  
5 ahold of this gentleman to represent the group as a whole.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

7 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: The other ones were  
8 not available.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. You can have a seat,  
10 sir.

11 MR. ARMBRUSTER: Thank you.

12 THE COURT REPORTER: Can you spell your last name,  
13 sir.

14 MR. ARMBRUSTER: It's A-r-m-b-r-u-s-t-e-r.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, are there any questions  
16 for Mr. Armbruster?

17 MR. ARMBRUSTER: Yes.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

19 My concern was with Meriwether's employment with  
20 LVMPD. I wasn't sure if he was ever under my -- my direct  
21 command when I was on LVMPD, and I wanted to see him in  
22 person, so --

23 MR. ARMBRUSTER: I spoke with Vincent, and he said  
24 I could speak on Meriwether -- both of us worked for LVMPD.

25 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: I know you were.

1 MR. ARMBRUSTER: So he told me that he never  
2 worked under your chain of command.

3 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay. I'm good with that.  
4 If you say so, I'm good.

5 MR. ARMBRUSTER: Yes, sir.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Are there any further  
7 questions? Okay.

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: No.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Hearing no further -- if there  
10 are no further questions, I'll entertain a motion.

11 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

12 I'll make a motion to approve SLS Consulting  
13 Group, LLC is applying for their corporate private patrol  
14 officer license. Steven A. Meriwether is applying for an  
15 individual private patrol office -- officer license. If  
16 approved, he is requesting his individual license be placed in  
17 abeyance so that --

18 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. I can't hear you  
19 very good, sir. Can you speak up?

20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: All right.

21 THE COURT REPORTER: Thank you. That's better.

22 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Motion to approve SLS  
23 Consulting Group, LLC is applying for a new corporate  
24 private patrol officer license. Steven A. Meriwether is  
25 applying for an individual private patrol officer license.

1 If approved, he is requesting that his individual license be  
2 placed in abeyance so he may become the qualifying agent.  
3 Members to be approved are Steven A. Meriwether, Lino S.  
4 Loyola, and Steven A. Armbruster.

5 MR. ARMBRUSTER: Armbruster.

6 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Armbruster. Sorry. My  
7 name, your name.

8 This is subject -- subject to statutory  
9 requirements.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.

11 Do we have a second?

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez.

13 I'll second that motion.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion. We have  
15 a second.

16 All in favor say aye.

17 Aye.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

20 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

22 Congratulations.

23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Just one comment. That  
24 was only made under abundance of caution on my part.

25 MR. ARMBRUSTER: Understand.

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay. Sorry for you to  
2 have inconvenience but --

3 MR. ARMBRUSTER: No inconvenience at all.

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: All right. Thanks.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Good luck to you.

6 MR. ARMBRUSTER: Thank you.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Madam Chair, I do have a  
8 question for Board Member Gronauer.

9 Are the same concerns for Agenda Item No. 19, or  
10 are there additional concerns?

11 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Same concerns.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Same concerns.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And we're still trailing  
15 till the end of the day?

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

18 (Inaudible discussion off the  
19 record.)

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We -- we'll move on to  
21 Agenda Item No. 26, Marshall Investigative Group.

22 Is David R. Venti here or Douglas Marshall?

23 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: I'm sorry, Madam  
24 Chair. Is that Item No. 26?

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yes.

1 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: They were contingent  
2 on receiving their fingerprints. That's why we have them as  
3 that. So we can make a motion upon negative fingerprint  
4 results.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So Board, as you know,  
6 we don't have fingerprints on Douglas Marshall. We did have  
7 information on David Venti. Our opportunity here or choices  
8 here are to trail until next time or, because of the DPS  
9 delay, approve it contingent upon negative -- negative  
10 fingerprints. I'll entertain a motion.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez  
12 motioning to approve contingent upon negative fingerprint  
13 results for Mr. Douglas A. Marshall, approving Marshall  
14 Investigative Group, Inc. for a new corporate private  
15 investigator license, approving David R. Venti, License  
16 No. 1522, that his individual license be kept in abeyance so  
17 that he may become the qualifying agent. Corporate officer  
18 to be approved, again, contingent upon negative fingerprint  
19 results, is Mr. Douglas A. Marshall. All of this subject to  
20 statutory, regulatory requirements.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.  
22 Do we have a second?

23 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
25 second.

1 All in favor say aye.

2 Aye.

3 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

5 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes. So we just  
7 need to get his results.

8 Okay. Agenda Item No. 27, change of name or --  
9 change of status-name change, qualifying agent.

10 Patriot Group Global. Is Joseph Androwski, Brian  
11 Leek, Leland Lutz, or Jeffrey Mar- -- what is that?

12 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Marquart.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: What?

14 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Marquart.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Marquart. Thank you.

16 MR. LUTZ: Three of the four of us are here.  
17 We're present.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. You can come up.

19 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: For the record, Leek  
20 postponed to March, so we have -- yeah.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So what?

22 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Madam Chair,  
23 Corporate Officer Brian Leek had went ahead and postponed  
24 until March, so Brian Leek is not going to move forward at  
25 this meeting. He was going to move forward in March.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So the only one that we  
2 have fingerprints on, though, is Joseph Androwski?

3 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: I believe so.

4 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Yes.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. And then the other --  
6 so --

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Madam Chair, I need  
8 clarification.

9 This is Board Member Cortez.

10 Just to be clear, so the only corporate officer  
11 wanting to be approved is Leland Lutz and Jeffrey Marquart;  
12 is that correct?

13 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Yes.

14 MR. LUTZ: Correct. Correct.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So we are not moving  
16 forward with Brian Leek.

17 Got it. Thank you so much.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So but do -- do we need to  
19 make a motion to -- or just --

20 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: We have to remove  
21 Brian Leek from the motion.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Got it. Remove. Okay. Got  
23 it. Okay.

24 So based off the information we have right now, we  
25 don't have -- unfortunately, we don't have your



1 fingerprints. There's a delay within DPS, as you heard  
2 earlier. So the issue is we can't, like, completely approve  
3 you because we don't know if there's anything on your  
4 records that weren't -- that wasn't disclosed.

5           Saying that, we just did the latter where we -- we  
6 approved it contingent on fingerprints coming back negative.

7           So, Board, I'll entertain a motion if there's no  
8 questions for these gentlemen here.

9           BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Madam Chair, this is Board  
10 Member Cortez. I do have a question.

11           Good morning, gentlemen.

12           MR. LUTZ: Good morning.

13           MR. MARQUART: Good morning.

14           BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: What's the reason for the  
15 name change?

16           MR. LUTZ: We have consolidated some operations,  
17 and Patriot needs to change to our new name.

18           BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Investigator Cuevas,  
19 any negative information on the original name Patriot Group  
20 Global that you found?

21           INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Not for Patriot Group  
22 Global, no.

23           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: But what about for Crisis24  
24 Protection Solutions?

25           INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: For Crisis24, we did have a

1 member previously operating without the name change, but  
2 it's being corrected.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So, gentlemen, am I  
4 understanding that we're doing this for technicality  
5 reasons? Are we now getting it straightened out?

6 MR. LUTZ: Yes.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Why was the delay, or  
8 what was the reason for the delay?

9 MR. LUTZ: Corporate -- corporate purchase and, I  
10 think, taking the time to do it. We -- we bought a company,  
11 and they had a license. I don't think we operated -- I'm  
12 not aware of where we operated without a license. That's  
13 new to me, but --

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

15 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Actually, correct. Sorry.  
16 They were not operating, but it was under the impression  
17 that Crisis24 was able to operate in Nevada, but it was all  
18 under Patriot. So it was linked but it was the name, which  
19 is why they're doing the name change.

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So were they doing business  
22 as?

23 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: No.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

25 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: They were still under

1 Patriot --

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: They were still --

3 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: -- which is how they're  
4 licensed here.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Which is a very fine line,  
6 but now everything is getting taken care of the way it needs  
7 to be taken care of?

8 MR. LUTZ: Patriot was a subsidiary of Crisis24.  
9 We operated as Patriot. We are now changing the name to  
10 make -- make it very clear that we are operating as  
11 Crisis24.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. And I can trust that  
13 from here on forth, we're not going to have any kind of  
14 negative --

15 MR. MARQUART: Negative.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- negative information --

17 MR. MARQUART: Yes, ma'am.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- under Crisis24  
19 Protection?

20 Okay. Perfect. Thank you. No further questions.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Any questions up north?

22 Hearing there are no questions, we'll entertain a  
23 motion.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
25 motioning to approve Patriot Group Global, Inc., License No.

1 4198, a corporate name change to Crisis24 Protection  
2 Solutions, Inc. Mr. Joseph J. Androwski will remain the  
3 qualifying agent. Corporate officers to be approved are  
4 Mr. Leland J.P. Lutz and Mr. Jeffrey W. Marquart. All  
5 subject to statutory, regulatory requirements.

6 MR. DETMER: Is this the one that was contingent?  
7 Mike Detmer for the record.

8 Was this the one that was contingent?

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: My apologies.

10 All contingent upon negative fingerprint results  
11 for outstanding fingerprints for Mr. Marquart; is that  
12 correct?

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah. Leland Lutz and  
14 Marquart -- or no, Leland --

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Oh, I believe -- oh.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: No. Leland pulled, yeah,  
17 so --

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

19 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry? No who?

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Any outstanding fingerprints  
21 contingent upon negative fingerprint results.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.

23 Do we have a second?

24 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.

1 We have a second.

2 All in favor say aye.

3 Aye.

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

6 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

8 Congratulations, gentlemen. Thank you.

9 MR. LUTZ: Thank you.

10 MR. MARQUART: Thank you.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you for your patience.

12 MR. ANDROWSKI: Thank you.

13 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. Before you step  
14 down, can I get you each to state your name for me so I know  
15 who is who.

16 MR. ANDROWSKI: Sure. Joseph Androwski.

17 MR. LUTZ: I'm Leland Lutz.

18 MR. MARQUART: Jeffrey Marquart.

19 THE COURT REPORTER: Thank you.

20 MR. LUTZ: Thank you.

21 MR. MARQUART: Thank you.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Next agenda item,  
23 Nevada Protection Group, License No. 4200, is -- they want  
24 to change their name to Greenlight USA.

25 Is Frederick Hutchison here?

1 MR. HUTCHISON: Yes.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: And Stephen Korfonta?

3 MR. HUTCHISON: Korfonta. Korfonta, he could not  
4 be here today. He's serving with the military. He emailed  
5 his orders over. It was a bad time since he's -- they're on  
6 an operation right now for training.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

8 MR. HUTCHISON: He sends his regard, but he cannot  
9 make it.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you.

11 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: And, Madam Chair,  
12 Executive Director for the record.

13 We did receive the orders.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

15 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: He did want to be  
16 here, but he sent his orders.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you.

18 Could you state your name for -- for the record.

19 MR. HUTCHISON: My name is Frederick Hutchison,  
20 H-u-t-c-h-i-s-o-n.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, are there any questions  
22 for Mr. Hutchison?

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez.

24 Same question for you, Mr. Hutchison: Why are we  
25 asking for the name change?

1 MR. HUTCHISON: Nevada Protection Group was under  
2 d/b/a with Jan Lee. Greenlight Group has come in and bought  
3 out Nevada Protection Group from Jan Lee, so we're just  
4 changing the name to the proper entity.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood.

6 Same question, Investigator Cuevas: Any negative  
7 information on either name?

8 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: No, not for either Nevada  
9 Protection Group or Greenlight Group.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you so much. No  
11 further questions.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. And just a reminder,  
13 Mr. Korfonta does not have his fingerprint results either,  
14 so when motioning --

15 If there's no further questions from the Board,  
16 I'll entertain a motion.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
18 motioning to approve contingent upon negative fingerprint  
19 results for Mr. Korfonta -- Korfonta?

20 MR. HUTCHISON: Korfonta.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- approving Nevada  
22 Protection Group LLC, License No. 4200, a corporate name  
23 change to Greenlight USA, LLC. Mr. Frederick Hutchison will  
24 remain the qualifying agent. Member to be approved, again  
25 under -- contingent upon negative fingerprint results, is

1 Stephen R. Korfonta. All subject to statutory, regulatory  
2 requirements.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.

4 Do we have a second?

5 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
7 have a second.

8 All in favor say aye.

9 Aye.

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations. Motion  
14 passes. Congratulations, sir.

15 MR. HUTCHISON: Thank you. Thank you, Board.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: The next agenda items are  
17 corporate officer members. Agenda Item No. 29 is postponed  
18 until March, so we will not hear that one. So the next  
19 agenda item is Agenda Item No. 30.

20 Do we have Mr. -- or M. Salisbury -- Salisbury and  
21 Jason Salisbury here?

22 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick. Just for  
23 full disclosure, I know the Salisburys' father. He was a  
24 colleague of mine. I don't think I have to recuse myself  
25 because of that.



1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Okay.

2 Thank you, group. If you could, just tell us a  
3 little bit about yourself and -- and intentions with the  
4 change.

5 MR. SALISBURY: My name is Jason Salisbury. I've  
6 worked with the State of Nevada Department of Wildlife for  
7 26 years. I plan on retiring in the first part of February  
8 of 2026, and my mom operates a process serving business in  
9 Elko. I plan on moving from Fallon, Nevada, back to Elko,  
10 Nevada, in 2026 and looking at a secondary career working  
11 with -- with my mom for process serving.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. I do see that he has a  
13 letter here from his current employment because he is a  
14 current state employee.

15 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Yes. Yes, Madam  
16 Chair.

17 Executive Director for the record.

18 So under -- under NAC, there's an exemption where  
19 the qualifying agent of the company can come speak on behalf  
20 of having this exemption granted by the Board. We did  
21 receive a letter from the Nevada Department of Wildlife  
22 where they state it's not a conflict because of the services  
23 that he does for the Department of Wildlife. It's very  
24 different job fields.

25 Mrs. Salisbury, I believe, is here to speak -- to

1 speak to that. You know, just basically to get her -- her  
2 family member up and running with the business so that way  
3 he can be able to take over. And, again, I did provide that  
4 COI letter to the board members.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Do you guys have it?

6 Okay. Okay. Thank you.

7 Are there any questions for Mr. Salisbury?

8 Okay. Hearing there are no questions, I'll  
9 entertain a motion.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez.

11 Sorry, Mr. Bezick. I do have a question for  
12 Investigator Cuevas.

13 Are we missing fingerprints for both or one or the  
14 other?

15 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Yes.

16 Investigator Cuevas.

17 We're missing both, for Jason and Heather.

18 Fingerprint results have not been received for them.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood. Thank you.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Understanding that,  
21 we'll entertain a motion.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez  
23 motioning to approve Salisbury Services, LLC, License No.  
24 2100, member status approval for Heather M. Salisbury and  
25 Jason M. Salisbury, contingent of negative fingerprint

1 results. Both subject to all statutory, regulatory  
2 requirements.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.  
4 Do we have a second?

5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. I have a motion. I  
7 have a second.

8 All in favor say aye.

9 Aye.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

11 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

14 Congratulations, sir, and good luck to you.

15 (Inaudible discussion off the  
16 record.)

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you.

18 Okay. So we're going to move on to the next  
19 agenda item, which is private patrol officers. I'm going to  
20 say this now, and then if -- if the Board chooses to go  
21 ahead and approve you, there are some that are still  
22 contingent on fingerprints, but I'll say the spiel  
23 afterwards. Again, just as a reminder, if you are approved  
24 contingent your fingerprints coming back negative, please  
25 understand that that does not give you the opportunity to

1 start working immediately under your business. We still  
2 need to get the final results before you can move forward.  
3 So I just want to caution everybody to understand that.

4 Okay. Moving forward. Agenda Item No. 31,  
5 Certified Protective Detail.

6 Is Marvin Quarles --

7 MR. QUARLES: Yes. Good morning.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good morning.

9 Sir, please tell us about -- a little bit about  
10 yourself and the reason for the application.

11 MR. QUARLES: Okay. Well, per my records, I  
12 worked for 20 years for the City of Glendale as the jail  
13 supervisor. Prior to the City of Glendale, I worked in a  
14 few security agencies. I worked for Westech Security. I  
15 worked for Bonafide Security and ADT Security Services. So  
16 my background is in security plus maintaining a tight-run  
17 facility.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: And what -- what is your  
19 intentions with the business?

20 MR. QUARLES: Well, it's basically opening a  
21 security business, a security patrol business, guard service  
22 to hopefully enhance the security that's already here in the  
23 Las Vegas, Nevada area.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. All right. Well, thank  
25 you.

1 Board, are there any questions for Mr. -- is it  
2 Quarles?

3 MR. QUARLES: Quarles.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Quarles.

5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

6 Good morning to you, Mr. Quarles.

7 MR. QUARLES: Good morning.

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: When you -- you said you  
9 worked for the City of Glendale.

10 MR. QUARLES: That's correct.

11 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: And you retired in 2009?

12 MR. QUARLES: That's correct.

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Why did you retire?

14 MR. QUARLES: When?

15 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Why?

16 MR. QUARLES: I retired because of an incident  
17 that happened, and it led to an early retirement.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay. That incident  
19 turned in to be a felony arrest.

20 MR. QUARLES: That's correct.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Can you explain that to  
22 me, please?

23 MR. QUARLES: Okay. Part of my duty in the City  
24 of Glendale is I used to handle the inmate -- the  
25 pay-for-stay services, plus I handled community service

1 multiple outlets that I sit there and controlled.

2 In doing so, I assigned work to be done outside of  
3 Glendale that they considered not beneficial to Glendale,  
4 but it was done within L.A. County. So as part of the deal  
5 was, I would retire for me not to continue working in the  
6 city. It was -- I guess it was just pretty much that I  
7 accepted a -- the felony conviction.

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay. It says you get an  
9 update on your -- the penal code not being properly filed,  
10 because it still shows as a felony on your record.

11 MR. QUARLES: Okay. I think I submitted all the  
12 paperwork to show that last time it was reduced to a  
13 misdemeanor, and the case was closed.

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: All right. Sir, given  
15 that information, do you understand what a qualifying  
16 agent's responsibility is in the -- in the company?

17 MR. QUARLES: That's correct.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: What is it? Tell me.

19 MR. QUARLES: Qualifying agent would be the person  
20 that is in control of the -- the business itself, that's  
21 running the operations, the daily operations, making sure  
22 that everything is in compliance.

23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay. And taking care of  
24 money, taking care of all the things that are involved.

25 I show that you have some -- quite a few

1 outstanding debts.

2 MR. QUARLES: Okay. They are in the process. I'm  
3 trying to get them removed because there are some that are  
4 contested. I sit there and work with a couple of agencies.  
5 One of the agencies that I've worked with in trying to get  
6 it removed, it's telling me that they verified it, if I'm  
7 telling them that it was not me. They're telling me that --  
8 there's no way that they verified it. And I'm saying but  
9 I'm -- it's not me. So -- then, of course, I go through the  
10 process. They asked if I submitted a police report.

11 How do I submit a police report for something  
12 that's not me? Because I can't verify the information.

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: These are outstanding  
14 debts. You can verify your outstanding debts. You can  
15 verify what kind of programs you're going through.

16 Investigator Blackmore?

17 MR. DETMER: Mike Detmer for the record.

18 I apologize for the -- for the interruption,  
19 Member Gronauer.

20 I believe Ms. Blackmore was -- Investigator  
21 Blackmore was not here when we swore everybody in. If I  
22 could have lead to swear her in briefly, may I?

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yes. Oh, I'm sorry.

24 MR. DETMER: I thank the Chair. I thank the  
25 Board.

1           You're already raising your right hand.

2           If you could hereby swear or affirm to tell the  
3 truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

4           INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Correct.

5                   (Investigator Blackmore was sworn  
6                   by Counsel Detmer.)

7           MR. DETMER: Thank you.

8           BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Ms. Blackmore --  
9 Investigator Blackmore, can you tell me anything about these  
10 debts, outstanding debts?

11           INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yes.

12           Investigator Blackmore for the record.

13           So I have been in contact with Mr. Quarles  
14 regarding the outstanding debts. He said that he is  
15 currently in the works to contest them and correct them.  
16 The last update I have of October 24, and most of it --  
17 basically they just need to verify the information, but  
18 they'll only share that information if he basically promises  
19 to accept the results based on their internal investigation.

20           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So, I guess, you know, just to  
21 clarify. It's not resolved yet?

22           INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Correct, there's no  
23 resolvent.

24           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Okay. Oh, I'm sorry.  
25 Did you --



1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Yeah. I just want to be  
2 straight up with you, Mr. Quarles. I have a problem when  
3 you have a problem taking care of your own finances, let  
4 alone taking care of finances with a company, and also with  
5 the background that we already have. That just concerns me  
6 at this point. It concerns me. It's up to the Board to  
7 decide.

8 I'm finished. Thank you.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
10 Mr. Quarles, I do have a question regarding that  
11 case out of Glendale. I didn't really hear a lot of  
12 accountability, taking accountability. I heard a lot of  
13 skirting around a bit.

14 I think that's awesome that you were able to  
15 retire under the circumstances. However, what's the total  
16 amount of restitution owed?

17 MR. QUARLES: I had \$184, which I paid.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Investigator Cuevas,  
19 do we have -- or Blackmore, I'm sorry. Do we have any  
20 information regarding the restitution for the case?

21 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Investigator Blackmore  
22 for the record.

23 So he did provide me some court documents  
24 basically saying that they did reduce it down to a  
25 misdemeanor after the restitution was paid and owed, but

1 there was no receipts provided for the restitution showing  
2 it's been paid.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So that was my  
4 question.

5 So as of right now, technically, it is still a  
6 felony because it's not paid in full; is that correct?

7 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: The only court docs that  
8 were provided was basically that it was -- he provided proof  
9 of completion. That was the only thing. But it was reduced  
10 down to a misdemeanor after he paid.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So according to the -- if  
12 I'm reading that correctly, and, again, Mr. Quarles, I have  
13 very -- a lot of experience in court documents, and I know  
14 exactly what the orders know, so my question is -- well,  
15 actually, do you have any receipts showing that you have a  
16 balance of 100-and-whatever dollars you said?

17 MR. QUARLES: I didn't bring them with me, but,  
18 yes, I do.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Do you have them in an  
20 email?

21 MR. QUARLES: I may have them in an email, yes.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Are you able to provide that  
23 to our investigator within the next 30 minutes?

24 MR. QUARLES: Yes.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. With that said -- and

1 that -- just say that that's where we're going to go with  
2 it, do you understand that that case is still being listed  
3 as a felony until the restitution is paid in full?

4 MR. QUARLES: Okay.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: According to that, the way  
6 I'm understanding it, that felony -- that charge will not  
7 get reduced until it's paid in full. What you said today is  
8 that you still owe about less than \$200. Felony still  
9 stands.

10 MR. QUARLES: Okay. It was paid --

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: If -- it's my understanding,  
12 with the way court records -- unfortunately, I don't have  
13 the actual minutes, but based off what I heard and what I  
14 read, your felony is still there. It's not reduced. The  
15 case is not closed. You still have restitution owed.

16 Does that make sense?

17 MR. QUARLES: Okay. Makes sense.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Can we -- can we clarify that?  
20 Because it -- has it been paid?

21 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: It just tells me --  
22 because he was scheduled to go September 13th to the court.  
23 It just tells me that the matters call for proof of  
24 completion. So upon that, it sounds like he did pay the  
25 183.99 and that they amended it to reflect it as a

1 misdemeanor.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So it was a felony.  
3 It's been reduced to a misdemeanor because of payment, but  
4 he has to go back to the court and close out the entire  
5 process?

6 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: The only document it says  
7 is just proof of completion, so I'm assuming that it's fully  
8 closed out at this point.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So do you have proof of  
10 completion?

11 MR. QUARLES: Yes.

12 What -- what happened is September 13th was the  
13 final. I didn't have to appear. They just wanted to verify  
14 everything was done. Once they verified it, that's when  
15 they said the case was terminated.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. And do you have proof  
17 that the case is terminated?

18 MR. QUARLES: I -- I'll sit there and check my  
19 emails.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Do you have proof that  
21 it's terminated?

22 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yeah. It just says  
23 "proof of completion" on the document he provided.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So I -- I'm reading  
25 it differently, but I -- I will go with based off what

1 Investigator Blackmore has provided for testimony today.

2 My second comment is I also share the same  
3 concerns as Board Member Gronauer. You do have quite a bit  
4 of financial issues that need to be taken care of. And as  
5 the qualifying agent, you are respons- -- it all starts from  
6 the top.

7 MR. QUARLES: Yes.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So if it's not okay at the  
9 top, chances are it's not going to -- it's going to trickle  
10 down. It's not going to be okay. And that's not a great  
11 reflection on something that we are going to approve as  
12 somebody who is potentially going to have a new business. I  
13 just want you to take that into consideration as far as my  
14 standpoint.

15 No other further questions or comments.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Are there any other Board  
17 questions?

18 Okay. Hearing no other Board questions, I'll  
19 entertain a motion.

20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

21 My motion is to deny Certified Protective Detail,  
22 LLC applying for a new corporate private patrol officer  
23 license. Marvin L. Quarles is applying for individual  
24 private patrol officer license. If approved, he is  
25 requesting his individual license be placed in abeyance so

1 he may become the qualifying agent. Member to be  
2 approved -- not approved is Marvin L. Quarles.

3 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. What?

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Member to not be approved  
5 is Marvin L. Quarles. This is subject to all statutory,  
6 regulatory requirements. And the reason for this is  
7 outstanding debt and past history.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.  
9 Do we have a second?

10 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
12 have a second.

13 All in favor say aye.

14 Aye.

15 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

17 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Again, it has to do with --  
19 for me as well, because, you know, running a business  
20 myself, payroll has to be made, and that's a concern.  
21 Right? So we don't want to have employees out there that  
22 aren't being payed. And if you have problems with debt  
23 already, going into a situation like that puts you -- you  
24 know, puts you behind to start. So, unfortunately, at this  
25 time, we're not going to be able to approve your license.

1 If you have any questions or concerns, feel free to reach  
2 out to the PILB Board tomorrow.

3 THE COURT REPORTER: Reach out to who?

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: The Board tomorrow.

5 All right. Thank you, sir.

6 So agenda -- moving on to the next agenda item,  
7 No. 32, TACMED.

8 Is there a Darrell Billings?

9 MR. BILLINGS: Yes, ma'am.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Please come forward.

11 And then there's also a Christopher Baughman.

12 Hello. And Shyloh Stobie.

13 MS. STOBIE: Yeah.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Please have a seat.

15 So please tell us a little bit about yourself and  
16 the intentions with the license.

17 MR. BILLINGS: My name is Darrell Billings. I  
18 spent 20 years in the military working with the Marines,  
19 Somalia, Iraq, and doing a lot of different patrols and a  
20 lot of different services for the government. I also have  
21 worked private security for Invictus and for Reef when they  
22 were a private company. My medicine's in tactical stuff,  
23 background in medicine, went to University of Maryland,  
24 studied fire protection engineering.

25 What we're trying to do is provide a security

1 company that provides more than just security itself. We  
2 want to kind of be the first part of 911 to get there and  
3 help, have our guards not only be tactically qualified but  
4 medically qualified, bringing security and medicine to the  
5 forefront so that when we respond we're taking care of not  
6 just somebody's been injured, but we can provide the whole  
7 service for everyone.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Ma'am, introduce yourself.

9 MS. STOBIE: Shyloh Stobie. My world is marketing  
10 and merchandising. I have done that my entire career,  
11 working in New York City for Bergdorf Goodman, Saks Fifth  
12 Avenue, and was recruited by Zappos.com in 2007 to roll out  
13 their apparel division. Did so. I left there in 2017.  
14 Subsequently spent some time doing my own thing, working  
15 with HR as well, and have since been recruited to this team  
16 with this incredible initiative to become chief marketing  
17 officer.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Sir.

19 MR. BAUGHMAN: Thank you for having us. My name  
20 is Christopher Baughman. I worked for Metro for 15 years.  
21 Grew up -- pretty much got to Las Vegas when I was nine  
22 years old. I have been a part of this community for a very  
23 long time. Started out, like, with the parks and recreation  
24 and ultimately became a police officer.

25 Part of the -- my background is that I -- I went



1 through a very, very intense investigation through the FBI  
2 for five years, after being a detective here, after I  
3 retired to go pursue a television show.

4 After -- after coming back and going through,  
5 basically, a five-year investigation with the FBI, came back  
6 that no charges be filed, no evidence, but I was -- it was  
7 an interesting process to go through.

8 Ultimately, I'm the gentleman that kind of came up  
9 with the idea for TACMED. One of the big problems that we  
10 have in our community is that we have an average response  
11 time of about 12 minutes for EMS. I know that we're working  
12 hard to get that down.

13 My concept was that we would bring together  
14 people, conduct trainings, send folks to basically an  
15 academy where we would train them on every life-saving skill  
16 possible, and then embed our security personnel with  
17 tactically trained EMTs in order to kind of fill that gap,  
18 that critical window between one and twelve minutes.

19 Ultimately, we're looking at a four-minute gap  
20 where, if we can get to someone before the four-minute mark,  
21 if they're either -- if it's someone's daughter choking or  
22 potentially someone's husband or wife having a stroke, we  
23 can greatly increase the outcomes for a 100 percent recovery  
24 if we can get to them before that four-minute mark hits. At  
25 the four-minute mark, there's basically, for every minute

1 after that, a 10 percent reduction in brain -- in brain  
2 function. That makes it more difficult for them to have 100  
3 percent recovery at our current -- at our current basically  
4 time -- time mark that our EMTs and fire try to keep.

5 So about a year ago I started to write out the  
6 concepts. Talked to Darrell, who would be a perfect fit to  
7 lead this company as the COO because of his military  
8 background, his medicine background, his tactical, and --  
9 but that's -- that's who I am. That's where this idea came  
10 from.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Awesome. Thank you.

13 Board, are there any questions for this group?

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

15 Mr. Baughman, when were you employed with Metro?

16 MR. BAUGHMAN: 1/25 of '99 was when I entered the  
17 academy. And I left in 2013, I believe.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: I retired 1/2 of '99. I  
19 just wanted to make sure.

20 MR. BAUGHMAN: Yes, sir.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: You're okay. It's  
22 abundance of caution.

23 This -- to all three of you, right from the  
24 beginning here, just a comment. It's a real novel idea. I  
25 mean, it's -- it's great. All the years I spent on the

1 street and everything, TACMED, the concept is phenomenal, as  
2 far as my background goes, looking at what you're trying to  
3 do. So I'm good with that right now.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions from the  
5 Board?

6 Okay. Just a reminder. We don't have  
7 fingerprints for all three individuals, so any motion would  
8 have to note that. I'll entertain a motion.

9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

10 I'll make a motion to approve TACMED Secured  
11 Services, LLC who is applying for a new corporate private  
12 patrol officer license. Darrell W. Billings is applying for  
13 an individual private patrol officer license. If approved,  
14 he is requesting that his individual license be placed in  
15 abeyance so that he may become the qualifying agent. The  
16 members to be approved are Daniel [sic] W. Billings,  
17 Christopher M. Baughman, and Shyloh Stobie -- K. Stobie.  
18 This is subject to all statutory, regulatory requirements,  
19 also contingent that all fingerprints come back negative.

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

21 I'll second that motion.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
23 second.

24 All in favor say aye.

25 Aye.

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

3 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Great. Thanks.

5 Congratulations. Good luck to you guys.

6 MR. BAUGHMAN: Thank you very much.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Agenda Item No. 33,

8 Enhanced Security Solutions.

9 Is Brian Swendra --

10 Good morning, sir.

11 Jesus [sic] de la -- de la Luz -- Luz and

12 Marina -- there's two listed. Are there two? Okay. Marina

13 Velasquez and Marina Velasquez Swendra.

14 Good morning. Thank you for being here.

15 Could you please tell us a little bit about

16 yourselves and the intention with the license?

17 MR. SWENDRA: Good morning and thank you for your

18 time.

19 My name is Brian Swendra, and I first personally

20 started my career in June of 2002 as a private security

21 officer. I worked for many security companies. I was also

22 a manager for a few, as well as Brink's Armored Transport.

23 THE COURT REPORTER: As well as what?

24 MR. SWENDRA: Brink's Armored Transport, U.S.

25 Security Associates, and I also had the opportunity to be

1 the California loss prevention specialist for Amazon. And  
2 shortly after that, we decided to start our own company.

3 We applied and received our California PPO in  
4 November of 2012. Our business actually boomed. We did  
5 very well. We got clients such as Wells Fargo, Bank of  
6 America, U.S. Bank, and quite a few other financial  
7 institutes.

8 We're one of the few companies in California that  
9 actually do this type of work. We do ATMs for these  
10 companies. So our clients actually like us so much that  
11 they would like us to expand to different states. And if  
12 approved, we would like to be able to service in the  
13 wonderful State of Nevada.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Just because I -- I don't  
15 remember. You were sworn in originally?

16 MR. SWENDRA: Yes.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Perfect.

18 Okay. Any questions from the Board?

19 Okay. And you are one of the groups that actually  
20 have -- everyone has their fingerprints in, so  
21 congratulations, I guess.

22 If there's no questions from the Board, I'll  
23 entertain a motion.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
25 motioning to approve Enhanced Security Solutions, Inc. a new

1 corporate patrol -- private patrol officer license.  
2 Mr. Brian G. Swendra to be approved as a private control  
3 officer license and that it be placed in abeyance so that he  
4 may become the qualifying agent. Corporate officers to be  
5 approved are Jose de la Luz Velasquez, Marina Velasquez, and  
6 Marina Velasquez Swendra. Subject to all statutory,  
7 regulatory requirements.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.

9 Do we have a second?

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
12 second.

13 All in favor say aye.

14 Aye.

15 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

17 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

19 Congratulations. Good luck to you guys.

20 MR. SWENDRA: Thank you again for your time.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Kenneth Tubbs.

22 Quick question.

23 (Inaudible discussion off the  
24 record.)

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. On this particular one,

1 Kenneth Tubbs used to work for Allied, and I do know him, so  
2 I'm going to recuse myself.

3           Saying that, we still have enough for a vote, so,  
4 Ken, please tell us a little bit about yourself and your  
5 intentions.

6           MR. TUBBS: Yes, ma'am.

7           I'm retired military. I retired from the Navy in  
8 2001. Twenty years of service. Gulf War veteran. Combat  
9 Action Ribbon. Got into law enforcement for about a minute.  
10 Unfortunately, my -- my wife is Filipina and didn't like  
11 Ohio's snowstorms, so we ended up moving to San Diego where  
12 I started out working with Allied at that time.

13           I worked for Allied to Allied Universal for about  
14 12 years in various management positions. I won the same  
15 account for Intuit. I led that up till the end when my  
16 position was eliminated in 2018. After just moving here, I  
17 was in charge of the State of Nevada account for Allied  
18 Universal, and that's where I was working for Tammy at that  
19 point. And then I had moved on to Securitas for a couple of  
20 years as a district manager here in Las Vegas.

21           I then went on to be the director of security at  
22 Catholic Charities of Southern Nevada. That's the largest  
23 homeless shelter in the state of Nevada. And then after  
24 that, I had moved on to Sun State Security. Unfortunately,  
25 my position was eliminated, so now I work for PalAmerican

1 Security as the branch leader at this point, so I have about  
2 20 years of experience in security management.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, are there any questions  
4 for Mr. Tubbs?

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
6 Good morning, Mr. Tubbs. So talk to me about some  
7 of the collections that you are not making any payments  
8 towards.

9 MR. TUBBS: Yes, ma'am. It goes back to when I  
10 had spoke with the investigator -- I wasn't even aware of  
11 one of the collections that had a judgment on it. It was so  
12 old. I think it was like 18 years ago. And I contacted the  
13 San Diego courts about it, and they couldn't even look it up  
14 because it's in the old records section. And I had talked  
15 to the investigator.

16 In order for me to even try to clear that up, I  
17 would have to go to San Diego because they don't even have a  
18 line where you can call and talk with them about that one.  
19 And then -- you know, I'm just being honest here. Okay?  
20 Because --

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Wait. Wait. Real quick.  
22 I'm sorry.

23 MR. TUBBS: Yeah.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Was it your testimony that  
25 you have -- you do or don't have any intentions to go to



1 San Diego --

2 MR. TUBBS: Yes, I do.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- to take care of this?

4 MR. TUBBS: I do.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Got it.

6 MR. TUBBS: It's just I couldn't go there between  
7 the time I found out about it and the Board.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood.

9 MR. TUBBS: All right.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And then we also have --

11 MR. TUBBS: Yeah.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- some open collections.

13 MR. TUBBS: Right. Right. I believe there's like  
14 three, if I'm correct. And so what had happened was I went  
15 from a six-figure job to no job for a long period of time  
16 back in 2018 when my position was eliminated, living in an  
17 expensive home out in The Lakes. It -- it caused a  
18 repossession for me. Okay.

19 I do plan to look into this because the amount  
20 that it says on there is not what I was even aware of at  
21 all. I mean, it's not even close to what I had financed the  
22 car for. Okay. But if given the opportunity, I will  
23 definitely look into and find a way to clear those -- those  
24 open accounts.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: As stated earlier, I -- I do

1 have concerns.

2 MR. TUBBS: Yes, ma'am.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Obviously, you are applying  
4 for a qualifying agent, and as you've heard earlier, that,  
5 you know, it starts from the top, and we have some -- some  
6 issues, outstanding issues on your end. So that is -- that  
7 is a concern of mine, just so you're aware.

8 No further questions.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions for  
10 Mr. Tubbs?

11 Hearing there are no questions, I'll entertain a  
12 motion.

13 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

14 I move we approve Kenneth Tubbs for an individual  
15 private patrol officers's license and that his individual  
16 patrol officer's license be placed in abeyance so that he  
17 may -- he may become the qualifying agent for PalAmerican  
18 Security, Incorporated, License No. 2821. This is subject  
19 to all statutory and regulatory requirements.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.

21 Do we have a second?

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
23 I'm going to second the motion.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion, and we  
25 have a second.

1 All in favor say aye.

2 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Opposed?

5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye for oppose.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: And then I'm recused, so two  
7 to one.

8 MR. DETMER: It still has to vote majority.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So the motion passes.  
10 Okay. So the motion passes.

11 You know, I think there is some concern based off  
12 the finances. I think the difference between you and the  
13 gentleman before you is that you're the qualifying agent, in  
14 terms of you have a company supporting you versus the other  
15 gentleman was trying to just start a company, so --

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you for saying that,  
17 Madam Chair.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: If you have any questions,  
19 please work with the office for the next steps. Okay.  
20 Thank you. Congratulations.

21 Agenda Item No. 35, GuardUp. Tyler Davis.

22 MR. DAVIS: Here, Madam Chair.

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: And Dallas Alexander.

24 Good morning.

25 MR. ALEXANDER: Good morning.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Please tell us a little -- you  
2 guy have been sworn in, right? You're under oath?

3 MR. DAVIS: Yes, ma'am.

4 MR. ALEXANDER: Yes, ma'am.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Please tell us a little bit  
6 about yourselves and intentions with the license.

7 MR. DAVIS: So my name is Tyler Davis. I'm a  
8 Marine and Army veteran. As a Marine, I was a Marine  
9 security guard, Diplomatic Security, and that -- that kind  
10 of got me into a niche of doing executive protection. Done  
11 that from Los Angeles to here. Moved here in 2016 to be  
12 part of a special operations team at the Wynn where I met my  
13 partner Dallas.

14 Since then, we started DNA Security Solutions  
15 where he's the qualified agent. I've done everything  
16 security: executive protection, different tactical teams,  
17 special operations.

18 I've come here to apply for my qualified agent  
19 license because I would like to continue doing executive  
20 protection, but I would like to make booking executive  
21 protection services simplified and more accessible, so I  
22 have an idea to create my own company.

23 MR. ALEXANDER: My name is Dallas Alexander. I am  
24 the QA for Pinnacle Protection Group and DBA DNA Security  
25 Solutions. I am also a --

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Sorry. We have to --  
2 Why don't we take a ten-minute break while we get  
3 back online. Sorry about that.

4 (Off the record.)

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Everyone, thank you for your  
6 patience. A little technical issue, so we are starting  
7 again. We'll finish with these gentlemen here, and then  
8 we'll have everybody stand up and swear in again because I  
9 know a lot of folks did come in.

10 Okay. So sorry about that gentlemen. I don't  
11 know where we stopped.

12 MR. DAVIS: We just introduced ourselves.

13 MR. ALEXANDER: Yeah.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

15 MR. ALEXANDER: Don't know where I was.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any questions  
17 for Mr. Alexander or Mr. Davis?

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
19 Good morning, gentlemen.

20 Mr. Alexander, talk to me about the  
21 cease-and-desist letter.

22 MR. ALEXANDER: So cease-and-desist letter  
23 happened for my QA. When we started DNA Security Solutions,  
24 we were advertising a company that did like a Comic-Con that  
25 we worked with, were friends with. They asked if we knew

1 anybody that needed -- wanted to work it. So we posted for  
2 them, not knowing that it was a perception that we were  
3 looking for, like, employees to work for us. It was to be  
4 for them, to help them out.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And it's my understanding  
6 that you already spoke to the office and have a clear  
7 understanding of what can and cannot be done?

8 MR. ALEXANDER: Yes, ma'am.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Perfect.

10 MR. ALEXANDER: Under -- under my approval for my  
11 license, yes, we did speak about that and -- and resolved  
12 the -- the misunderstanding.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Perfect. Thank you.

14 And then, Mr. Davis, are we on track with your  
15 payment plan?

16 MR. DAVIS: Yes, ma'am.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: No further questions.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. And so just to verify  
19 with Investigator Dumas, you have record that they are on  
20 track with their -- with their payment plan?

21 INVESTIGATOR DUMAS: Investigator Dumas for the  
22 record.

23 He provided a document that stated that his  
24 payment plan began September of this year. He has an  
25 estimated length of 37 months with him paying \$388 a month,

1 so it's only been a couple of months. I believe only  
2 October has been withdrawn, October and November, since  
3 we're now in December.

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

6 Okay. I have no further questions.

7 Any further questions from the Board?

8 Okay. If there's no further questions, I'll  
9 entertain a motion.

10 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

11 I motion that GuardUp be approved for a new  
12 corporate private patrol officer's license and Tyler R.  
13 Davis be approved for an individual private patrol officer's  
14 license and that his license be placed in abeyance so that  
15 he may become the qualifying agent. Members to be approved  
16 are Tyler Davis and Dallas Alexander.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.

18 Do we have a second?

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
20 I'll second the motion.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
22 have a second.

23 All in favor say aye.

24 Aye.

25 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

2 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Motion passes.

4 Congratulations, gentlemen. Good luck to you.

5 Okay. So for everyone that came into the room  
6 later and if you haven't been sworn in, could you please  
7 stand, and we'll have Counsel Detmer swear you in.

8 MR. DETMER: Good morning.

9 For those of you who are going to present and/or  
10 testify before the Board, if you could, please raise your  
11 right hand.

12 Do you hereby swear or affirm to tell the truth,  
13 the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

14 (Audience answers in the  
15 affirmative.)

16 (Applicants and witnesses were  
17 sworn by Counsel Detmer.)

18 MR. DETMER: Thank you.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you, everyone.

20 Okay. Agenda Item No. 36, Command Investigations.  
21 Do we have Jeffrey Victor and Jason -- I'm sorry.

22 MR. CHOFOOKLUN: Chofooklun.

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Chofooklun.

24 MR. CHOFOOKLUN: Yes, ma'am.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Say it again.



1 MR. CHOFOOKLUN: Chofooklun.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Chofooklun. Okay. Thank you.

3 MR. VICTOR: Good morning.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Gentlemen, please tell  
5 us a little bit about yourself and your intentions with the  
6 license.

7 MR. VICTOR: Hi. My name is Jeff Victor. I've  
8 been an investigator for about 33 years. I've been a  
9 licensed private investigator in California for about 22  
10 years. And my intention with the license, we have current  
11 clients that have investigative needs in the state of  
12 Nevada, and we'd like to satisfy their need -- their needs.

13 Excuse me. I need water.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: It's all right.

15 MR. CHOFOOKLUN: My name is Jason Chofooklun.  
16 I've been a private investigator since 2014. Prior to that  
17 I was in security in the hospitality industry. I was also a  
18 Marine. I did four and a half years. Did a short tour in  
19 Iraq and a host of other places. Been to about 15 different  
20 countries.

21 Command Investigations is excited about serving  
22 our current clients in Nevada and then bringing a high level  
23 of investigate services to the state. So we're excited  
24 about getting approved today if we can do that.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, are there any questions

1 for the gentlemen?

2 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

3 Good morning, gentlemen.

4 MR. CHOFOOKLUN: Good morning.

5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Mr. Victor.

6 MR. VICTOR: Yes, sir.

7 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: What is your residence  
8 now?

9 MR. VICTOR: I am in California. I've been out  
10 here three times now looking at places. I do have a place  
11 in mind. I will be signing a lease. I'm going to rent  
12 while I'm looking for a house. So I will be signing at  
13 least by the beginning of the year or the beginning of the  
14 year, and I do know not to perform any work in the state  
15 until I reside here.

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Yeah. Because the  
17 particular note is "The applicant currently lives out of  
18 state but is aware of the requirement to be present in  
19 Nevada as granted per license."

20 MR. VICTOR: Correct. I'm relocating out here.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: You are relocating but  
22 you're not relocated?

23 MR. VICTOR: I'm -- I'm sorry?

24 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: You're relocating but  
25 you're not relocated yet?

1 MR. VICTOR: Correct. Correct. But I -- my  
2 intentions are to relocate. I'm selling my house in  
3 California. And once that sells, I will be moving to  
4 Nevada.

5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: That's all I have. Thank  
6 you.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, any other questions?  
8 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
9 I'll entertain a motion.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
11 motioning to approve Command Investigations, LLC for a new  
12 corporate private investigator license, Mr. Jeffrey M.  
13 Victor to be approved as the private investigator license,  
14 and that the license be placed in abeyance so that he may  
15 become the qualifying agent. The member to be approved is  
16 Mr. Jason Chofooklun. All subject to statutory and  
17 regulatory requirements.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.  
19 Do we have a second?

20 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
22 have a second.

23 All in favor say aye.

24 Aye.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

1 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Opposed?

3 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Nay.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So three to one. The motion  
5 passes.

6 Good luck to you. And again, remember, you know,  
7 once you reside here.

8 MR. VICTOR: Yes, ma'am. Absolutely. Thank you.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

10 Agenda Item No. 37, Robert Skahill and Michael  
11 Mansfield for Elite Security.

12 Good morning.

13 MR. SKAHILL: Good morning.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good morning, gentlemen.

15 Just as a reminder, we do not have fingerprints  
16 for Mr. Mansfield, but we can proceed --

17 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Investigator Cuevas for the  
18 record.

19 We actually did receive the results for  
20 Mr. Mansfield yesterday.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

22 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: They were negative.

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So you're the only one  
24 that actually got theirs. Okay. So we do have those.

25 Thank you.

1           Okay. Gentlemen, tell us a little bit about  
2 yourself and the intentions with the license.

3           MR. SKAHILL: I'm a retired Chicago police  
4 officer. Lived in Nevada for eight years now. Currently,  
5 we own Elite Security Specialists, which is a security  
6 guard, like, convention services company. Much like the guy  
7 that just left, a couple of our clients have inquired about  
8 investigation surveillance. So I checked with both Vinny  
9 and Zach prior to this, and they said that in order for us  
10 to do that I would need to get the PI license. I went  
11 through the steps, got the license. Here we are.

12           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: All right. Board, any  
13 questions for Mr. Skahill or Mr. Mansfield?

14           Okay. Hearing there are no --

15           EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Madam -- Madam  
16 Chair, just for clarification. Mr. Mansfield wanted to be  
17 here today, but he wasn't able to make it to the meeting.  
18 He did have his general counsel draw up a letter in regards  
19 to the -- the audit that TM had received in New York. His  
20 general counsel states in this letter that it was due to  
21 some unregistered security guards had been employed and  
22 there was some licensing language that was omitted in the  
23 contract. At that time, Mr. Mansfield was not part of the  
24 company, but since then, they have now hired a full-time  
25 chief compliance officer and general counsel to reach our

1 compliance. So we did receive that letter and -- you know,  
2 stating about the audit, being that Mr. Mansfield couldn't  
3 be here today. And that was drawn up by his general  
4 counsel.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So then who you are?

6 MR. GIARDINA: I'm Frank Giardina. I'm the other  
7 member of Elite Security Specialists.

8 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. Frank who?

9 MR. GIARDINA: Giardina.

10 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Madam Chair, he was  
11 previously approved last Board meeting.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Oh, okay.

13 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: He just -- he just  
14 came in case there was any questions that the Board might  
15 have just to show the support since Mr. Mansfield couldn't  
16 be here.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Got it. Okay. Thank you.

18 Okay. If there's no further questions, I'll  
19 entertain a motion.

20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

21 Make a motion to approve Robert Skahill as  
22 applying for an individual private investigator license. If  
23 approved, he is requesting that his individual private  
24 investigator license be placed in abeyance so that he may  
25 become the qualifying agent for Elite Security Specialists,

1 LLC, License No. 1392. Member to be approved, Michael J.  
2 Mansfield. This is subject to all statutory and regulatory  
3 requirements.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion.  
5 Do we have a second?

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
7 I'll second the motion.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
9 have a second.

10 All in favor say aye.

11 Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye. Sorry.

14 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Motion passes.

16 Congratulations, gentlemen. Good luck to you.

17 Thank you.

18 Okay. Agenda Item No. 38, Binocular Affairs.

19 MS. NICHOLS: Good morning.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good morning.

21 So, Ms. Nichols, please tell us a little bit about  
22 yourself and the intentions with the license.

23 MS. NICHOLS: So I currently have a private  
24 investigator license and a business running in Texas. We've  
25 been running that business for two years. We've been highly

1 rated No. 1 this whole time. We do have interns that we  
2 like to train, and that's what I plan to do here in Vegas as  
3 well.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So you'll be running an  
5 investigative group or just training?

6 MS. NICHOLS: No, an actual investigative group.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

8 MS. NICHOLS: But I just want to open up  
9 opportunities for the interns that would maybe be interested  
10 in the field, so just to give that opportunity as well.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Got it.

12 Board, any questions for Ms. Nichols?

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

14 Good morning to you, Ms. Nichols.

15 MS. NICHOLS: Good morning.

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Can you explain the  
17 incident with the arrest November 2021 for obstructing  
18 highway passage?

19 MS. NICHOLS: Yes, sir. So I fell asleep on the  
20 side of the road, and I was under the influence.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: And you were what?

22 MS. NICHOLS: Under the influence.

23 So I pulled over because I didn't feel like I  
24 should be driving, and the police officer came.

25 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: And that case is all taken



1 care of?

2 MS. NICHOLS: Yes.

3 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: All right. Thank you.

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Go ahead.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Sorry.

7 Good morning.

8 MS. NICHOLS: Good morning.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Is there a reason why you  
10 did not disclose all of your criminal history on your  
11 application?

12 MS. NICHOLS: So I was under the impression that  
13 that was not on my criminal history.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Which one?

15 MS. NICHOLS: The 20- -- I think 2015, I think it  
16 was.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Are we talking about the  
18 2008?

19 MS. NICHOLS: Oh, yeah. I'm sorry. 2008, yes.

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So the aggravated assault  
21 with a deadly weapon charge?

22 MS. NICHOLS: That's correct.

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So one more time.

24 Why -- why did you fail to disclose that charge?

25 MS. NICHOLS: Yeah. So that -- that should have

1 been sealed and not been able to view. I was 18 at the  
2 time. So I just wasn't aware that that was still there.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So are you aware that  
4 when you file or when you complete the application there's a  
5 portion of the application that specifically states you need  
6 to list all criminal history despite the disposition?

7 Whether it was sealed, whether it wasn't, whether  
8 it's pending, under the California PC code whether it was no  
9 longer existing now, everything had to be disclosed.

10 Were you aware of that?

11 MS. NICHOLS: I must have misinterpreted that.  
12 That -- that is my wrong for doing that.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: All right. No worries.  
14 Thank you for the honesty. No further questions.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. And then, you know, the  
16 last final question for me -- or question for me is the  
17 financial, outstanding financial debts that you have, since  
18 four of the six accounts have been disputed by applicant.

19 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. Since what?

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Four of the six accounts have  
21 been disputed.

22 So where are we with those? Are you making  
23 payments or --

24 MS. NICHOLS: So four have been disputed. They're  
25 currently still in the dispute status. Two of those -- two

1 have been paid. One was wrongfully reported to my record.

2 I have payments that -- that shows the completion of the  
3 payment, so I'm not aware of why it showed up on there.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Did we get copies of  
5 that information?

6 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Not from the applicant.

7 The Board accounts do show that they're under  
8 dispute and review.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

10 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: But I did do a check again  
11 after the initial one, and I have reached out to  
12 Ms. Nichols. There -- one of the accounts does show that it  
13 has been satisfied. One still is open.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Are you aware of the  
15 one that's open?

16 MS. NICHOLS: I'm not sure.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further questions  
18 from the Board?

19 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
20 I'll entertain a motion.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

22 I'm going to motion that we deny Binocular  
23 Affairs, Limited Liability Company a new corporate private  
24 investigator license based on failure to disclose full  
25 history of criminal activity and as well as outstanding

1 financial issues that we have going on.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.

3 Do we have a second?

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion. We have  
6 a second.

7 All in favor say aye.

8 Aye.

9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

11 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So you have an opportunity to  
13 come back and reapply. Work with the office. They will  
14 help you go through the application and satisfy everything  
15 that -- you know, the information that's needed. If you  
16 have any questions, please feel free to reach out. They're  
17 very helpful.

18 MS. NICHOLS: Okay.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you.

20 MS. NICHOLS: Thank you.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good luck to you.

22 IUnited. Do we have Todd Tano and -- Todd and  
23 Courtney?

24 MR. TANO: Courtney could not make it.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Okay. So tell us a

1 little bit about your company and the intentions with the  
2 license.

3 MR. TANO: I was actually licensed as a private  
4 investigator in Nevada previously. I missed my renewal by a  
5 few months, and so, hence, I have reapplied for the license.

6 I've been a private investigator for over 30 years  
7 and have held a PI license in well over 30 states with my  
8 previous -- previous company and would like to start doing  
9 work here in Nevada.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So question for me: Do  
11 you currently have business in Nevada?

12 MR. TANO: No.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any questions from the  
14 Board?

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
16 But you said Mr. Tano was not available to come?

17 MR. TANO: No. I'm -- I'm --

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You are Mr. Tano?

19 MR. TANO: Yes.

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Got it. I'm sorry.  
21 My apologies.

22 Talk to me about the lawsuit.

23 MR. TANO: Sure.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Are we still currently in  
25 litigation?

1 MR. TANO: No. That has been completed as of two  
2 weeks ago.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Do you have -- did you  
4 provide any paperwork indicating such, by any chance?

5 MR. TANO: I believe I did --

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

7 MR. TANO: -- to Investigator Diaz.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Perfect. That was my next  
9 question.

10 Investigator Diaz, do we have confirmation that  
11 the case has been closed?

12 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: This is Investigator Diaz for  
13 the record.

14 Yes, we did receive paperwork. We did receive it.  
15 From what we understand, it has been taken care of and is  
16 good to go, so, yes, that is correct.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you so much. No  
18 further questions.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions from the  
20 Board?

21 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
22 I'll entertain a motion.

23 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

24 I move that we approve iUnited for a new corporate  
25 private investigator's license and that Todd Tano be

1 approved for an individual private investigator's license  
2 and that license be placed in abeyance so that he may become  
3 the qualifying agent. Corporate officers to be approved are  
4 Todd Tano and Courtney Files.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.  
6 Do we have a second?

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez.  
8 I'll second the motion.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.  
10 We have a second.

11 All in favor say aye.

12 Aye.

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

15 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

17 Congratulations. Good luck to you.

18 MR. TANO: Thank you.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. The next agenda item is  
20 for process server, private investigator.

21 Do we have a Rene N. Austin-Brown?

22 Good morning.

23 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: Good morning.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you for your patience.

25 Have you been sworn in?

1 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: I have.

2 And it's Rena. It's with an "A" at the end. It  
3 was mistyped so --

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. No worries.

5 Okay. Please tell us a little bit about yourself  
6 and the intentions with the license.

7 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: I'm not as interesting as all  
8 the other people. My name is Rena. I work at Legal Wings.  
9 I've been there for about 14 years as of this coming up  
10 February -- February. And I'm the general manager there.  
11 We are a process service, career service, skip trace  
12 investigative company.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, are there any  
14 questions for Ms. Brown?

15 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.  
16 Again, good morning to you.

17 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: Good morning.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Can you explain to us  
19 about the van and then --

20 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: Um-hmm.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Please.

22 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: So -- yes. And I didn't know  
23 how to prove it, but I did get a bill of sale from the  
24 dealership when they bought them back, which I will email in  
25 to the investigator.



1           So long story short, I cosigned for Sprinter vans,  
2     like the Amazon-type vans. And they were having issues with  
3     the repairs and parts, catalytic converters were getting  
4     stolen, and the backlog, et cetera. And had to still run  
5     the business, and so they ended up having to re-rent again  
6     through Enterprise, those type people, the rental companies,  
7     and couldn't afford to make the payments as well as paying  
8     the rental fee. So the dealership did buy them back, and I  
9     did get the bill of sales from the dealership yesterday. I  
10    got those. I didn't know what else to provide to --

11           BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: So these are now -- this  
12    situation is closed out?

13           MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: Yes, sir, it is. It is done.  
14    The bill of sales were signed, I think, in '22, but I do  
15    have them.

16           BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: And did you say you  
17    emailed them to the investigator?

18           MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: I -- I will. I just got them  
19    yesterday from the salesman.

20           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Do you have -- were they  
21    emailed to you or --

22           MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: Yes. I have -- I can -- I can  
23    forward it.

24           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Could you?

25           And I think -- so let -- we're going to go ahead

1 and trail you for right now.

2 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: Okay.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Email that to -- who?

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Investigator Diaz.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Oh, email it to Investigator  
6 Diaz.

7 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: Okay.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: And then once we have that  
9 proof, we'll be able to make a motion and make a final  
10 decision.

11 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: Okay.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Otherwise -- I'm sorry?

13 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: Board Member -- Board Member  
14 Cortez [sic], this is Investigator Diaz.

15 On the TransUnion report, it does show that those  
16 are cleared.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

18 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: I did not receive anything  
19 from Ms. Brown. But when I did run her -- her financials,  
20 they do show that those were taken care of.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Perfect. Okay.

22 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: That's good news. You  
23 don't have to be trailed.

24 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: Oh, good. I wanted to just  
25 close, but yes -- so -- yes. Okay.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any other Board  
2 questions?

3 Okay. Hearing there are no other Board questions,  
4 I'll entertain a motion.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
6 motioning to approve Ms. Rene -- Rena --

7 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: Rena.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Rena.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Rena?

10 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: Yes.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- N. Austin-Brown for a  
12 individual private investigator and process server license,  
13 subject to all statutory, regulatory requirements.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.  
15 Do we have a second?

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
18 second.

19 All in favor say aye.

20 Aye.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

22 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

23 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

25 Congratulations.

1 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: Thank you.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good luck to you.

3 MS. AUSTIN-BROWN: Thank you.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. The next one is  
5 polygraph examiner intern, Linda Quast.

6 Sorry. How do you --

7 MS. QUAST: Quast.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Quast. Okay. Thank you.

9 Please tell us a little bit about yourself and the  
10 intentions with the license.

11 MS. QUAST: I'm Linda Quast. I came into  
12 polygraph through higher education. Been exposed to it for  
13 about 12 years working with the industry in various  
14 capacities. Known my -- my mentor Rick for quite some time  
15 and looking forward to learning more from him and supporting  
16 the community.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Awesome.

18 Board, are there any questions for Ms. Quast?

19 Okay. Hearing there are no questions, I'll  
20 entertain a motion.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
22 motioning to approve Ms. Linda M. Quast for individual  
23 polygraph examiner intern license, subject to all statutory,  
24 regulatory requirements.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.

1 Do we have a second?

2 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
4 have a second.

5 All in favor say aye.

6 Aye.

7 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

9 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

11 Good luck to you.

12 MS. QUAST: Thank you.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Congratulations.

14 Okay. So the next portion is registration  
15 appeals. I see a lot of people coming and going, so just to  
16 be sure: Is there anybody in the room that has not been  
17 sworn in yet?

18 Okay. So go ahead and stand, and we'll have  
19 Counsel Detmer --

20 MR. DETMER: You're good -- you're good right  
21 there, sir. But if you could, please raise your right hand.

22 For those who are going to present and/or testify  
23 in front of the Board, do you hereby swear or affirm to tell  
24 the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

25 (Audience answers in the

1 affirmative.)

2 (Applicants and witnesses were  
3 sworn by Counsel Detmer.)

4 MR. DETMER: Thank you. Thank you.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So can you have a seat, sir.  
6 We're calling everybody up according to agenda item number.  
7 Okay. So the first agenda item for registration  
8 appeals is Miguel Vargas -- Vargas.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Vargas. Vargas.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Vargas. Do we have a Miguel  
11 Vargas?

12 Okay. We'll trail.

13 Daryl Britt?

14 Good afternoon, sir.

15 MR. BRITT: Good afternoon.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Or good -- yeah, good morning.  
17 Investigator Cuevas, can you tell us why we're  
18 here for Mr. Britt?

19 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Yes.

20 Investigator Cuevas for the record.

21 The applicant was denied for his listed felony  
22 convictions from the years 1984 to 2011.

23 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. Can you speak up?

24 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Yes. Sorry.

25 The applicant was denied for his felony listed

1 convictions from the years of 1984 to 2011. The applicant  
2 shows a history of being arrested after being released on  
3 parole, which is why he has multiple throughout the years.  
4 The applicant's most recent arrest is from 2011, and it  
5 shows he was discharged from parole February of 2023.

6 The applicant was not made provisional as he did  
7 list his arrests when applying. The applicant wishes to  
8 appeal.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Just so I can make sure I --  
10 okay. He disclosed the felony but not some of the other  
11 ones?

12 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: So after speaking with  
13 Mr. Britt over the phone, he did then recall the ones -- he  
14 assumed they were together because they were parole  
15 violations, so they stemmed from his original charge, and  
16 then they were subsequent. So to him they were kind of all  
17 together.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Are there any questions  
19 for Mr. Vargas?

20 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Britt.

21 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: This is Britt.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Daryl Britt, not Vargas.

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

24 Good morning, Mr. Britt. How are you?

25 MR. BRITT: I'm fine. Yourself? Good morning.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Good. Thank you.

2 How long have you been in Nevada?

3 MR. BRITT: I've been in Nevada since -- a couple  
4 years now, 2023 -- 2022. Yeah, '22. Yeah.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So 2022 or 2023?

6 MR. BRITT: Twenty-two, ma'am.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. And you were just  
8 discharged from parole when?

9 MR. BRITT: I was discharged from New York City  
10 parole back in -- what? I think it was '17, '18, early --

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So according to our  
12 investigator, you were discharged back in February of 2023.

13 MR. BRITT: Okay.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: The reason why I'm bringing  
15 this up is that you -- as indicated, you have a history of  
16 reoffending after release. You just got released from  
17 parole a year ago in February.

18 MR. BRITT: Excuse me.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: We're going back -- we're  
20 coming up on two years.

21 MR. BRITT: No. I did not --

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: It was February of 20- --

23 MR. BRITT: No. I --

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So, sir, I'm just  
25 telling you what was based off the investigations.



1 MR. BRITT: Okay.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And based off the  
3 investigation, you terminated from parole in February of  
4 2023. So come February of 2025, it's just barely going to  
5 give us two years based off you being discharged off any  
6 kind of supervision.

7 Does that make sense?

8 MR. BRITT: No, it really don't. Because New York  
9 is New York. This is Nevada. That's my past.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And you're asking for a  
11 license -- or you're asking to work in Nevada.

12 MR. BRITT: Yes.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So let's stay focused on  
14 what's in Nevada.

15 MR. BRITT: Okay.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Don't worry about  
17 New York. New York is where all your criminal history came  
18 from.

19 So understand that you're coming before a Board in  
20 Nevada asking to work here, based off what I'm looking at,  
21 that you have a history of criminal offending after the  
22 release of being incarcerated. So what I'm trying to  
23 explain to you is that I need some consistency to see that  
24 you're able to contribute to our society without getting  
25 into any kind of trouble. You just got off parole about a

1 year ago, so I need to see that.

2 Now, you're saying that that's New York. Well,  
3 can I see some consistency here in Nevada? That's where I'm  
4 trying to get at.

5 MR. BRITT: Yeah. I understand.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Are we in agreement that you  
7 have terminated in February of 2023, or is that conflicting  
8 information based on your --

9 MR. BRITT: No, I'm about to check right now.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So what -- what do we have?

11 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: For (indiscernible), it is  
12 based off fingerprint report. The fingerprint report, like  
13 I said, the most recent arrest was 2011. Fingerprint report  
14 shows parole was released 2017, like he said, but he wasn't  
15 discharged until 2023. So I believe he was technically  
16 still on paper, but he didn't require to have, like, I  
17 think, check-ins or anything like that.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So from 2017, though, has he  
19 had any incidents?

20 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: No.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: No --

22 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: He has no -- no instances in  
23 New York, none here.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Got it. Okay. So --  
25 okay.

1           And all -- so now that I'm on the right person,  
2 all the -- the convictions or arrests were disclosed?

3           INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Yes. I spoke with him, and  
4 we went through what was on the fingerprints. He did --

5           MR. BRITT: Excuse me.

6           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Hang on one second, sir.

7           INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: -- list convictions --

8           MR. BRITT: Yes, ma'am.

9           THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. He did what?

10          INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: He did list convictions when  
11 he did apply.

12          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Okay. Any questions  
13 from the Board?

14          Sir, did you want to add something real quick?

15          MR. BRITT: Yes. The reason that I decided to do  
16 security is because when I was in New York City, I worked  
17 for the New York City Parks Department, and we worked PEP,  
18 that's park enforcement patrol. And when you have a job  
19 like that, it showed me different things, how to deal with  
20 people, life situations, so on and so forth.

21          So this was a city-wide enforcement unit that I  
22 was a part of, so we did major events. We did beaches. We  
23 did so on and so forth. Many things we did. There was  
24 times where we had to break up brawls between rival gangs,  
25 remove addicts from parks, protect children. Like, we -- me

1 and my team, we did so many different things. You know, so  
2 I figured, Okay, if I start a new life in Nevada, I can go  
3 into security. That's the only reason I applied for it.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Do you currently have a  
5 job opportunity?

6 MR. BRITT: As of right now, no, I do not, ma'am.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Okay. Are there any  
8 further questions from the Board?

9 MR. GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

10 Is this a reapplication, or is this a new  
11 application?

12 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: No. This would be his first  
13 time applying.

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: And he has all -- all  
15 these arrests listed?

16 MR. BRITT: Yes, ma'am. Yes, sir.

17 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: That's impressive.

18 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Yeah. He -- yeah.

19 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: That's impressive. That's  
20 all.

21 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: He was very helpful when  
22 reaching out to him and stuff like that.

23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: I appreciate that. Thank  
24 you.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So if there's no

1 further questions, I'll entertain a motion.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez  
3 motioning to approve Mr. Britt's work card.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.  
5 Do we have a second?

6 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
8 second.

9 All in favor say aye.

10 Aye.

11 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

13 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations. Your work  
15 card will be issued. The office will contact you, you know,  
16 by the end of the week. Okay.

17 MR. BRITT: Thank you.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good luck to you and thank you  
19 for filling this out completely with all of the arrests that  
20 you have.

21 MR. BRITT: Yes, ma'am. Thank you.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Agenda Item No. 44, Michael --  
23 oh, I'm sorry. Postponed.

24 Agenda Item No. 45, Jeffrey Axelson.

25 MR. AXELSON: Yes. I'm here.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good morning, sir.

2 MR. AXELSON: Hey. How are you?

3 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Good morning.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good.

5 Investigator Cuevas, could you tell us why we're  
6 here for Mr. Axelson?

7 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Yeah.

8 So Mr. Axelson was denied for his undisclosed  
9 weapon conviction from 2012.

10 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. You have to speak  
11 up.

12 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Sorry.

13 Mr. Axelson was denied for his undisclosed weapon  
14 conviction from 2012. He was made provisional but not added  
15 to any company roster.

16 Once I received the fingerprint results, I did  
17 reach out to Mr. Axelson, and he did not recall the arrest  
18 at first, but then he was able to provide me with court  
19 documents for the arrest, and he is here to appeal.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Are there any questions  
21 for Mr. Axelson?

22 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

23 Mr. Axelson, why did you not list your -- your  
24 arrest?

25 MR. AXELSON: I didn't realize that it was -- I

1 actually had forgotten about it. And my attorney -- back in  
2 the time I was arrested, in 2012, in New York, and they had  
3 said it went down to a -- to a ticket, so I didn't even  
4 realize that it was still part of that record.

5 And then since then, I have owned an FFL and an  
6 SOT and FFL-07 manufacturer of firearms. I've been working  
7 with the ATF for over ten years, so I just -- I didn't --  
8 didn't even consider it.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Are there any further  
10 questions?

11 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
12 I'll entertain a motion.

13 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

14 I move we uphold the denial based on the fact that  
15 he did not disclose the arrest.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.

17 Do we have a second?

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
20 second.

21 All in favor say aye.

22 Aye.

23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

25 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Unfortunately, sir, because  
2 you did not disclose, which is very prominent in our  
3 application, we're not going to be able to approve the  
4 overturn of your denial.

5 You do have an opportunity to come back in one  
6 year and reapply. Just please make sure that you note  
7 any -- any incidents that you've had, like it states on the  
8 actual application. Thank you.

9 MR. AXELSON: Yeah. Understood. Thank you.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yep.

11 MR. AXELSON: Have a good one.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good luck to you.

13 Agenda Item No. 46 is withdrawn.

14 So Agenda Item No. 47, they were able to clear.  
15 It was made active at the office, so that is no longer on  
16 the agenda.

17 Agenda Item No. 48, Terrance Prekop.

18 MR. PREKOP: Prekop.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Prekop. Good morning, sir.

20 MR. PREKOP: Good morning.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Blackmore, could  
22 you please tell us why we're here?

23 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yes.

24 So Mr. Prekop's application was denied due to  
25 failure to disclose his arrest history.



1 He has a 1989 battery. There was no disposition  
2 for the fingerprint report.

3 He has a 1990 carry loaded firearm in a public  
4 place. That was dismissed.

5 He has a 1997 force assault with deadly weapon not  
6 firearm GBI. There was no disposition per the fingerprint  
7 report. I did request court documents, but they were never  
8 received.

9 He has a 2004 DUI conviction. He did 36 months  
10 probation, 10 days jail suspended sentence.

11 He has a 2005 DUI conviction, 16 months probation,  
12 12 days jail and a \$1,995 fine. Court docs were requested  
13 but were never received.

14 He was made provisional but not ever added onto a  
15 roster, and he wishes to appeal today.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, are there any  
17 questions for Mr. Prekop?

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
19 Mr. Prekop, good morning.

20 MR. PREKOP: Good morning.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Why did you fail to disclose  
22 any of your criminal history?

23 MR. PREKOP: So I've worked -- I just moved here  
24 from California last April because we moved my mom here. I  
25 worked at Sandals Church for 15 years, and I had a guard

1 card in California. I have a weapons permit in California.  
2 I've been live scanned several times by Sandals Church, by  
3 the -- the DOJ, and so they -- all that stuff -- they only  
4 go back five years, so I -- when I talked to -- to Nevada, I  
5 didn't realize that -- that they went all the way back to  
6 high school, basically, so I -- or I would have put them on.

7 And then they sent me a letter, but because of the  
8 address change, I didn't get the -- the mail in time to go  
9 to the office and correct to add on that stuff. So it was  
10 denied and that's why I'm here.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So, sir, let me help you out.  
12 Surprise, this is Nevada, not California.

13 MR. PREKOP: Right.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So the other part is  
15 Nevada, our actual paperwork says "no matter where, no  
16 matter when, list it." It has a big stop sign on it. So,  
17 unfortunately, all of what you just said, still the issue is  
18 you did not disclose.

19 MR. PREKOP: Right.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So that being said, I'll ask  
21 if there's any other questions from the Board.

22 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
23 I'll entertain a motion.

24 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

25 I make a motion to uphold the denial for Terrance

1 Prekop's applied for registration for work card.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.

3 Do we have a second?

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

5 Motion -- second the motion. My apologies.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.

7 We have a second.

8 All in favor say aye.

9 Aye.

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. You have an opportunity  
14 to apply again in one year.

15 MR. PREKOP: Okay.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Please, the office will help  
17 you if you have an issue with the application, but it's very  
18 clear in there that no matter what, no matter when, you need  
19 to -- you need to disclose.

20 MR. PREKOP: Okay. All right. Thank you.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Good luck to you.

22 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Madam Chair, this is Bezick.

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yes.

24 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: We've got a gentleman that's  
25 been in the office up here since 9:00 a.m., and he's No. 83.

1 So if we could bump him up, it certainly would be  
2 appreciated.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: All these people have been  
4 here since 9:00 a.m.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah. We -- we have an office  
6 full, unfortunately, so sorry.

7 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Understood.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah. Sorry about that.  
9 Agenda Item 49, Adrianna Jenkins -- Jennings.

10 MS. JENNINGS: Adrienne.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Adrienne. Okay. Good  
12 morning.

13 MS. JENNINGS: Good morning.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Blackmore, could  
15 you please tell us why we're here for Ms. Jennings?

16 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yes.

17 So Ms. Jennings was denied due to temporary  
18 habitus and failure to disclose her arrest history.

19 So she has a 2023 coercion. This arrest occurred  
20 while she was in custody at the Henderson Detention Center.  
21 It is basically related to the 2023 domestic violence --  
22 domestic battery second offense. She was convicted. She  
23 did a month and a half.

24 There's a 2020 conspiracy to commit child abuse.  
25 This one was not disclosed. She did 364 days in Clark

1 County Detention Center, 2 years probation, classes, no  
2 contact. This case originally started out as a felony, so  
3 it started out as child abuse and neglect, two counts, and  
4 then battery by strangulation.

5 There is a 2015 arrest for child abuse, neglect,  
6 or endangerment. She was convicted to 90 days in Clark  
7 County Detention Center. This case also started out as a  
8 felony.

9 There is a 2010 assault with a deadly weapon as  
10 well as a battery charge. The weapon charge was dismissed.  
11 Convicted of the battery. She had to stay out of trouble,  
12 suspended jail sentence, and community service.

13 She does have an Excel sheet attached as well to  
14 list all the other additional arrests.

15 She was not made provisional. She does wish to  
16 appeal today.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Are there any questions  
18 from the Board?

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
20 Good morning, Ms. Jennings.

21 MS. JENNINGS: Good morning.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Why did we fail to disclose  
23 any of our criminal history?

24 MS. JENNINGS: The only one that I failed to  
25 disclose was the assault with a deadly weapon because it

1 said dismissed on it when I had got help from filling it out  
2 while I was staying in the shelter. And then --

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You said that was the only  
4 one that you did not disclose?

5 MS. JENNINGS: Yes, that's the only one. Because  
6 when I previously filled it out, I did put everything else  
7 down. And then I had talked to one person who was staying  
8 in the shelter working with me as my case manager, and he  
9 went back and showed me everything that I had to put down,  
10 so I had corrected it. That's when I got the appeal  
11 paperwork.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Got it.

13 So, unfortunately, our investigators did a  
14 thorough background check, which includes fingerprinting,  
15 and it listed the number of charges that you just heard and  
16 that none of them were reported.

17 So, unfortunately, that is a major requirement.  
18 And when you apply, I just want to -- I'm going to bring it  
19 up so I can show everybody now.

20 On page 5 of the application, there is a big, red  
21 sign that says "stop," that you need to list all criminal  
22 history despite -- regardless of any kind of disposition,  
23 whether it was closed, not closed, dropped, dismissed,  
24 anything. You need to list all of them.

25 And based off --

1 MS. JENNINGS: And I did with the -- with the --

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Hang on one second.

3 Based off the report that we got from our  
4 investigator, which they pulled from fingerprints, not from  
5 hearsay, not from somebody else, it's actual fingerprint,  
6 and, unfortunately, there was quite a number of criminal  
7 convictions that you failed to list. Okay? So I just want  
8 to make sure that you understand that part.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions from the  
10 Board?

11 Hearing there are no further questions, I'll  
12 entertain a motion.

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

14 Motion to uphold the denial of Adrienne Jennings  
15 applied for a work card, nondisclosure.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.

17 Do we have a second?

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

19 I'm going to second the motion and also note that  
20 we also have a 2023 case, so I'm also going to include time  
21 in addition to failure to disclose.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.

23 We have a second.

24 All in favor say aye.

25 Aye.

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

3 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

5 Unfortunately, you won't be able to get your work  
6 card today. You do have an opportunity to reapply in one  
7 year. Please work with the office. They will help you fill  
8 out your application. Okay. Thank you. Have a great day.

9 Agenda Item No. 50, Brittany Ross.

10 Hello.

11 MS. ROSS: Hello.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Blackmore, why  
13 are we here for Ms. Ross?

14 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yes. So Ms. Ross was  
15 denied for her disclosed weapons conviction. It's a 2010  
16 possession of sales switch blade knife. She did three years  
17 probation.

18 She has a 2019 battery that was dismissed.

19 A 2016 possession of (indiscernible) drugs. She  
20 did two years probation.

21 THE COURT REPORTER: Possession of what?

22 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Possession of drugs.

23 She did two years probation, one year confinement,  
24 a \$900 fine.

25 A 2011 forgery, receiving stolen property, as well



1 as burglary. This was all misdemeanor charges. She was  
2 convicted.

3 A 2009 possession of narcotic controlled  
4 substance. This was dismissed.

5 She did disclose all arrests. She was made  
6 provisional but not added to a roster. She wishes to appeal  
7 today.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So she was made provisional?

9 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Correct.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: But she disclosed all the  
11 arrests? Because they weren't felonies?

12 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: (Non-verbal response.)

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Got it. Okay.

14 Okay. Board, any questions for Ms. Ross?

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

16 Hi, Ms. Ross. Talk to me about the 2019 case.

17 MS. ROSS: So, you guys, I actually sent in other  
18 documentations from the courts because I never served a year  
19 in jail time. I never did any of that. That was  
20 provisional if I messed up again. So I --

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So I think we're talking  
22 about two different cases. I'm talking about a 2019 battery  
23 constituting of domestic violence.

24 MS. ROSS: Oh, that was in Nevada.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Yep.

1 MS. ROSS: Okay. So I was talking about '16, I  
2 think it was.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Yeah, you were.

4 MS. ROSS: Because that was a very big  
5 misunderstanding going back and forth with --

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Yeah. You're good on that  
7 one. You're good on that one.

8 MS. ROSS: Domestic violence, I actually got  
9 attacked by my ex-husband. He was on top of me, suffocating  
10 me, and I bit him. And me admitting that I bit him is why  
11 they arrested me. So then they found that I was not -- I  
12 was -- it was self defense not --

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. And the case got  
14 dismissed?

15 MS. ROSS: Yes.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So that's impressive.

17 MS. ROSS: Yes.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. No further questions.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Any further -- any other  
20 questions from the Board?

21 Okay. Hearing there are no other questions, I'll  
22 entertain a motion.

23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

24 Make a motion to grant Brittany Ross --

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Overturn the denial.

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: -- overturning the denial  
2 of Brittany Ross for card.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion.  
4 Do we have a second?

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
6 I'm going to second the motion to overturn the  
7 denial and grant Ms. Brittany Ross her work card.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.  
9 We have a motion. We have a second.  
10 All in favor say aye.

11 Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

14 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So the office will  
16 contact you for next steps, but congratulations. We  
17 approved your card.

18 MS. ROSS: (Indiscernible.)

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: I'm sorry?

20 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry?

21 MS. ROSS: Will they also send it to the employer?

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: I don't think you guys do  
23 that, right?

24 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Right.

25 So, Madam Chair, Executive Director for the

1 record.

2 Typically, we'll send you your work card because  
3 it's -- it's yours.

4 MS. ROSS: Okay.

5 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: If you need us to  
6 send anything to the employer, by the end of the week, your  
7 public verification document should be updated on our  
8 website.

9 MS. ROSS: Okay.

10 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: So you can just  
11 search your name, and it will show that you now have an  
12 active work card.

13 MS. ROSS: So they'll be able to search it?

14 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: They'll be able to  
15 search that, yes.

16 MS. ROSS: Okay. Perfect. Thank you so much.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: You're welcome. Thank you.  
18 Good luck to you.

19 Okay. Agenda Item No. 51, Chad Chaves.

20 Mr. Chaves?

21 Okay. We'll trail.

22 Agenda Item No. 52, Ted Walker.

23 Mr. Walker?

24 We'll trail.

25 Agenda Item No. 53, Jaqobi Ball.

1 MR. BALL: Good morning.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good morning, sir.

3 MR. BALL: Can you hear me, everyone?

4 Good afternoon.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Blackmore, could  
6 you please let us know why we're here for Mr. Ball?

7 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yes.

8 Mr. Ball was renewing his work card. Upon the  
9 renewal, he did disclose a 2022 concealed carry weapon  
10 without a permit. He was convicted. He had to forfeit the  
11 firearm, stay out of trouble, as well as do community  
12 service. That was the only arrest he had. He disclosed it.  
13 He was not made provisional, and he wishes to appeal today.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any questions  
15 for Mr. Ball?

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

17 Good afternoon, Mr. Ball.

18 MR. BALL: Good afternoon.

19 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: I'm stumbling.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Feels like it.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: All right. Can you  
22 explain the situation with the weapon?

23 MR. BALL: I'm going to keep it cut and dry.

24 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry?

25 MR. BALL: I'm going to keep it cut and dry for

1 y'all, so I can be quick.

2 I was stupid, straight up. I was -- all across  
3 the Board, I was stupid. I should have did my own research  
4 on the situation out here because I only was told that it  
5 was a open-carry state, so I didn't think too much of it.  
6 So when caught with the weapon, it wasn't in a disclosed  
7 area where they could see it, and they considered it  
8 carrying a permit without a -- carrying it concealed without  
9 a permit. And if I knew that, I would have -- I would have  
10 got all the right requirements for it. But I messed up.

11 I did my time. I paid the fine for it, community  
12 service. I stayed out of trouble since. I haven't got a  
13 gun since. So I'm just hoping that I can just get my work  
14 card back. If not, I understand completely. This is a  
15 business after all.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

17 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Are you employed at this  
18 time?

19 MR. BALL: Yes, sir. I work at a pawn shop.

20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: How long have you been  
21 employed?

22 MR. BALL: I've been employed there for about two  
23 months now, going on two months.

24 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: And you -- you completed  
25 your community service?

1 MR. BALL: Yes, sir. I'm on -- honestly, on the  
2 track to try to get the process going to get that sealed.

3 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay. Thank you.

4 MR. BALL: Thank you.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions?

6 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
7 I'll entertain a motion.

8 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This Bezick.

9 I move we grant the work card for Mr. Ball based  
10 on full disclosure.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.

12 Do we have a second?

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

14 I'll second.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion. We have  
16 a second.

17 All in favor say aye.

18 Aye.

19 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

20 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Opposed?

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye. Based off time and  
23 distance. It's a 2022 case, and it is a weapons charge.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So three to one. The  
25 motion does pass.

1 You know, please stay out of trouble.

2 MR. BALL: Will do.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Don't --

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Yeah.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Don't embarrass us.

6 MR. BALL: I got you. I promise I won't.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: All right.

8 MR. BALL: Thank you.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: I appreciate it.

10 MR. BALL: I appreciate y'all. Thank you.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Okay. So we're going  
12 to take a -- we're going to go through the trail cases, and  
13 then we're going to take a quick ten-minute break.

14 Do we need to?

15 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Don't ask him.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: I'll explain to you later.  
17 You'll be like me. Ten minutes.

18 (Inaudible discussion off the  
19 record.)

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we're going to go  
21 through the trail cases. These are the cases that we called  
22 earlier and no one -- the person wasn't here.

23 So Agenda Item No. 42, is Miguel Vargas here?

24 Okay.

25 Agenda Item No. 51, is Chad Chaves here?



1 Okay. Agenda Item No. 52, Ted Walker?

2 Okay. That would be it. So seeing that they're  
3 not here, they were told to be here at 10:00 a.m., I will  
4 take -- entertain a motion for those three items.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
6 motioning to uphold the denials for Agenda Items No. 42, 51,  
7 and 52. As stated, they were told to be here by 10:00 a.m.  
8 It is now 11:45 a.m.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. I have a motion.  
10 Do I have a second?

11 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. I have a motion. We  
13 have a second.

14 All in favor say aye.

15 Aye.

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

18 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Motion passes.

20 Okay. We're going to move on to Agenda Item  
21 No. 54, Juan Ortega.

22 MR. ORTEGA: Good afternoon, everybody.

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good afternoon.

24 MR. ORTEGA: I just wanted to say -- what do you  
25 call it? -- real quick before we start. I had already given

1 them two pieces of documents. What do you call it? And  
2 this is the third one that you guys needed. Just came in  
3 this last weekend, so I didn't send it in through email. I  
4 just thought I'd bring it in because I'm already here.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

6 MR. ORTEGA: I'm scheduled.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So Investigator  
8 Blackmore, could you please tell us why we're here for  
9 Mr. Ortega?

10 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yes.

11 Mr. Ortega was denied due to failure to disclose.

12 He has a 1996 possession of controlled substance.

13 He was convicted, did three years probation.

14 In 2004, he had a warrant on the 1996 case.

15 In 2017, he had position -- I'm sorry, possession  
16 of a controlled substance. That was dismissed.

17 And then he also had a 2018 possession of  
18 controlled substance as well.

19 I did request court documents on the 1996 case as  
20 well as the 2018 case, but I haven't received them.

21 He was made provisional and added to Safe  
22 Management. He wishes to appeal today.

23 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. He was made  
24 provisional to who?

25 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: He was made provisional

1 and added to Safe Management's roster. He wishes to appeal  
2 today.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any questions  
4 for Mr. Ortega?

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
6 Good morning, Mr. Ortega.

7 MR. ORTEGA: Good morning.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Why did you fail to disclose  
9 any of the criminal history?

10 MR. ORTEGA: I'll tell you the truth. What do you  
11 call it? I was on the streets for a long time, and I  
12 totally just don't remember that arrest. What do you call  
13 it? I know I had probation and stuff, but I was just -- I  
14 was on the street and living a stupid life. You know what  
15 I'm saying?

16 And I was homeless. And then I came back, and I  
17 was okay, and then I was homeless again. And I'm getting  
18 out of it right now. And this is what I'm trying to do.  
19 And what I disclosed is what I could -- I even -- if you  
20 look at my -- if you look at what I signed on the  
21 application, I actually put "There's more, but I can't  
22 remember," because I -- I really couldn't.

23 And then when I got these -- the rest of the stuff  
24 for the denial, there was three exact -- I think three cases  
25 exact, I think, wanted details on. I got two back from the

1 court. And, like I said, there's the third one that you  
2 guys wanted the information on. And I'm just -- I'm just  
3 trying, you guys.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Got it. Thank you.

5 MR. ORTEGA: I'm just trying to get it back.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Blackmore, on his  
7 paper record -- or paper application, did he state that he  
8 had arrests he just couldn't remember?

9 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yes. He said, "I have  
10 more. Can't remember."

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Were any listed?

12 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: There was a 2011 traffic  
13 incident listed and then a 2019 drug offense listed.

14 MR. ORTEGA: What I was trying to do was go back  
15 as -- you know, to the closest one that I could remember.  
16 You know what I'm saying?

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So then the -- when the  
19 fingerprints came back, we had the rest of them, but he  
20 did -- again, just to clarify, he did put on there there's  
21 more?

22 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yeah. "I can't" -- "I  
23 have more, can't remember right now" is what he put on the  
24 application.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
2 Investigator Blackmore, when -- from the moment he  
3 applied to when we found out there was more, you spoke to  
4 him after finding out more history. Did you make contact  
5 with him and said, Hey, there's more, are you aware of that?

6 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: I believe I sent emails  
7 requesting court documents.

8 MR. ORTEGA: Um-hmm.

9 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: So I emailed him on  
10 August 15th. We give applicants two weeks to provide court  
11 documents. If they request an extension, then I can give  
12 them extensions, but nothing was received within that  
13 two-week time frame.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And what about a phone call?  
15 Did he follow up with, Hey, I know there's more, I can't  
16 remember, are you able to help me out with that? Was there  
17 any of that kind of phone call?

18 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: I don't remember a phone  
19 call, but there could have been an email.

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. And he was made  
22 provisional because the ones that he did list were  
23 misdemeanors?

24 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yeah. So the only ones  
25 he listed were the traffic incident and then just a drug

1 offense. He stated it was a misdemeanor. He was released.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any other  
3 questions?

4 Hang on, sir.

5 Okay. Sir, go ahead.

6 MR. ORTEGA: I just wanted to say, I have in my --  
7 what do you call it? Cassandra?

8 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yes.

9 MR. ORTEGA: Yeah. Yeah. The email that I sent  
10 you. I think we had seven altogether -- what do you call  
11 it? -- including the one you just gave me last week, just to  
12 let you guys know.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Appreciate that.

14 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
15 I'll entertain a motion.

16 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

17 I move that we grant the work card based on the  
18 fact that Mr. -- Mr. Ortega made an effort to list all his  
19 arrests.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.

21 Do we have a second?

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

23 I am going to second that motion, also in  
24 agreement that you made reasonable efforts to recall all of  
25 your criminal history.

1 MR. ORTEGA: Thank you so much.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion. We have  
3 a second.

4 All in favor say aye.

5 Aye.

6 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

8 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

9 MR. ORTEGA: Thank you so much.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: And so what we tell applicants  
11 is that if you don't remember, at least note that there --  
12 there may be more.

13 MR. ORTEGA: Yes. For sure.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So it doesn't seem like you're  
15 trying to hide it.

16 MR. ORTEGA: That's why I wrote that, you know,  
17 for --

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: I appreciate that. That's --

19 MR. ORTEGA: That's why I'm trying to say, I  
20 wasn't trying to hide or -- you know, whatever you guys  
21 needed to know, I got all of it, you know.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Well, we appreciate you for  
23 that. The office will contact you for next steps. Okay.  
24 Congratulations.

25 MR. ORTEGA: Thank you so much, everybody. Have a

1 good day.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Good luck to you.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Let's hope there's more.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Agenda Item No. 55, Raymond  
5 Green.

6 Mr. Green?

7 Okay. We'll trail.

8 Agenda Item No. 56, Troy Oldham.

9 You're right on the cusp of good morning.

10 MR. OLDHAM: Good morning. Good afternoon.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Blackmore, could  
12 you please tell us why we're here for Mr. Oldham?

13 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yes.

14 So Mr. Oldham was denied for having a felony  
15 conviction as well as failure to disclose.

16 He has a 1976 felony robbery by fear. He did a  
17 five-year suspended -- suspended sentence. He did provide  
18 court documents for this case. This case did result in a  
19 1976 warrant. The warrant was later dismissed.

20 He has a 1980 robbery of a firearm warrant as well  
21 as five counts of assault with a deadly weapon. I did  
22 request court documents. He gave me some partial ones.  
23 This is going to be related to, basically, the 1976 case.

24 He has a 1983 arrest for child abuse. I requested  
25 court documents. None were received.



1           A 1990 insurance fraud. On the fingerprint  
2 report, it stated he did a diversion program, and it was  
3 dismissed. I also requested court documents. They were not  
4 received.

5           And then he has a 2003 DUI. There was no  
6 disposition for the fingerprinting report.

7           He was made provisional but never added onto a  
8 roster, and he wishes to appeal today.

9           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any questions  
10 for Mr. Oldham?

11           BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

12           Mr. Oldham, why did you fail to disclose all of  
13 your criminal history?

14           MR. OLDHAM: Well, I went to Oakland and -- and  
15 got my list of my arrest records, and I thought I turned  
16 them in at the time I turned my application in.

17           BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: When you say "turned it in,"  
18 did you list it --

19           MR. OLDHAM: Yes, ma'am.

20           BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- and then submit it --

21           MR. OLDHAM: I think I --

22           BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- or did you just submit  
23 whatever printout you had?

24           MR. OLDHAM: I listed everything on the printout.

25           And matter of fact, I gave -- I sent -- I applied a copy --

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Did you apply online or on  
2 paper?

3 MR. OLDHAM: On paper.

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. One second.

5 Investigator Blackmore, could you repeat one more  
6 time whether criminal history was listed or was not?

7 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: So the felonies were not  
8 listed. The only thing listed on the application was a 2013  
9 DUI, a -- looks like a 1994 DUI, and then he just listed a  
10 warrant and then a 1996 DUI.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Any information as to, like  
12 the previous applicant, indicating there may be more or  
13 don't know?

14 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: No. Nothing else was  
15 written on the application.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood. Thank you so  
17 much.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So you listed some of them,  
19 but you -- the felony you did not list?

20 MR. OLDHAM: Well, the felony was -- I -- I  
21 contacted Christy Warner from the courts in Oklahoma, and  
22 she -- she provided an email, and I have a copy of the email  
23 here, for all the cases that were charged against me were  
24 dismissed by the state.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. But as we stated

1 earlier -- as a matter of fact, are you under oath?

2 MR. OLDHAM: Beg your pardon?

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Were you sworn in?

4 MR. OLDHAM: Yes. Yes.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. As stated earlier, and  
6 she actually showed the paperwork, it says "stop," and it  
7 says "list all arrests, convictions at any time." And so  
8 that -- even though it's in 1976, you do have to list it.

9 MR. OLDHAM: Yes, ma'am. And I -- and I  
10 apologize, too, to the Board for that. The reason is --  
11 that's why I did that after I did the investigator. I  
12 contacted the court, and they -- and they told me that the  
13 cases were dismissed, so I --

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Great. It doesn't matter what  
15 Oklahoma says. This is Nevada --

16 MR. OLDHAM: Yes. Yes, ma'am.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: -- and our rule is that you  
18 have to list everything.

19 MR. OLDHAM: I know.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: It says it on the application.

21 MR. OLDHAM: I know.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Are there any further  
23 questions from the Board?

24 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
25 I'll entertain a motion.

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

2 Make a motion to uphold the denial for Troy  
3 Oldham's work card, failure to disclose.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.  
5 Do we have a second?

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
7 I'll second the motion.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
9 second.

10 All in favor say aye.

11 Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

14 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Unfortunately, at this time,  
16 we're not going to be able to approve it.

17 You are able to apply in one year. Now you know  
18 that you have to list everything. So in one year, we look  
19 forward to seeing you come back with everything listed on  
20 your application. Okay. Thank you. Good luck to you.

21 Agenda Item No. 57, Ronald Ram.

22 MR. RAM: How you guys doing?

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good.

24 How are you?

25 MR. RAM: Doing great.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Blackmore, could  
2 you tell us why we're here for Mr. Ram?

3 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yes.

4 So Mr. Ram was denied for having a weapons  
5 conviction. So 2005 obstruct or resist executive --

6 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry, 2005 what?

7 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: I'm sorry. It was a 2005  
8 felony. I'm sorry about that. It's obstruct, resist  
9 executive officer. He did three years probation, nine  
10 months in jail, and then a fine restitution. This was later  
11 dismissed under California Penal Code 1203.4. He did  
12 provide that dismissal to us.

13 There was a 2005 misdemeanor burglary conviction.  
14 He did 36 months probation, 75 days jail. I did request  
15 court documents, but per California statute, after 15 years,  
16 they shred them.

17 In 2006, it looks like it was a proceeding for a  
18 prisoner. This was related to the 2005. It was essentially  
19 a transfer arrest.

20 He did disclose his felony. He was not made  
21 provisional, and he wishes to appeal.

22 THE COURT REPORTER: He was not made provisional?

23 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: He was not made  
24 provisional.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, any questions for

1 Mr. Ram?

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
3 I have a question for Investigator Blackmore.  
4 He did or did not disclose?

5 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: So he did. So --

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: All of them?

7 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: I believe --

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Because I have conflicting  
9 information for two and three.

10 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yeah. So he disclosed  
11 the felony. And then when I reached out to him, that's when  
12 he provided me some more arrest history. So we were in  
13 contact with each other throughout the process.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Mr. Ram, why did you  
15 disclose the following -- or the other two convictions after  
16 you were contacted?

17 MR. RAM: Other two? It was actually one. And --

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You're right. The one --

19 MR. RAM: It was not a weapons charge.

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So a 2005 is a burglary, and  
21 then the 2006 is the -- I think that --

22 MR. RAM: PC 69 is a terrorist threat.

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Hang on one second.

24 MR. RAM: Yeah.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I believe the 2006 is -- the

1 2005 --

2 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: 2006 is related to the  
3 second one, which is 2005.

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So, basically, we have two  
5 convictions, three charges?

6 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Correct. And then, like  
7 I made the correction the first time, I accidentally marked  
8 the weapon on here. It's a felony conviction. It didn't  
9 involve a weapon.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Got it.

11 Okay. So why did you disclose the two -- the  
12 second one after?

13 MR. RAM: Yeah. Because the arrest was actually  
14 under one arrest. That arrest was just by itself. And then  
15 the burglary was for the cell phone that was used to  
16 threaten the officer that I used to ride -- I used to be an  
17 explorer and reserve officer.

18 My cousin took my phone. I -- I grew up in East  
19 Palo Alto, California. Bad place. I was an explorer. They  
20 were trying to help me out, get out of the ghetto. And I  
21 was doing good, transitioned to a reserve officer. And one  
22 of my cousins that was doing bad lived at our house, used my  
23 cell phone, threatened the SWAT team member that I used to  
24 ride along with, with that cell phone that he gave to me,  
25 which was still under his name because we were, like, low

1 income. And I took -- I took the blame for all of that.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

3 MR. RAM: Yeah.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So it's one -- one incident,  
5 three charges.

6 MR. RAM: Yeah. Yeah.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Is that -- is that --

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Yes, that's what I'm  
9 understanding as well.

10 It's like you -- you got charged with another one  
11 because something was in the commission of this one, so  
12 all --

13 MR. RAM: Yeah.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- this all comes back  
15 together?

16 MR. RAM: Yeah. Yeah.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And disclosed.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: And disclosed?

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Kind of, but yes.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Is that what -- is that  
22 what you're understanding as well?

23 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Correct.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So just to be clear, in case  
25 it wasn't heard up north, it seems as though this was one



1 incident with three different charges. He disclosed the one  
2 incident, and he -- maybe two, two, but the third incident  
3 was still underneath the original arrest.

4 Is that -- okay.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: That's my understanding as  
6 well.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So are there any  
8 questions from the Board? Any further questions from the  
9 Board?

10 Okay. Hearing there are no questions, I'll  
11 entertain a motion.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez  
13 motioning to overturn the denial and grant Mr. Ronald Ram  
14 his work card based on full disclosure.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion.

16 Do we have a second?

17 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
19 second.

20 All in favor say aye.

21 Aye.

22 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

24 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So the motion passes.

1           You can move forward. You'll get your work card.

2           MR. RAM: Okay. One thing -- I just wanted to add

3 one thing that's not on there. What made me come to

4 Pahrump, I'm living off a lawsuit that followed a lawsuit

5 right after this because the officer wrote a fake apology

6 letter and made me sign it, and I wasn't educated of what he

7 did until all of this was done.

8           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

9           MR. RAM: There you go.

10          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Gotcha.

11          MR. RAM: Yeah.

12          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: All right.

13          MR. RAM: Thank you.

14          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Have a good day.

15          MR. RAM: You too.

16          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. That was Ram.

17    Approved.

18           Agenda Item No. 58, Brandon Tucker.

19           Mr. Tucker?

20           Okay. We'll trail.

21           Agenda Item No. 59, Gregory Tyiska.

22           EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: He withdrew.

23           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Fifty-nine withdrew.

24           Agenda Item No. 60, Donnetta Jenkins.

25           MS. JANKINS: Good afternoon.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good afternoon.

2 Okay. Investigator Blackmore, could you please  
3 tell us why we're here for Ms. Jenkins?

4 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yes.

5 So Ms. Jenkins was denied for a felony conviction  
6 and failure to disclose.

7 She has a 2010 felony out of Texas, conspiracy to  
8 possess controlled substance oxycodone. She did 18 months  
9 in federal prison. She did have this case transferred to  
10 Alabama at that time.

11 In 2005, she also has a felony conviction for  
12 conspiracy to possess with intent to distribute oxycodone.  
13 She did 37 months in prison, a \$100 fine, and 36 months  
14 parole. This arrest did result in a warrant arrest in 2009.

15 So she disclosed the 2005, but she didn't disclose  
16 the 2010 arrest. She was not made provisional, and she  
17 wishes to appeal today.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, any questions for  
19 Miss -- is it Jenkins Aros?

20 MS. JANKINS: Jenkins.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Jenkins?

22 MS. JANKINS: Yes, ma'am.

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
25 Ms. Jenkins, good afternoon. We hit the afternoon

1 mark.

2 Why did you fail to disclose all of the criminal  
3 history?

4 MS. JANKINS: Because the second arrest was part  
5 of the first arrest. It was a major sting, and I wasn't  
6 charged with -- yes, it was a felony. I wasn't charged with  
7 trying to distribute. I was charged with conspiracy.

8 What actually happened was I delivered the message  
9 over the phone, and that's how I got caught up with the  
10 second charge. I was still on probation, supervised out of  
11 Texas, and they didn't really give me any additional time  
12 besides the time it took for me to go to court on it.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Investigator  
14 Blackmore, I have a five-year difference.

15 Is it the same case?

16 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: So there were quite a  
17 few. So they have different case numbers. Because it looks  
18 like the originating case happened out of Texas.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Right. In April of 2005,  
20 and then the second one in November of 2010.

21 So same case five years later?

22 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: It was --

23 MS. JANKINS: It was a major sting. It was a  
24 major sting. And I got caught up with it by delivering a  
25 message. I got caught up. It was the same case. It was a

1 large case. And --

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Right. I'm just -- I'm  
3 having a hard time kind of following it, that there was a DA  
4 five years later found --

5 MS. JANKINS: Mr. Dupre out of Texas, the attorney  
6 general, was still working on the case.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So it says here the  
8 applicant disclosed that arrest. It says the arrest did  
9 result in a warrant arrest in 2009.

10 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yes.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: What was that arrest about?

12 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: That arrest, it looks  
13 like the arrest was out of California for the warrant.

14 MS. JANKINS: That's where I was being supervised  
15 at, from California.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So that was -- the  
17 arrest was from the original case in 2005. Okay.

18 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Correct. Because --

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Was that because she wasn't  
20 complying with probation or wasn't checking in?

21 MS. JANKINS: No, ma'am. I did all of that.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah. Hang on. Let's see  
23 what the paperwork says.

24 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yeah. Because in 2009,  
25 it looks like, they -- she was arrested on warrant issued by

1 USDC District of Alabama at Birmingham, but this one looks  
2 like it's in California.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Does it say for what, though?

4 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: It just says  
5 "out-of-district warrant was filed."

6 MS. JANKINS: And I self surrendered on that one.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So out of district  
8 means she wasn't where she was supposed to be?

9 Got it. Okay. Got it.

10 And then -- so was there an additional arrest in  
11 2010?

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: While we're waiting for  
13 that, Ms. Jenkins, where are you living now?

14 MS. JANKINS: 9436 Medford Falls, Las Vegas,  
15 Nevada.

16 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry, what was that?

17 MS. JANKINS: 9436 Medford Falls, Las Vegas,  
18 Nevada.

19 THE COURT REPORTER: What Falls?

20 MS. JANKINS: Medford.

21 THE COURT REPORTER: Medford Falls.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So here in Nevada?

23 MS. JANKINS: Yes, ma'am.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. How long have you  
25 been in here in Nevada?

1 MS. JANKINS: I've been here going on four years.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Because I'm hearing  
3 so many different states.

4 MS. JANKINS: May I explain that?

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Hang on one second.

6 Incident occurred in Texas, but there's an Alabama  
7 warrant?

8 MS. JANKINS: Yes.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And then you were supervised  
10 in California?

11 MS. JANKINS: I caught my -- my case in Texas.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: ICOJ --

13 MS. JANKINS: I supervised in California.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

15 MS. JANKINS: Alabama is the one that originally  
16 started -- started this because they had the over large  
17 sting that --

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Are you --

19 MS. JANKINS: -- netted 25 people. And how I got  
20 caught up, under supervision, I -- I delivered a message  
21 over the phone. And then I heard someone had got arrested,  
22 so I called my probation officer, and I told him that I  
23 think I might have a warrant out and --

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So let me ask you this,  
25 because I used to be a probation officer.

1 MS. JANKINS: Yes, ma'am.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So that's my question. Are  
3 you -- did you have to register for an ICOJ case?

4 MS. JANKINS: What is ICOJ?

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Interstate compact. So like  
6 when you go --

7 MS. JANKINS: No, ma'am.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- from one to the other.

9 MS. JANKINS: No.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So there was no kind of  
11 registry as far as that you have --

12 MS. JANKINS: No. I just --

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You're under supervision in  
14 any state?

15 MS. JANKINS: I -- no. I was supervised in  
16 California from Texas. I had probation in Texas. When I  
17 was on probation in two thousand and -- I think it might  
18 have been 2008 or '9, the DEA out of Vegas busted someone,  
19 and they did a whole swoop. And, like I said, I was caught  
20 over on the telephone delivering a message.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Wait. Now you brought in  
22 Vegas.

23 So my -- are you under supervision right now?

24 MS. JANKINS: No, ma'am. I haven't been under  
25 supervision since 2011. Since then, I have worked for the



1 State of California for 13 years. I worked for Venetian  
2 Casino.

3 And that's another thing I didn't understand.  
4 When I did the -- the investigator I talked to who approved  
5 me to work for the Venetian, he told me I didn't have to go  
6 back that far.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: That's a different game --  
8 that's a different board.

9 MS. JANKINS: I didn't know, ma'am.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I guess my -- my -- my  
11 concern is -- again, because being a previous probation  
12 officer -- is your case closed? Like, you're not under  
13 supervision?

14 MS. JANKINS: Oh, I haven't been under supervision  
15 since twenty -- 2011.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Any kind of stipulations as  
17 far as after probation closes?

18 MS. JANKINS: No, ma'am.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Were there no kind of  
20 interstate registry?

21 MS. JANKINS: No, ma'am.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Anything like that?

23 MS. JANKINS: No, ma'am. None at all.

24 Since then, I have been a law abiding citizen.

25 And at the time that all of this did happen, I was like --

1 lost the person that actually raised me. I was on a really  
2 destructive path. Since then, I've been a steady employee.  
3 I became a homeowner. And --

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So I just want to  
5 make sure that if you do get approved, everything as far as  
6 the State of Nevada laws go, that you are covered.

7 Investigator Blackmore, do we have any information  
8 as far as -- again, this is because of my history as a PO  
9 and the interstate compact information.

10 Does the client have to register anywhere?

11 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: So the only thing is when  
12 we were doing the initial, it lists in her SCOPE that she  
13 was a convicted person. She had to register as of 2012. I  
14 did reach out to her prior to with an email asking if that  
15 was still true, and then, you know, if she did, then she  
16 would have to notify SCOPE and LVMPD regarding that.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And as of right -- okay.  
18 Wait. So let me just get this straight.

19 So as of 2012, you said?

20 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Correct.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: She did have to register as  
22 one?

23 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Correct.

24 And then when I reached out to her, because I  
25 noticed the addresses did not match, I did let her know via

1 email she does want to get that squared away before the  
2 Board meeting comes.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Ms. Jankins, are you aware  
4 of that information?

5 MS. JANKINS: No, ma'am, I didn't know. The  
6 email -- matter of fact, I actually went to the office to  
7 find out when I was supposed to come up here, and they told  
8 me. And then two days later, I received this.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So that was my concern,  
10 again, because of the history of what I used to do for a  
11 living. That was my concern. And, unfortunately, I heard  
12 what I needed to hear.

13 MS. JANKINS: Yes, ma'am.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: But I need you to understand  
15 there's some business that you need to take care of.

16 MS. JANKINS: Yes, ma'am.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Does that make sense?

18 MS. JANKINS: I knew nothing about this.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You get what I'm dropping?

20 MS. JANKINS: Yes.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Perfect. All right.  
22 No further questions.

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any other Board  
24 questions?

25 So I know -- I'm a little confused still.

1 Is the second case involved with the first case?  
2 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: It doesn't appear to be  
3 on the fingerprint report.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So on the fingerprint report,  
5 they're showing as two separate cases?

6 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Correct. This is giving  
7 me two different locations as well.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Got it. Okay.  
9 Board, are there any further questions?

10 Okay. If there's no further questions, I'll  
11 entertain a motion.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
13 I am going to motion to uphold the denial based  
14 off the failure to disclose of the second conviction in  
15 addition to we're not sure what the status is as far as  
16 registered convicted person. I'd like a little more updated  
17 information as far as that goes.

18 MS. JANKINS: Okay. Can --

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion.  
20 Do we have a second?

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion. We have  
23 a second.

24 All in favor say aye.

25 Aye.

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

3 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So, at this time, we're  
5 not going to be able to approve your work card.

6 You do have the ability to apply again in one  
7 year. When you apply again, I would encourage you to work  
8 with the office to make sure you have all of this stuff  
9 correct. Right?

10 MS. JANKINS: Yes, ma'am.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Because there seems -- it --  
12 it's a lot. And, you know, it's probably not as difficult  
13 as it seems. It's just an issue of filling out the  
14 paperwork correctly. Okay?

15 MS. JANKINS: Yes, ma'am.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So they will help you. Good  
17 luck to you.

18 MS. JANKINS: Okay. What is that you say I need  
19 to --

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Call them. They're going to  
21 give you more information. Because I do want you to get  
22 that taken care of if you do come back in a year.

23 MS. JANKINS: Yes, ma'am. So call them?

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Call the office, the PILB  
25 office, and then they'll explain more in detail what it is

1 that you need to take care of.

2 MS. JANKINS: Yes, ma'am.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Ask for Investigator  
4 Blackmore.

5 MS. JANKINS: You guys have a happy holiday.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: You too.

7 Okay. Agenda Item No. 61, Harvey Rezentes.

8 MR. REZENTES: Hello, everybody. Thank you for  
9 hearing me out from here.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Blackmore, could  
11 you please tell us why we're here for Mr. Rezentes?

12 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Yes.

13 Mr. Rezentes was denied for failure to disclose  
14 his 1992 promoting dangerous drugs arrest. There was no --  
15 I'm sorry. There was no disposition per the arrest --  
16 sorry, per the fingerprints.

17 There was a 1991 felony possession narcotic  
18 controlled substance. Per the report, it stated that he did  
19 a diversion program, and then it was dismissed. I did  
20 request court documents, never received them.

21 And there was also a 1978 promoting a detrimental  
22 drug. No disposition. I requested court documents and  
23 never received them.

24 The applicant was made provisional, but he wasn't  
25 added to any roster, and he wishes to appeal today.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, any questions for  
2 Mr. Rezentes?

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
4 Mr. Rezentes, why did you fail to disclose your  
5 criminal history?

6 MR. REZENTES: Well, I totally forgot about the --  
7 about the California. You know, I mean, I -- because  
8 throughout my whole life, I've been -- I've been pretty  
9 clean. You know, I haven't really done anything. And --  
10 and then -- and the incident in California was a  
11 misfortunate one because I had with me and my two -- and my  
12 buddy and his friend, and I wasn't aware that his friend had  
13 a -- had a little piece of rock cocaine on him. And -- and  
14 when we went to this apartment, he -- my friend wanted to  
15 see his friend over there.

16 So when we went to the apartment, when I pulled in  
17 the parking lot, the sheriff department, they had a raid at  
18 that apartment. Obviously, that apartment was -- was -- was  
19 doing drugs, you know, which I wasn't aware of that, and  
20 so -- so --

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So why -- I don't mean to  
22 cut you off. I'm sorry. I get the history of it, but why  
23 did you fail to put it in your application?

24 MR. REZENTES: I forgot. I totally forgot.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You forgot. Okay.

1 MR. REZENTES: I apologize for that.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood.

3 MR. REZENTES: I --

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: All right. You're not  
5 the -- you're not the only one.

6 MR. REZENTES: Yeah. No, I --

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: All right. Thank you.

8 MR. REZENTES: You know, I tried to remember  
9 everything, but, you know, that was in '91, so I totally  
10 forgot about it. I'm sorry.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: No worries. Understood.  
12 Thank you.

13 MR. REZENTES: And, like I said, as far as the  
14 drug, what happened, the guy dropped it in my car.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: That's okay.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: That's okay. You don't need  
18 to give us the back story.

19 MR. REZENTES: And once it was in my car, you  
20 know, I got charged for it too.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah.

22 MR. REZENTES: All of us did. So it was an  
23 unfortunate situation that I -- that I got. I was trying to  
24 help a buddy, and I ended up getting into trouble -- trouble  
25 for it.



1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Understood.

2 Board, any further questions for Mr. Rezendes?

3 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,

4 I'll entertain a motion.

5 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

6 I move we uphold the denial based on nondisclosure

7 of arrest record.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.

9 Do we have a second?

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

11 I'll second the motion.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.

13 We have a second.

14 All in favor say aye.

15 Aye.

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

18 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So the motion passes.

20 Unfortunately, we will not be able to move forward

21 in giving you a work card. You have an opportunity to apply

22 again in a year. They have all the information now. Please

23 work with the office. They're more than willing to help

24 you.

25 MR. REZENTES: Okay. So in one year, if I reapply

1 again, then I can get back to Blackmore, and she can tell me  
2 what's -- what's in my report, as far as whatever --  
3 whatever I had that I wasn't aware?

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Then we'll see you next  
5 year.

6 MR. REZENTES: Then I'll put it down.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yes, sir.

8 MR. REZENTES: And then -- so I got your card. I  
9 got your card, so --

10 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: So what I will do for you  
11 next year, when you come in to reapply, ask for me. I give  
12 you a list of all the arrests as well as to what you will  
13 need to provide court documents for. You will need to  
14 provide the court documents prior to you applying. That way  
15 I can be 100 percent sure of the disposition for the case.

16 MR. REZENTES: Okay. And the court documents --

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Sir, sir, sir --

18 MR. REZENTES: It all happened in California.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: -- sir, look at the people  
20 behind you.

21 MR. REZENTES: Okay.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: They're -- they're really  
23 tired too, and we got a ton of questions. So --

24 MR. REZENTES: Okay.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: -- if you have questions,

1 call -- feel free to call them tomorrow and get all that  
2 information. Okay?

3 MR. REZENTES: Okay. Thank you. I appreciate you  
4 guys.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: All right. Thank you. Good  
6 luck to you.

7 Okay. Agenda Item No. 62, Jeffrey Coleman.

8 Mr. Coleman, are you here?

9 Okay. Go ahead and trail 62.

10 Sixty-three, Juan De La Mora.

11 Is Mr. De La Mora here?

12 Okay. We'll trail.

13 Agenda Item No. 64, Paul Cardoza.

14 Good afternoon, sir.

15 MR. CARDOZA: Hi. Good afternoon.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Diaz, could you  
17 tell us why -- no. Investigator Diaz, could you tell us why  
18 we're here for Mr. Cardoza?

19 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: Yes.

20 The applicant was denied for a misdemeanor  
21 discharge of a firearm with gross negligence conviction out  
22 of Redlands, California, in 1997. The applicant was  
23 sentenced to three years probation.

24 He did disclose the arrest and was aware he'd be  
25 denied and submitted a written letter of appeal. He was not

1 made provisional and is here to appeal today.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any questions  
3 for Mr. Cardoza?

4 Okay. Hearing there are no questions, I'll  
5 entertain a motion.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
7 motioning to overturn the denial and grant Mr. Cardoza his  
8 work card based on full disclosure.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.  
10 Do we have a second?

11 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
13 have a second.

14 All in favor say aye.

15 Aye.

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

18 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations, sir. Thank  
20 you for disclosing everything. Good luck to you.

21 Agenda Item No. 65, James Ford.

22 MR. FORD: Hello.

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Hello. Good afternoon,  
24 Mr. Ford.

25 Investigator Diaz, could you tell us why we're

1 here for Mr. Ford?

2 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: Yes.

3 The applicant was denied for a misdemeanor  
4 displaying weapon conviction out of Edmonds, Washington, in  
5 2015. The applicant was sentenced to 32 hours of community  
6 service and 359-day suspended jail sentence.

7 The applicant also has a 2012 misdemeanor reckless  
8 driving and was sentenced to \$248 fine and license  
9 restrictions. This arrest was not disclosed.

10 The applicant also has a 2007 misdemeanor drive  
11 with license suspended or revoked and was sentenced to 90  
12 days in jail, 18 months probation, and \$1,000 fine. This  
13 arrest was not disclosed.

14 He did not disclose all arrests and later  
15 submitted a letter of appeal. He was not made provisional  
16 and is here to appeal today.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you.

18 Board, any questions for Mr. Ford?

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Good afternoon, Mr. Ford.  
20 Board Member Cortez.

21 Why did we fail to disclose all of the history?

22 MR. FORD: Because I didn't remember them at all.

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: At all?

24 MR. FORD: No.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

1 MR. FORD: I mean, I -- I actually have my  
2 sheriff's card, and I had to pay extra money because they  
3 had to tell me about the reckless driving or negligence or  
4 whatever it was.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. And then talk to me  
6 about your experience with the PILB staff.

7 MR. FORD: Worked well with them.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Because I have  
9 information that says completely opposite.

10 MR. FORD: Really?

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Yeah. That you were rather  
12 combative, verbally assaultive, tons of profanity, and it  
13 wasn't just towards one staff. It was multiple.

14 MR. FORD: Huh.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So you don't have any  
16 recollection of that or --

17 MR. FORD: No.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You have no recollection of  
19 that?

20 MR. FORD: No.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Investigator Diaz,  
22 can you provide a little more information regarding what's  
23 occurred with this interaction?

24 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: Absolutely.

25 We did have a staff member who does work the front

1 desk who was screamed and yelled at by this applicant when  
2 he was -- when she was trying to explain the process of  
3 appeals.

4 Later that day, I also called Mr. Ford, and that  
5 interaction went rough as well. He was not pleasant toward  
6 me, used vulgar language as well. That call later ended  
7 with him using the f-word and hanging up on me.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: What was the date of that  
9 call?

10 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: The date of the call, I do not  
11 have. In our on-base system, I do have -- there are notes  
12 put in by the admin staff as well as myself on those dates,  
13 but I do not have them on hand.

14 MR. FORD: I do recall that now.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Now you recall that?

16 MR. FORD: Yeah, because I was supposed to be here  
17 in September.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I didn't hear you.

19 MR. FORD: I was supposed to be in here in  
20 September, and he went on vacation and got back and said,  
21 "Oh, wait. You have to wait until December." So I was  
22 pretty mad about that.

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. And that warrants  
24 rude, belligerent behavior?

25 MR. FORD: I guess so.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Wait. You said you guess  
2 so, that that -- that that warrants it?

3 MR. FORD: Yeah. No.

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So if you get upset  
5 while you're on the job --

6 MR. FORD: Yeah.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- holding a badge as a  
8 security individual and somebody comes across your work area  
9 and they upset you, are you going to respond in the same  
10 manner --

11 MR. FORD: No.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- that you have shown to --  
13 admit --

14 MR. FORD: No.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- agree here?

16 MR. FORD: No.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And how am I supposed to  
18 trust that?

19 MR. FORD: I have a letter of intent from Allied  
20 Consulting Securities.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: No, I don't want a letter.  
22 I need to hear how -- I need you to convince me.

23 MR. FORD: Well, the guy that hired me put me  
24 through TSA. I passed their test.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: I don't think you understand.



1 You were rude to staff.

2 MR. FORD: Yes, I know. And I apologize.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: And we're asking you how are  
4 you going to prove to us today that you're not going to  
5 continue that behavior. It has nothing to do with the  
6 people that are trying to hire you.

7 How are you going to prove that today?

8 MR. FORD: By not drinking for the last couple  
9 months.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you.

11 Board, any further questions?

12 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
13 I'll entertain a motion.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

15 I'm going to motion to uphold the denial based on  
16 non full disclosure, and I'm not too convinced that the  
17 behavior is going to change.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.

19 Do we have a second?

20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

21 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
23 have a second.

24 All in favor say aye.

25 Aye.

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

3 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. You have an  
5 opportunity to apply again in a year.

6 MR. FORD: Yeah, I heard.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Good luck to you.

8 Okay. What time is it? Should we do the trail?

9 Okay. So we're going to go back and do the trails  
10 real quick, and then we'll move on to the next section.

11 Again, thank you, everyone, for your patience. I  
12 know it's been a long day.

13 Okay. So is there a -- Agenda Item No. 55,  
14 Raymond Green. Is Mr. Green here?

15 Okay. Agenda Item No. 58, Brandon Tucker. Is  
16 Mr. Tucker here?

17 Okay. Agenda Item No. 62. Is Jeffrey Coleman  
18 here?

19 Okay. Agenda Item No. 63, Juan De La Mora. Is he  
20 here?

21 Okay. These -- this group was -- sorry. Okay.  
22 This group was supposed to be here at 11:00 p.m. [sic]. It  
23 is now 12:25, so I'll entertain a motion for the ones that  
24 are being trailed.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez

1 motioning to uphold the denials for Agenda Items 55, 58, 62,  
2 and 63 based on no-call no-show. They were told to be here  
3 at 11:00. It is now 12:24 p.m.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.  
5 Do we have a second?

6 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
8 second.

9 All in favor say aye.

10 Aye.

11 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

13 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes. Thank you.  
15 Are you guys good? Do you need five minutes?

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Maybe just five.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So, again, appreciate  
18 all of your patience, everyone. I know it's been a long  
19 day. We're going to take a quick five-minute, I'm sure, bio  
20 break. We'll be right back. So thank you, everyone.

21 (Off the record.)

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We're on Agenda Item -- oh,  
23 you know, we've had people come in and out, so any --

24 Is there anybody in this room or up north that  
25 have not been sworn in?

1           Okay. Please stand. We'll have Counsel Detmer  
2 swear you in.

3           MR. DETMER: Good afternoon. Good afternoon. For  
4 those of you who are going to present or testify in front of  
5 the Board, if you could, please raise your right hand.

6           Do you hereby swear or affirm -- swear or affirm  
7 to the tell truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the  
8 truth?

9                           (Audience answers in the  
10 affirmative.)

11                          (Applicants and witnesses were  
12 sworn by Counsel Detmer.)

13           MR. DETMER: Thank you.

14           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Okay. Agenda Item  
15 No. 66, Taifia Chambers.

16           Good afternoon.

17           Investigator Diaz, could you please tell us why  
18 we're here for Ms. Chambers?

19           INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: Yes.

20           The applicant was denied for a misdemeanor passed  
21 check with intent to defraud conviction out of Las Vegas,  
22 Nevada, in 2022. The applicant was sentenced to pay  
23 restitution.

24           She also had a 2009 gross misdemeanor conviction  
25 for transport, slash, sell narcotics and was sentenced to

1 three years probation. This arrest was disclosed.

2 She did disclose all arrests and later submitted a  
3 written letter of appeal. She was not made provisional and  
4 is here to appeal today.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So just to be clear, she  
6 disclosed everything?

7 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: Correct.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any questions  
9 for Ms. Chambers?

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Good afternoon,  
11 Ms. Chambers. This is Board Member Cortez.

12 Talk to me about your 2022 case, check -- passed  
13 check with intent to defraud.

14 MS. CHAMBERS: Honestly, my family had just moved  
15 here, depleted all our funds and needed groceries and stuff  
16 to last until we were able to get employment. And I just  
17 happened to write a check. I took care of it with the  
18 courts, and they later dismissed everything.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Okay. Thank you.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further questions  
21 for Ms. Chambers?

22 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
23 I'll entertain a motion.

24 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

25 I move we grant the work card based on full

1 disclosure of arrest record.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.

3 Do we have a second?

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
6 second.

7 All in favor say aye.

8 Aye.

9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

11 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So the motion passes.

13 You will get your work card. The office will  
14 contact you for next steps. Okay.

15 MS. CHAMBERS: Thank you so much.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good luck to you.

17 Agenda Item No. 67, Ronald Johnson.

18 MR. JOHNSON: Hello.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Hello. Please have a seat.

20 Investigator Diaz, why are we here for

21 Mr. Johnson?

22 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: The applicant was denied for a  
23 felony burglary conviction out of Los Angeles, California,  
24 in 2006. The applicant was sentenced to three years  
25 probation, and it was later dismissed under California PC

1 1203.4.

2 The applicant also has a 2019 misdemeanor for  
3 domestic violence and was sentenced to 48 hours of community  
4 service and a one-year suspended sentence. This arrest was  
5 disclosed.

6 He did disclose all arrests and submitted a  
7 written letter of appeal. He was not made provisional and  
8 is here to appeal today.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any questions  
10 for Mr. Johnson?

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez.

12 Mr. Johnson, are you still with your domestic  
13 partner?

14 MR. JOHNSON: No. My daughter's mom, we're not  
15 together.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So there's no --

17 MR. JOHNSON: No. No back-and-forth. My daughter  
18 is 20 now.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Got it. Perfect. Thank  
20 you.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further questions?

22 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
23 I'll entertain a motion.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
25 motioning to overturn the denial and grant Mr. Johnson his

1 work card based on full disclosure.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.

3 Do we have a second?

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
6 have a second.

7 All in favor say aye.

8 Aye.

9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

11 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Motion passes.

13 So, sir, we will be able to grant your work card.

14 MR. JOHNSON: Thank you.

15 I was trying to see Detective Diaz. I was trying  
16 to see what he looked like.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Oh, okay.

18 MR. JOHNSON: I talked to him for about two weeks.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

20 MR. JOHNSON: I told y'all I'd be here.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Well, thank you very much for  
22 disclosing everything. We appreciate you.

23 MR. JOHNSON: Thank you.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good luck to you, and the  
25 office will contact you for next steps. Okay.



1 MR. JOHNSON: All right. You guys have a good  
2 day.

3 Told him I'd be here. He helped me with  
4 everything.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: All right. Good for you.  
6 Good luck, sir.

7 Okay. Agenda Item No. 68, Aaron Eppinger.

8 MR. EPPINGER: Adrian.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Adrian. Oh, Adrian.

10 Okay. Could you please say it so I don't screw it  
11 up anymore?

12 MR. EPPINGER: Adrian Eppinger.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Adrian Eppinger. Okay. Thank  
14 you.

15 Investigator Diaz, could you please tell us why  
16 we're here for Mr. Eppinger?

17 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: The applicant was denied for a  
18 felony grant theft conviction out of Torrance, California,  
19 in 2005. The applicant was sentenced to three years in  
20 prison and five months probation, and his charge was later  
21 dismissed under California PC 1203.4.

22 The applicant also has a 1995 misdemeanor for  
23 theft and was sentenced to 12 months probation. This arrest  
24 was disclosed.

25 And a 1992 misdemeanor for theft as well and was

1 sentenced to 60 days in jail. This arrest was disclosed.

2 The applicant was previously denied in 2023 for  
3 the same crimes, and the Board did uphold the denial at that  
4 time.

5 The applicant did disclose all arrests on this  
6 application and later submitted a letter of appeal. He was  
7 not made provisional and is here to appeal today.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. First of all, thank you  
9 for coming back. We appreciate you.

10 Second, are there any questions from the Board?

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

12 Investigator Diaz, I just want to confirm that  
13 this is -- he came -- he was denied the first time for  
14 failure to disclose?

15 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: Correct. And he came back  
16 this time with everything disclosed.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Any other questions from the  
19 Board?

20 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
21 I'll entertain a motion.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
23 motioning to overturn the denial and grant Mr. Eppinger his  
24 work card based on full disclosure.

25 Appreciate you coming back and doing exactly what

1 we asked you to do.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion.

3 Do we have a second?

4 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion. We have  
6 a second.

7 All in favor say aye.

8 Aye.

9 MR. GRONAUER: Aye.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

11 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations. The office  
13 will contact you with next steps. Thank you.

14 Okay. Agenda Item No. 69, Michael Duncan.

15 Mr. Duncan here?

16 Good afternoon.

17 MR. DUNCAN: Good afternoon.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Diaz, could you  
19 please tell us why we're here for Mr. Duncan?

20 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: The applicant was denied for a  
21 felony possession of a controlled substance conviction out  
22 of Chicago, Illinois, in 1993. The applicant was sentenced  
23 to four years in prison. They also -- the applicant also  
24 has an extensive criminal history, which are all listed  
25 below.

1           He was previously denied in 2023 for failing to  
2 disclose all arrests, and the Board did uphold the denial.  
3 He did disclose all arrests on this application and did work  
4 with the investigator to provide a full criminal history  
5 report. He was not made provisional and is here to appeal  
6 today.

7           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Again, thank you for coming  
8 back. We really do appreciate that.

9           MR. DUNCAN: Thank you all for the second chance.

10          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Absolutely.

11          Board, any questions for Mr. Duncan?

12          Okay. Hearing there are no questions, I'll  
13 entertain a motion.

14          BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
15 motioning to overturn the denial and grant Mr. Duncan his  
16 work card based on full disclosure and coming back, doing  
17 exactly what we asked him to do.

18          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.  
19 Do we have a second?

20          BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

21          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion. We have  
22 a second.

23          All in favor say aye.

24          Aye.

25          BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

2 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations. Good luck to  
4 you. Thank you. They'll contact you with next steps.

5 Jonathan -- Agenda Item No. 70, Jonathan Chi.

6 MR. CHI: Good day, Board.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good afternoon.

8 Okay. Investigator Diaz, could you tell us why  
9 we're here for Mr. Chi?

10 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: The applicant was denied for a  
11 felony assault with a deadly weapon conviction out of  
12 Los Angeles, California, in 2017. The applicant was  
13 sentenced to five years in prison and later dismissed under  
14 California PC 1203.4.

15 The applicant also has a 2010 misdemeanor aid,  
16 slash, abet in exhibition of speed and was sentenced to 24  
17 months probation. This arrest was disclosed.

18 He did disclose all arrests and submitted a  
19 written letter of appeal. He was not made provisional and  
20 is here to appeal today.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any questions  
22 for Mr. -- is it Chi?

23 MR. CHI: Yes, ma'am.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Mr. Chi.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

1 Mr. Chi, how long have you been in Nevada?

2 MR. CHI: About a year and a half.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: No issues?

4 MR. CHI: No, ma'am.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Do you have a job now?

6 MR. CHI: Yes, I do.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. No further questions.

8 Thank you.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions from the  
10 Board?

11 Okay. If there's no further questions, I'll  
12 entertain a motion.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
14 motioning to overturn the denial and grant Mr. Chi his work  
15 card based on the full disclosure.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.  
17 Do we have a second?

18 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
20 have a second.

21 All in favor say aye.

22 Aye.

23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

25 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations, sir. The  
2 office will contact you for next steps.

3 MR. CHI: Thank you, Board. Thank you, Board, for  
4 your time and patience. Have a great day.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good luck.

6 MR. CHI: Thank you.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good luck.

8 Agenda Item No. 71, Michael Ortega.

9 MR. ORTEGA: Hello. How are you guys?

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good. Have you been sworn in,  
11 sir?

12 MR. ORTEGA: Yes.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: You've been here for a while.

14 Okay. Investigator Diaz, could you tell us why  
15 we're here for Mr. Ortega?

16 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: The applicant was denied for a  
17 misdemeanor assault with a deadly weapon conviction out of  
18 Riverside, California, in 2009. The applicant was sentenced  
19 to 36 months probation. He was previously denied in 2023  
20 for failing to disclose this arrest, and the Board did  
21 uphold the denial.

22 He did disclose the arrest on this application and  
23 submitted a written letter of appeal at the time of  
24 applying. He was not made provisional and is here to appeal  
25 today.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, any questions for  
2 Mr. Ortega?

3 Okay. Hearing there are no questions, I'll  
4 entertain a motion.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
6 motioning to overturn the denial for Mr. Ortega, granting  
7 him his work card based on the full disclosure.

8 Thank you for doing what we've asked.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah, thank you very much.  
10 So we have a motion.

11 Do we have a second?

12 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
14 second.

15 All in favor say aye.

16 Aye.

17 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

19 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations, sir. The  
21 office will conduct you for next steps. Okay.

22 MR. ORTEGA: Thank you.

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: All right. Good luck to you.  
24 Agenda Item No. 72, Mr. James Jennings.

25 MR. JENNINGS: How you doing, ladies and



1 gentlemen?

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Hello.

3 Just to confirm, sir, you've been sworn in?

4 MR. JENNINGS: Yes. This is the second time.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you.

6 Investigator Swarthout, could you tell us why  
7 we're here for Mr. Jennings?

8 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was denied  
9 for a conviction of illegal possession of a dangerous weapon  
10 and for failing to disclose arrest history.

11 2006, out of California, carry loaded firearm  
12 public place, 90 days in jail.

13 2019, out of California, CCW in vehicle. That was  
14 dismissed after a diversion.

15 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry, CCW vehicle?

16 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: CCW in vehicle.

17 2018, out of Nevada, domestic battery, dismissed.

18 2011, out of California, possession of controlled  
19 substance, five days jail.

20 2010, California, disobey court order, ten days  
21 jail suspended, three years probation.

22 2009, California, loud unreasonable noise, one day  
23 jail or fine.

24 2008, California, threatened crime with intent to  
25 terrorize, dismissed due to delay.

1           2007, California, loud unreasonable noise, paid a  
2 fine.

3           2005, California, grand theft labor property, \$400  
4 plus. There was no dispo listed on that one.

5           THE COURT REPORTER: There was no what listed?

6           INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: There was no disposition  
7 listed on that one.

8           When the applicant first applied, Investigator  
9 Dumas had reached out to him because of the arrest history  
10 that showed up in SCOPE and had him relist his arrest  
11 history. When he did resubmit his arrest history, he listed  
12 the Nevada one and he listed what appeared to be traffic  
13 cases out of Arizona. He did not list any of these ones out  
14 of California.

15           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any questions  
16 for Mr. Jennings?

17           BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez.

18           Mr. Jennings, as you heard, you didn't list the  
19 California ones. Why? Why is that?

20           MR. JENNINGS: Well, so I -- I -- so later on in  
21 my life when I -- I went back and I got dismissals. I did  
22 send it to him. I sent him all the dismissals of all them  
23 cases.

24           So I did have a guard card and also a firearm  
25 permit in California. I assumed that by them being

1 dismissed I didn't have to write them on there. So that was  
2 my fault.

3 THE COURT REPORTER: I assumed -- I'm sorry. You  
4 assumed what?

5 MR. JENNINGS: That I didn't have to write them on  
6 there because they were dismissed. I had sent in for -- I  
7 forget what PC number it is, but they -- all the cases are  
8 dismissed. None of those things are on my background  
9 anymore.

10 So when -- when I spoke with the person on the  
11 phone, I asked her, "What do you actually see on there?"  
12 And she was very rude to me, like, "Oh, it's up to you to  
13 find out. It's not for me to tell you." I was like, "Okay.  
14 Well, I need the help to try to, you know, see what's on  
15 there because that stuff was so long ago." It's over ten  
16 years ago. It's no excuse for me not to put it on there,  
17 because it -- I pretty much thought it was dismissed so --

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood.

19 So I just want you to understand and be clear  
20 about it. On the application, there's this page right here.  
21 Okay? And what it -- as you read it, what it says is that  
22 you need to list everything, and that also includes list all  
23 charges, even if dismissed under the California PC 1203.4.  
24 That's the PC code that you were looking for.

25 MR. JENNINGS: Okay.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So, unfortunately, despite  
2 the fact that it was dismissed or wasn't even charged or if  
3 it was just arrest, you had to list it.

4 MR. JENNINGS: And I did disclose that when I --  
5 when I went for my appeal.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Afterwards?

7 MR. JENNINGS: Yes.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Correct.

9 MR. JENNINGS: I did disclose it. I did not  
10 read --

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Right.

12 MR. JENNINGS: I did not read -- take in hand to  
13 read like I should have. I did disclose it in my written  
14 appeal.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Correct. Thank you.

16 MR. JENNINGS: No problem.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions for  
18 Mr. Jennings?

19 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
20 I'll entertain a motion.

21 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

22 I move we uphold the denial based on nondisclosure  
23 of arrest record.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.

25 Do we have a second?

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.

3 We have a second.

4 All in favor say aye.

5 Aye.

6 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

8 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So the motion passes.

10 You will not get your work card.

11 MR. JENNINGS: Okay.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: You do have -- you just  
13 watched, you know, several individuals who were denied last  
14 year. They took the opportunity to come back with all the  
15 information that they can get from the PILB who will help  
16 support your -- your quest to get your guard card. So  
17 please come back and see us again in a year.

18 MR. JENNINGS: Okay. Yeah. You have a good day.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: All right. Thank you. You  
20 too.

21 Agenda Item No. 73, Bradley Gentry.

22 Okay. Mr. Gentry?

23 I'll trail.

24 Agenda Item No. 74, Robert Esquivel.

25 Mr. Esquivel?

1 Okay. Trail.

2 Agenda Item No. 75, Cristy Jones.

3 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Just a note. She did  
4 email me, and she's trying to find where we're at. I sent  
5 her the address again, so hopefully she can find it here  
6 pretty soon.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Probably in this parking  
9 lot somewhere.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah. Okay. I'll go ahead  
11 and trail. Thank you for that.

12 Agenda Item No. 76, Kevin Murphy.

13 Good afternoon.

14 MR. MURPHY: Good afternoon.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Just to confirm, you have been  
16 sworn in?

17 MR. MURPHY: Yes.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you.

19 Investigator Swarthout, could you please let us  
20 know why we're here for Mr. Murphy?

21 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was denied  
22 for a conviction of the illegal use or possession of a  
23 dangerous weapon.

24 2008, out of California, CCW in the vehicle.

25 2021, out of Nevada, domestic battery first

1 offense. It was adjudication deferred, dismissed after  
2 diversion.

3 2017, out of Nevada, battery first offense --  
4 domestic battery first offense, adjudication deferred,  
5 dismissed after diversion again.

6 2011, out of Nevada, domestic battery, first  
7 offense, credit for two days served, DV counseling and fined  
8 60 hours of community service.

9 2008, out of Oregon, this one wasn't disclosed,  
10 although previous ones were. Prostitution compelled. The  
11 second count was domestic abuse. The third count was  
12 prostitution promoting. All counts were dismissed in that  
13 case.

14 1995, out of Oregon, this one wasn't disclosed.  
15 First count was forgery lesser offense. Second count was  
16 attempt to commit a crime. He was sentenced to 18 months  
17 probation and a fine.

18 1992, out of Oregon, disorderly conduct and was  
19 given a fine.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any questions  
21 for Mr. Murphy?

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez.

23 Mr. Murphy, why did you fail to disclose the  
24 out-of-state convictions?

25 MR. MURPHY: I thought I disclosed everything.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Nope, you didn't.

2 So it's your testimony that you just didn't?

3 MR. MURPHY: I really thought I disclosed  
4 everything.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood.

6 Okay. Thank you.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions from the  
8 Board?

9 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
10 I'll entertain a motion.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
12 motioning to uphold the denial based on no disclosure --  
13 nondisclosure of full arrest history.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.  
15 Do we have a second?

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
18 have a second.

19 All in favor say aye.

20 Aye.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

23 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So, unfortunately, you did not  
25 disclose everything. There were several out-of-state



1 arrests or convictions that you did not.

2 You have an opportunity to come back in one year.  
3 Again, you can work with the office to help support your --  
4 filling out the application. They have all the information  
5 now. Okay?

6 MR. MURPHY: Okay. Thank you.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Good luck to you.  
8 Agenda Item No. 77, Brenda Clark.

9 Good afternoon.

10 MS. CLARK: Good afternoon.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Swarthout, could  
12 you tell us why we're here for Ms. Clark?

13 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Applicant was denied for  
14 a conviction of a felony.

15 2015, out of Nevada, attempted theft, sentenced to  
16 12 to 36 months, NDOC suspended, period of probation not to  
17 exceed five years. The applicant was dishonorably  
18 discharged from probation on 8/21 of 2019 in this case.

19 1993, out of California, misdemeanor possession of  
20 a controlled substance, six months community service.

21 The applicant did disclose all of her arrests on  
22 her application.

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any questions  
24 for Ms. Clark?

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

1 Good afternoon, Ms. Clark.

2 MS. CLARK: Good afternoon.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Why were you negatively  
4 discharged from probation?

5 MS. CLARK: Owe still restitution. Still need to  
6 finish paying on the restitution.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So -- okay. You're  
8 not being supervised, but it's still open for restitution?

9 MS. CLARK: As far as I know, it's closed. That's  
10 why it was dishonorable discharge.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

12 MS. CLARK: Because I didn't complete the --

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Got it.

14 MS. CLARK: -- my -- you know, the finances.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So are you still legally  
16 responsible to pay the restitution, or did that get part of  
17 the deal of the negative discharge?

18 MS. CLARK: Yes, ma'am.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood.

20 How much was that restitution?

21 MS. CLARK: Honestly, I'm not sure.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Roughly.

23 MS. CLARK: Somewhere -- I want to say like 6,000,  
24 somewhere in there.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Talk to me about that

1 incident.

2 MS. CLARK: It was when -- excuse me. When I  
3 first moved out here, and it was a check that came in the  
4 mail. Thought it was an income tax check. Come to find  
5 out, it was a fraud -- fraudulent check. I cashed it. And  
6 then -- I didn't even know until an incident happened at my  
7 home where I called the police where it was a home invasion.  
8 And as they were coming to check on the home invasion, I had  
9 a warrant.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Got it.

11 MS. CLARK: And that's how I found out about it,  
12 so yeah.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Thank you.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further questions  
15 from the Board?

16 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
17 I'll entertain a motion.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez  
19 motioning to overturn the denial and grant Ms. Clark her  
20 work card based on full disclosure.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.  
22 Do we have a second?

23 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.  
25 We have a second.

1 All in favor say aye.

2 Aye.

3 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

5 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So congratulations.

7 MS. CLARK: Thank you.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: And thank you for disclosing  
9 everything. We will be able to grant your work card. The  
10 office will contact you for next steps. Okay.

11 MS. CLARK: Thank you guys so much.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yep. Good luck to you.

13 MS. CLARK: Happy holidays to you guys.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: You too.

15 Agenda Item No. 78, Ronald Hughes.

16 Hello, sir.

17 MR. HUGHES: Hello.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Have you been sworn in?

19 MR. HUGHES: Yes, ma'am.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Awesome.

21 Investigator Swarthout, could you tell us why  
22 we're here for Mr. Hughes?

23 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was denied  
24 for a conviction of a felony.

25 2002, out of California, robbery second degree.

1 The applicant was sentenced to two years prison. The  
2 applicant, when he applied, disclosed his arrest and  
3 provided court documents for it.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any questions  
5 for Mr. Hughes?

6 Hearing there are no questions, I'll entertain a  
7 motion.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
9 motioning to overturn the denial and grant Mr. Hughes his  
10 work card based on full disclosure of his criminal history  
11 and providing the court documents.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.

13 Do we have a second?

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion. We have  
16 a second.

17 All in favor say aye.

18 Aye.

19 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

21 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations. We're going  
23 to move forward with your work card. The office will  
24 contact you for the next steps. Okay.

25 MR. HUGHES: Thank you.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Good luck to you.

2 So we're now into the 1:00 o'clock session, which  
3 is -- 12:58, so we got a couple minutes on that. So we'll  
4 go ahead and do the trails right now.

5 Let's start with Agenda Item No. 19. I think  
6 Mr. -- Board Member Gronauer pulled that one out. Some  
7 subsequent information was provided to Mr. Gronauer.

8 Did you have any -- were there any further  
9 questions or concerns with Agenda Item No. 19?

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: I'm all good with the  
11 information.

12 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. What was that,  
13 sir?

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: All good with all the  
15 information.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So are there any  
17 further questions or concerns about Agenda Item No. 19,  
18 which is Premier Security Services?

19 Okay. Hearing there are no questions, I will  
20 entertain a motion.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
22 motioning to approve Premier Security Services, LLC a new  
23 corporate private patrol officer and private investigator  
24 license. Mr. Paul C. Page to be approved as a private --  
25 with a private patrol officer and private investigator

1 license and that it be placed in abeyance so that he may  
2 become the qualifying agent. The member to be approved is  
3 Mr. Paul C. Page. All subject to statutory and regulatory  
4 requirements.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.  
6 Do we have a second?

7 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.  
9 We have a second.

10 All in favor say aye.

11 Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

14 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Motion passes.

16 Now we'll go to Agenda Item No. 73. That is  
17 Bradley Gentry. Is Mr. Gentry here?

18 Okay. Agenda Item No. 74, Robert Esquivel. Is  
19 Mr. Esquivel here?

20 Okay. Agenda Item No. 75, Cristy Jones. Do we  
21 want to wait?

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Yeah. Let's trail her  
23 again.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we'll -- we'll trail her  
25 again.

1           So now I will entertain a motion on Agenda Item  
2 No. 73 and 74. They were supposed to be here at noon. It  
3 is now 1:00, 1:00 p.m.

4           BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
5 motioning to uphold the denials for said agenda items, 73  
6 and 74, based off no-call no-show. They were told to be  
7 here at 12:00. It is now 1:00 p.m.

8           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion.  
9 Do we have a second?

10          BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

11          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
12 have a second.

13          All in favor say aye.

14          Aye.

15          BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

16          BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

17          BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

18          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Motion passes.

19          Now we're on Agenda Item No. 79, William  
20 Cunningham.

21          MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yes.

22          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Is Mr. Cunningham here? Okay.

23          MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yeah. Do you want me to sit  
24 down?

25          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yes, sir.



1           Okay. Investigator Swarthout, could you please  
2 tell us why we're here for Mr. Cunningham?

3           INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was denied  
4 for not good moral character and failure to disclose arrest  
5 history.

6           2007, out of Nevada, felony conviction for  
7 misconduct of public officer. The applicant didn't --  
8 didn't disclose this on his application. After he was  
9 denied, he did reply back and list it, and he provided his  
10 pardon paperwork that was given to him on November 16th of  
11 2015.

12           THE COURT REPORTER: His what paperwork?

13           INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Pardon.

14           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Okay. Board, are there  
15 any questions for Mr. Cunningham?

16           BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

17           So, Investigator Swarthout, he did -- he did  
18 disclose the arrest?

19           INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: After he was denied.  
20 When -- when we sent him the denial letter, they're given  
21 another chance to disclose, and that's when he disclosed and  
22 provided paperwork for the pardon.

23           MR. CUNNINGHAM: May I say something?

24           BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Wait a moment.

25           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So a couple of

1 questions.

2 The denial was based off the fact that he was the  
3 undersheriff for Elko at the time of the incident? Okay.

4 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Right.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. And -- okay. So it  
6 says that -- the news articles were -- stated the applicant  
7 illegally purchased county-owned vehicles through sealed bid  
8 for \$350 and then sold them for well -- for about 3800.

9 So quick question for counsel and/or executive  
10 director.

11 Under a pardon, I don't think I've run into that.  
12 Is that -- on our applications, they must disclose? I mean,  
13 everything else is.

14 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Madam Chair,  
15 Executive Director for the record.

16 Typically, if we receive that information on the  
17 application, we would look that over. If we needed to refer  
18 to counsel, we would. When we get the -- we get the  
19 disclosure first within -- with -- with those documents that  
20 are supplied during the application process, you know, we  
21 review them.

22 This was found during the background process  
23 without any disclosure. And even the pardon was brought in  
24 after the fact.

25 Is that correct, Zach?

1 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Yeah. And we -- we have  
2 something I printed out directly from the Nevada State's  
3 website for pardons. One of the main things it says: It  
4 removes all disabilities. It forgives but does not forget.  
5 It's the only instrument to restore firearms rights.

6 What it doesn't do --

7 THE COURT REPORTER: It's the only instrument,  
8 what?

9 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Restore firearms rights.  
10 It does not overturn the judgment of conviction,  
11 does not erase or obliterate the fact, does not substitute a  
12 good reputation for a bad one, does not relieve sex  
13 offenders. Pardon does not attest to rehabilitation of a  
14 person.

15 But the "Please Note" that's on the website says:  
16 With regard to occupational licensing, where a statute  
17 limits rights based on the underlying -- underlying conduct  
18 and not the pardoned offense itself, the pardon would . . .  
19 remove and ease the disability of past conduct. If there's  
20 a requirement that the licensee -- license applicant has not  
21 been convicted of a felony, the pardon would permit  
22 licensing. However, if the licensing standard is good moral  
23 character, the pardon does not ease the moral guilt  
24 associated with the commission of the criminal offense and  
25 the fact giving rise to the conviction may be considered in

1 determining whether a person is of "good moral character."

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you for that.

3 My only question is: On our actual application,  
4 does it list pardon on there or -- what you're reading to me  
5 says he has to disclose it?

6 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Yeah.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

8 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: From -- from the way it  
9 sounds, from what -- what it doesn't do, it doesn't remove  
10 the fact that there was a conviction.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Got it. Right. Okay.  
12 Go ahead.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
14 I didn't clearly hear the answer.

15 Mr. Cunningham, why did you fail to disclose your  
16 criminal history?

17 MR. CUNNINGHAM: For -- one thing is I -- I was  
18 never arrested. It was -- and I have the paperwork to show  
19 that on my -- I was always given a letter from the attorney  
20 when I was supposed to appear and stuff, but there was never  
21 a -- I never got physically arrested. So how I read that  
22 question is that: Were you arrested?

23 And from the understanding that I had, when I got  
24 my license in Utah for the same company I work for in -- or  
25 was working for, is that when I went in, I talked to them,

1 and I showed them my pardon. And she goes, "Well" --

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Hang on.

3 MR. CUNNINGHAM: -- "you don't put that on the  
4 application. We'll just" -- "you know, we'll approve it as  
5 it is." So I did.

6 And then, like, I've bought weapons and things  
7 like that before. And when I do the -- the paperwork, it  
8 asks that question. "Have you ever been arrested?" And I  
9 was advised to put no on it. And I've never had a problem  
10 possessing a weapon or buying a weapon.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. I'm going to --

12 MR. CUNNINGHAM: So --

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Here, let me -- let me just  
14 remind you real quick that on the application, on page 5,  
15 that stop sign, it will -- it lists seven dots or it lists  
16 seven -- I'm sorry, lists what you can and cannot do or what  
17 you shouldn't be doing on the application. And one of them  
18 "list all charges and/or citations even if you were not  
19 placed in handcuffs."

20 So the fact that you were not arrested is not a  
21 reason for me to accept on why you failed to disclose that.

22 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Okay. That was the understanding  
23 that I've had, my legal advice before, that I didn't have  
24 to, but obviously they were wrong.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I didn't -- I didn't hear  
2 that part.

3 MR. CUNNINGHAM: I said I had legal advice before,  
4 and not -- that I didn't have to, but obviously they were  
5 wrong.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Well --

7 MR. CUNNINGHAM: And the -- the -- the board in  
8 Utah, when they gave me the license -- and I have my license  
9 here to prove that I've been -- I've worked in Utah for five  
10 years so --

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Sir, can I -- can I stop you  
12 there?

13 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yeah.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: I said this earlier.

15 MR. CUNNINGHAM: I understand what you're saying.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah. This is Nevada, not  
17 Utah.

18 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Right. Right.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: You're applying for a security  
20 officer's license, not a weapon.

21 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Right.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So you're -- you know, I think  
23 you were the undersheriff. I would expect more but --

24 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yes. I agree.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

1 MR. CUNNINGHAM: It's my bad. I apologize about  
2 that.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So --

4 MR. CUNNINGHAM: I'm not arguing with you about  
5 it. I'm just going by what I was told but --

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So to your previous  
7 statement, yes, you were misinformed.

8 So, Board, are there any other questions?

9 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
10 I'll entertain a motion.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
12 motioning to uphold the denial based on nondisclosure of  
13 criminal history.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.  
15 Do we have a second?

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
18 second.

19 All in favor say aye.

20 Aye.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

23 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Motion is -- is upheld.  
25 You will not get your work card today, but you do

1 have an opportunity to come back in one year. Now you  
2 understand Nevada's rules for a work card. Please feel free  
3 to come back and see us in one year. Thank you, sir, and  
4 good luck.

5 Okay. Agenda Item Number --

6 INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE: Is he talking?

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Sir, we can't hear you.

8 MR. CUNNINGHAM: I was just wondering why that I  
9 got -- I got approval and then I worked for two months and  
10 then all of a sudden I'm denied.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Because you didn't -- because  
12 you didn't tell the truth, sir. That is why. And it came  
13 back on fingerprints that you had been convicted of a crime.

14 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Okay. I understand.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

16 Okay. Agenda Item No. 80, Dominique Godfrey. I'm  
17 sorry. Dominique?

18 MR. GODFREY: Dominique Godfrey.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Sorry.

20 Okay. Investigator Swarthout, could you tell us  
21 why Mr. Godfrey is here?

22 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was denied  
23 for the illegal use or possession of a dangerous weapon and  
24 for failure to disclose.

25 2011, out of California, CCW on person with prior



1 convictions. He was sentenced to 3 years probation and 90  
2 days jail.

3 2010, out of California, first count was CCW  
4 prohibited -- prohibited unlawful possession. Second count  
5 was carry loaded firearm in a public place. Third was CCW  
6 in the vehicle. That was dismissed.

7 2013, out of Georgia, marijuana possession of less  
8 than one ounce. He was sentenced to 12 months probation and  
9 a \$200 fine, sentenced to 30 days jail after probation was  
10 revoked. He did disclose the marijuana possession.

11 One thing I do want to note is after the report  
12 was done, he's been in constant contact. He's been working  
13 on getting a 1203.4 for the CCW conviction out of  
14 California.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Sir, just to -- have you been  
16 sworn in?

17 MR. GODFREY: No, I haven't.

18 MR. DETMER: Good afternoon, sir. If you could,  
19 raise your right hand.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Is there anybody else in the  
21 room that has not been sworn in yet?

22 Okay. Please stand.

23 MR. DETMER: Sir, if you -- if you could all raise  
24 your right hand.

25 For those of you who are going to testify or

1 present before the Board, do you hereby swear to tell the  
2 truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

3 (Audience answers in the  
4 affirmative.)

5 (Applicants and witnesses were  
6 sworn by Counsel Detmer.)

7 MR. DETMER: Thank you.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

9 Okay. I'm sorry. Were there any questions from  
10 the Board for Mr. Godfrey?

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Mr. Godfrey, good afternoon.

12 MR. GODFREY: Good afternoon.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez for the  
14 record.

15 Why did you fail to disclose all of your arrests?

16 MR. GODFREY: Well, one of them is -- I don't even  
17 think that's correct, the CCW one. I had -- the only thing  
18 I had was a possession of firearm when I was 18, which part  
19 of my sentence, it was supposed to be sealed, so I didn't  
20 think that I had to, you know, disclose that.

21 The only thing I thought I had to disclose was the  
22 possession of marijuana, but -- yeah, that's why, because I  
23 thought it was sealed.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Are you talking about the  
25 2010 one? The --

1 MR. GODFREY: Yeah. That was the only one. The  
2 2011 that supposedly got dismissed, I'm not even -- I never  
3 got arrested again in California.

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Investigator Swarthout, he  
5 disclosed just the 2013?

6 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Yes, the marijuana  
7 possession out -- out of -- out of Georgia, Marietta,  
8 Georgia.

9 MR. GODFREY: Yeah, Murrieta. Cobb County.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further questions?

11 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

12 Investigator Swarthout, these other 2011 and 2010  
13 out of California, are they off the fingerprints?

14 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Yes.

15 MR. GODFREY: So I think that's the same charge.  
16 I'm not sure. Because I was out on bond, and then when I  
17 guess -- I don't know if it was -- when you get indicted,  
18 they moved me to another court before my sentence. I got  
19 sentenced in 2011.

20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay. But you still  
21 didn't report one.

22 MR. GODFREY: I report -- oh, yeah, I didn't  
23 report the 2010 arrest.

24 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay. Thank you.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I don't know if you answered

1 that when I asked.

2 Why didn't you report it?

3 MR. GODFREY: Because I thought -- when I -- part  
4 of my sentence, my -- after doing my 90 days and the 3  
5 years, they said because I was 18 years old, under, like,  
6 the California -- under 26, they said that it -- I -- it  
7 would be automatically sealed.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

9 MR. GODFREY: So I thought I didn't have to bring  
10 it up, because I had gotten -- I never did a fingerprint,  
11 but I have gotten other jobs before where they said they  
12 don't hire felons, so I was hired, so I assumed, Okay, it's  
13 not there.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, any further questions  
16 for Mr. Godfrey?

17 Okay. Hearing there are no further questions,  
18 I'll entertain a motion.

19 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

20 I move we uphold the denial based on nondisclosure  
21 of arrest record.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.

23 Do we have a second?

24 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.

1 We have a second.

2 All in favor say aye.

3 Aye.

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

6 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So, unfortunately,  
8 because there wasn't full disclosure, we're going to deny.  
9 You do have an opportunity to come back in one year and  
10 reapply.

11 MR. GODFREY: Okay.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Work with the office. They'll  
13 help you, and they'll have your information. Okay.

14 MR. GODFREY: Okay. Thank you.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: All right. Good luck to you,  
16 sir.

17 MR. GODFREY: All right.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Agenda Item No. 81, Ignacio  
19 Castillo.

20 Okay. Investigator Swarthout, could you tell us  
21 why we're here for Mr. Castillo?

22 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was denied  
23 for conviction of illegal use or possession of dangerous  
24 weapon and failure to disclose.

25 If the Board remembers, he attended the September

1 2024 Board meeting and asked to be postponed and come back  
2 after he gathered more documents.

3 He does have a 1977, out of North Carolina,  
4 carrying concealed weapon conviction.

5 1974, out of North Carolina, larceny.

6 1997, out of Alabama, driving under the influence.

7 The applicant, during the process, provided court  
8 documents and even went and got his fingerprints rechecked  
9 by the FBI, which do confirm the arrest history.

10 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Madam Chair,  
11 Executive Director for the record.

12 This was the first time we've had an individual  
13 question the results from DPS. So in conjunction with  
14 Mr. Castillo and the office, we were able to find the  
15 correct forms to submit it to DPS. However, they did come  
16 back with the, you know, correct arrest history that was  
17 noted when we got the report.

18 During the period of the end of September Board  
19 meeting, to, you know, just before this Board meeting,  
20 Mr. Castillo has gotten police reports from Alabama and  
21 North Carolina where -- I believe the lady had to go into  
22 archives and stuff to get it.

23 MR. CASTILLO: Yes. Correct, sir.

24 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: She was surprised  
25 there was even a record of it because it was so old. And,

1 you know, Mr. Castillo has been very helpful, you know,  
2 through this process and actually helped the Board, Board  
3 staff understand how to now submit those if anybody was to  
4 question DPS for fingerprints.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So I remember you  
6 didn't -- you didn't believe that you had these arrests.

7 Do you --

8 MR. CASTILLO: I still don't believe I have two of  
9 them.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

11 MR. CASTILLO: I don't remember them.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

13 MR. CASTILLO: Only time -- like I said previous,  
14 when I was here, when I was in -- only time in Alabama is  
15 for my veterans' reunion, and we all stayed at the ranch  
16 house.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

18 MR. CASTILLO: I don't -- I don't know what  
19 happened there.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, are there any  
21 questions? Okay.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Not so much questions, Madam  
23 Chair.

24 This is Board Member Cortez. I just have a couple  
25 comments.

1 I do recall this case, that Mr. Castillo was  
2 adamant about he wasn't the individual who committed all  
3 these crimes. Unfortunately, not only on his efforts but  
4 also the efforts of our office, it was found that you are,  
5 in fact, the individual who was convicted of all these  
6 crimes. So, nonetheless, while we have all the answers, it  
7 does not negate the fact that you failed to disclose your  
8 criminal history.

9 So I'm going to ask you one more time: Why did  
10 you fail to report any criminal history?

11 MR. CASTILLO: As I said before, I still stand  
12 by -- I don't even remember them.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So you don't remember  
14 them, but is it your testimony that you also received your  
15 own fingerprints or you went through your own process --

16 MR. CASTILLO: Yes, I did.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- and, in fact, confirmed,  
18 unfortunately --

19 MR. CASTILLO: Yeah. Well, I was wrong, and I  
20 admitted to it, you know.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

22 MR. CASTILLO: You know, so I done --

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

24 MR. CASTILLO: -- paid my fine, did my time.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood.



1 MR. CASTILLO: Yeah.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you so much.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Did you pay a fine when you  
4 found all this out or --

5 MR. CASTILLO: Back then I paid it.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

7 MR. CASTILLO: Back then, yes. I think I stayed a  
8 few days in jail, paid my fines.

9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: But you don't remember any of  
10 this?

11 MR. CASTILLO: I swear. The only one I remember  
12 is the breaking and entering.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Wait. Did you just say you  
14 went to jail and you paid the fines?

15 MR. CASTILLO: On the first one that I -- that I  
16 know I did. The one I know I did.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

18 MR. CASTILLO: Not the one in Alabama.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Got it.

20 MR. CASTILLO: I don't know what's going on in  
21 Alabama.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So, unfortunately, the one  
23 that you just indicated that you remembered, even that one  
24 wasn't reported. So I'm glad that you remembered it, but,  
25 unfortunately, you had to report it onto the application as

1 well.

2 MR. CASTILLO: Well, I remembered it when you guys  
3 told me, but the other ones, no.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Oh, okay.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

6 MR. CASTILLO: Yeah, I -- yeah, that, I do.

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Got it.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

9 MR. CASTILLO: Yeah. I -- I don't -- I'm not all  
10 in there.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: These are in the '70s --

12 MR. CASTILLO: I know.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- so I understand how you  
14 forgot, but, unfortunately, the majority of people don't  
15 forget doing time in jail or half of this.

16 MR. CASTILLO: This guy does.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Fair enough, sir.

18 Okay.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

20 MR. CASTILLO: I need the work.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, are there any further  
22 questions?

23 Okay. Hearing there's no further questions, I'll  
24 entertain a motion.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.

1 I'm going to motion that we uphold the denial,  
2 unfortunately. It's still based off the nondisclosure of  
3 criminal history after two attempts now verifying the same  
4 individual.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.  
6 Do we have a second?

7 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

8 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
9 second.

10 All in favor say aye.

11 Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

14 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So unfortunately --

16 MR. CASTILLO: Oh, come on.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So the issue is -- so -- so  
18 please just -- if you could, just hear us out.

19 We've just denied a room full of people because  
20 they had the same issue. They had convictions that they did  
21 not place on their initial applications.

22 Do you understand that?

23 MR. CASTILLO: Yeah. That's what you guys did to  
24 me the first time.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Right.

1 MR. CASTILLO: Yeah.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Well, so --

3 MR. CASTILLO: So now I came back and did what you  
4 guys wanted.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So -- so hang on. Hang on.

6 The -- the rule -- what we told you was you could  
7 come back in one year and reapply. It takes -- once you  
8 apply and you're denied, it takes one year. That's what  
9 I've told every single person in here that's been denied.  
10 One year.

11 So your actual first denial was in September of  
12 2024, right?

13 MR. CASTILLO: If you say so. Go ahead.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yes. So it was in -- it was a  
15 couple of months ago. So it is now just three months later.  
16 You have to wait until September of 2025.

17 MR. CASTILLO: So why did you -- why did you tell  
18 me to come back in three months?

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Madam Chair, may I?

20 Sir, here's what happened: In September you came  
21 before us with this exact information that we had. You were  
22 given the opportunity to postpone it to December because you  
23 challenged the Department of Public Safety, their  
24 fingerprinting. There's no debating a fingerprint report.  
25 However, we gave you the opportunity to postpone it to

1 December so you could do your homework.

2           You were the individual who challenged the  
3 fingerprint report. We gave you that opportunity. We  
4 didn't have to do that. The decision -- my decision would  
5 have been the exact same motion today that it was on  
6 September, but we allowed you the opportunity to go do your  
7 homework.

8           Sir, you came here and you testified that you did  
9 do your homework, and that homework revealed that you,  
10 indeed, are the individual --

11           MR. CASTILLO: Well, you guys --

12           BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Hang on, sir. I'm speaking.

13           With the same information provided in September.  
14 So for you to get upset over here for giving you the  
15 opportunity to go do your homework, which your homework, in  
16 turn, turned against you, it's inappropriate.

17           So, unfortunately, this is our decision. It was a  
18 decision that could have been made in September, but we  
19 allowed you to postpone it to December. Unfortunately, the  
20 results are still the same. So there's really nothing else  
21 to debate. I'm sorry you're not happy with the decision,  
22 but that's what it is.

23           MR. CASTILLO: Okay.

24           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: All right. Thank you.

25           Thank you. I forgot about the --

1 MR. CASTILLO: Why thank you? I don't understand.  
2 My God.  
3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: I was --  
4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Well, because we gave you  
5 everybody's opportunity when we could have handled it in  
6 September, sir. But you're not --  
7 MR. CASTILLO: Oh, so I was clear now -- I'm --  
8 I'm clear.  
9 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: You're not cleared, sir.  
10 MR. CASTILLO: When do I come back? In two years?  
11 A year?  
12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: That's completely up to you.  
13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: A year from today.  
14 MR. CASTILLO: Okay. What do I do in the  
15 meantime? Who's going to feed me? Who's going to put gas?  
16 Who's going to pay my bills?  
17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Sir -- sir --  
18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: There are other jobs  
19 available, sir. There's --  
20 MR. CASTILLO: Yeah.  
21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- help wanted signs  
22 everywhere. It doesn't have to be in security so --  
23 MR. CASTILLO: Oh, I know. I been put for porter.  
24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Perfect.  
25 MR. CASTILLO: I got janitor.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Perfect. I encourage you  
2 to --

3 MR. CASTILLO: But they keep asking me: Have you  
4 been in -- in a felon? Do you have misdemeanors? I have to  
5 put yes, and I'm being -- I'm not being hired.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Sir, unfortunately, that is  
7 not this Board's problem.

8 Good luck to you.

9 MR. CASTILLO: Sure.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Agenda Item No. 82, Maston --  
11 Maston Roye.

12 Good afternoon, sir.

13 MR. ROYE: Good afternoon.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Swarthout, could  
15 you please tell us why we're here for Mr. Roye?

16 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was denied  
17 for a felony conviction.

18 1992, out of New York, second -- robbery second  
19 degree, displays what appears to be a firearm. He was  
20 sentenced to 18 to 54 months prison. The applicant was  
21 released on parole on 8/11/1997.

22 The applicant did disclose his arrest and  
23 conviction on his application, and he wishes to appeal.

24 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

25 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. He -- what was

1 the last part?

2 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: He did disclose this on  
3 his application and wishes to appeal.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, any questions for  
5 Mr. Roye?

6 Hearing there are no questions, I'll entertain a  
7 motion.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
9 motioning to overturn the denial and grant Mr. Roye his work  
10 card based on full disclosure.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion.

12 Do we have a second?

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
15 have a second.

16 All in favor say aye.

17 Aye.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

20 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations. You will get  
22 your work card. Thank you very much for disclosing  
23 everything. The office will contact you with next steps.

24 MR. ROYE: Thank you so much. You guys have a  
25 beautiful holiday.



1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Good luck to you.

2 Agenda Item No. 83, Alfonso Cortez.

3 Good afternoon, Mr. Cortez.

4 Investigator Dumas, could you tell us why we're  
5 here for Mr. Cortez?

6 INVESTIGATOR DUMAS: The applicant was denied due  
7 to a 2002 felony conviction of one count of taking vehicle  
8 without owner's consent. The judgment was reduced by 1203.4  
9 to attempted receiving stolen property. He was sentenced to  
10 two days in jail and three years probation. The offense was  
11 considered a wobbler due to PC 496(a) in California. He was  
12 denied. He also provided the letter from the Superior Court  
13 of California, the County of Santa Clara, stating he was  
14 given the record clearance due to the 1203.4 PC.

15 He was not made provisional and is here to appeal  
16 today.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Just to be clear, he  
18 did disclose this?

19 INVESTIGATOR DUMAS: Correct.

20 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you.

21 Board, any questions for Mr. Cortez?

22 Hearing there are no questions, I'll entertain a  
23 motion.

24 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

25 I move we grant the work card based on full

1 disclosure of arrest record.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.

3 Do we have a second?

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. We have a  
6 second.

7 All in favor say aye.

8 Aye.

9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

11 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Motion passes.

13 Congratulations, sir. Thank you for your  
14 patience.

15 MR. CORTEZ: Have a good day.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Agenda No. 84, Ivory  
17 Crawford.

18 Okay. Ms. Crawford?

19 Okay. Agenda Item No. 85, Jimmy Sigmon.

20 Agenda Item No. 86, Berserkr Dufee -- Dufee.

21 Agenda Item No. 87, Marie Ellen Ruiz --

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Maria Elena Ruiz-Fregoso.

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Elena Ruiz-Fregoso. Sorry.

24 MS. RUIZ-FREGOSO: No, it's fine.

25 Does somebody speak Spanish?

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Un pocito.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Do you need an interpreter?

3 THE COURT REPORTER: Okay. So if it's going to be  
4 in Spanish and there's no interpreter, it won't be on the  
5 record.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I can help translate, but --

7 THE COURT REPORTER: You can -- you can put  
8 something on the record, but I --

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

10 THE COURT REPORTER: Obviously, if it's in  
11 Spanish, and I don't have an interpreter --

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. All right.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So do you need an  
14 interpreter?

15 MS. RUIZ-FREGOSO: Yeah.

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Is that -- is that how  
17 we -- I think you do that.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I can't, but --

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: You can?

20 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: (Inaudible response.)

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So she can help you.  
22 Okay?

23 So, Investigator Dumas, could you please tell us  
24 why we're here for Ms. Ruiz-Fregosa?

25 INVESTIGATOR DUMAS: Investigator Dumas for the

1 record.

2 The applicant was denied due to a 2011 felony  
3 conviction of two charges of importing/exporting of  
4 controlled substances. She was sentenced to 80 months in  
5 prison with 60 months of supervised release.

6 In 2006, she was convicted of a hit-and-run in  
7 California, misdemeanor, three years probation.

8 The applicant was denied. This is her second time  
9 being denied. She was not made provisional and is here to  
10 appeal -- is here to appeal today.

11 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: She did disclose.

12 Okay. So just to be clear, originally she didn't  
13 disclose the items. This time she did disclose all of the  
14 items.

15 So Board --

16 INVESTIGATOR DUMAS: Correct.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

18 So, Board, are there any questions?

19 MR. DETMER: Mike Detmer for the record.

20 If -- and I'm sorry, Investigator, your name?

21 Sorry.

22 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Adriana Cuevas.

23 MR. DETMER: If Investigator Cuevas is going to  
24 provide interpretation to Ms. Fregosa -- I think I got  
25 that -- she may need an opportunity to relay the information

1 that is being -- being stated by the Board.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Okay. So do you want  
3 to go ahead and do that? Okay. Sorry.

4 (Interpretation provided.)

5 MR. DETMER: I apologize for the interruption.  
6 Mike Detmer for the record.

7 Before -- before you answer, out of an abundance  
8 of caution, if you're going to act as an interpreter, if I  
9 can -- I know you swore earlier, if I can swear you in  
10 again --

11 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Okay. Yeah.

12 MR. DETMER: -- to provide truthful interpretation  
13 services.

14 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Okay. Yeah.

15 MR. DETMER: So, if you could, raise your right  
16 hand, please.

17 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Do you want me to stand?

18 MR. DETMER: I'll stand with you.

19 Do you hereby swear by affirm to translate  
20 truthfully and honestly as you were and as you -- and as you  
21 will continue to do in the process for this agenda item?

22 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: I do.

23 (Investigator Cuevas sworn in as  
24 interpreter.)

25 MR. DETMER: And, Ms. Fregoso --

1 Can you translate for me on this part?

2 Do you have any objection to Ms. Investigator  
3 Cuevas serving as your interpreter?

4 MS. RUIZ-FREGOSO: No.

5 THE COURT REPORTER: And then interpret her answer  
6 for me.

7 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Yes. She said "no," she  
8 doesn't have an --

9 THE COURT REPORTER: No. I know. I know, but I  
10 still have to have an interpretation even if I know what it  
11 is.

12 MR. DETMER: And I'm sorry. Mike Detmer for the  
13 record.

14 So what you just stated to Ms. Fregoso was just  
15 restating what was previously said by the commission --

16 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Correct.

17 MR. DETMER: -- or by the Board?

18 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: So Ms. Board Chair asked  
19 Investigator Dumas why the applicant was denied, why she's  
20 here. I explained that that's what she asked, explained  
21 that Investigator Dumas went over the denial report, the  
22 arrests that she had listed, that she was previously denied,  
23 came back, reapplied, listed her arrests, and is here to  
24 appeal again.

25 MR. DETMER: Thank you.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Board, are there any questions  
2 for Mrs. -- Ms. Fregoso?

3 MR. DETMER: Pause.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Hearing there is no  
5 questions, I'll entertain a motion.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
7 motioning to overturn the denial and grant Ms. Maria Elena  
8 Ruiz-Fregoso her work card based on full disclosure and  
9 coming back, doing exactly what we asked, a year later.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.  
11 So we have a motion.

12 Do we have a second?

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
15 have a second.

16 All in favor say aye.

17 Aye.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

20 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

22 Congratulations.

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: That, she did understand.

24 MS. RUIZ-FREGOSO: (In English.) I understand, but  
25 I can't explain myself, like, really well, you know.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah. No problem.  
2 Congratulations. Thank you.  
3 So we have one -- two more. Number 88, Renecia  
4 Smith.  
5 Hello.  
6 MS. SMITH: Hello.  
7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you for your patience.  
8 MS. SMITH: Thank you for the opportunity, Board.  
9 Appreciate you guys.  
10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Have you been sworn in?  
11 MS. SMITH: Yes.  
12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Perfect.  
13 Investigator --  
14 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Me, Cuevas.  
15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: -- Cuevas, could you please  
16 tell us why we're here for Ms. Smith?  
17 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: Yes.  
18 Ms. Smith was denied for her disclosed felony  
19 conviction. She was not made provisional as she was  
20 previously --  
21 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. She was what?  
22 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS: She was not made  
23 provisional. She was previously denied by the Board in  
24 September of 2023 for failure to disclose the felony  
25 conviction. She is now reapplying full disclosure.



1           At the time that you guys received the report, we  
2           did not have fingerprint results, but we have received them.  
3           There's nothing new. We matched what is listed on the  
4           report. She is here to appeal.

5           BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any questions  
6           for Ms. Smith?

7           Okay. Hearing there's no questions, I'll  
8           entertain a motion.

9           BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
10          motioning to overturn the denial and grant Ms. Smith her  
11          work card based on coming back a year later and doing  
12          exactly what we asked, full disclosure of criminal history.

13          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.  
14          Do we have a second?

15          BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

16          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion. We  
17          have a second.

18          All in favor say aye.

19          Aye.

20          BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

21          BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

22          BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

23          BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations. Good luck to  
24          you.

25          MS. SMITH: Thank you.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: The office -- contact the  
2 office tomorrow.

3 MS. SMITH: Thank you.

4 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: You're very welcome.  
5 Agenda Item 89, Vince Williams.

6 Okay. All right. So we can go through trailed  
7 items now. I think --

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Did you want to email that  
9 girl?

10 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: I already messaged her  
11 back. I haven't heard anything back from her.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: She's still lost?

13 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Probably or she --

14 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Or gave up.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Go outside, "Cristy."

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. All right. So --

17 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: In the parking garage  
18 waiting for the elevator.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Waiting for the elevator.  
20 Waiting for the non-working elevator.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So I think we have  
22 Agenda Item No. 75, Cristy Jones.

23 You have not heard back from her?

24 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: I have not heard back  
25 from her.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So Agenda Item No. 75,  
2 Cristy Jones; Agenda Item 84, Ivory Crawford; Agenda Item  
3 No. 85, Jimmy Sigmon; number -- Agenda Item No. 86, Berserke  
4 Dufee; and then Agenda Item No. 89, Vince Williams.

5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Can I just ask a question  
6 in here?

7 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Sure.

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: With this Cristy Jones,  
9 since she was here in the parking lot somewhere and did  
10 whatever she was doing and now probably just gave up -- I  
11 have no idea -- can we just put her off until the next  
12 meeting instead of waiting a year or making a judgment on  
13 it?

14 MR. DETMER: I'm not aware of a requirement, as  
15 far as matters that are put on the agenda, that has to be  
16 called at the time of the agenda. These motions seem to be  
17 tailored to denying it based off nonappearance, but I don't  
18 know if you necessarily have to by statute or regulation --

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah.

20 MR. DETMER: -- deny it at this time.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: I mean, I think -- you want to  
22 give her another opportunity? She tried.

23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Well, you know, with this  
24 complex, I mean --

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Or trail it to the next --

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: -- we all almost got lost  
2 in here.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Yeah.

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: But -- you know, and after  
5 a while, it gets a little disgusting. And then you try to  
6 find a parking spot. I mean, at least she called.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I was going to say, she's  
8 made reasonable effort --

9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Yeah.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- to notify she's in the  
11 vicinity. If anything, push it to the next -- next Board  
12 meeting.

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: So I'm just saying -- I'd  
14 say if we just go ahead and go forward with it and have her  
15 have to wait another year, I just don't see that --

16 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

17 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: -- as a practicality.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Trail to the next Board  
19 meeting?

20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: I don't know this lady.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Do I -- do I need to ask for a  
22 motion on that, or can we just decide to trail it till the  
23 next meeting?

24 MR. DETMER: I mean, generally, the -- it's often  
25 perceived that the Chair has the discretion to table

1 items --

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

3 MR. DETMER: -- to the next agenda. But for  
4 safety sake, you could make it by motion of the Board.

5 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Let's do that then.

6 Okay. So, you know, just for up north, for -- so  
7 that you understand what's going on, this building is a new  
8 building, and it's quite complicated. We did get  
9 notification from Agenda No. 75, Cristy Jones, that she was  
10 trying to find the location, but she has not been able to.

11 So at this time, I'll entertain a motion for  
12 Ms. Jones.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Are we tabling it or  
14 postponing? What's the word?

15 MR. DETMER: Mike Detmer for the record.

16 Table, postpone, just qualify it with "to the next  
17 agenda."

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Got it.

19 This is Board Member Cortez motioning to table,  
20 slash, postpone Agenda Item 75, Cristy Jones, for her appeal  
21 on the registration card to the next Board meeting.

22 Ms. Jones did make reasonable effort to notify  
23 Investigator Swarthout that she was somewhere in the  
24 vicinity, however, could not find our actual location.

25 In the effort to not have Ms. Jones wait a year,

1 we are allowing or -- motioning to postpone it to the next  
2 Board meeting.

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion.

4 Do we have a second?

5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

6 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.

7 We have a second.

8 All in favor say aye.

9 Aye.

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

12 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

13 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

14 And so the other Agenda Items, which are 84, 85,  
15 86, and 89, they were told to be here at 1:00, 1:00 p.m.

16 We do not have anybody in the -- in the room, in  
17 the meeting rooms, so I'll entertain a motion.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez  
19 motioning to uphold the denials for Agenda Items No. 84, 85,  
20 86, and 89, based on no -- no-call no-show. They were told  
21 to be here at 1:00. It is now 1:40 p.m.

22 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a motion.

23 Do we have a second?

24 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

25 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So the next portion of

1 the agenda is other agenda items.

2 Agenda Item No. 90, review and discuss Executive  
3 Director's -- a decision on Executive Director's salary for  
4 possible action.

5 Executive Director, do you want us to bring -- do  
6 you want to bring us up to speed on that?

7 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Yes, Madam Chair.

8 Thank you.

9 Executive Director Saladino for the record.

10 So earlier in the year, Governor Lombardo had  
11 issued an 11 percent increase for all state employees. Our  
12 staff had received that based on the governor's directive.  
13 And knowing that my salary is, you know, contingent on -- on  
14 the Board, you know, the Board creates my -- my salary, I  
15 did not receive that 11 percent as a state employee.

16 Also, during this first year as executive  
17 director, I didn't feel it was appropriate to agendize it  
18 earlier in the year. I want to say December 6th was the  
19 completion of my first year as executive director. So, you  
20 know, just -- you know, if that's something you guys want to  
21 take into consideration and -- with the governor's  
22 directive.

23 Financially, we've come in ahead of what we  
24 thought we were going to do. A lot of it came in with  
25 the -- when the approval of the FY '25 in September, we were

1 still closing out the monies received through the renewal  
2 process. I guess the year before, our previous director was  
3 really -- what's the word I'm looking for? -- conservative  
4 in the monies received through licensing, and we came out  
5 almost 400,000 over what we were going -- what we thought we  
6 were going to do.

7 So at the end of the fiscal year, we're going --  
8 we're going to be at about 400 -- 400,000 positive, and  
9 that's before, you know, we -- we take care of our health  
10 insurance and PERS.

11 When we did the budget in -- earlier this year for  
12 July, myself and the accountant, we put it in there to see  
13 what it would look like. And, you know, the budget supports  
14 it. However, I have not received it.

15 When we got the budget approved in September,  
16 myself and the accountant forgot to remove that, so it  
17 was -- it was -- basically, the monies were already there,  
18 and they haven't been used yet.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Okay. Any questions  
20 from the Board?

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.  
22 Did the other employees at PILB get their pay  
23 raise?

24 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Yes, sir.

25 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay. That's north,



1 south, everywhere, right?

2 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Yeah, north, south,  
3 everywhere.

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
5 What was that 11 percent increase? Was it  
6 annually? One time? Is there a terminate?

7 INVESTIGATOR DUMAS: An executive order. It was  
8 an executive order.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Do we have -- so it's in  
10 effect for -- or when -- when is it given?

11 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: One time.

12 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: I think it was a one time --

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: One time.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: One time? Okay.

15 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: -- to make up for what hadn't  
16 happened.

17 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Yeah. In -- in the --  
18 from the governor, it says -- expressed gratitude and just  
19 goes through all of that.

20 "I'm Proud to announce that during the 2023  
21 legislative session I signed AB522" --

22 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. I know you're  
23 trying to be fast, but I can't write that fast.

24 What was that one more time?

25 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: "I'm proud to" --

1 THE COURT REPORTER: Okay. Not that slow.

2 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: -- "announce" --

3 This is from the governor.

4 "I'm proud to announce that during the 2023  
5 legislative session, I signed" -- this is the governor --  
6 "AB522 securing the first significant pay raise for state  
7 employees in decades following last fiscal year's raises of  
8 10 percent, 13 percent for every state employee. Will  
9 receive an additional 11 percent increase starting this  
10 month." This was dated July 16, 2024.

11 "This legislation also included quarterly and  
12 retention bonuses of \$250. Both the raise and retention  
13 bonus will be reflected in your paycheck this week."

14 I'm not sure what retention -- quarterly retention  
15 \$250 is.

16 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: That was in regards  
17 to years of service. So if you were an employee for so  
18 long, you received that.

19 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay. So I'd like to  
20 discuss this 11 percent or more increase for our executive  
21 director.

22 Now, Mr. Saladino has been doing a yeoman's job  
23 for the last year of running this operation. It went  
24 seamless from one executive director to the next one, the  
25 best I know. We haven't heard any employees yell, scream,

1 or cry about it. And I thought it was gracious of  
2 Mr. Saladino not -- not accepting the 11 percent at that  
3 time, putting his name into it. However, I don't think it  
4 should be retroactive.

5 I think we should consider his pay and 11 percent  
6 at the minimum, and maybe something a little more after  
7 that. Okay. My consideration would be the 11 percent, for  
8 sure, and maybe up to 14 percent total. That's my  
9 suggestion or idea.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Anyone else? Any other Board  
11 members?

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
13 I'm comfortable staying consistent with the  
14 increase per the order of 11 percent. We can discuss higher  
15 percents within another year and see what else -- what other  
16 increases the state employees are getting, if they're going  
17 to get one. But I would entertain increases after a year,  
18 another additional year or yearly increase.

19 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board Member Bezick,  
20 did you have any questions or concerns?

21 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Yeah. This is Bezick.  
22 I agree with the 11-percent increase this year.

23 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So then this would be a  
24 motion then?

25 MR. DETMER: Correct.

1 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: So I will entertain a motion.

2 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

3 I'll -- I'll make -- make a motion that we give  
4 the Executive Director, Mr. Saladino, 11-percent increase  
5 effective --

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Today?

7 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: -- immediately.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member Cortez.  
9 I'll second that motion.

10 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a motion.  
11 We have a second.

12 All in favor say aye.

13 Aye.

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

16 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

17 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. All right.

18 Congratulations.

19 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Thank you. Thank  
20 you, Board Members.

21 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: And I -- you know, on the  
22 record, I concur with Board Member Gronauer that the  
23 transition went seamlessly, and I think, you know, we all  
24 appreciate everything that you guys do, so I'm glad to see  
25 that you guys got the same increase that was outstanding.

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Was Swarthout involved in  
2 that?

3 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: No. They took 11 percent  
4 away. Okay.

5 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Madam Chair, if I  
6 could, for the record, I -- my hat's off to the staff. You  
7 know, we always would hear Kevin talk about it, and now I'm  
8 on the other side of it, and I'm so blessed to have the team  
9 that I have.

10 These ladies and gentlemen do an outstanding job  
11 every day dealing with the folks that we have there and  
12 answering the questions from licensees. They've made it --  
13 they've helped me get through this year, for sure. And I  
14 definitely really appreciate them, and I hope they know  
15 that. But, yeah, I just wanted to, again, thank them for  
16 all their hard work, and I really appreciate everybody.  
17 Thank you.

18 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: The next section is for Board  
19 Comment and future agenda items.

20 Is there anything that the Board would like to  
21 bring up?

22 Okay. The last section, before I adjourn, is for  
23 public comment. I could go through the spiel, but there's  
24 no public -- there's no public down south.

25 Is there any public up north?

1 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: No one up north.

2 BOARD CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So I guess that means  
3 this meeting is adjourned.

4 MR. DETMER: Absent any additional public comment,  
5 the Board can go to adjournment.

6 (The proceeding was adjourned at  
7 1:49 p.m.)

8 /////

9 /////

10 /////

11 /////

12 /////

13 /////

14 /////

15 /////

16 /////

17 /////

18 /////

19 /////

20 /////

21 /////

22 /////

23 /////

24 /////

25 /////



	15:23	159:1	<b>16th</b>	<b>1984</b>	101:1
<hr/> <b>\$</b> <hr/>	50:1	161:21	185:10	86:22	<b>2,730</b>
	97:10	165:14	<b>17</b>	87:1	10:14
	226:8	171:23	15:24	<b>1989</b>	<b>2,904</b>
<b>\$1,000</b>	<b>100</b>	193:13	88:10	97:1	10:11
149:12	10:15	209:8,14	<b>179</b>	<b>1990</b>	<b>20</b>
<b>\$1,995</b>	49:23	<b>121</b>	10:14,16	97:3	15:24
97:12	50:2	10:12	<b>18</b>	121:1	36:12
<b>\$100</b>	146:15	<b>12:00</b>	12:17	<b>1991</b>	47:18
131:13	<b>100-and-</b>	184:7	15:24	142:17	56:2
<b>\$184</b>	<b>whatever</b>	<b>12:24</b>	56:12	<b>1992</b>	159:18
41:17	42:16	155:3	74:1	142:14	<b>20-</b>
<b>\$200</b>	<b>10:00</b>	<b>12:25</b>	88:10	161:25	73:15
43:8	113:3,7	154:23	131:8	175:18	88:22
193:9	<b>11</b>	<b>12:58</b>	149:12	207:18	<b>2001</b>
<b>\$248</b>	4:2 9:25	182:3	175:16	<b>1993</b>	6:3 55:8
149:8	15:23	<b>13</b>	194:18	163:22	<b>2002</b>
<b>\$250</b>	223:11,15	15:23	196:5	177:19	52:20
226:12,15	225:5	137:1	207:20	<b>1994</b>	180:25
<b>\$350</b>	226:9,20	226:8	<b>183.99</b>	122:9	209:7
186:8	227:2,5,	<b>1392</b>	43:25	<b>1995</b>	<b>2003</b>
<b>\$388</b>	7,14	71:1	<b>18th</b>	161:22	5:20
62:25	229:3	<b>13th</b>	12:24	175:14	121:5
<b>\$400</b>	<b>11-</b>	43:22	<b>19</b>	<b>1996</b>	<b>2004</b>
170:3	<b>percent</b>	44:12	15:11,14	114:12,	97:9
<b>\$900</b>	227:22	<b>14</b>	16:25	14,19	114:14
104:24	228:4	15:23	17:13	122:10	<b>2005</b>
<hr/> <b>-</b> <hr/>	<b>11:00</b>	80:9	21:9	<b>1997</b>	97:11
	154:22	227:8	182:5,9,	7:21 97:5	125:5,6,
	155:3	<b>15</b>	17	147:22	7,13,18
	<b>11:45</b>	15:23	<b>1974</b>	198:6	126:20
	113:8	48:20	198:5	<b>1:00</b>	127:1,3
<b>-ooo-</b>	<b>11th</b>	65:19	<b>1976</b>	182:2	131:11,15
4:3	6:3	97:25	120:16,	184:3,7	132:19
<hr/> <b>1</b> <hr/>	<b>12</b>	125:15	19,23	222:15,21	133:17
	15:23	<b>1522</b>	123:8	<b>1:40</b>	161:19
<b>1</b>	49:11	22:16	<b>1977</b>	222:21	170:3
72:1	55:14	<b>15th</b>	198:3	<b>1:49</b>	<b>2006</b>
<b>1/2</b>	84:13	117:10	<b>1978</b>	230:7	125:17
50:18	97:12	<b>16</b>	142:21	<hr/> <b>2</b> <hr/>	126:21,25
<b>1/25</b>	161:23	15:23	<b>1980</b>		127:2
50:16	177:16	97:11	120:20		158:24
<b>10</b>	193:8	106:1	<b>1983</b>		169:11
	<b>1203.4</b>	226:10	120:24		212:6
	125:11				



<p><b>2007</b> 48:12 149:10 170:1 185:6</p> <p><b>2008</b> 73:18,19 136:18 169:24 174:24 175:9</p> <p><b>2009</b> 37:11 105:3 131:14 133:9,24 156:24 167:18 169:22</p> <p><b>2010</b> 101:9 104:15 131:7,16 132:20 134:11 165:15 169:20 193:3 194:25 195:12,23</p> <p><b>2011</b> 86:22 87:1,4 90:13 104:25 116:12 136:25 137:15 169:18 175:6 192:25 195:2,12, 19 212:2</p> <p><b>2012</b> 53:4 94:9,14 95:2</p>	<p>138:13,19 149:7</p> <p><b>2013</b> 50:17 122:8 193:7 195:5</p> <p><b>2014</b> 65:16</p> <p><b>2015</b> 73:15 101:5 149:5 177:15 185:11</p> <p><b>2016</b> 60:11 104:19</p> <p><b>2017</b> 48:13 90:14,18 114:15 165:12 175:3</p> <p><b>2018</b> 55:16 57:16 114:17,20 169:17</p> <p><b>2019</b> 104:18 105:16,22 116:13 159:2 169:13 177:18</p> <p><b>2020</b> 100:24</p> <p><b>2021</b> 72:17 174:25</p> <p><b>2022</b> 88:4,5 109:9 111:23</p>	<p>156:22 157:12</p> <p><b>2023</b> 6:13 11:3 87:5 88:4,5,12 89:4 90:7,15 100:19,21 103:20 162:2 164:1 167:19 216:24 225:20 226:4</p> <p><b>2024</b> 4:2 6:13 10:13 11:3 12:17,24 198:1 204:12 226:10</p> <p><b>2025</b> 89:4 204:16</p> <p><b>2026</b> 33:8,10</p> <p><b>21</b> 15:24</p> <p><b>2100</b> 34:24</p> <p><b>22</b> 15:24 65:9 81:14 88:4</p> <p><b>225</b> 10:12</p> <p><b>23</b> 9:24 10:10 11:3,4 15:11</p>	<p>17:21</p> <p><b>24</b> 10:2 15:24 40:16 165:16</p> <p><b>25</b> 5:22,23 14:7 15:7,24 135:19 223:25</p> <p><b>254</b> 10:15</p> <p><b>26</b> 9:25 14:10 21:21,24 33:7 196:6</p> <p><b>27</b> 23:8</p> <p><b>2821</b> 58:18</p> <p><b>29</b> 10:3 32:17</p> <hr/> <p><b>3</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>3</b> 193:1 196:4</p> <p><b>3,250</b> 10:11</p> <p><b>3,263</b> 10:14</p> <p><b>30</b> 32:19 42:23 77:6,7 193:9</p> <p><b>31</b> 36:4</p>	<p><b>32</b> 47:7 149:5</p> <p><b>33</b> 10:3 52:7 65:8</p> <p><b>35</b> 59:21</p> <p><b>359-day</b> 149:6</p> <p><b>36</b> 10:22 64:20 97:9 125:14 131:13 167:19 177:16</p> <p><b>364</b> 100:25</p> <p><b>37</b> 9:24 62:25 68:10 131:13</p> <p><b>38</b> 71:18</p> <p><b>3800</b> 186:8</p> <hr/> <p><b>4</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>400</b> 224:8</p> <p><b>400,000</b> 224:5,8</p> <p><b>4198</b> 28:1</p> <p><b>42</b> 112:23 113:6</p> <p><b>4200</b> 29:23</p>	<p>31:22</p> <p><b>44</b> 93:22</p> <p><b>45</b> 93:24</p> <p><b>46</b> 96:13</p> <p><b>47</b> 96:14</p> <p><b>48</b> 96:17 159:3</p> <p><b>49</b> 100:9</p> <p><b>496(a)</b> 209:11</p> <hr/> <p><b>5</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>5</b> 102:20 189:14</p> <p><b>50</b> 104:9</p> <p><b>51</b> 108:19 112:25 113:6</p> <p><b>52</b> 108:22 113:1,7</p> <p><b>53</b> 108:25</p> <p><b>54</b> 113:21 207:20</p> <p><b>55</b> 120:4 154:13 155:1</p> <p><b>56</b> 120:8</p>
--	---	---	--	---	--

<b>57</b> 124:21	163:14	<hr/> <b>8</b> <hr/>	<hr/> <b>9</b> <hr/>	<b>AB522</b> 225:21 226:6	<b>about</b> 25:23 33:3 36:9 40:9 43:8 47:15 49:11 50:5 52:15 55:4,9,13 56:1,6, 13,18 57:7 60:6 61:3,10, 20 62:11 65:5,8,9, 19,21,24 69:1,7 70:2 71:21 73:17 77:1,22 80:5,9,19 84:9,13 89:16,25 90:9 95:1 100:8 105:16,22 106:1 110:22 117:14 125:8 133:11 139:18 143:6,7 144:10 150:3,6 151:22 157:12 160:18 166:2 171:20 178:25 179:11 182:17 186:8 191:1,4 194:24 200:2 205:25 224:8
<b>58</b> 130:18 154:15 155:1	<b>6th</b> 223:18 <hr/> <b>7</b> <hr/>	<b>8</b> 11:3 15:23	<b>9</b> 15:23 136:18	<b>abet</b> 165:16	
<b>59</b> 130:21 <hr/> <b>6</b> <hr/>	<b>7</b> 15:23	<b>8/11/1997</b> 207:21	<b>9/11</b> 6:18	<b>abeyance</b> 19:17 20:2 22:16 45:25 51:15 54:3 58:16 63:14 67:14 70:24 79:2 183:1	
<b>6</b> 14:7 15:7,23	<b>70</b> 165:5	<b>8/21</b> 177:18	<b>90</b> 10:18 101:6 149:11 169:12 193:1 196:4 223:2	<b>abiding</b> 137:24	
<b>6,000</b> 178:23	<b>70s</b> 202:11	<b>80</b> 192:16 212:4	<b>91</b> 144:9	<b>ability</b> 141:6	
<b>60</b> 130:24 162:1 175:8 212:5	<b>71</b> 167:8	<b>81</b> 197:18	<b>911</b> 48:2	<b>able</b> 8:8 17:4, 9,13 18:4 26:17 34:3 41:14 42:22 46:25 53:12 69:17 74:1 82:9 89:24 94:18 96:3,14 104:5 108:13,14 117:16 124:16,17 141:5 145:20 157:16 160:13 180:9 198:14 221:10	
<b>61</b> 142:7	<b>72</b> 168:24	<b>82</b> 207:10	<b>9436</b> 134:14,17		
<b>62</b> 10:2 147:7,9 154:17 155:1	<b>73</b> 173:21 183:16 184:2,5	<b>83</b> 99:25 209:2	<b>99</b> 50:16,18		
<b>63</b> 154:19 155:2	<b>74</b> 173:24 183:18 184:2,6	<b>84</b> 210:16 219:2 222:14,19	<b>9:00</b> 99:25 100:4		
<b>64</b> 147:13	<b>75</b> 125:14 174:2 183:20 218:22 219:1 221:9,20	<b>85</b> 210:19 219:3 222:14,19	<b>9:03</b> 4:2		
<b>65</b> 148:21	<b>76</b> 174:12	<b>86</b> 210:20 219:3 222:15,20	<hr/> <b>A</b> <hr/>		
<b>66</b> 156:15	<b>77</b> 177:8	<b>87</b> 210:21	<b>A-R-M-B-</b> <b>R-U-S-T-</b> <b>E-R</b> 18:14		
<b>67</b> 158:17	<b>78</b> 180:15	<b>88</b> 216:3	<b>a.m.</b> 4:2 99:25 100:4 113:3,7,8		
<b>68</b> 161:7	<b>79</b> 184:19	<b>89</b> 218:5 219:4 222:15,20	<b>Aaron</b> 161:7		
<b>69</b> 126:22					

227:1	<b>accountability</b>	123:6	<b>adjourned</b>	<b>affected</b>	<b>afternoon</b>
229:7	41:12	126:17	230:3,6	11:19	86:14,15
<b>absent</b>	<b>accountant</b>	127:13	<b>adjournment</b>	<b>affirm</b>	109:4,17,18
4:20	224:12,16	132:8	230:5	13:23	113:22,23
230:4	<b>accounts</b>	138:1	<b>adjudication</b>	40:2	120:10
<b>Absolutely</b>	57:24	139:6	175:1,4	64:12	130:25
<b>Y</b>	74:18,20	150:1	<b>admin</b>	85:23	131:1,25
68:8	75:7,12	171:11	151:12	156:6	147:14,15
150:24	<b>across</b>	199:2	<b>admit</b>	213:19	148:23
164:10	110:2	<b>adamant</b>	152:13	<b>affirmative</b>	149:19
<b>abundance</b>	152:8	200:2	<b>admitted</b>	14:1	156:3,16
20:24	<b>act</b>	<b>add</b>	200:20	64:15	157:10
50:22	5:1 213:8	91:14	<b>admitting</b>	86:1	163:16,17
213:7	<b>action</b>	98:9	106:10	156:10	165:7
<b>abuse</b>	5:3 7:24	130:2	<b>Adrian</b>	194:4	174:13,14
100:24	12:21	<b>added</b>	161:8,9,12,13	<b>afford</b>	177:9,10
101:3,5	55:9	94:14	12,13	81:7	178:1,2
120:24	223:4	97:14	<b>Adriana</b>	<b>after</b>	193:18
175:11	<b>active</b>	105:6	212:22	6:18	194:11,12
<b>academy</b>	10:11,14	114:21	<b>Adrianna</b>	41:25	207:12,13
49:15	96:15	115:1	100:9	42:10	209:3
50:17	108:12	121:7	<b>Adrienne</b>	49:2,4	<b>afterward</b>
<b>accept</b>	<b>activity</b>	142:25	100:10,11	50:1 53:2	<b>s</b>
40:19	11:2	<b>addicts</b>	103:14	55:16,23	35:23
189:21	75:25	91:25	<b>addition</b>	75:11	172:6
<b>accepted</b>	<b>actual</b>	<b>addition</b>	103:21	87:2,12	<b>again</b>
38:7	43:13	140:15	<b>additional</b>	88:16	18:2
<b>accepting</b>	72:6 96:8	<b>ADT</b>	21:10	89:21	22:18
227:2	98:15	36:15	101:14	110:15	31:24
<b>accessible</b>	103:5	<b>advertisi</b>	132:11	117:4	34:3
60:21	188:3	<b>ng</b>	134:10	123:11	35:23
<b>accidentally</b>	204:11	61:24	226:9	125:15	42:12
127:7	221:24	<b>advice</b>	227:18	126:15	46:18
<b>according</b>	<b>actually</b>	189:23	230:4	127:12	54:20
5:5 42:11	26:15	190:3	<b>address</b>	130:5	61:7,8
43:5 86:6	42:15	<b>addressed</b>	5:13 98:8	137:17	64:25
88:11	53:4,9,10,19	189:9	174:5	169:14	68:6
<b>account</b>	68:19,24	<b>Af-</b>	<b>addresses</b>	175:1,5	75:10
55:15,17	77:3 95:1	6:21	138:25	185:8,19	80:16
	105:17	<b>Affairs</b>	<b>adjourn</b>	186:24	81:5
	106:8	71:18	229:22	193:9,11	99:14
	115:21	75:23		196:4	105:20
				198:2	115:17
				203:3	116:20
				220:4	137:11
				227:6,17	138:8
					139:10
					141:6,7

145:22	16,17	223:17	85:18	35:1,8	123:7
146:1	100:9	<b>agent</b>	118:5	36:24	124:10
154:5,11	104:9	5:23,24	147:9	38:11,14,	126:6
155:17	108:19,	20:2	174:10	24 45:5	128:1,12,
164:7	22,25	22:17	182:4	46:5,13	14 129:20
173:17	112:23,25	23:9 28:3	188:12	47:5	130:7,12
174:5	113:1,6,	31:24	204:13	50:23,25	132:2
175:5	20 120:4,	33:19	213:3	51:7,18,	133:21
177:3	8 124:21	38:19	220:14	19,24	137:23,25
183:23,25	130:18,	45:5 46:1	223:23	54:6,13	139:21
195:3	21,24	51:15	<b>ahold</b>	57:9,21	140:24
213:10	142:7	54:4	17:9,14,	58:19	141:8
214:24	147:7,13	58:4,17	19 18:5	59:1	144:4,7,
229:15	148:21	59:13	<b>aid</b>	63:23	22
<b>against</b>	154:13,	60:15,18	165:15	65:14	145:14,22
122:23	15,17,19	63:15	<b>Al-qaeda</b>	67:5,16,	146:12,18
205:16	155:1,22	67:15	6:3	23 69:12	147:5
<b>agencies</b>	156:14	70:25	<b>Alabama</b>	71:2,10	148:14
6:10	158:17	79:3	131:10	72:25	149:14,
11:20	161:7	183:2	134:1	73:3,10	21,22,23
36:14	163:14	<b>agent's</b>	135:6,15	74:6,13	153:24
39:4,5	165:5	38:16	198:6,20	76:7	155:9,18
<b>agency</b>	167:8	<b>aggravate</b>	199:14	79:11	157:2,15
11:19	168:24	<b>d</b>	201:18,21	80:7	158:7
<b>agenda</b>	173:21,24	73:20	<b>Alexander</b>	83:13,19	159:6
4:23,24,	174:2,12	<b>ago</b>	59:23,25	84:23	160:7
25 5:2	177:8	50:5	60:4,23	85:5	161:1,5
9:11	180:15	56:12	61:13,15,	87:16	162:5,8
12:16,23	182:5,9,	78:2	17,20,22	89:17	163:7,24
14:6	17	88:17	62:8,10	91:1,2	164:2,3,
15:23	183:16,	90:1	63:16	92:14,20	9,23
16:15,19,	18,20	171:15,16	<b>Alfonso</b>	93:9,19	165:18
25 17:20	184:1,5,	204:15	209:2	95:21	166:21
21:9,21	19 192:5,	<b>agree</b>	<b>all</b>	98:3,5,17	168:15,23
23:8	16 197:18	152:15	8:1 9:23	99:8,20	170:22
29:22	207:10	190:24	13:8,20	100:3	171:7,22
32:16,17,	209:2	227:22	16:9	101:14	173:4,14,
19 35:19	210:16,	<b>agreement</b>	19:20	102:21,24	19 175:12
36:4 47:6	19,20,21	90:6	20:16	103:24	176:19
52:7	213:21	118:24	21:3,4	105:1,5,	177:4,21
59:21	218:5,22	<b>ahead</b>	22:19	10 107:10	180:1
64:20	219:1,2,	4:5 9:16,	23:1	109:21	181:17
68:10	3,4,15,16	18 23:23	26:17	110:2,10,	182:10,14
71:18	221:3,9,	35:21	28:4,10	15 111:17	183:3,10
79:19	17,20	73:5	29:2	112:7	184:13
86:6,7	222:14,19	81:25	32:1,8	113:14	187:4
93:22,24	223:1,2	<b>agendize</b>		118:18,24	189:18
96:13,14,	229:19			119:4,21	191:19
				121:12	192:10
				122:23	193:23

194:15	<b>also</b>	<b>amended</b>	214:5	80:13	170:13,15
197:2,15,	7:11	43:25	<b>answered</b>	83:1	172:17
17 199:15	16:17	<b>America</b>	195:25	84:18	175:20
200:2,5,6	41:4 45:2	53:6	<b>answering</b>	87:18	176:7
201:4	47:11,20	<b>American</b>	229:12	89:5,25	177:23
202:9	51:19	6:17	<b>answers</b>	90:19	179:14
203:10	52:21,25	<b>Americans</b>	13:25	91:12	181:4
205:24	57:10	7:11	64:14	92:7	182:8,16
208:16	60:25	<b>amount</b>	85:25	94:15,20	185:15
210:7	65:17	41:16	156:9	95:9 96:7	186:23
211:12	101:7	57:19	194:3	97:16,22	191:8
212:13	103:19,20	<b>and/or</b>	200:6	98:21	194:9
215:16	107:21	64:9	<b>any</b>	101:17,23	195:10
217:18	114:17	85:22	5:6 8:2,	102:22	196:15
218:6,16	118:23	186:9	6,18,22	103:9	199:20
220:1	121:3	189:18	9:3,5	105:14,19	200:10
222:8	131:11	<b>Androwski</b>	12:13,14,	106:19	201:9
223:11	142:21	23:10	18 15:8,	109:14	202:21
225:19	149:7,10	24:2 28:2	21 18:15	111:5	208:4
228:12,	151:4	29:12,16	19:6	115:3,9	209:21
17,23	156:24	<b>Angeles</b>	25:19	116:11	212:18
229:16	159:2	60:11	27:13,21	117:17	214:2
<b>Allied</b>	161:22	158:23	28:20	118:2	215:1
55:1,12,	163:23	165:12	30:21	121:9	217:5
13,17	165:15	<b>announce</b>	31:6 34:7	122:11	224:19
152:19	170:24	225:20	37:1	123:7,22	226:25
<b>allowed</b>	171:22	226:2,4	41:19	125:25	227:10,20
205:6,19	200:4,14	<b>announcem</b>	42:15	129:7,8	229:25
<b>allowing</b>	209:12	<b>ents</b>	45:16	131:18	230:4
222:1	223:16	9:12	47:1	132:11	<b>anybody</b>
<b>almost</b>	226:11	<b>annually</b>	50:13	136:14	8:23
220:1	<b>although</b>	225:6	51:4,7	137:16	16:20,22
224:5	175:10	<b>another</b>	53:18	138:7	62:1
<b>alone</b>	<b>Alto</b>	128:10	56:3,7,25	139:23	85:16
41:4	127:19	137:3	58:9	140:9	155:24
<b>along</b>	<b>altogethe</b>	185:21	59:18	142:25	193:20
127:24	<b>r</b>	195:18	61:16	143:1	199:3
<b>already</b>	<b>always</b>	219:22	63:7	145:2	222:16
36:22	188:19	220:15	65:25	148:2	<b>anymore</b>
40:1 41:5	229:7	227:15,18	66:14	149:18	161:11
46:23	<b>Amazon</b>	<b>answer</b>	67:7	150:15	171:9
62:6	53:1	8:22	69:12	153:11	<b>Anyone</b>
113:25	<b>Amazon-</b>	188:14	70:14	155:23	227:10
114:4	<b>type</b>	213:7	72:12	157:8,20	<b>anything</b>
218:10	81:2		75:17	159:9,21	15:21
224:17			76:16	162:10,18	25:3 40:9
			77:13	164:11	82:18
			78:4,19	165:21	90:17
				166:9	
				168:1	

102:24	149:15,16	19,22	99:17	<b>applying</b>	35:21
108:6	157:3,4	162:2,5	102:20	19:13,14,	45:11
137:22	159:7,8	163:20,	104:8	23,25	46:25
143:9	162:6,7	22,23	115:21	45:22,23	51:10
218:11	164:5	165:10,	116:7,24	51:11,12	53:25
220:11	165:19,20	12,15	121:16	58:3	58:14
229:20	167:23,24	167:16,18	122:8,15	70:22	67:11
<b>anywhere</b>	172:5,14	169:8	123:20	87:7	70:21
138:10	207:23	170:8	124:20	92:13	78:24
<b>apartment</b>	208:3	174:21	143:23	146:14	83:6
143:14,	209:15	177:13,	162:6	167:24	84:22
16,18	212:10	17,21	164:3	190:19	93:3 96:3
<b>apologies</b>	214:24	180:23	167:22	<b>appreciat</b>	124:16
28:9	217:4	181:1,2	171:20	<b>e</b>	141:5
77:21	221:20	185:3,7	177:4,22	8:16	182:22
99:5	<b>appeals</b>	186:6	185:8	92:23	189:4
<b>apologize</b>	85:15	187:20	186:17,20	112:9,10	<b>approved</b>
39:18	86:8	192:22	188:3	118:13	9:25 10:3
123:10	151:3	197:22	189:4,14,	119:18,22	19:16
144:1	<b>appear</b>	198:7	17 201:25	147:3	20:1,3
153:2	44:13	207:16,	207:23	155:17	22:18
191:1	140:2	20,22	208:3	160:22	24:11
213:5	188:20	209:6	<b>applicati</b>	162:9,25	25:6 28:3
<b>apology</b>	<b>appeared</b>	212:2,8	<b>ons</b>	164:8	31:24
130:5	170:12	214:19	9:25	216:9	35:23
<b>apparel</b>	<b>appearing</b>	<b>applicant</b>	10:4,7,9,	228:24	45:24
48:13	4:23,24,	<b>'s</b>	14 186:12	229:14,16	46:2,4
<b>apparentl</b>	25	<b>applicant</b>	203:21	<b>appreciat</b>	51:13,16
<b>y</b>	<b>appears</b>	<b>s</b>	<b>applied</b>	<b>ed</b>	53:12
12:9	207:19	6:7 14:2	53:3 92:3	100:2	54:2,5
<b>appeal</b>	<b>applicant</b>	64:16	99:1	<b>appropria</b>	63:11,13,
87:8	66:17	86:2	103:15	<b>te</b>	15 65:24
94:19	74:18	117:10	117:3	223:17	67:13,15
97:15	75:6	119:10	121:25	<b>approval</b>	70:11,23
101:16	86:21,25	156:11	170:8	34:24	71:1
102:10	87:1,6,7	194:5	181:2	62:10	79:1,3
105:6	122:12	<b>applicati</b>	<b>apply</b>	192:9	107:17
109:13	133:8	<b>on</b>	10:3	223:25	130:17
114:22	142:24	5:14	60:18	<b>approve</b>	137:4
115:1	147:20,22	7:22,23,	91:11	12:16,23	138:5
121:8	149:3,5,	25 8:3	99:14	16:2	182:24
125:21	7,10	36:10	102:18	19:12,22	183:2
131:17	151:1	73:11	122:1	22:9,12	224:15
142:25	156:20,22	74:4,5	124:17	25:2	<b>approving</b>
147:25	158:22,24	76:14	141:6,7	27:25	22:13,15
148:1	159:2	92:11	145:21	31:18	31:21
	161:17,	96:3,8,24	154:5	34:23	<b>April</b>
			204:8		97:24

132:19	131:14,16	162:5	7,9,10,13	219:5	170:25
<b>archives</b>	132:4,5	164:2,3	102:8	220:21	171:3,4
198:22	133:8,9,	165:18	104:25	<b>asked</b>	196:12
<b>area</b>	11,12,13,	177:1,21	105:1	39:10	<b>assuming</b>
36:23	17 134:10	194:15	109:11	61:25	44:7
110:7	142:14,15	199:6	113:7	163:1	<b>at</b>
152:8	145:7	214:22,23	114:18,	164:17	5:1,4,11
<b>arguing</b>	147:24	<b>articles</b>	19,20	168:8	7:25 8:7
191:4	149:9,13	186:6	116:15	171:11	12:3 21:3
<b>Arizona</b>	157:1	<b>as</b>	120:15,	196:1	23:24
170:13	158:1	5:22,23	20,21	198:1	33:10
<b>Armbruste</b>	159:4	7:12,21	122:11,25	214:18,20	41:6 44:8
<b>r</b>	161:23	8:3 12:24	123:1,5	215:9	45:8
17:23	162:1	16:16	128:9,22,	217:12	46:24
18:11,14,	165:17	17:8 18:5	25 129:5	<b>asking</b>	49:19,24
16,17,23	167:20,22	22:2,5	136:11	30:25	50:3 51:2
19:1,5	169:10	25:1	137:16,17	89:10,11,	55:12,18,
20:4,5,6,	170:9,10,	26:22	138:5,8,	20 138:14	21 56:1
25 21:3,6	11 172:3,	27:9,10	13,17,19,	153:3	57:20
<b>Armored</b>	23 176:13	35:23	21 140:5,	207:3	60:12
52:22,24	181:2	36:12	7,15,17	<b>asks</b>	66:10,12
<b>Army</b>	185:4,18	38:4,10	141:12,13	189:8	69:23
5:22 60:8	195:23	42:5	144:13	<b>asleep</b>	74:1
<b>Aros</b>	196:21	43:3,25	146:2,12	72:19	80:2,8
131:19	198:9,16	45:3,4,	151:5,6,	<b>assault</b>	89:20
<b>around</b>	207:22	11,13	12 152:7	73:20	90:4
41:13	210:1	46:19	161:25	97:5	94:18
<b>arrest</b>	<b>arrested</b>	48:15	170:18	101:9,25	96:15
37:19	87:2 95:2	50:7	171:21	120:21	97:25
72:17	106:11	51:1,2	178:9	165:11	100:20
87:4	133:25	52:20,22,	179:8	167:17	110:17,19
90:13	135:21	23 53:5	182:24	<b>assaultiv</b>	113:3
94:17,19,	188:18,	54:2	189:4	<b>e</b>	115:20
24 95:15	21,22	55:20	200:11	150:12	119:11
96:25	189:8,20	56:1	201:25	<b>assigned</b>	121:16
100:18,19	195:3	57:25	213:8,20,	38:2	123:7
101:5	<b>arrests</b>	58:4 60:8	23 214:3	<b>associate</b>	124:15
109:12	87:7 91:2	66:19	216:19	<b>d</b>	127:22
115:12	92:15	67:13	219:14,15	187:24	131:10
120:24	93:19	68:15	220:17	<b>associate</b>	133:15
121:15	101:14	70:21	223:15,	<b>s</b>	134:1
125:19	105:5,11	72:2,10	16,19	6:6 52:25	137:23,25
126:12	116:8	75:25	<b>ask</b>	<b>assumed</b>	141:4
127:13,14	118:19	77:3 78:1	98:20	87:14	143:17
129:3	123:7	80:7,9	112:15	<b>assumed</b>	146:19
	146:12	81:7 87:6	135:24		149:22,23
	149:14	88:15	142:3		151:1
	157:2	92:6	146:11		154:22
	159:6	101:2,3,	200:9		155:3

162:3	<b>audience</b>	219:14	21,22,23	25	13:14
167:23	13:25	<b>away</b>	85:5,6,7,	168:15,	25:6 33:9
174:4	64:14	139:1	8,9 93:9,	16,17,18,	35:24
179:6	85:25	229:4	10,11,12,	19 173:4,	44:4
184:2,7	156:9	<b>awesome</b>	13 95:21,	5,6,7,8	49:4,5
186:3	194:3	41:14	22,23,24,	176:19,	51:19
199:15	<b>audit</b>	50:12	25 99:8,	20,21,22,	56:9
217:1	69:19	84:17	9,10,11,	23 180:1,	57:16
219:16,20	70:2	180:20	12	2,3,4,5	61:3
220:6	<b>August</b>	<b>Axelson</b>	103:24,25	181:17,	76:13
221:11	10:10	93:24,25	104:1,2,3	18,19,20,	80:24
222:15,21	117:10	94:2,6,8,	107:10,	21	81:8
224:7,8,	<b>Austin-</b>	13,17,21,	11,12,13,	183:10,	88:10,12,
22 227:2,	<b>brown</b>	23,25	14	11,12,13,	19 95:1
6 230:6	79:21,23	96:9,11	111:17,	14	96:5
<b>ATF</b>	80:1,7,	<b>aye</b>	18,19,20,	184:13,	98:4,5
95:7	17,20,22	13:8,9,	22	14,15,16,	102:9
<b>ATMS</b>	81:13,18,	10,11,12	113:14,	17	106:5
53:9	22 82:2,	16:9,10,	15,16,17,	191:19,	110:14
<b>attached</b>	7,11,24	11,12,13	18 119:4,	20,21,22,	115:16,25
101:13	83:7,10,	20:16,17,	5,6,7,8	23 197:2,	116:5,14,
<b>attack</b>	11 84:1,3	18,19,20	124:10,	3,4,5,6	19 124:19
6:4,18	<b>automatic</b>	23:1,2,3,	11,12,13,	203:10,	128:14
<b>attacked</b>	<b>ally</b>	4,5 29:2,	14	11,12,13,	137:6
106:9	196:7	3,4,5,6	129:20,	14	141:22
<b>attempt</b>	<b>available</b>	32:8,9,	21,22,23,	208:16,	144:18
175:16	18:8	10,11,12	24	17,18,19,	146:1
<b>attempted</b>	77:16	35:8,9,	140:24,25	20 210:7,	151:20
177:15	206:19	10,11,12	141:1,2,3	8,9,10,11	154:9
209:9	<b>Avenue</b>	46:13,14,	145:14,	215:16,	155:20
<b>attempts</b>	48:12	15,16,17	15,16,17,	17,18,19,	162:9,15,
203:3	<b>average</b>	51:24,25	18	20	25 164:8,
<b>attend</b>	49:10	52:1,2,3	148:14,	217:18,	16 170:21
17:7 18:4	<b>aware</b>	54:13,14,	15,16,17,	19,20,21,	173:14,17
<b>attended</b>	26:12	15,16,17	18	22 222:8,	177:2
197:25	56:10	59:1,2,3,	153:24,25	9,10,11,	185:9
<b>attention</b>	57:20	5 63:23,	154:1,2,3	12	192:1,3,
4:24	58:7	24,25	155:9,10,	228:12,	13 197:9
<b>attest</b>	66:18	64:1,2	11,12,13	13,14,15,	198:1,16
187:13	74:2,3,10	67:23,24,	158:7,8,	16	201:5,7
<b>attorney</b>	75:3,14	25 68:1	9,10,11	<b>B</b>	204:3,7,
95:1	117:5	71:10,11,	160:7,8,	<b>bachelor'</b>	18 206:10
133:5	139:3	12,13,14	9,10,11	<b>s</b>	214:23
188:19	143:12,19	76:7,8,9,	163:7,8,	5:18	215:9
	146:3	10,11	9,10,11	<b>back</b>	217:11
	147:24	79:11,12,	164:23,	10:17	218:11,
		13,14,15	24,25	<b>back-and-</b>	23,24
		83:19,20,	165:1,2	<b>forth</b>	
			166:21,		
			22,23,24,		



159:17	59:11	120:23	89:8	58:17	33:25
<b>background</b>	75:24	127:4	91:16	63:15	39:20
<b>d</b>	88:25	224:17	96:1	67:15	50:17
5:17 6:8	89:2,5,20	<b>battery</b>	97:24	70:25	57:13
36:16	90:8,12	97:1	98:7	79:2	63:1 78:5
41:5	95:14	100:22	101:25	183:2	90:15
47:23	102:25	101:4,10,	102:5	<b>before</b>	117:6
48:25	103:3	11 104:18	105:11,18	6:17 7:12	126:7,25
50:8 51:2	111:9,22	105:22	106:4	13:21	198:21
102:14	118:17	169:17	108:2	29:13	199:6,8
171:8	129:14	174:25	110:4	36:2	<b>belligerent</b>
186:22	140:13	175:3,4,6	114:4	49:20,24	<b>nt</b>
<b>backlog</b>	145:6	<b>Baughman</b>	115:22	59:13	151:24
81:4	148:8	47:11	117:22	64:10	<b>below</b>
<b>bad</b>	153:15	48:19,20	126:8	89:19	163:25
30:5	155:2	50:15,16,	127:13,25	113:25	<b>beneficial</b>
127:19,22	157:25	20 51:17	128:11	139:1	<b>l</b>
187:12	160:1	52:6	130:5	189:7,23	38:3
191:1	162:24	<b>beaches</b>	132:4,17	190:3	<b>Bergdorf</b>
<b>badge</b>	164:16	91:22	133:18,	194:1	48:11
152:7	166:15	<b>beautiful</b>	19,24	195:18	<b>Berserke</b>
<b>baffling</b>	168:7	208:25	135:2,16,	196:11	219:3
7:19	172:22	<b>became</b>	25 137:11	198:19	<b>Berserkr</b>
<b>balance</b>	176:12	48:24	138:8,24	200:11	210:20
42:16	179:20	138:3	139:10	204:21	<b>besides</b>
<b>Ball</b>	181:10	<b>because</b>	141:11,21	213:7	132:12
108:25	184:6	8:1 12:6	143:7,11	224:2,9	<b>best</b>
109:1,3,	186:2	14:21	149:22	229:22	15:1,3
6,8,15,	187:17	22:8 25:3	150:2,8	<b>Beg</b>	226:25
17,18,23,	191:12	32:25	151:16	123:2	<b>better</b>
25	196:20	33:13,22	170:9	<b>began</b>	19:21
110:19,22	203:2	37:16	171:6,15,	62:24	<b>between</b>
111:1,4,9	208:10	38:10	17 178:12	<b>beginning</b>	49:18
112:2,6,	209:25	39:3,12	192:11	50:24	57:6
8,10	215:8	42:6	194:22	66:13	59:12
<b>Bank</b>	217:11	43:20,22	195:16	<b>behalf</b>	91:24
53:5,6	219:17	44:3	196:3,5,	33:19	<b>beyond</b>
<b>barely</b>	222:20	46:19	10 197:8	<b>behavior</b>	7:19
89:4	223:12	50:7	198:25	151:24	<b>Bezick</b>
<b>based</b>	<b>basically</b>	53:14	203:19	153:5,17	4:12,13
12:11	34:1	56:14,17,	204:22	<b>behind</b>	9:7 13:4,
24:24	36:20	20 57:19	206:4	46:24	12 16:6,
40:19	40:17,18	60:19	<b>become</b>	146:20	13 20:20
43:13	41:24	61:8	20:2	<b>believe</b>	22:23
44:25	42:8	66:16	22:17	17:4 24:3	
	49:5,14,	72:23	46:1	28:15	
	25 50:3	87:14	48:16		
	98:6		51:15		
	100:21		54:4		

23:5	176:23	<b>bit</b>	134:4	20,21,22,	10,11,12,
28:24	179:23	6:24,25	138:7,11,	23 17:5,	13,17,20
29:6	180:5	9:22 33:3	20,23	10,15,20,	36:8,18,
32:5,12,	181:21	36:9	140:2,6	25 18:6,	24 37:1,
22 34:11	183:7,14	41:13	142:4,10,	9,15,18,	4,5,8,11,
35:12	184:10,17	45:3	12 146:1,	25 19:3,	13,15,18,
46:10,17	185:16,24	47:15	10 192:6	6,8,9,11,	21 38:8,
52:3	191:23	52:15	<b>blade</b>	20,22	14,18,23
54:17	196:19	55:4 60:5	104:16	20:6,10,	39:13,23,
58:13	197:6	65:5 69:1	<b>blame</b>	12,14,18,	25 40:8,
59:2	203:7,14	71:21	128:1	19,20,21,	20,24
63:10	208:20	77:1 80:5	<b>blessed</b>	23 21:1,	41:1,6,9,
64:2	209:24	84:9	229:8	4,5,7,8,	18 42:3,
67:20	210:11	106:10	<b>block</b>	11,12,13,	11,19,22,
68:1	215:20	<b>Blackmore</b>	14:7	14,16,17,	25 43:5,
71:14	217:15,22	39:16,20,	15:22	20,25	11,18,19
76:11	222:12	21 40:4,	16:2	22:5,11,	44:2,9,
78:23	227:19,21	5,8,9,11,	<b>board</b>	21,23,24	16,20,24
79:15	228:16	12,22	4:1,4,7,	23:3,4,5,	45:3,8,
83:23	230:1	41:19,21	10,11,12,	6,13,15,	16,18,20
85:2,9	<b>bid</b>	42:7	13,14,15,	18,21	46:4,8,
93:13	186:7	43:21	16,18,19,	24:1,5,7,	10,11,15,
94:22	<b>big</b>	44:6,22	21,24,25	9,15,18,	16,17,18
95:13,25	49:9	45:1	5:2,15	22 25:7,	47:2,4,
99:12,22,	98:16	96:21,23	7:18,21,	9,14,18,	10,14
24 100:7	102:20	100:14,16	23,24	23 26:3,	48:8,18
104:3	106:4	104:12,	8:1,2,5,	7,14,20,	50:11,12,
107:14	<b>bill</b>	14,22	7,11,18,	21,24	13,14,18,
111:8,20	80:23	105:9,12	20,24	27:2,5,	21 51:4,
113:18	81:9,14	109:5,7	9:2,7,10,	12,16,18,	5,9,20,22
118:16	<b>Billings</b>	114:8,10,	11,14,17,	21,24	52:1,2,3,
119:8	47:8,9,17	25 116:6,	24 10:2	28:9,13,	4,7
124:14	51:12,16	9,12,22	11:12	15,16,18,	53:14,17,
129:17,24	<b>bills</b>	117:2,6,	12:5,6,7,	20,22,24,	18,22,24
141:3	206:16	9,18,24	17,19,22,	25 29:4,	54:8,10,
145:5,18	<b>bin</b>	118:8	24 13:1,	5,6,7,11,	11,15,16,
148:11,18	6:5,20	120:11,13	3,4,5,6,	22 30:2,	17,18,21,
153:21	<b>Binocular</b>	122:5,7,	10,11,12,	7,10,14,	25 56:3,
154:3	71:18	14 125:1,	13,16,21	17,21,23	5,21,24
155:13	75:22	3,7,23	14:5,8,	31:5,10,	57:3,5,7,
157:24	<b>bio</b>	126:3,5,	18,25	12,15,17,	8,10,12,
158:11	155:19	7,10	15:3,5,6,	21 32:3,	25 58:3,
160:11	<b>Birmingha</b>	127:2,6	10,13,16,	5,6,10,	9,13,20,
163:4,11	m	128:23	18,21	11,12,13,	22,24
164:20	134:1	131:2,4	16:1,4,6,	15,16,22	59:2,3,4,
165:2		132:14,	7,10,11,	33:1,12,	5,6,9,16,
166:18,25		16,22	12,13,14,	20 34:4,	18,23
168:12,19		133:10,		5,10,19,	60:1,5
172:21		12,18,24		20,22	61:1,5,
173:8				35:3,5,6,	14,16,18

62:5,9, 13,17,18 63:4,5,7, 10,17,19, 21,25 64:1,2,3, 10,19,23, 25 65:2, 4,14,25 66:2,5,7, 16,21,24 67:5,7, 10,18,20, 21,25 68:1,2,3, 4,9,14, 21,23 69:12 70:5,11, 12,14,17, 20 71:4, 6,8,12, 13,14,15, 20 72:4, 7,11,12, 13,16,21, 25 73:3, 4,5,6,9, 14,17,20, 23 74:3, 13,15,20 75:4,7,9, 14,17,18, 21 76:2, 4,5,9,10, 11,12,19, 21,25 77:10,13, 14,15,18, 20,24 78:3,6,8, 17,19,20, 23 79:5, 7,9,13, 14,15,16, 19,24 80:4,13, 15,18,21 81:11,16, 20,24	82:3,4,5, 8,12,13, 17,21,22 83:1,3,5, 8,9,11, 14,16,17, 21,22,23, 24 84:2, 4,8,17, 18,21,25 85:2,3,7, 8,9,10, 13,23 86:5,9, 10,16 87:9,18, 22,23 88:1,5,7, 11,14,19, 22,24 89:2,10, 13,16,19 90:6,10, 18,21,24 91:6,12, 13 92:4, 7,8,14, 17,19,23, 25 93:2, 4,6,7,11, 12,13,14, 18,22 94:1,4, 20,22 95:9,13, 16,18,19, 23,24,25 96:1,10, 12,19,21 97:16,18, 21 98:11, 14,20,21, 24 99:2, 4,6,10, 11,12,13, 16,21,22, 23,24 100:3,5, 7,8,11,14 101:17,	18,19,22 102:3,12 103:2,9, 10,13,16, 18,22 104:1,2, 3,4,12 105:8,10, 13,14,15, 21,25 106:3,6, 13,16,18, 19,20,23, 25 107:1, 3,5,8,12, 13,14,15, 19,22 108:17 109:2,5, 14,16,19, 20,21 110:3,16, 17,20,24 111:3,5, 8,11,13, 15,19,20, 21,22,24 112:3,4, 5,7,9,11, 15,16,20 113:5,9, 11,12,16, 17,18,19, 23 114:5, 7 115:3, 5,8 116:4,6, 11,17,18, 25 117:1, 14,20,21 118:2,13, 16,20,22 119:2,6, 7,8,10, 14,18,22 120:2,3, 4,11 121:9,11, 17,20,22 122:1,4,	11,16,18, 25 123:3, 5,10,14, 17,20,22, 23 124:1, 4,6,8,12, 13,14,15, 23 125:1, 25 126:2, 6,8,14, 18,20,23, 25 127:4, 10 128:2, 4,7,8,14, 17,18,19, 20,21,24 129:5,7, 8,9,12, 15,17,18, 22,23,24, 25 130:8, 10,12,14, 16,23 131:1,18, 21,23,24 132:13,19 133:2,7, 11,16,19, 22 134:3, 7,12,22, 24 135:2, 5,9,12, 14,18,24 136:2,5, 8,10,13, 21 137:7, 8,10,16, 19,22 138:4,17, 21 139:2, 3,9,14, 17,19,21, 23 140:4, 8,9,12, 19,21,22 141:1,2, 3,4,11, 16,20,24 142:3,6, 10 143:1,	3,21,25 144:2,4, 7,11,15, 16,17,21 145:1,2, 5,8,10, 12,16,17, 18,19 146:4,7, 17,19,22, 25 147:5, 16 148:2, 6,9,11, 12,16,17, 18,19,23 149:17, 18,19,20, 23,25 150:5,8, 11,15,18, 21 151:8, 15,18,23 152:1,4, 7,12,15, 17,21,25 153:3,10, 11,14,18, 20,21,22 154:1,2, 3,4,7,25 155:4,6, 7,11,12, 13,14,16, 17,22 156:5,14 157:5,8, 10,11,19, 20,24 158:2,4, 5,9,10, 11,12,16, 19 159:9, 11,16,19, 21,24 160:2,4, 5,9,10, 11,12,17, 19,21,24 161:5,9, 13 162:3,	8,10,11, 17,18,19, 22 163:2, 4,5,10, 11,12,18 164:2,7, 10,11,14, 18,20,21, 25 165:1, 2,3,6,7, 21,24,25 166:3,5, 7,9,10, 13,16,18, 19,23,24, 25 167:1, 3,5,7,10, 13,20 168:1,5, 9,12,13, 17,18,19, 20,23 169:2,5 170:15,17 171:18 172:1,6, 8,11,15, 17,21,24 173:1,2, 6,7,8,9, 12,19 174:7,8, 10,15,18 175:20,22 176:1,5, 7,8,11, 14,16,17, 21,22,23, 24 177:7, 11,23,25 178:3,7, 11,13,15, 19,22,25 179:10, 13,14,15, 18,21,23, 24 180:3, 4,5,6,8, 12,14,18, 20 181:4,
---	--	---	--	--	---

8,12,14, 15,19,20, 21,22 182:1,6, 10,14,16, 21 183:5, 7,8,12, 13,14,15, 22,24 184:4,8, 10,11,15, 16,17,18, 22,25 185:14, 16,24,25 186:5 188:2,7, 11,13 189:2,11, 13,25 190:1,6, 7,11,14, 16,19,22, 25 191:3, 6,8,11, 14,16,17, 21,22,23, 24 192:7, 11,15,19 193:15,20 194:1,8, 10,11,13, 24 195:4, 10,11,20, 24,25 196:8,14, 15,19,22, 24,25 197:4,5, 6,7,12, 15,18,25 198:1,18, 19 199:2, 5,10,12, 17,20,22, 24 200:13, 17,21,23, 25 201:2, 3,6,9,13,	17,19,22 202:4,5, 7,8,11, 13,17,19, 21,25 203:5,7, 8,12,13, 14,15,17, 25 204:2, 5,14,19 205:12,24 206:3,4, 9,12,13, 17,18,21, 24 207:1, 6,10,14, 24 208:4, 8,11,13, 14,18,19, 20,21 209:1,17, 20,21,24 210:2,4, 5,9,10, 11,12,16, 22,23 211:1,2, 6,9,12, 13,16,18, 19,21 212:11, 15,17,18 213:1,2 214:17,18 215:1,4, 6,10,13, 14,18,19, 20,21,23 216:1,7, 8,10,12, 15,23 217:5,9, 13,15,16, 20,21,22, 23 218:1, 4,8,12, 14,15,16, 17,19,21 219:1,5, 7,8,19,	21,23,25 220:1,3, 4,7,9,10, 11,13,16, 17,18,20, 21 221:2, 4,5,13, 18,19,21 222:2,3, 5,6,10, 11,12,13, 18,22,24, 25 223:14 224:19, 20,21,25 225:4,9, 11,12,13, 14,15,17, 25 226:2, 19 227:10, 12,19,21, 23 228:1, 2,6,7,8, 10,14,15, 16,17,20, 21,22 229:1,3, 18,20 230:1,2,5	<b>boomed</b> 53:4 <b>Bosnia</b> 6:21 7:6 <b>both</b> 18:24 34:13,17 35:1 69:8 226:12 <b>bought</b> 26:10 31:2 80:24 189:6 <b>Bradley</b> 173:21 183:17 <b>brain</b> 50:1 <b>branch</b> 56:1 <b>Brandon</b> 130:18 154:15 <b>brawls</b> 91:24 <b>break</b> 61:2 91:24 112:13 155:20 <b>breaking</b> 201:12 <b>Brenda</b> 177:8 <b>Brian</b> 23:10,23, 24 24:16, 21 52:9, 19 54:2 <b>briefly</b> 39:22	<b>bring</b> 4:23 42:17 49:13 102:18 114:4 196:9 223:5,6 229:21 <b>bringing</b> 48:4 65:22 88:14 <b>Brink's</b> 52:22,24 <b>Britt</b> 86:13,15, 18 87:13, 20,21,22, 24,25 88:3,6,9, 13,18,21, 23 89:1, 8,12,15 90:5,9 91:5,8,15 92:6,16 93:17,21 <b>Britt's</b> 93:3 <b>Brittany</b> 104:9 106:24 107:2,7 <b>brought</b> 136:21 186:23 <b>Brown</b> 4:20 80:14 82:19 <b>buddy</b> 143:12 144:24 <b>budget</b>	12:14 224:11, 13,15 <b>building</b> 221:7,8 <b>bump</b> 100:1 <b>burglary</b> 105:1 125:13 126:20 127:15 158:23 <b>business</b> 8:13 10:25 26:21 33:8 34:2 36:1,19, 21 38:20 45:12 46:19 53:4 71:24,25 77:11 81:5 110:15 139:15 <b>busted</b> 136:18 <b>but</b> 5:1,4 8:20 12:3,5 13:24 16:18 21:2 24:18 25:23 26:1,13, 16,17,18 27:6 30:8,16 35:22 38:4 39:8 40:3,17 41:25
---	--	---	--	---	---

42:9,17	189:24	133:25	192:25	214:23	191:25
43:13	190:4,23	151:1,12	193:3,14	223:24	192:2
44:3,25	191:5,25	153:8	195:3,13	224:4	208:10,22
48:3,6	194:2,22	156:12	196:6	<b>Canada</b>	209:25
49:6 50:9	195:20	170:25	209:11,13	6:21	215:8
57:22	196:11	191:5	212:7	<b>cannot</b>	217:11
60:20	200:3,14	194:6	<b>call</b>	7:24 30:8	221:21
64:13	201:9,24	198:9	4:5,6	62:7	<b>Cardoza</b>
66:18,21, 24 67:1	202:3,14	200:12	43:23	189:16	147:13,
68:16	205:6,18,	209:8	56:18	<b>capacitie</b>	15,18
69:17,24	22 206:6	213:1,19	113:25	<b>s</b>	148:3,7
72:8	207:3	214:15,17	114:1	84:14	<b>care</b>
75:10	211:6,8,	216:23	115:11,12	<b>car</b>	27:6,7
77:16	18 214:9	219:18	117:14,	57:22	38:23,24
80:23	215:24	221:4	17,19	144:14,19	41:3,4
81:14	217:2	<b>C</b>	118:7,10	<b>card</b>	45:4 48:5
82:19,25	219:17	<b>Californi</b>	141:20,	10:4,8,9	57:3 73:1
85:21,24	220:4	<b>a</b>	23,24	93:3,15	78:15
87:10	221:3,10	5:19	147:1	98:1 99:1	82:20
90:14,16	225:23	53:1,3,8	151:6,9,	103:15	139:15
94:14,18	227:17	65:9 66:9	10	104:6	141:22
97:7,13,	229:15,23	67:3 74:8	<b>called</b>	107:2,7,	142:1
14 98:7	<b>buy</b>	97:24	112:21	12 109:8	157:17
99:17	81:8	98:1,12	135:22	110:14	224:9
105:6,10	<b>buying</b>	125:11,15	151:4	111:9	<b>career</b>
107:16	189:10	127:19	179:7	118:17	7:20
110:10	<b>by</b>	133:13,15	219:16	124:3	33:10
114:20	11:19	134:2	220:6	129:14	48:10
115:13,21	14:2	135:10,13	<b>calling</b>	130:1	52:20
116:19	33:20	136:16	86:6	141:5	80:11
117:12,19	40:6	137:1	<b>Cambodia</b>	145:21	<b>Carolina</b>
121:7	48:12	143:7,10	7:8	146:8,9	198:3,5,
122:19,25	64:17	146:18	<b>came</b>	148:8	21
125:15	66:13	147:22	49:5,8	150:2	<b>carry</b>
128:20	70:3	158:23,25	50:9 64:5	157:25	97:3
129:2	74:18	161:18,21	70:14	158:13	109:9
131:15	77:4 78:4	165:12,14	72:24	160:1,13	169:11
134:1	86:3	167:18	84:11	162:24	193:5
135:6	93:16	169:11,	89:17	164:16	<b>carrying</b>
139:14	98:2	13,18,20,	114:2	166:15	110:8
142:24	101:4	22,24	115:16	168:7	198:4
143:22	106:9	170:1,3,	116:19	170:24	<b>case</b>
144:9	108:6	14,19,25	162:13,15	173:10,16	6:19,20
151:13	113:7	171:23	179:3	179:20	38:13
156:7	120:16	174:24	192:12	180:9	41:11,20
171:7	122:24	177:19	204:3,20	181:10,23	43:2,15
178:8	127:14	180:25	205:8		
187:4,15	132:24				
188:20					

44:15,17	199:1,8,	<b>cell</b>	21,22	14,25	101:17
70:14	11,13,18	127:15,	24:1,5,7,	67:7,18,	103:9,16,
72:25	200:1,11,	23,24	18,22	21 68:2,	22 104:4,
78:11	16,19,22,	<b>Center</b>	25:9,23	4,9,14,	12 105:8,
101:2,7	24 201:1,	100:20	26:21,24	21,23	10,13
102:8	5,7,11,	101:1,7	27:2,21	69:12,16	106:19
103:20	15,18,20	<b>certainly</b>	28:13,16,	70:5,10,	107:3,8,
105:16	202:2,6,	100:1	22,25	12,17	15,19,22,
106:13	9,12,16,	<b>Certified</b>	29:7,11,	71:4,8,	25 108:17
111:23	20	36:5	22 30:2,	15,20	109:2,5,
114:14,	203:16,23	45:21	7,10,11,	72:4,7,11	14,20
19,20	204:1,3,	<b>cetera</b>	14,17,21	73:5	110:16
120:18,23	13,17	81:4	31:12	74:15,20	111:5,11,
128:24	205:11,23	<b>Chad</b>	32:3,6,	75:4,9,	15,21,24
131:9	206:1,7,	108:19	13,16	14,17	112:3,5,
132:15,	10,14,20,	112:25	33:1,12,	76:2,5,	7,9,11,
17,18,21,	23,25	<b>chain</b>	16 34:5,	12,19,21,	16,20
25 133:1,	207:3,9	19:2	20 35:3,	25 77:10,	113:9,12,
6,17	<b>catalytic</b>	<b>Chair</b>	6,13,17	13 78:19	19,23
135:11	81:3	4:4,8,10,	36:8,18,	79:5,9,	114:5,7
136:3	<b>Catholic</b>	11,21	24 37:4	16,19,24	115:3
137:12	55:22	8:5,7,11,	39:23,24	80:4,13	116:4,6,
140:1	<b>caught</b>	18 9:2,	40:20,24	81:20,24	18,25
146:15	110:6	10,14	43:19	82:3,5,8,	117:21
157:12	132:9,24,	11:12,16	44:2,9,	12,17,21	118:2,13,
175:13	25	12:6	16,20	83:1,8,	20 119:2,
177:18	135:11,20	13:1,6,	45:16	14,17,24	10,14,18,
200:1	136:19	13,16,18	46:8,11,	84:2,4,8,	22 120:2,
<b>cases</b>	<b>caused</b>	14:5,8	18 47:4,	17,25	4,11
105:22	57:17	15:1,3,6,	10,14	85:3,10,	121:9
112:12,21	<b>caution</b>	13,18	48:8,18	13 86:5,	122:18,25
115:24	20:24	16:3,4,7,	50:12	10,16	123:3,5,
122:23	36:3	11,14,21,	51:4,22	87:9,18,	14,17,20,
123:13	50:22	23 17:3,	52:4,7	22 90:10,	22 124:4,
140:5	213:8	5,10,15,	53:14,17	18,21,24	8,15,23
170:13,23	<b>CCW</b>	20,25	54:8,11,	91:6,12	125:1,25
171:7	169:13,	18:1,2,6,	18,21,25	92:4,7,25	128:4,7,
<b>cached</b>	15,16	9,15	56:3	93:4,7,	17,19,21,
179:5	174:24	19:6,9	58:9,20,	14,18,22	24 129:7,
<b>Casino</b>	192:25	20:10,14,	24 59:4,	94:1,4,20	15,18,25
137:2	193:3,5,	21 21:5,	6,9,17,	95:9,16,	130:8,10,
<b>Cassandra</b>	13 194:17	7,16,20,	18,22,23	19 96:1,	12,14,16,
118:7	<b>cease-</b>	24,25	60:1,5	10,12,19,	23 131:1,
<b>Castillo</b>	<b>and-</b>	22:5,21,	61:1,5,	21 97:16	18,21,23
197:19,21	<b>desist</b>	24 23:6,	14,16	98:11,14,	133:7,11,
198:14,	61:21,22	13,15,18,	62:18	20 99:2,	16,19,22
20,23			63:5,17,	6,13,16,	134:3,7
			21 64:3,	21,22,23	137:7
			19,23,25	100:5,8,	139:23
			65:2,4,	11,14	140:4,8,

19,22	176:7,14,	14,21	185:21	189:18	24 65:1,
141:4,11,	17,24	209:1,17,	<b>chances</b>	212:3	2,15 66:4
16 142:3,	177:7,11,	20 210:2,	45:9	<b>Charities</b>	67:16
6,10	23	5,12,16,	<b>change</b>	55:22	<b>choices</b>
143:1	179:14,	23 211:2,	23:8,9	<b>Chaves</b>	22:7
144:11,	21,24	13,16,19,	25:15,17	108:19,20	<b>choking</b>
16,21	180:6,8,	21	26:1,19	112:25	49:21
145:1,8,	12,14,18,	212:11,17	28:1	<b>check</b>	<b>chooses</b>
12,19	20 181:4,	213:2	29:24	44:18	35:20
146:7,17,	12,15,22	214:18	30:25	75:10	<b>Christoph</b>
19,22,25	182:1,16	215:1,4,	31:23	90:9	<b>er</b>
147:5,16	183:5,8,	10,14,21	33:4 98:8	102:14	47:11
148:2,9,	15,24	216:1,7,	153:17	156:21	48:20
12,19,23	184:8,11,	10,12,15	<b>changes</b>	157:12,	51:17
149:17	18,22,25	217:5,13,	12:18	13,17	<b>Christy</b>
152:25	185:14,25	16,23	<b>changing</b>	179:3,4,	122:21
153:3,10,	186:5,14	218:1,4,	27:9 31:4	5,8	<b>Church</b>
18,22	188:2,7,	14,16,21	<b>character</b>	<b>check-ins</b>	97:25
154:4,7	11 189:25	219:1,7,	185:4	90:17	98:2
155:4,7,	190:6,11,	19,21,25	187:23	<b>checked</b>	<b>circumsta</b>
14,17,22	14,16,19,	220:3,16,	188:1	69:8	<b>nces</b>
156:14	22,25	21,25	<b>charge</b>	<b>checking</b>	41:15
157:5,8,	191:3,6,	221:2,5	43:6	133:20	<b>citations</b>
20 158:2,	14,17,24	222:3,6,	55:17	<b>Chi</b>	11:2
5,12,16,	192:7,11,	13,22,25	73:21,24	165:5,6,	189:18
19 159:9,	15,19	223:7	87:15	9,22,23,	<b>citizen</b>
21 160:2,	193:15,20	224:19	101:10	24 166:1,	137:24
5,12,17,	194:8	225:12,15	111:23	2,4,6,14	<b>citizens</b>
19,21,24	195:10	227:10,	126:19	167:3,6	6:17
161:5,9,	196:15,	19,23	132:10	<b>Chicago</b>	<b>city</b>
13 162:8,	22,25	228:1,10,	161:20	69:3	10:24
18 163:2,	197:7,12,	17,21	195:15	163:22	36:12,13
5,12,18	15,18	229:3,5,	<b>charged</b>	<b>chief</b>	37:9,23
164:7,10,	198:10	18 230:2	122:23	48:16	38:6
18,21	199:5,10,	<b>chairman</b>	128:10	69:25	48:11
165:3,7,	12,17,20,	5:4	132:6,7	<b>child</b>	88:9
21,24	23 201:3,	<b>challenge</b>	144:20	100:24	91:16,17
166:9,16,	6,9	<b>d</b>	172:2	101:3,5	<b>city-wide</b>
19 167:1,	202:4,7,	204:23	<b>Chambers</b>	120:24	91:21
5,7,10,13	203:5,8,	205:2	156:15,18	<b>children</b>	<b>Clara</b>
168:1,9,	15,17,25	<b>chance</b>	157:9,11,	91:25	209:13
13,20,23	204:2,5,	78:4	14,19	<b>Chofooklu</b>	
169:2,5	14,19	164:9	205:24	<b>n</b>	
170:15	206:3,9,		13,17	64:22,23,	
172:17,24	207:6,10,		208:4,11,		
173:2,9,	12,19				
12,19	174:7,10,				
174:7,10,	15,18				
15,18	175:20				
175:20					

<b>clarification</b> 24:8 69:16	<b>client</b> 138:10	<b>colleague</b> 32:24	<b>Comic-con</b> 61:24	48:22 49:10 84:16 101:12 109:11 110:11,25 149:5 159:3 175:8 177:20	<b>completed</b> 78:1 110:24
<b>clarify</b> 40:21 43:19 116:20	<b>clients</b> 53:5,10 65:11,22 69:7	<b>collections</b> 56:7,11 57:12	<b>coming</b> 25:6 35:24 49:4 80:9 85:15 88:20 89:19 162:9,25 164:7,16 179:8 215:9 217:11		<b>completely</b> 25:2 93:19 110:14 150:9 206:12
<b>Clark</b> 100:25 101:6 177:8,10, 12,24 178:1,2, 5,9,12, 14,18,21, 23 179:2, 11,19 180:7,11, 13	<b>close</b> 8:13 44:4 57:21 82:25	<b>Combat</b> 55:8	<b>combative</b> 150:12	<b>compact</b> 136:5 138:9	<b>completion</b> 42:9 43:24 44:7,10, 23 75:2 223:19
<b>classes</b> 101:1	<b>closed</b> 10:22 38:13 43:15 44:8 78:11 81:12 102:23 137:12 178:9	<b>come</b> 14:13 23:18 31:2 33:19 47:10 51:19 60:18 61:9 76:13 77:16 89:4 96:5 124:19 130:3 139:7 141:22 146:11 155:23 173:14,17 177:2 179:4 192:1,3 197:9 198:1,15 203:16 204:7,18 206:10 223:23	<b>command</b> 18:21 19:2 64:20 65:21 67:11	<b>companies</b> 52:21 53:8,10 81:6	<b>complex</b> 219:24
<b>clean</b> 143:9	<b>closer</b> 10:18	<b>comes</b> 128:14 139:2 152:8	<b>comment</b> 4:22 5:6 9:3 20:23 45:2 50:24 229:19,23 230:4	<b>company</b> 26:10 33:19 38:16 41:4 47:22 48:1 50:7 53:2 59:14,15 60:22 61:24 69:6,24 75:23 77:1,8 80:12 94:15 188:24	<b>compliance</b> 10:24 38:22 69:25 70:1
<b>clear</b> 24:10 27:10 56:16 57:23 62:6 96:14 99:18 128:24 157:5 171:19 206:7,8 209:17 212:12	<b>closest</b> 116:15	<b>comfortable</b> 227:13	<b>comments</b> 5:3 9:8,9 45:15 199:25	<b>company</b> 26:10 33:19 38:16 41:4 47:22 48:1 50:7 53:2 59:14,15 60:22 61:24 69:6,24 75:23 77:1,8 80:12 94:15 188:24	<b>complicated</b> 221:8
<b>clearance</b> 209:14	<b>closing</b> 224:1	<b>comf</b>	<b>commission</b> 128:11 187:24 214:15	<b>company</b> 26:10 33:19 38:16 41:4 47:22 48:1 50:7 53:2 59:14,15 60:22 61:24 69:6,24 75:23 77:1,8 80:12 94:15 188:24	<b>complying</b> 133:20
<b>cleared</b> 82:16 206:9	<b>Cobb</b> 195:9	<b>com</b>	<b>commit</b> 100:24 175:16	<b>company</b> 26:10 33:19 38:16 41:4 47:22 48:1 50:7 53:2 59:14,15 60:22 61:24 69:6,24 75:23 77:1,8 80:12 94:15 188:24	<b>concealed</b> 109:9 110:8 198:4
<b>clearly</b> 188:14	<b>cocaine</b> 143:13	<b>com</b>	<b>committed</b> 200:2	<b>company</b> 26:10 33:19 38:16 41:4 47:22 48:1 50:7 53:2 59:14,15 60:22 61:24 69:6,24 75:23 77:1,8 80:12 94:15 188:24	<b>concept</b> 49:13 51:1
	<b>code</b> 38:9 74:8 125:11 171:24		<b>Committee</b> 7:13	<b>company</b> 26:10 33:19 38:16 41:4 47:22 48:1 50:7 53:2 59:14,15 60:22 61:24 69:6,24 75:23 77:1,8 80:12 94:15 188:24	<b>concepts</b> 50:6
	<b>coercion</b> 100:19		<b>community</b> 37:25	<b>company</b> 26:10 33:19 38:16 41:4 47:22 48:1 50:7 53:2 59:14,15 60:22 61:24 69:6,24 75:23 77:1,8 80:12 94:15 188:24	<b>concern</b> 18:19 46:20 58:7 59:11
	<b>COI</b> 34:4			<b>company</b> 26:10 33:19 38:16 41:4 47:22 48:1 50:7 53:2 59:14,15 60:22 61:24 69:6,24 75:23 77:1,8 80:12 94:15 188:24	
	<b>Coleman</b> 147:7,8 154:17			<b>company</b> 26:10 33:19 38:16 41:4 47:22 48:1 50:7 53:2 59:14,15 60:22 61:24 69:6,24 75:23 77:1,8 80:12 94:15 188:24	



137:11 139:9,11 <b>concerns</b> 12:20 15:8 21:9,10, 11,13 41:5,6 45:3 47:1 58:1 182:9,17 227:20 <b>concur</b> 228:22 <b>conduct</b> 49:14 168:21 175:18 187:17,19 <b>conducted</b> 6:1,3,16 <b>conductin g</b> 7:16 <b>conferenc es</b> 6:12 <b>confineme nt</b> 104:23 <b>confirm</b> 14:11 162:12 169:3 174:15 198:9 <b>confirmat ion</b> 78:10 <b>confirmed</b> 200:17 <b>conflict</b> 33:22	<b>conflicti ng</b> 90:7 126:8 <b>confused</b> 139:25 <b>congratul ations</b> 20:22 29:8 32:13,14 35:14 52:5 53:21 54:19 59:20 64:4 71:16 79:17 83:25 85:13 93:14 107:16 119:24 148:19 163:12 165:3 167:1 168:20 180:6 181:22 208:21 210:13 215:22 216:2 217:23 228:18 <b>conjuncti on</b> 198:13 <b>consent</b> 14:6,10, 20 16:16 17:8 18:3 209:8	<b>conservat ive</b> 224:3 <b>consider</b> 95:8 227:5 <b>considera tion</b> 45:13 223:21 227:7 <b>considere d</b> 38:3 110:7 187:25 209:11 <b>consisten cy</b> 89:23 90:3 <b>consisten t</b> 227:13 <b>consolida ted</b> 25:16 <b>conspirac y</b> 100:24 131:7,12 132:7 <b>constant</b> 11:22 193:12 <b>constitut ing</b> 105:23 <b>Consultin g</b> 15:19 17:21 19:12,23	152:20 <b>contact</b> 11:22 40:13 93:15 101:2 107:16 117:4 119:23 126:13 158:14 160:25 163:13 165:4 167:2 180:10 181:24 193:12 208:23 218:1 <b>contacted</b> 56:12 122:21 123:12 126:16 <b>contest</b> 40:15 <b>contested</b> 39:4 <b>contingen t</b> 14:10,20, 23 22:1, 9,12,18 25:6 28:6,8, 10,21 31:18,25 34:25 35:22,24 51:19 223:13 <b>continue</b> 38:5 60:19 153:5 213:21	<b>contract</b> 69:23 <b>contribut e</b> 89:24 <b>control</b> 38:20 54:2 <b>controlle d</b> 38:1 105:3 114:12, 16,18 131:8 142:18 163:21 169:18 177:20 212:4 <b>conventio n</b> 69:6 <b>converter s</b> 81:3 <b>convicted</b> 100:22 101:6,11 105:2 109:10 114:13 138:13 140:16 187:21 192:13 200:5 212:6 <b>convictio n</b> 38:7 94:9,14 97:9,11 104:15 120:15 125:5,13	127:8 131:5,11 140:14 147:21 149:4 156:21,24 158:23 161:18 163:21 165:11 167:17 169:9 174:22 177:14 180:24 185:6 187:10,25 188:10 193:13 197:23 198:4 207:17,23 209:7 212:3 216:19,25 <b>convictio ns</b> 86:22 87:1 91:2,7,10 103:7 123:7 126:15 127:5 175:24 177:1 193:1 203:20 <b>convince</b> 152:22 <b>convinced</b> 153:16 <b>COO</b> 50:7 <b>copies</b> 11:24 75:4
---	---	---	---	--	--

<b>copy</b>	16,23	45:8	105:15,	146:4	191:11,22
121:25	209:19	46:16	21,25	148:6,17	194:11,
122:22	212:16	50:11	106:3,6,	149:19,	13,24
<b>corporate</b>	214:16	51:20	13,16,18,	20,23,25	195:4,25
19:13,23	227:25	52:2	25 107:5,	150:5,8,	196:8,14
22:14,17	<b>corrected</b>	53:24	13 111:22	11,15,18,	197:5
23:23	26:2	54:16	112:4	21 151:8,	199:22,24
24:10	102:10	56:5,21,	113:5,17	15,18,23	200:13,
26:9	<b>correctio</b>	24 57:3,	115:5,8	152:1,4,	17,21,23,
28:1,3	<b>n</b>	5,8,10,	116:11,17	7,12,15,	25 201:2,
31:22	127:7	12,25	117:1,14,	17,21	13,17,19,
32:17	<b>correctly</b>	58:3,22	20 118:22	153:14	22 202:5,
45:22	42:12	59:3,16	119:7	154:2,25	8,11,13,
51:11	141:14	61:18	120:3	155:12,16	17,25
54:1,4	<b>Cortez</b>	62:5,9,	121:11,	157:10,	203:13
63:12	4:14,15	13,17	17,20,22	11,19	204:19
67:12	12:22	63:4,19	122:1,4,	158:10	205:12
75:23	13:11	64:1	11,16	159:11,	206:4,12,
78:24	14:8,9,	67:10,25	124:6,13	16,19,24	18,21,24
79:3	18,25	71:6,13	126:2,6,	160:10	207:1
182:23	15:5	73:4,6,9,	8,14,18,	162:11,	208:8,19
<b>correct</b>	16:1,12	14,17,20,	20,23,25	17,22	209:2,3,
9:8	20:12,19	23 74:3,	127:4,10	163:10	5,21
24:12,14	21:7,12,	13 75:21	128:2,8,	164:14	210:10,
26:15	14,17	76:10	14,18,20	165:1,25	15,22
28:12	22:11	77:15,18,	129:5,12,	166:3,5,	211:1,6,
37:10,12,	23:4	20,24	23 131:24	7,13,24	9,12,18
20 38:17	24:7,9,15	78:3,6,8,	132:13,19	168:5,18	215:6,19,
40:4,15,	25:9,10,	17 79:7,	133:2	170:17	23 217:9,
22 42:6	14,18	14 82:14	134:12,	171:18	21 218:8,
57:14	26:3,7,	83:5,9,	22,24	172:1,6,	12,15,19
66:20	14,20	11,21	135:2,5,	8,11,15	220:7,10,
67:1	27:5,12,	84:21	9,12,14,	173:7	18
73:22	16,18,24	85:8 86:9	18,24	175:22	221:13,
78:16	28:9,15,	87:23	136:2,5,	176:1,5,	18,19
98:9	18,20	88:1,5,7,	8,10,13,	11,22	222:11,18
105:9	29:5	11,14,19,	21	177:25	225:4,9,
127:6	30:23	22,24	137:10,	178:3,7,	14 227:12
128:23	31:5,10,	89:2,10,	16,19,22	11,13,15,	228:6,8,
133:18	17,21	13,16	138:4,17,	19,22,25	15
138:20,23	32:11	90:6	21 139:3,	179:10,	<b>cosigned</b>
140:6	34:10,19,	93:2,12	9,14,17,	13,18	81:1
141:9	22 35:10	95:24	19,21	180:4	<b>counsel</b>
157:7	41:9,18	97:18,21	140:12	181:8,20	8:8 13:14
162:15	42:3,11,	99:4,11	141:2,20,	182:21	14:3 40:6
172:8,15	19,22,25	100:3	24 143:3,	183:13,22	64:7,17
186:25	43:5,11,	101:19,22	21,25	184:4,16	69:18,20,
194:17	18 44:24	102:3,12	144:2,4,	188:13	25 70:4
198:15,		103:2,18	7,15,17	189:2,11,	85:19
		104:2	145:10,17	13 190:1	

86:3	28:19	79:4	163:24	211:20	<b>DA</b>
156:1,12	29:13,19	<b>courts</b>	164:4	212:22,23	133:3
186:9,18	41:23	56:13	181:10	213:11,	<b>daily</b>
194:6	42:7,13	105:18	187:24	14,17,22,	38:21
<b>counselin</b>	43:12,22	122:21	188:16	23 214:3,	<b>Dallas</b>
<b>g</b>	44:4 46:3	157:18	191:13	7,16,18	59:23
175:7	47:3	<b>cousin</b>	200:8,10	216:14,	60:13,23
<b>count</b>	52:23	127:18	203:3	15,17,22	63:16
175:11,15	70:8	<b>cousins</b>	217:12	<b>Cunningha</b>	<b>dangerous</b>
193:3,4	74:19	127:22	<b>Crisis24</b>	<b>m</b>	142:14
209:7	86:23	<b>covered</b>	25:23,25	184:20,	169:9
<b>countries</b>	91:9	138:6	26:17	21,22,23	174:23
65:20	94:10,18	<b>Crawford</b>	27:8,11,	185:2,15,	192:23
<b>counts</b>	97:7,12	210:17,18	18 28:1	23 186:4	197:23
101:3	104:21	219:2	<b>Cristy</b>	188:15,17	<b>Daniel</b>
120:21	107:20	<b>create</b>	174:2	189:3,12,	51:16
175:12	109:24	60:22	183:20	22 190:3,	<b>Darrell</b>
<b>County</b>	114:19,23	<b>creates</b>	218:15,22	7,13,15,	47:8,17
38:4	116:1	223:14	219:2,8	18,21,24	50:6
101:1,7	117:7,10	<b>credit</b>	221:9,20	191:1,4	51:12
195:9	120:18,	175:7	<b>critical</b>	192:8,14	<b>Daryl</b>
209:13	22,25	<b>crime</b>	6:2 49:18	<b>current</b>	86:13
<b>county-</b>	121:3	6:19	<b>cry</b>	33:13,14	87:22
<b>owned</b>	123:12	169:24	227:1	50:3	<b>date</b>
186:7	125:6,15,	175:16	<b>Cuevas</b>	65:10,22	151:8,10
<b>couple</b>	22 132:12	192:13	14:12,14,	<b>currently</b>	<b>dated</b>
39:4	134:16,	<b>crimes</b>	15,19,22	40:15	226:10
55:19	19,21	162:3	23:12,14,	66:17	<b>dates</b>
63:1 69:7	142:20,22	200:3,6	19 24:4,	69:4	151:12
88:3	146:13,	<b>criminal</b>	13 25:18,	71:23	<b>daughter</b>
153:8	14,16	73:10,13	21,25	74:25	49:21
182:3	169:15,20	74:6	26:15,23,	77:11,24	159:17
185:25	170:5	75:25	25 27:3	92:4	<b>daughter'</b>
199:24	171:3	89:17,21	31:6,8	<b>culp</b>	<b>s</b>
204:15	181:3,11	97:22	34:12,15,	120:9	159:14
<b>course</b>	182:12	101:23	16 41:18	<b>custody</b>	<b>David</b>
39:9	185:12	102:21	68:17,22	100:20	21:22
<b>court</b>	187:7	103:6	75:6,10	<b>cut</b>	22:7,15
6:23 7:3	195:18	115:9	86:17,19,	109:23,25	<b>Davis</b>
9:22 10:6	198:7	121:13	20,24	143:22	59:21,22
11:9	207:25	122:6	87:12,20	<b>D</b>	60:3,7
14:21	209:12	132:2	90:11,20,	<b>d/b/a</b>	61:12,17
17:16	211:3,7,	143:5	22 91:3,	31:2	62:14,16
18:12	10 214:5,	<b>Courtney</b>	7,10		
19:18,21	9 216:21	76:23,24	92:12,18,		
	225:22		21 94:5,		
	226:1		7,12		

63:13,16	167:17	106:12	167:21	177:13	45:21
<b>day</b>	<b>deal</b>	<b>deferred</b>	168:6	180:23	141:25
21:15	38:4	175:1,4	172:22	185:3,9, 19	<b>details</b>
104:8	91:19	<b>definitel</b>	176:12	192:10,22	115:25
120:1	178:17	<b>y</b>	179:19	197:22	<b>detained</b>
130:14	<b>dealershi</b>	57:23	181:9	203:19	6:5
151:4	<b>P</b>	229:14	185:20	204:8,9	<b>detective</b>
154:12	80:24	<b>defraud</b>	186:2	207:16	49:2
155:19	81:8,9	156:21	191:12	209:6,12	160:15
161:2	<b>dealing</b>	157:13	196:20	212:2,8,9	<b>Detention</b>
165:6	229:11	<b>degree</b>	203:1	214:19,22	100:20
167:4	<b>debate</b>	5:19	204:11	216:18,23	101:1,7
169:22	205:21	180:25	208:9	<b>deny</b>	<b>determini</b>
173:18	<b>debating</b>	207:19	214:21	5:14,16	<b>ng</b>
210:15	204:24	<b>delay</b>	215:7	45:21	188:1
229:11	<b>debt</b>	22:9 25:1	217:10	75:22	<b>Detmer</b>
<b>days</b>	46:7,22	26:7,8	<b>denials</b>	197:8	13:14,15,
10:18	<b>debts</b>	169:25	113:6	219:20	18 14:3,4
97:10,12	39:1,14	<b>delays</b>	155:1	<b>denying</b>	28:6,7
100:25	40:10,14	11:14	184:5	7:18	39:17,24
101:6	74:17	<b>delivered</b>	222:19	219:17	40:6,7
125:14	<b>decades</b>	132:8	<b>denied</b>	<b>departmen</b>	59:8
139:8	226:7	135:20	7:21,23	<b>t</b>	64:7,8,
149:12	<b>December</b>	<b>deliverin</b>	8:3 10:1,	33:6,21,	17,18
162:1	4:2 63:3	<b>g</b>	3,12,15	23 91:17	85:19,20
169:12,	151:21	132:24	86:21,25	143:17	86:3,4
19,20	204:22	136:20	94:8,13	204:23	156:1,3,
175:7	205:1,19	<b>denial</b>	96:24	<b>depleted</b>	12,13
193:2,9	223:18	95:14	98:10	157:15	193:18,23
196:4	<b>decide</b>	96:4	100:17	<b>desires</b>	194:6,7
201:8	41:7	98:25	104:15	5:2	212:19,23
209:10	220:22	103:14	114:11	<b>desk</b>	213:5,6,
<b>DBA</b>	<b>decided</b>	106:25	120:14	5:8 151:1	12,15,18,
60:24	53:2	107:1,7	125:4	<b>despite</b>	25
<b>de</b>	91:15	115:24	131:5	74:6	214:12,
52:11	<b>decision</b>	124:2	142:13	102:22	17,25
54:5	5:13,15	129:13	147:20,25	172:1	215:3
147:10,11	12:11	140:13	149:3	<b>destroy</b>	219:14,20
154:19	82:10	145:6	156:20	7:9	220:24
<b>DEA</b>	205:4,17,	148:7	158:22	<b>destructi</b>	221:3,15
136:18	18,21	153:15	161:17	<b>ve</b>	227:25
<b>deadly</b>	223:3	159:25	162:2,13	138:2	230:4
73:21	<b>defense</b>	162:3,23	163:20	<b>detail</b>	<b>detriment</b>
97:5		164:2,15	164:1	36:5	al
101:9,25		166:14	165:10		142:21
120:21			167:16,19		
165:11			169:8		
			173:13		
			174:21		

<b>Diaz</b> 78:7,10, 12 82:4, 6,13,14, 18 147:16, 17,19 148:25 149:2 150:21,24 151:10 156:17,19 157:7 158:20,22 160:15 161:15,17 162:12,15 163:18,20 165:8,10 167:14,16	141:12 <b>Diplomati c</b> 60:9 <b>direct</b> 18:20 <b>directive</b> 223:12,22 <b>directly</b> 187:2 <b>director</b> 4:6,8,9, 12,14,16, 19 8:12, 21 9:12, 14,15 11:16,17 12:2 17:3,6, 12,18 18:1,2,7 21:23 22:1 23:22 24:3,20 30:11,12, 15 33:15, 17 55:21 69:15 70:10,13 87:21 94:3 107:24,25 108:5,10, 14 130:22 186:10, 14,15 198:10, 11,24 223:5,7, 9,17,19 224:2,24 225:2 226:16, 21,24 228:4,19 229:5	<b>Director' s</b> 223:3 <b>disabilit ies</b> 187:4 <b>disabilit y</b> 187:19 <b>discharge</b> 147:21 178:10,17 <b>discharge d</b> 87:5 88:8,9,12 89:5 90:15 177:18 178:4 <b>disclose</b> 73:10,24 75:24 95:15 96:2,25 97:21 98:18 99:19 100:18 101:22,25 102:4 103:21 105:5 109:9 114:11 115:8 120:15 121:12 124:3 125:20 126:4,15 127:11 131:6,15 132:2 140:14 142:13 143:4	147:24 149:14,21 157:2 159:6 162:5,14 164:2,3 165:18 167:20,22 169:10 172:4,9, 13 175:23 176:25 177:21 185:4,8, 18,21 186:12 188:5,15 189:21 192:24 193:10 194:15, 20,21 197:24 200:7 207:22 208:2 209:18 212:11,13 216:24 <b>disclosed</b> 25:4 74:9 87:10 91:2 100:25 104:15 105:10 109:12 110:6 115:19 126:10 128:18,19 129:1 131:15 133:8 149:9,13 157:1,6 159:5 161:24 162:1,16	165:17 175:9,14, 25 176:3 181:2 185:21 195:5 216:18 <b>disclosin g</b> 148:20 160:22 180:8 208:22 <b>disclosur e</b> 32:23 111:10 129:14 148:8 153:16 158:1 160:1 162:24 164:16 166:15 168:7 176:12 179:20 181:10 186:19,23 197:8 208:10 210:1 215:8 216:25 217:12 <b>discretio n</b> 5:4 220:25 <b>discuss</b> 4:25 223:2 226:20 227:14	<b>discussio n</b> 8:9 21:18 35:15 54:23 112:18 <b>disgustin g</b> 220:5 <b>dishonora ble</b> 178:10 <b>dishonora bly</b> 177:17 <b>dismissal</b> 125:12 <b>dismissal s</b> 170:21,22 <b>dismissed</b> 97:4 101:10 102:1,23 104:18 105:4 106:14 114:16 120:19 121:3 122:24 123:13 125:11 142:19 157:18 158:25 161:21 165:13 169:14, 17,25 171:1,6, 8,17,23 172:2 175:1,5, 12 193:6 195:2
--	---	---	--	---	--

<b>disobey</b> 169:20	<b>DMV</b> 10:25	168:8, 25 189:17 196:4	5:6 6:24, 25 9:3 17:8	142:14 143:19	<b>DV</b> 175:7
<b>disorderly</b> 175:18	<b>DNA</b> 60:14, 24 61:23	202:15 215:9 217:11	29:14 41:24 42:10	<b>dry</b> 109:23, 25	<hr/> <b>E</b> <hr/>
<b>displaying</b> 149:4	<b>docs</b> 42:7 97:12	219:10 226:22	45:10 49:12 95:3	<b>due</b> 69:20 96:24 100:17	<b>each</b> 12:10 29:14 126:13
<b>displays</b> 207:19	<b>document</b> 44:6, 23 62:23 108:7	<b>DOJ</b> 98:3	102:7, 9 146:6 184:24	114:11 169:25 209:6, 11, 14 212:2	<b>earlier</b> 25:2 57:25 58:4
<b>disposition</b> 74:6 97:1, 6 102:22 121:6 142:15, 22 146:15 170:6	<b>documentations</b> 105:18	<b>dollars</b> 42:16	<b>domestic</b> 100:21, 22 105:23 106:8	<b>Dufee</b> 210:20 219:4	112:22 123:1, 5 190:14 213:9 223:10, 18 224:11
<b>dispute</b> 74:25 75:8	<b>documents</b> 41:23 42:13 94:19 97:7 114:1, 19 117:7, 11 120:18, 22, 25 121:3 125:15	<b>done</b> 38:2, 4 44:14 48:10 60:10, 15 62:7 81:13 130:7 143:9 193:12 200:22	<b>DPS</b> 11:15, 18, 23 12:2 22:8 25:1 198:13, 15 199:4	<b>DUI</b> 97:9, 11 121:5 122:9, 10	<b>early</b> 37:17 88:10
<b>disputed</b> 74:18, 21, 24	146:13, 14, 16 181:3, 11 186:19 198:2, 8	<b>Dominique</b> 192:16, 17, 18	<b>draw</b> 69:18	<b>Dumas</b> 62:19, 21 170:9 209:4, 6, 19 211:23, 25 212:16 214:19, 21 225:7	<b>ease</b> 187:19, 23
<b>distance</b> 111:23	<b>doing</b> 12:10 26:4, 19, 21 38:2 47:19 48:14 60:10, 19 74:12 77:8	175:4, 6, 11	<b>drawn</b> 70:3	<b>drawn</b> 70:3	<b>East</b> 127:18
<b>distribute</b> 131:12 132:7	127:21, 22 138:12 143:19 162:25 164:16	<b>done</b> 38:2, 4 44:14 48:10 60:10, 15 62:7 81:13 130:7 143:9 193:12 200:22	<b>drinking</b> 153:8	<b>drive</b> 149:10	<b>Edmonds</b> 149:4
<b>district</b> 55:20 134:1, 7	<b>dots</b> 189:15	<b>Donnetta</b> 130:24	<b>driving</b> 72:24 149:8 150:3 198:6	<b>driving</b> 72:24 149:8 150:3 198:6	<b>educated</b> 130:6
<b>diversion</b> 121:2 142:19 169:14 175:2, 5	<b>Douglas</b> 14:13 21:22 22:6, 13, 19	<b>dropped</b> 102:23 144:14	<b>dropping</b> 139:19	<b>dropped</b> 102:23 144:14	<b>education</b> 5:18 7:19 84:12
<b>division</b> 48:13	<b>down</b>	<b>dropping</b> 139:19	<b>drug</b> 7:7 116:13 117:25 142:22 144:14	<b>during</b> 6:12 186:20, 22 198:7, 18 223:16 225:20 226:4	<b>effect</b> 225:10
			<b>drugs</b> 104:19, 22	<b>Dupre</b> 133:5	<b>effective</b> 228:5
				<b>duty</b> 37:23	<b>effort</b> 118:18 220:8 221:22, 25
					<b>efforts</b> 118:24 200:3, 4

<b>eight</b> 5:25 69:4	218:8	50:4	<b>Enterpris</b> <b>e</b> 81:6	196:18 202:24 208:6 209:22 215:5 217:8 221:11 222:17 227:17 228:1	172:2 179:6 186:23 189:18 194:16 195:2 198:8, 25 200:12 201:23 214:10
<b>either</b> 10:3 31:7,8,13 49:21	<b>emailed</b> 9:16 30:4 81:17,21 117:9	<b>encourage</b> 141:7 207:1	<b>entertain</b> 15:25 19:10 22:10 25:7 27:22 31:16 34:9,21 45:19 51:8 53:23 58:11 63:9 67:9 70:19 75:20 78:22 83:4 84:20 93:1 95:12 98:23 103:12 106:22 111:7 113:4 118:15 123:25 129:11 140:11 145:4 148:5 153:13 154:23 157:23 159:23 162:21 164:13 166:12 168:4 172:20 176:10 179:17 181:6 182:20 184:1 191:10	<b>entertain</b> <b>ing</b> 16:17,24 <b>entire</b> 7:14 44:4 48:10 <b>entity</b> 31:4 <b>Eppinger</b> 161:7,8, 12,13,16 162:23 <b>erase</b> 187:11 <b>espionage</b> 6:19 <b>Esquivel</b> 173:24,25 183:18,19 <b>essential</b> <b>ly</b> 125:18 <b>estimated</b> 62:25 <b>et</b> 81:4 <b>even</b> 56:10,13, 16,17 57:20,21 95:3,8 115:19 123:8 171:23	<b>events</b> 91:22 <b>ever</b> 18:20 97:14 189:8 <b>every</b> 49:15,25 204:9 226:8 229:11 <b>everybody</b> 5:10 36:3 39:21 61:8 86:6 102:19 113:22 119:25 142:8 229:16 <b>everybody</b> <b>'s</b> 206:5 <b>everyone</b> 4:4 14:5 48:7 53:20 61:5 64:5,19 109:3 154:11 155:18,20 <b>everythin</b> <b>g</b> 27:6 38:22
<b>Elena</b> 210:22,23 215:7	<b>emails</b> 44:19 117:6	<b>end</b> 11:14 12:3,9 21:15 55:15 58:6 80:2 93:16 108:6 198:18 224:7	<b>ended</b> 101:6 55:11 81:5 144:24 151:6		
<b>elevator</b> 218:18, 19,20	<b>embarrass</b> 112:5	<b>endangerm</b> <b>ent</b> 101:6	<b>enforceme</b> <b>nt</b> 6:9,12,15 55:9 91:18,21		
<b>eliminate</b> <b>d</b> 55:16,25 57:16	<b>Embassy</b> 6:18 7:9 <b>embed</b> 49:16 <b>employed</b> 50:15 69:21 110:17, 21,22 <b>employee</b> 5:21 33:14 138:2 223:15 226:8,17 <b>employees</b> 6:8 46:21 62:3 223:11 224:22 226:7,25 227:16 <b>employer</b> 107:21 108:6 <b>employmen</b> <b>t</b> 18:19 33:13 157:16 <b>EMS</b> 49:11 <b>EMTS</b> 49:17	<b>ent</b> 101:6 <b>ended</b> 55:11 81:5 144:24 151:6 <b>enforceme</b> <b>nt</b> 6:9,12,15 55:9 91:18,21 <b>engineeri</b> <b>ng</b> 47:24 <b>English</b> 215:24 <b>enhance</b> 36:22 <b>Enhanced</b> 52:8 53:25 <b>enough</b> 55:3 202:17 <b>entered</b> 50:16 <b>entering</b> 201:12			
<b>Elite</b> 68:11 69:5 70:7,25					
<b>Elko</b> 33:9 186:3					
<b>Ellen</b> 210:21					
<b>else</b> 81:10 102:6 103:5 122:14 186:13 193:20 205:20 227:10,15					
<b>email</b> 42:20,21 80:24 82:3,5 114:3 117:19 118:9 122:22 138:14 139:1,6 174:4					

44:14	<b>examiner</b>	198:10,	<b>explorer</b>	149:21	51:2
51:1	5:25	11,24	127:17,19	175:23	136:11
60:15	7:14,16,	223:2,3,	<b>exposed</b>	188:15	137:6,17
74:9	20,21	5,7,9,16,	84:12	194:15	138:5,8
76:14	84:5,23	19 224:24	<b>expressed</b>	200:10	140:15,17
102:6,9	<b>exams</b>	225:2,7,8	225:18	<b>failed</b>	144:13
121:24	6:16 7:16	226:16,	<b>extension</b>	101:24	146:2
123:18	<b>exceed</b>	20,24	117:11	103:7	178:9
124:18,19	177:17	228:4,19	<b>extension</b>	189:21	219:15
138:5	<b>Excel</b>	229:5	<b>s</b>	200:7	<b>Fargo</b>
144:9	101:13	<b>exemption</b>	117:12	<b>failing</b>	53:5
148:20	<b>excited</b>	33:18,20	<b>extensive</b>	164:1	<b>fast</b>
157:6,18	65:21,23	<b>exhibitio</b>	7:19	167:20	225:23
160:22	<b>excuse</b>	<b>n</b>	163:24	169:10	<b>father</b>
161:4	65:13	165:16	<b>extra</b>	<b>failure</b>	32:23
162:16	88:18	<b>existing</b>	150:2	75:24	<b>fault</b>
171:22	91:5	74:9	<b>expand</b>	96:25	171:2
175:25	171:16	<b>expand</b>	53:11	100:18	<b>favor</b>
176:4,25	179:2	190:23	<b>expect</b>	103:21	13:8 16:9
180:9	<b>executive</b>	190:23	190:23	114:11	20:16
186:13	4:6,8,9,	<b>expensive</b>	<b>f-word</b>	120:15	23:1 29:2
208:23	12,14,16,	57:17	151:7	124:3	32:8 35:8
228:24	19 8:12,	<b>experienc</b>	<b>facility</b>	131:6	46:13
<b>everywher</b>	21 9:12,	<b>e</b>	36:17	140:14	51:24
<b>e</b>	14,15	7:15,17	<b>fact</b>	142:13	54:13
206:22	11:16,17	42:13	95:14	162:14	59:1
225:1,3	17:3,6,	56:2	118:18	185:4	63:23
<b>evidence</b>	12,18	150:6	121:25	192:24	67:23
49:6	18:1,2,7	<b>expert</b>	123:1	197:24	71:10
<b>ex-</b>	21:23	7:12	139:6	216:24	76:7
<b>husband</b>	22:1	<b>explain</b>	172:2	<b>Fair</b>	79:11
106:9	23:22	8:13	186:2,24	202:17	83:19
<b>exact</b>	24:3,20	37:21	187:11,25	<b>fake</b>	85:5 93:9
115:24,25	30:11,12,	72:16	188:10	130:5	95:21
204:21	15 33:15,	80:18	189:20	<b>Fallon</b>	99:8
205:5	17 60:10,	89:23	200:5,7,	33:9	103:24
<b>exactly</b>	16,19,20	109:22	17	<b>Falls</b>	107:10
42:14	69:15	112:16	<b>fail</b>	134:14,	111:17
162:25	70:10,13	135:4	73:24	17,19,21	113:14
164:17	87:21	141:25	97:21	<b>family</b>	119:4
215:9	94:3	151:2	101:22	34:2	124:10
217:12	107:24,25	215:25	115:8	157:14	129:20
<b>examinati</b>	108:5,10,	<b>explained</b>	121:12	<b>far</b>	140:24
<b>ons</b>	14 125:5,	214:20	132:2	12:5 17:8	145:14
6:1,2	9 130:22		143:4,23	45:13	148:14
	186:9,14,				153:24
	15				155:9



158:7	76:16	38:25	<b>final</b>	200:24	142:16
160:7	147:1	52:22	36:2	201:3	192:13
163:7	192:2	53:6,8	44:13	210:24	195:13
164:23	223:17	77:5	74:16	<b>fined</b>	198:8
166:21	<b>Feels</b>	132:17	82:9	175:7	199:4
168:15	109:20	201:8	<b>financed</b>	<b>fines</b>	200:15
173:4	<b>fell</b>	<b>FFL</b>	57:21	201:8,14	<b>finish</b>
176:19	72:19	95:5	<b>finances</b>	<b>fingerpri</b>	61:7
180:1	<b>felon</b>	<b>FFL-07</b>	41:3,4	<b>nt</b>	178:6
181:17	207:4	95:6	59:12	10:17	<b>finished</b>
183:10	<b>felonies</b>	<b>field</b>	178:14	11:13,22	41:8
184:13	105:11	72:10	<b>financial</b>	22:3,12,	<b>fire</b>
191:19	122:7	<b>fields</b>	45:4 53:6	18 28:10,	47:24
197:2	<b>felons</b>	33:24	74:17	21 31:13,	50:4
203:10	196:12	<b>Fifth</b>	76:1	18,25	<b>firearm</b>
208:16	<b>felony</b>	48:11	<b>Financial</b>	34:18,25	97:3,6
210:7	37:19	<b>Fifty-</b>	<b>ly</b>	90:12,13	109:11
215:16	38:7,10	<b>nine</b>	223:23	94:16	120:20
217:18	42:6	130:23	<b>financial</b>	97:2,6	147:21
222:8	43:3,6,8,	<b>figure</b>	<b>s</b>	103:5	169:11
228:12	14 44:2	11:23	9:16	121:1	170:24
<b>FBI</b>	86:21,25	<b>figured</b>	82:19	140:3,4	193:5
5:22,23,	87:10	92:2	<b>find</b>	196:10	194:18
24 6:1,7,	101:2,8	<b>file</b>	57:23	204:24	207:19
16 10:17	120:14,16	74:4	139:7	205:3	<b>firearms</b>
49:1,5	122:19,20	<b>filed</b>	171:13	217:2	95:6
198:9	125:8,20	38:9 49:6	174:4,5	<b>fingerpri</b>	187:5,9
<b>fear</b>	126:11	134:5	179:4	<b>nting</b>	<b>first</b>
120:16	127:8	<b>Files</b>	198:14	102:14	11:5,7
<b>February</b>	131:5,7,	79:4	220:6	121:6	33:7 48:2
33:7	11 132:6	<b>Filipina</b>	221:10,24	204:24	52:19
80:10	142:17	55:10	<b>finding</b>	<b>fingerpri</b>	86:7
87:5	158:23	<b>fill</b>	117:4	<b>nts</b>	92:12
88:12,17,	161:18	49:17	<b>fine</b>	12:8,11	94:18
22 89:3,4	163:21	104:7	27:5	14:12	94:18
90:7	165:11	<b>filled</b>	87:25	22:2,6,10	127:7
<b>federal</b>	177:14	102:6	97:12	24:2	132:5
5:21	180:24	<b>filling</b>	104:24	25:1,6	140:1
131:9	185:6	93:19	110:11	28:11,20	162:8,13
<b>fee</b>	187:21	102:1	125:10	34:13	170:8
81:8	207:17	141:13	131:13	35:22,24	174:25
<b>feed</b>	209:7	177:4	149:8,12	51:7,19	175:3,4,
206:15	212:2	<b>few</b>	169:23	53:20	6,15
<b>feel</b>	216:18,24	36:14	170:2	68:15	179:3
47:1			175:17,19	91:4	186:19
72:23			193:9	103:4	193:3
				116:19	198:12
					201:15

203:24	226:7	19 47:20,	20,21,25	11,13	186:3,8,
204:11	<b>for</b>	21 48:7,	87:19	143:1	9,15
223:16,19	4:6,9,21	11,19,20,	89:10	144:1,20,	187:3,12
226:6	5:3,21,25	22 49:2,	90:11	25 145:2	188:2,17,
<b>fiscal</b>	6:6,8,20	9,11,23,	91:17	146:10,	24,25
224:7	8:4,17	25 50:2,	92:3	11,13,15	189:21
226:7	9:15,23,	13 51:7,	93:19	147:18,20	190:9,19
<b>fit</b>	24 10:2,	11,12	94:6,8,	148:3,20	192:2,9,
50:6	4,5,6,10,	52:14,17,	13,19,21	149:1,3,	23,24
<b>five</b>	13,21	21,22	95:7	18 153:8	193:13,25
5:3 13:21	11:2,3,4,	53:1,9	97:2,17,	154:11,23	194:10,13
49:2 98:4	17,24	54:20	25 98:25	155:1	196:16
120:21	12:4,16,	55:1,3,9,	99:1	156:3,18,	197:21,23
132:21	21,24	13,15,17,	100:15	20,25	198:11
133:4	13:18,20	18,19,25	101:5	157:9,21	199:4,15
155:15,16	14:6,10,	56:4,16	103:15	158:14,	205:14
161:20	12,15,17	57:15,18,	104:13,15	20,22	206:23
165:13	15:23	22 58:4,	105:14	159:2,10	207:15,17
169:19	16:2	9,14,17	107:2,16,	160:18,	208:4,22
177:17	18:2,16,	59:5,16,	25 109:6,	21,25	209:5,21
190:9	24 19:13,	19 60:18,	15,25	161:5,16,	210:13
<b>five-</b>	14,23,25	24 61:5,	110:10,	17,22,25	211:24,25
<b>minute</b>	21:1,8,9	17,23	11,22	162:2,9,	212:19
155:19	22:13,14	62:1,3,4,	111:9	13	213:5,6,
<b>five-year</b>	23:19	10,21	113:4,6	163:19,20	21 214:1,
49:5	25:8,14,	63:11,13	114:8	164:1,7,	6,12
120:17	21,23,25	64:5,9	115:4,11,	9,11	215:2
132:14	26:4,8	65:8,9	24	165:9,10,	216:7,8,
<b>fix</b>	28:7,11	66:1,12	119:13,	22 167:2,	16,18,24
10:19	29:11,14	67:11	17,22,23	3,13,15,	217:6
<b>focused</b>	30:6,12,	68:11,16,	120:12,	16,20	218:18,
89:13	18,22,24,	17,19	14,18,24	168:1,6,	19,20
<b>folks</b>	25 31:8,	69:4,9,	121:6,10	8,21	220:21
49:14	19 32:22	13,16	122:23	169:7,9,	221:3,6,
61:9	33:6,11,	70:22,25	123:10	10 170:16	11,15,20
229:11	17,23	71:25	124:2	171:6,13,	222:19
<b>follow</b>	34:7,11,	72:9,12,	125:2,4,	16,24	223:3,9,
117:15	13,17,18,	17 74:12,	17,25	172:5,17	11 224:3,
<b>followed</b>	24 36:10,	14,16	126:3,9	174:11,	11
130:4	12,14,15	77:5,6,10	127:15	20,22	225:10,15
<b>following</b>	37:1,9	78:12,24	128:1	175:7,21	226:6,8,
6:2	38:5	79:1,20,	131:3,5,	177:12,	17,20,23
126:15	39:11,17,	24 80:9,	11,18	13,24	227:7
133:3	18 40:12	14 81:1	132:12	178:8	229:6,13,
	41:20,22	82:1	133:13	180:8,10,	15,18,22
	42:1	83:11	134:3,12	22,24	<b>force</b>
	43:23	84:12,14,	136:3,25	181:3,5,	97:5
	45:1,22,	18,22	137:1,5	24 184:5	<b>Ford</b>
	23 46:6,	85:22	139:10	185:2,4,	148:21,
		86:7,18,	142:3,8,	6,15,22	

22,24	<b>forward</b>	30:19	89:3,18	42:6	21 92:8
149:1,18,	23:24,25	31:23	90:18	43:3,7	93:1
19,22,24	24:16	<b>free</b>	91:13,25	75:24	95:9,11
150:1,7,	36:2,4	16:16,18	92:8	100:6	98:22
10,14,17,	47:10	47:1	94:9,14	111:10	103:9,11
20 151:4,	81:23	76:16	97:24	129:14	106:18,19
14,16,19,	84:15	147:1	98:21	148:8	111:5,6
25 152:3,	124:19	192:2	101:18	153:16	118:14
6,11,14,	130:1	<b>Fregosa</b>	102:1	157:25	123:22,24
16,19,23	145:20	212:24	103:3,4,	160:1	129:8
153:2,8	181:23	<b>Fregoso</b>	5,9	162:24	139:22
154:6	220:14	213:25	105:18	164:4,16	140:9,10
<b>forefront</b>	<b>found</b>	214:14	106:20	166:15	145:2,3
48:5	18:3	215:2	115:25	168:7	153:11,12
<b>forfeit</b>	25:20	<b>friend</b>	117:2	176:13	157:20,22
109:10	57:7	143:12,	122:21	179:20	159:21,22
<b>forgery</b>	106:11	14,15	123:23	181:10	162:20
104:25	117:3	<b>friends</b>	129:8	197:8	166:7,9,
175:15	133:4	61:25	133:15,17	203:19	11
<b>forget</b>	179:11	<b>from</b>	136:8,16	208:10	172:17,19
171:7	186:22	5:19 9:9	142:9	209:25	176:7,9
187:4	200:4	10:17	152:19	215:8	179:14,16
202:15	201:4	12:19	162:10,18	216:25	182:8,17
<b>forgives</b>	<b>four</b>	24:21	166:9	217:12	191:9
187:4	10:23	27:13	173:15	<b>full-time</b>	195:10
<b>forgot</b>	23:16	31:3,15	176:7	69:24	196:15,17
143:6,24,	65:18	33:9,13,	177:18	<b>fully</b>	202:21,23
25 144:10	74:18,20,	21 45:5	178:4	44:7	<b>future</b>
202:14	24 135:1	50:10,23	179:15	<b>function</b>	5:2
205:25	163:23	51:4	187:2	50:2	229:19
224:16	<b>four-</b>	53:18,22	188:8,9,	<b>funds</b>	<b>FY</b>
<b>forgotten</b>	<b>minute</b>	55:7	19,23	157:15	223:25
95:1	49:19,20,	57:15	194:9	<b>further</b>	<hr/>
<b>form</b>	24,25	58:5	198:13,20	9:3 19:6,	<b>G</b>
15:11	<b>frame</b>	60:11	206:13	9,10	<b>game</b>
<b>formal</b>	117:13	63:7	209:12	27:20	137:7
5:18	<b>Frank</b>	75:6,18	218:11,	31:11,15	<b>gangs</b>
<b>forms</b>	70:6,8	77:13	23,25	45:15	91:24
198:15	<b>fraud</b>	78:15,19	221:9	51:4	<b>gap</b>
<b>forth</b>	121:1	80:23	224:20	58:8,9	49:17,19
27:13	179:5	81:9,19	225:18	62:17	<b>garage</b>
91:20,23	<b>fraudulen</b>	82:19	226:3,24	63:6,7,8	218:17
106:5	<b>t</b>	84:15	229:12	67:8	<b>gas</b>
<b>Frederick</b>	179:5	86:22	<b>front</b>	70:18	206:15
29:25	<b>Frederick</b>	87:1,4,5,	85:23	74:14	
	29:25	15 88:8,	150:25	75:17,19	
		9,16	156:4	78:18,19,	
			<b>full</b>		
			32:23		

<b>gathered</b> 198:2	<b>Georgia</b> 193:7 195:7,8	<b>get all</b> 147:1	187:25 205:14	205:6,15 213:3 218:6,15 220:14 229:23 230:5	102:18 103:19,20 106:5 107:6 109:23,25 110:23 111:2 112:11, 12,13,20 113:20 118:23 120:23 124:16 135:1 140:13 141:5,20 152:9 153:4,7, 15,17 154:9 155:19 156:4 181:22 189:11 191:5 193:25 197:8 200:9 201:20 203:1 206:15,16 211:3 212:23 213:8 220:7 221:7 223:24 224:5,6, 7,8 227:16
<b>gathering</b> 5:12	<b>get</b> 4:5 8:14 10:19 17:4,9, 13,19 18:4 23:7 29:14 34:1 36:2 38:8 39:3,5 43:7 48:2 49:12,20, 24 61:2 69:10 75:4 80:23 81:9 90:4 98:8 104:5 110:13 111:2 116:5 127:20 130:1 138:5,18 139:1,19 141:21 143:22 146:1 152:4 157:16 158:13 173:10, 15,16 178:16 186:18 191:25 195:17 198:22 205:14 208:21 221:8 224:22 227:17 229:13	<b>gets</b> 220:5	<b>glad</b> 8:22 201:24 228:24	<b>God</b> 206:2	112:11, 12,13,20 113:20 118:23 120:23 124:16 135:1 140:13 141:5,20 152:9 153:4,7, 15,17 154:9 155:19 156:4 181:22 189:11 191:5 193:25 197:8 200:9 201:20 203:1 206:15,16 211:3 212:23 213:8 220:7 221:7 223:24 224:5,6, 7,8 227:16
<b>gave</b> 118:11 120:22 121:25 127:24 190:8 204:25 205:3 206:4 218:14 219:10	<b>get</b> 4:5 8:14 10:19 17:4,9, 13,19 18:4 23:7 29:14 34:1 36:2 38:8 39:3,5 43:7 48:2 49:12,20, 24 61:2 69:10 75:4 80:23 81:9 90:4 98:8 104:5 110:13 111:2 116:5 127:20 130:1 138:5,18 139:1,19 141:21 143:22 146:1 152:4 157:16 158:13 173:10, 15,16 178:16 186:18 191:25 195:17 198:22 205:14 208:21 221:8 224:22 227:17 229:13	<b>getting</b> 26:5 27:6 65:24 81:3 89:24 115:17 144:24 193:13 227:16	<b>Glendale</b> 36:12,13 37:9,24 38:3 41:11	<b>God</b> 206:2	112:11, 12,13,20 113:20 118:23 120:23 124:16 135:1 140:13 141:5,20 152:9 153:4,7, 15,17 154:9 155:19 156:4 181:22 189:11 191:5 193:25 197:8 200:9 201:20 203:1 206:15,16 211:3 212:23 213:8 220:7 221:7 223:24 224:5,6, 7,8 227:16
<b>GBI</b> 97:6	<b>get</b> 4:5 8:14 10:19 17:4,9, 13,19 18:4 23:7 29:14 34:1 36:2 38:8 39:3,5 43:7 48:2 49:12,20, 24 61:2 69:10 75:4 80:23 81:9 90:4 98:8 104:5 110:13 111:2 116:5 127:20 130:1 138:5,18 139:1,19 141:21 143:22 146:1 152:4 157:16 158:13 173:10, 15,16 178:16 186:18 191:25 195:17 198:22 205:14 208:21 221:8 224:22 227:17 229:13	<b>ghetto</b> 127:20	<b>Global</b> 23:10 25:20,22 27:25	<b>God</b> 206:2	112:11, 12,13,20 113:20 118:23 120:23 124:16 135:1 140:13 141:5,20 152:9 153:4,7, 15,17 154:9 155:19 156:4 181:22 189:11 191:5 193:25 197:8 200:9 201:20 203:1 206:15,16 211:3 212:23 213:8 220:7 221:7 223:24 224:5,6, 7,8 227:16
<b>general</b> 4:22 11:15 69:18,20, 25 70:3 80:10 133:6	<b>get</b> 4:5 8:14 10:19 17:4,9, 13,19 18:4 23:7 29:14 34:1 36:2 38:8 39:3,5 43:7 48:2 49:12,20, 24 61:2 69:10 75:4 80:23 81:9 90:4 98:8 104:5 110:13 111:2 116:5 127:20 130:1 138:5,18 139:1,19 141:21 143:22 146:1 152:4 157:16 158:13 173:10, 15,16 178:16 186:18 191:25 195:17 198:22 205:14 208:21 221:8 224:22 227:17 229:13	<b>Giardina</b> 70:6,9	<b>go</b> 4:4 5:7 9:18,19 16:19,24, 25 35:20 39:9 43:1,22 44:4,25 49:3,7 56:17,25 57:6 73:5 76:14 78:16 81:25 85:18 92:2 98:4,8 112:12,20 116:14 118:5 130:9 132:12 136:6 137:5 138:6 147:9 154:9 174:10 182:4 183:16 188:12 198:21 204:13	<b>God</b> 206:2	112:11, 12,13,20 113:20 118:23 120:23 124:16 135:1 140:13 141:5,20 152:9 153:4,7, 15,17 154:9 155:19 156:4 181:22 189:11 191:5 193:25 197:8 200:9 201:20 203:1 206:15,16 211:3 212:23 213:8 220:7 221:7 223:24 224:5,6, 7,8 227:16
<b>generally</b> 220:24	<b>get</b> 4:5 8:14 10:19 17:4,9, 13,19 18:4 23:7 29:14 34:1 36:2 38:8 39:3,5 43:7 48:2 49:12,20, 24 61:2 69:10 75:4 80:23 81:9 90:4 98:8 104:5 110:13 111:2 116:5 127:20 130:1 138:5,18 139:1,19 141:21 143:22 146:1 152:4 157:16 158:13 173:10, 15,16 178:16 186:18 191:25 195:17 198:22 205:14 208:21 221:8 224:22 227:17 229:13	<b>girl</b> 218:9	<b>go</b> 4:4 5:7 9:18,19 16:19,24, 25 35:20 39:9 43:1,22 44:4,25 49:3,7 56:17,25 57:6 73:5 76:14 78:16 81:25 85:18 92:2 98:4,8 112:12,20 116:14 118:5 130:9 132:12 136:6 137:5 138:6 147:9 154:9 174:10 182:4 183:16 188:12 198:21 204:13	<b>God</b> 206:2	112:11, 12,13,20 113:20 118:23 120:23 124:16 135:1 140:13 141:5,20 152:9 153:4,7, 15,17 154:9 155:19 156:4 181:22 189:11 191:5 193:25 197:8 200:9 201:20 203:1 206:15,16 211:3 212:23 213:8 220:7 221:7 223:24 224:5,6, 7,8 227:16
<b>gentleman</b> 18:5 49:8 59:13,15 99:24	<b>get</b> 4:5 8:14 10:19 17:4,9, 13,19 18:4 23:7 29:14 34:1 36:2 38:8 39:3,5 43:7 48:2 49:12,20, 24 61:2 69:10 75:4 80:23 81:9 90:4 98:8 104:5 110:13 111:2 116:5 127:20 130:1 138:5,18 139:1,19 141:21 143:22 146:1 152:4 157:16 158:13 173:10, 15,16 178:16 186:18 191:25 195:17 198:22 205:14 208:21 221:8 224:22 227:17 229:13	<b>give</b> 5:16 35:25 72:10 89:5 117:10,11 132:11 141:21 144:18 146:11 219:22 228:3	<b>Global</b> 23:10 25:20,22 27:25	<b>God</b> 206:2	112:11, 12,13,20 113:20 118:23 120:23 124:16 135:1 140:13 141:5,20 152:9 153:4,7, 15,17 154:9 155:19 156:4 181:22 189:11 191:5 193:25 197:8 200:9 201:20 203:1 206:15,16 211:3 212:23 213:8 220:7 221:7 223:24 224:5,6, 7,8 227:16
<b>gentlemen</b> 25:8,11 26:3 29:8 61:7,10, 19 64:4 65:4 66:1,3 68:14 69:1 71:16 169:1 229:10	<b>get</b> 4:5 8:14 10:19 17:4,9, 13,19 18:4 23:7 29:14 34:1 36:2 38:8 39:3,5 43:7 48:2 49:12,20, 24 61:2 69:10 75:4 80:23 81:9 90:4 98:8 104:5 110:13 111:2 116:5 127:20 130:1 138:5,18 139:1,19 141:21 143:22 146:1 152:4 157:16 158:13 173:10, 15,16 178:16 186:18 191:25 195:17 198:22 205:14 208:21 221:8 224:22 227:17 229:13	<b>given</b> 7:19 10:20 38:14 57:22 113:25 175:19 185:10,20 188:19 204:22 209:14 225:10	<b>Global</b> 23:10 25:20,22 27:25	<b>God</b> 206:2	112:11, 12,13,20 113:20 118:23 120:23 124:16 135:1 140:13 141:5,20 152:9 153:4,7, 15,17 154:9 155:19 156:4 181:22 189:11 191:5 193:25 197:8 200:9 201:20 203:1 206:15,16 211:3 212:23 213:8 220:7 221:7 223:24 224:5,6, 7,8 227:16
<b>Gentry</b> 173:21,22 183:17	<b>get</b> 4:5 8:14 10:19 17:4,9, 13,19 18:4 23:7 29:14 34:1 36:2 38:8 39:3,5 43:7 48:2 49:12,20, 24 61:2 69:10 75:4 80:23 81:9 90:4 98:8 104:5 110:13 111:2 116:5 127:20 130:1 138:5,18 139:1,19 141:21 143:22 146:1 152:4 157:16 158:13 173:10, 15,16 178:16 186:18 191:25 195:17 198:22 205:14 208:21 221:8 224:22 227:17 229:13	<b>giving</b> 140:6 145:21	<b>Global</b> 23:10 25:20,22 27:25	<b>God</b> 206:2	112:11, 12,13,20 113:20 118:23 120:23 124:16 135:1 140:13 141:5,20 152:9 153:4,7, 15,17 154:9 155:19 156:4 181:22 189:11 191:5 193:25 197:8 200:9 201:20 203:1 206:15,16 211:3 212:23 213:8 220:7 221:7 223:24 224:5,6, 7,8 227:16

51:3	154:7	106:8,13	<b>governor 's</b>	<b>Green</b>	67:5 68:3
52:5,10,	155:15	110:10,12	223:12,21	120:5,6	70:20
14,17	156:3,16	112:6	<b>gracious</b>	154:14	71:12
54:19	157:10	115:23,25	227:1	<b>Greenligh</b>	72:13,16,
56:6	158:16	116:4	<b>grand</b>	<b>t</b>	21,25
59:24,25	160:24	119:21	170:3	29:24	73:3
61:19	161:1,5,6	121:15	<b>grant</b>	31:2,9,23	76:4,9
64:4,8	163:16,17	127:10	106:24	<b>Gregory</b>	79:13
65:3	165:3,6,7	128:10	107:7	130:21	80:15,18,
66:3,4	167:5,7,	132:9,24,	111:9	<b>grew</b>	21 81:11,
68:6,12,	10 168:23	25 134:9	118:17	48:21	16 82:4,
13,14	173:18	135:19,21	129:13	127:18	22 83:16,
71:16,19,	174:13,14	140:8	148:7	<b>groceries</b>	22 85:7
20 72:14,	177:7,9,	144:20,23	157:25	157:15	92:9,14,
15 73:7,8	10 178:1,	146:8,9,	159:25	<b>Gronauer</b>	17,19,23
76:21	2 180:12	23 151:20	160:13	4:17,18	93:6,11
78:16	182:1,10,	159:19	161:18	8:20,24	95:18,23
79:17,22,	14 185:4	170:21	162:23	13:3,5,10	98:24
23 80:16,	187:12,22	178:13	164:15	15:10,16	99:10
17 82:22,	188:1	179:10	166:14	16:10,20,	103:13
24 84:2	192:4	182:3	179:19	22 18:18,	104:1
85:11,20	193:18	188:11,	180:9	25 19:3,	106:23
86:14,15,	194:11,12	21,23	181:9	8,11,20,	107:1,12
16 87:24,	197:15	192:9	208:9	22 20:6,	109:16,
25 88:1	207:8,12,	195:2,3,	209:25	18,23	19,21
93:18	13 209:1,	18 198:8,	215:7	21:1,4,8,	110:17,
94:1,3,4	3 210:15	17 201:19	217:10	11,13	20,24
96:11,12,	217:23	202:7	<b>granted</b>	23:3 29:4	111:3,13,
19,20	<b>Goodman</b>	206:25	33:20	32:10	19 112:15
97:19,20	48:11	212:24	66:19	35:5,11	113:11,16
99:21	<b>got</b>	220:1	<b>granting</b>	37:5,8,	119:6
100:11,13	24:17,22	221:18	168:6	11,13,15,	124:1,12
101:20,21	48:21	224:15	<b>gratitude</b>	18,21	129:22
106:6,7	53:5 55:9	228:25	225:18	38:8,14,	140:21
108:18	57:5	<b>Gotcha</b>	<b>great</b>	18,23	141:1
109:1,2,	60:10	130:10	45:10	39:13,19	145:16
4,17,18	68:24	<b>gotten</b>	50:25	40:8 41:1	148:16
113:22,23	69:11	196:10,11	52:4	45:3,20	153:20
115:6,7	70:17	198:20	104:8	46:4,15	154:1
120:1,2,	72:11	<b>governmen</b>	123:14	50:14,18,	155:6,11
9,10	77:20	<b>t</b>	124:25	21 51:9	158:4,9
124:20,23	81:10,18	5:21	167:4	52:1	160:4,9
127:21	88:16	47:20	<b>governor</b>	54:10,15	163:9
130:14,25	89:25	<b>governor</b>	223:10	59:5	164:25
131:1,25	90:24	225:18	225:18	63:25	166:23
141:16	99:24	226:3,5	226:3,5	66:2,5,7,	168:17
147:5,14,	102:1,10,			16,21,24	173:1,6
15	12 103:3				174:8
148:20,23	105:13				176:16,21
149:19					180:3

181:14,19	53:19	119:20	37:24	<b>having</b>	12:15,20
182:6,7, 10,14	<b>guard</b>	124:22	<b>handled</b>	11:20	19:9
183:12	36:21	142:5	8:21	12:11	27:22
184:15	60:9 69:6	147:4	37:25	33:20	34:8
191:16,21	97:25	155:15	206:5	48:19	45:18
195:11, 20,24	170:24	161:1	<b>hang</b>	49:22	58:11
196:24	173:16	167:9	91:6	81:2,5	67:8
197:4	<b>guards</b>	180:11,13	103:2	120:14	69:14
203:12	48:3	202:2	118:4	125:4	75:19
208:13,18	69:21	203:23	126:23	133:3	78:21
210:4,9	<b>Guardup</b>	204:4	133:22	<b>he'd</b>	83:3
215:13,18	59:21	205:11	135:5	147:24	84:19
217:20	63:11	208:24	189:2	<b>headquart</b>	95:11
218:17	<b>guess</b>	216:9	204:5	<b>er</b>	103:11
219:5,8, 23 220:1, 4,9,13, 17,20	38:6	217:1	205:12	5:24	106:21
222:5,10, 24	40:20	223:20	<b>hanging</b>	<b>health</b>	111:6
224:21,25	53:21	228:24,25	151:7	224:9	118:14
225:11, 13,17,25	137:10	<b>H</b>	<b>happen</b>	<b>hear</b>	123:24
226:2,19	151:25	<b>H-U-T-C-</b>	12:19	9:21	129:10
228:2,7, 14,22	152:1	<b>H-I-S-O-N</b>	137:25	19:18	135:2
229:1	195:17	30:20	<b>happened</b>	32:18	142:9
<b>gross</b>	224:2	<b>habitus</b>	37:17	41:11	145:3
147:21	230:2	100:18	44:12	109:3	148:4
156:24	<b>guest</b>	<b>hadn't</b>	57:14	139:12	153:12
<b>group</b>	6:11	225:15	61:23	151:18	157:22
18:5	<b>guilt</b>	<b>half</b>	132:8,18	152:22	159:22
19:13,23	187:23	65:18	144:14	188:14	162:20
21:21	<b>Gulf</b>	100:23	146:18	190:1	164:12
22:14	55:8	166:2	157:17	192:7	168:3
23:10	<b>gun</b>	202:15	179:6	203:18	172:19
25:19,21	110:13	<b>hand</b>	199:19	229:7	176:9
27:25	<b>guy</b>	13:22	204:20	<b>heard</b>	179:16
29:23	60:2 69:6	40:1	225:16	25:1	181:6
31:1,2,3, 9,22 33:2	144:14	64:11	<b>happy</b>	41:12	182:19
50:13	152:23	85:21	142:5	43:13	191:9
60:24	202:16	151:13	180:13	58:4	196:17
72:5,6	<b>guys</b>	156:5	205:21	102:15	202:23
154:21,22	9:4 14:19	172:12	<b>hard</b>	128:25	208:6
<b>groups</b>	34:5 52:5	193:19,24	49:12	135:21	209:22
	54:19	213:16	133:3	139:11	215:4
	105:17	<b>handcuffs</b>	229:16	154:6	217:7
	107:22	189:19	<b>Harvey</b>	170:18	<b>hearsay</b>
	114:2	<b>handle</b>	142:7	218:11, 23,24	103:5
	116:2,3	8:25	<b>hat's</b>	226:25	<b>Heather</b>
	118:12		229:6	<b>hearing</b>	34:17,24
				5:15 8:1	<b>held</b>
					77:7

<b>Hello</b>	22:7,8	147:8,11,	<b>hereby</b>	88:15	57:17
47:12	23:16	18 148:1	13:23	89:17,21	179:7,8
104:10,11	25:8	149:1,16	40:2	96:25	<b>homeless</b>
142:8	27:4,13	151:16,19	64:12	97:22	55:23
148:22,23	29:25	152:15	85:23	100:18	115:16,17
158:18,19	30:4,16	154:14,	156:6	101:23	<b>homeowner</b>
167:9	32:21	16,18,20,	194:1	102:22	138:3
169:2	33:13,25	22 155:2	213:19	115:9	<b>homework</b>
180:16,17	36:22	156:18	<b>Herzegovi</b>	117:4	205:1,7,
216:5,6	39:21	157:4,15	<b>na</b>	118:25	9,15
<b>help</b>	49:2	158:20	6:22 7:6	121:13	<b>honest</b>
48:3 62:4	50:24	159:8	<b>Hey</b>	122:6	56:19
76:14	52:14	160:20	94:2	126:12	<b>honestly</b>
98:11	55:16,20	161:3,16	117:5,15	132:3	111:1
99:16	56:19	162:7	<b>Hi</b>	138:8	157:14
102:1	59:22	163:15,19	65:7	139:10	178:21
104:7	60:11,18	164:5	105:16	143:5,22	213:20
117:16	61:7	165:9,20	147:15	149:21	<b>honesty</b>
127:20	66:10,15,	167:13,	<b>hide</b>	163:24	74:14
141:16	20 68:7	15,24	119:15,20	164:4	<b>Hong</b>
144:24	69:11,17	169:7	<b>high</b>	169:10	6:19
145:23	70:3,16	171:20	65:22	170:9,11	<b>honor</b>
171:14	72:2 77:9	174:5,20	98:6	176:13	5:11
173:15	86:18	177:12	<b>higher</b>	181:10	<b>hope</b>
177:3	89:20	179:3	84:12	185:5	120:3
197:13	90:3,23	180:22	227:14	188:16	229:14
206:21	93:25	183:17,19	<b>highly</b>	191:13	<b>hopefully</b>
211:6,21	94:6,19	184:2,7,	71:25	198:9,16	36:22
<b>helped</b>	96:22	22 185:2	<b>highway</b>	200:8,10	174:5
161:3	97:23,24	189:13	72:18	203:3	<b>hoping</b>
199:2	98:10	190:9	<b>hire</b>	217:12	12:4
229:13	99:25	192:21	153:6	<b>hit</b>	110:13
<b>helpful</b>	100:4,15	197:21	196:12	131:25	<b>hospitali</b>
76:17	104:13	199:14	<b>hired</b>	<b>hit-and-</b>	<b>ty</b>
92:21	109:6	204:9	69:24	<b>run</b>	65:17
199:1	110:4	205:8,14	152:23	212:6	<b>host</b>
<b>hence</b>	112:22,	207:15	196:12	<b>hits</b>	65:19
77:5	23,25	209:5,15	207:5	49:24	<b>hours</b>
<b>Henderson</b>	113:3,7	211:24	<b>history</b>	<b>holding</b>	149:5
100:20	114:4,8	212:9,10	46:7	152:7	159:3
<b>here</b>	120:12	214:20,23	73:10,13	<b>holiday</b>	175:8
4:11,13,	122:23	216:16	74:6	142:5	<b>house</b>
15,18	125:2	217:4	75:25	208:25	
5:13,14	127:8	219:6,9	87:2	180:13	
9:7 12:9	131:3	220:2	<b>here's</b>	<b>home</b>	
17:2,22	133:7	222:15,21	204:20		
21:22	134:22,25				
	135:1				
	139:7				
	142:9,11				

66:12	16:21	46:22	226:17	16:9 17:4	67:2,14,
67:2	150:14	47:1	227:16	18:21	23 69:4,
127:22	<b>hundreds</b>	49:20,21,	229:5	19:16	9,18,19,
199:16	6:1	24 51:13	<b>Ignacio</b>	20:2,16	20,22
<b>how</b>	<b>husband</b>	53:11,22	197:18	22:16	70:14,24
6:10,11	49:22	57:14,22	<b>illegal</b>	23:1,25	71:10,24
16:24	<b>Hussein's</b>	59:18	169:9	26:17	72:2,10
27:3	6:4	61:25	174:22	29:2 31:2	74:25
39:11	<b>Hutchison</b>	63:8	192:23	32:8	76:7
80:23	29:25	64:6,10	197:23	33:7,8,10	77:4,7,9,
84:6	30:1,3,8,	65:24	<b>illegally</b>	35:8	11,24
87:24	19,22,24	70:18,22	186:7	36:13,16,	79:2,11,
88:2	31:1,20,	76:15	<b>Illinois</b>	22 37:11,	25 80:24
91:19	23 32:15	85:21	163:22	19,23	81:14
94:2		92:2,25	<b>images</b>	38:2,5,	83:19
110:20	<b>I</b>	98:21	14:16	16,20,22	84:13
124:22,24		99:17	<b>immediate</b>	39:2,5,	85:5,16,
132:9		100:1	<b>ly</b>	21,22	17,23,25
134:24	<b>ICOJ</b>	105:20	36:1	40:13,15	88:2,3,
135:19	135:12	108:5	228:7	42:6,13,	10,12,17
152:17,22	136:3,4	110:9,14	<b>importing</b>	19,21	89:3,11,
153:3,7	<b>idea</b>	115:19,20	/	43:3,7	14,19
166:1	49:9	117:11	<b>exporting</b>	45:25	90:3,6,7,
167:9	50:9,24	119:11	212:3	46:13	22 91:16
168:25	60:22	138:5,14,	<b>impressio</b>	47:18,22,	92:2 93:9
178:20	219:11	15 140:10	<b>n</b>	23 48:11,	95:1,2,21
179:11	227:9	141:22	26:16	12,13	96:2,5
188:21	<b>if</b>	145:25	73:12	49:10,17	97:3
199:3	5:1 8:11,	146:25	<b>impressiv</b>	50:1,17	98:1,8
202:13	13 9:4	152:4	<b>e</b>	51:14,24	99:8,14,
211:16	13:16,21	156:5	92:17,19	52:20	18,25
<b>however</b>	14:19,23	166:11	106:16	53:3,8,	100:20,25
41:15	15:2,3	171:23	<b>in</b>	12,15,20	101:6
187:22	16:15,17	172:2	5:19,20,	54:3,13	102:2,8
198:15	17:13,19	186:16,17	22 6:6,	55:7,14,	103:21,24
204:25	18:20	187:19,22	13,16,18,	16,17,20,	104:6
221:24	19:4,9,15	189:18	19,20,21	23 56:2,	105:17,
224:14	20:1	193:18,23	7:6,8,9,	14,16	19,24
227:3	25:3,7	195:17,25	10,14,16	57:16,17	107:10
<b>HR</b>	31:15	197:25	9:17,25	58:16	110:6
48:15	33:2	199:3	11:3,15,	59:1,13	111:17
<b>Hughes</b>	35:20,23	203:18	22 13:8,	60:2,11	113:14
180:15,	39:6,10,	204:13	17,25	61:8,9	114:2,3,
17,19,22	21 40:2,	211:3,10	14:13,23	63:3,14,	4,14,15
181:5,9,	18 42:11	212:20,23		23 64:6,	118:6,23
25	43:11	213:8,9,		7,14	119:4
<b>Huh</b>	45:8,24	15 214:10		65:9,11,	120:18
		219:18		17,18,22	121:16,17
		220:11,14		66:9,11,	122:21
		223:20		14,18	123:3,8



124:10, 17,18 125:10,17 126:12 127:18 128:11,24 129:20 131:9,11, 13,14 132:19,20 133:9,17, 20,24 134:2,10, 22,25 135:6,10, 11,13 136:13, 15,16,17, 21 138:12 140:14,24 141:6,22, 25 143:10, 16,23 144:9,14, 19 145:14, 21,22,25 146:2,11, 18 147:22 148:14 149:4,12 151:11, 12,17,19 152:9 153:24 154:5 155:9,23, 24,25 156:2,4, 9,22 158:7,24 160:7 161:19 162:1,2 163:7,22, 23 164:1, 23 165:12, 13,16	166:1,21 167:10, 18,19 168:15 169:3,12, 13,16 170:10, 20,25 171:6 172:12,13 173:4,17 174:8,16, 24 175:12 176:19 177:2,18 178:24 179:3 180:1,18 181:17 183:1,10 184:13 186:23 187:25 188:24,25 189:19 190:7,9 191:19 192:1,3 193:5,6, 12,16,20, 21 194:3 195:3,19 197:2,9 198:13 199:14 200:5,17 201:8,18, 20 202:10, 11,15 203:10 204:7,9, 11,14,18, 20 205:13, 15,18 206:5,10, 14,22 207:4 208:16	209:10,11 210:7 211:4,10 212:4,6 213:9,21, 23 215:16,24 216:10,23 217:18 218:17 219:6,9 220:2,10 221:23,25 222:8,16 223:10, 18,23,24, 25 224:4, 11,12,15 225:9,17 226:7,13, 16 228:12 229:1  <b>inappropriate</b> 205:16  <b>inaudible</b> 8:9 21:18 35:15 54:23 112:18 211:20  <b>Inc</b> 22:14 27:25 28:2 53:25  <b>incarcerated</b> 89:22  <b>incident</b> 37:16,18 72:17 116:13 117:25 128:4 129:1,2 135:6	143:10 179:1,6 186:3  <b>incidents</b> 90:19 96:7  <b>include</b> 15:1 103:20  <b>included</b> 226:11  <b>includes</b> 102:14 171:22  <b>including</b> 6:2 118:11  <b>income</b> 128:1 179:4  <b>inconvenience</b> 21:2,3  <b>Incorporated</b> 58:18  <b>increase</b> 49:23 223:11 225:5 226:9,20 227:14, 18,22 228:4,25  <b>increases</b> 227:16,17  <b>incredible</b> 48:16  <b>indeed</b> 205:10  <b>indicated</b> 16:3	88:15 201:23  <b>indicating</b> 78:4 122:12  <b>indicted</b> 195:17  <b>indiscernible</b> 90:11 104:19 107:18  <b>individual</b> 7:9 19:15,25 20:1 22:16 45:23,25 51:13,14 58:14,15 63:13 70:22,23 79:1 83:12 84:22 152:8 198:12 200:2,5 203:4 205:2,10  <b>individually</b> 12:10  <b>individuals</b> 51:7 173:13  <b>industry</b> 65:17 84:13  <b>industrial</b> 19:16	<b>influence</b> 72:20,22 198:6  <b>information</b> 8:3 22:7 24:24 25:19 27:16 31:7 38:15 39:12 40:17,18 41:20 75:5 76:15 90:8 116:2 122:11 126:9 138:7,9 139:4 140:17 141:21 145:22 147:2 150:9,22 173:15 177:4 182:7,11, 15 186:16 197:13 204:21 205:13 212:25  <b>initial</b> 75:11 138:12 203:21  <b>initiative</b> 48:16  <b>injured</b> 48:6  <b>inmate</b> 37:24
---	---	---	--	--	---

<b>inquired</b> 69:7	151:5	60:10 64:5 84:11 89:25 92:3 144:24 182:2 186:11 198:21 223:21 227:3	<b>investiga tor</b> 9:18,20, 23 10:8 11:10 14:12,14, 15,19,22 22:15 23:12,14, 19 24:4, 13 25:18, 21,25 26:15,23, 25 27:3 31:6,8 34:12,15, 16 39:16, 20 40:4, 5,9,11, 12,22 41:18,21 42:7,23 43:21 44:6,22 45:1 56:10,15 62:19,21 65:8,9,16 67:12,13 68:17,22 70:22,24 71:24 75:6,10, 24 77:4,6 78:7,10, 12 79:20 80:25 81:17 82:4,5, 13,14,18 83:12 86:17,19, 20,24 87:12,20 88:12 90:11,20, 22 91:3, 7,10 92:12,18, 21 94:5,	7,12 96:21,23 100:14,16 103:4 104:12, 14,22 105:9,12 109:5,7 114:7,10, 25 116:6, 9,12,22 117:2,6, 9,18,24 118:8 120:11,13 122:5,7, 14 123:11 125:1,3, 7,23 126:3,5, 7,10 127:2,6 128:23 131:2,4 132:13, 16,22 133:10, 12,18,24 134:4 137:4 138:7,11, 20,23 140:2,6 142:3,10, 12 146:10 147:16, 17,19 148:25 149:2 150:21,24 151:10 156:17,19 157:7 158:20,22 161:15,17 162:12,15 163:18,20 164:4 165:8,10 167:14,16	169:6,8, 16 170:6, 8 174:3, 19,21 177:11,13 180:21,23 182:23,25 185:1,3, 13,17,19 187:1,9 188:6,8 192:6,20, 22 195:4, 6,12,14 197:20,22 207:14,16 208:2 209:4,6, 19 211:20, 23,25 212:16, 20,22,23 213:11, 14,17,22, 23 214:2, 7,16,18, 19,21 216:13, 14,17,22 218:10, 13,24 221:23 225:7
<b>instances</b> 90:22	<b>intereste d</b> 72:9	<b>introduce</b> 48:8			
<b>instead</b> 219:12	<b>interesti ng</b> 49:7 80:7	<b>introduce d</b> 61:12			
<b>institute s</b> 53:7	<b>intern</b> 84:5,23	<b>Intuit</b> 55:15			
<b>instrumen t</b> 187:5,7	<b>internal</b> 40:19	<b>invasion</b> 179:7,8			
<b>insurance</b> 121:1 224:10	<b>internati onal</b> 5:20 6:15	<b>investiga te</b> 65:23			
<b>Intellige nce</b> 5:22	<b>interns</b> 72:1,9	<b>investiga tion</b> 40:19 49:1,5 69:8 89:3			
<b>intense</b> 49:1	<b>interpret</b> 214:5	<b>investiga tions</b> 6:16,21, 22 7:5,7, 8 10:21, 24 64:20 65:21 67:11 88:25			
<b>intent</b> 131:12 152:19 156:21 157:13 169:24	<b>interpret ation</b> 212:24 213:4,12 214:10	<b>investiga tive</b> 21:21 22:14 65:11 72:5,6 80:12			
<b>intention</b> 52:16 65:10	<b>interpret er</b> 211:2,4, 11,14 213:8,24 214:3				
<b>intention s</b> 33:3 36:19 47:16 55:5 56:25 60:6 65:5 67:2 69:2 71:22 77:1 80:6 84:10	<b>interrupt ion</b> 39:18 213:5				
<b>interacti on</b> 150:23	<b>interstat e</b> 136:5 137:20 138:9				
	<b>into</b> 45:13 46:23 55:9 57:19,23				
					<b>investiga tor's</b> 78:25 79:1
					<b>investiga tors</b> 4:1 102:13
					<b>Invictus</b> 47:21
					<b>involve</b> 127:9

<b>involved</b>	10, 20, 21, 23, 24, 25	6, 7, 8, 10, 11 111:23	161:10 165:22	223:17, 24 224:12,	191:1 196:12
38:24	44:2, 6,	112:9	170:22	13, 14, 16,	203:2
140:1	14, 22, 25	113:2, 8,	171:7, 16,	17 225:5,	205:16
229:1	45:5	25 114:1,	17, 20, 21	7, 10, 12,	210:24
<b>Iraq</b>	46:18	3, 4	172:2, 3,	18 226:23	211:3, 10
47:19	49:6 50:2	115:11,	9, 13	227:1, 3	220:24
65:19	54:3	13, 18	174:5	229:7, 8,	221:8
<b>issue</b>	56:9, 11,	116:4, 5	175:1	12	225:9
10:19	12, 13, 24	118:1, 7,	178:10, 13	<b>it's</b>	<b>item</b>
25:2 61:6	57:5, 7,	11	179:2, 3,	5:11 15:3	9:11
98:17	17, 20	119:14,	4, 5, 7, 10,	18:14	12:16, 23
99:17	58:5 59:8	15, 21	11 181:3	26:2	14:6, 10
141:13	62:1, 2, 3	121:2, 17,	183:1	33:22, 23	15:23
203:17, 20	64:25	18, 20	184:2, 7	36:20	16:19, 25
<b>issued</b>	69:17, 20	123:6, 8,	185:9	39:6, 9	17:8, 20
10:23	70:17	14, 20	186:5	40:21	21:9, 21,
11:3	72:11	124:16	187:3, 4,	41:6	24 23:8
93:15	73:15	125:7, 17,	6, 10	42:2, 6	29:22
133:25	74:7, 8	18	188:4, 5,	43:7, 11,	32:17, 19
223:11	75:3, 12	126:17, 19	8, 9, 11, 18	14 44:3,	35:19
<b>issues</b>	76:24	127:8, 10	189:4, 5,	7, 21	36:4 47:6
45:4 58:6	77:20	128:25	7, 9, 15	45:8, 9, 10	52:7
76:1 81:2	78:14, 15	130:6	191:5	49:21	59:21
166:3	80:2, 23	131:19	192:12	50:21, 24,	64:20
<b>it</b>	81:13, 23	132:5, 6,	194:19, 23	25 56:14	68:10
8:3, 20, 25	82:5, 15	12, 15, 17,	195:17	57:6, 21	71:18
10:5	84:12	22, 23, 24,	196:2, 6,	62:5 63:1	79:19
11:11, 19	87:4	25 133:3,	10	65:14	86:6, 7
12:1	88:10, 22	7, 8, 12, 25	198:15,	74:8 80:2	93:22, 24
15:1, 2	89:8	134:3, 4, 9	22, 25	89:4	96:13, 14,
17:6, 24	90:11, 24	136:17	200:4, 6,	99:17	17 100:9
22:9	91:19	138:12	14, 20	103:5	104:9
24:17, 22,	92:3	140:2, 8	201:5, 19,	104:15	108:19,
23 25:6	94:25	141:11,	24, 25	108:3	22, 25
26:5, 10,	95:1, 3, 4,	13, 25	202:2, 7	111:23	112:23, 25
16, 17, 18	8 96:7, 15	142:18, 19	204:7, 8,	123:8	113:1, 20
27:6, 10	98:9, 16	143:22, 23	14, 15, 22,	125:8	120:4, 8
30:5, 9	100:1, 21	144:10,	25 205:5,	127:8	124:21
34:5	101:3, 25	14, 19, 20,	17, 19, 22	128:4, 10	130:18,
37:1, 17	102:1, 6,	22, 25	206:5, 22	134:2	21, 24
38:4, 6, 8,	10, 12, 15,	146:6, 18	211:4	141:12, 13	142:7
10, 12, 18	18, 23	150:4, 12,	214:10	154:12	147:7, 13
39:6, 7, 8	105:13	13 152:2	219:13,	155:18	148:21
40:16	106:2, 12	153:5	17, 20, 25	171:12,	154:13,
41:6, 24	107:21	154:8, 22	220:5, 11,	13, 15, 16	15, 17, 19
42:5, 8, 9	108:11, 13	155:3	14, 22	176:2	155:22
43:2, 6,	109:12,	157:17	221:4, 13,	178:8, 9	156:14
	20, 23, 25	158:25	16, 18	187:5, 7	158:17
	110:4, 5,	159:19	222:1, 21		

161:7	76:22	7,9,12,	171:5,25	29:16	62:18
163:14	78:24	15,24	172:4,7,	<b>Juan</b>	68:15
165:5	<b>Ivory</b>	137:9,14,	9,12,16,	113:21	69:7,16
167:8	210:16	18,21,23	18	147:10	70:13,15
168:24	219:2	139:3,5,	173:11,18	154:19	72:5,8,10
173:21,24		13,16,18,	<b>Jesus</b>	<b>judgment</b>	74:2
174:2,12	<b>J</b>	20 140:18	52:11	56:11	81:18
177:8		141:10,	<b>Jimmy</b>	187:10	82:24
180:15	<b>J.P.</b>	15,18,23	210:19	209:8	85:15
182:5,9,	28:4	142:2,5	219:3	219:12	87:9
17	<b>jail</b>	<b>Japan</b>	<b>job</b>	<b>Judiciary</b>	88:7,16,
183:16,	36:12	6:20	6:7 33:24	7:13	24 89:4,
18,20	97:10,12	<b>Jaqobi</b>	57:15	<b>July</b>	25 95:7
184:1,19	101:12	108:25	91:18	10:5,10	96:6
192:5,16	105:19	<b>Jason</b>	92:5	224:12	97:23
197:18	125:10,14	32:21	152:5	226:10	98:17
207:10	149:6,12	33:5	166:5	<b>June</b>	102:15,18
209:2	162:1	34:17,25	226:22	52:20	103:7
210:19,	169:12,	64:21	229:10	<b>just</b>	108:10
20,21	19,21,23	65:15	<b>jobs</b>	6:14	110:13
213:21	193:2,9	67:16	196:11	11:14,25	113:24
218:5,22	201:8,14	<b>Jeff</b>	206:18	14:11,24	114:2,4
219:1,2,	202:15	65:7	<b>Johnson</b>	17:13	115:12,13
3,4	209:10	<b>Jeffrey</b>	158:17,	20:23	116:2,5,
221:20	<b>James</b>	23:11	18,21	23:6	8,20
223:2	5:11	24:11	159:10,	24:10,19	117:25
<b>items</b>	148:21	28:4	12,14,17,	25:5	118:6,11
13:21	168:24	29:18	25	31:3,12	121:22
14:6,7	<b>Jan</b>	64:21	160:14,	32:22	122:9
15:7,8	31:2,3	67:12	18,20,23	33:2 34:1	127:14
16:3,15	<b>janitor</b>	93:24	161:1	35:23	128:24
18:4	206:25	147:7	<b>Jonathan</b>	36:3 38:6	130:2
32:16	<b>Jankins</b>	154:17	165:5	40:17,20	133:2
113:4,6	130:24,25	<b>Jenkins</b>	<b>Jones</b>	41:1,5	134:4
155:1	131:3,5,	100:9	174:2	43:1,21,	136:12
184:5	19,20,21,	<b>Jennings</b>	183:20	23 44:7,	138:4,18
212:13,14	22,25	100:9,10,	218:22	13,22	141:13
218:7	132:4,23	13,15,17	219:2,8	45:13	150:13
221:1	133:5,14,	101:20,	221:9,12,	48:1,6	155:16
222:14,19	21 134:6,	21,24	20,22,25	50:19,24	157:5,14,
223:1	13,14,17,	102:5	<b>Jose</b>	51:6	16 162:12
223:1	20,23	103:1,14	54:5	53:14	169:3
229:19	135:1,4,	168:24,25	<b>Joseph</b>	55:16	171:19
<b>itself</b>	8,11,13,	169:4,7	23:10	56:19	172:3
38:20	15,19	170:16,	24:2 28:2	57:6 58:7	173:12
48:1	136:1,4,	18,20		59:15	174:3,15
127:14				61:12	176:2
187:18					189:4,13
<b>iunited</b>					191:5
					192:8

193:15	89:6,25	122:13	84:14	<b>Las</b>	<b>laws</b>
195:5	102:22	123:19,21	<b>Kong</b>	10:24	138:6
198:19	117:17	124:17	6:19	36:23	<b>lawsuit</b>
199:24	128:20	137:9	<b>Korfonta</b>	48:21	77:22
201:13,23	133:3	138:15,25	30:2,3	55:20	130:4
203:18,19	136:10	139:5,25	31:13,19,	134:14,17	<b>lead</b>
204:15	137:16,19	141:12	20 32:1	156:21	39:22
209:17	<b>knew</b>	143:7,9,		<b>last</b>	50:7
212:12	61:25	19 144:8,		6:23 7:1,	<b>leader</b>
214:14	110:9	9,20	<b>L</b>	2,3 18:12	56:1
219:5,10,	139:18	153:2		38:12	<b>learning</b>
11	<b>knife</b>	154:12	<b>L.A.</b>	40:16	84:15
220:13,	104:16	155:18,23	38:4	70:11	<b>lease</b>
14,15,22	<b>know</b>	171:14	<b>la</b>	74:16	66:11
221:6,16	8:14	173:13	52:11	97:24	<b>least</b>
223:20	11:18,23,	174:20	54:5	114:3	66:13
225:18	25 12:7	178:9,14	147:10,11	118:11	119:11
229:15	16:24	179:6	154:19	153:8	220:6
	18:25	186:20	<b>labor</b>	157:16	<b>leave</b>
<b>K</b>	22:5 25:3	189:4	170:3	173:13	16:17,18
	29:14	190:22	<b>Laden</b>	208:1	<b>led</b>
<b>keep</b>	32:23	194:20	6:20	226:7,23	37:17
50:4	34:1	195:17,25	<b>Laden's</b>	229:22	55:15
109:23,25	40:20	198:16,19	6:5	<b>later</b>	<b>Lee</b>
207:3	42:13,14	199:1,18	<b>ladies</b>	64:6	31:2,3
<b>Ken</b>	46:19,24	200:20,22	168:25	112:16	<b>Leek</b>
55:4	49:11	201:16,20	229:10	120:19	23:11,19,
<b>Kenneth</b>	55:1	202:12	<b>lady</b>	125:10	23,24
54:21	56:19	206:23	198:21	132:21	24:16,21
55:1	58:5	213:9	220:20	133:4	<b>left</b>
58:14	59:11	214:9,10	<b>Lakes</b>	139:8	48:13
<b>kept</b>	61:9,11,	215:25	57:17	149:14	50:17
22:16	15 66:14	219:18,23	<b>language</b>	151:4,6	69:7
<b>Kevin</b>	68:6 70:1	220:4,20	69:22	157:2,18	<b>legal</b>
174:12	74:15	221:6	151:6	158:25	80:8
229:7	76:15	223:13,	<b>larceny</b>	161:20	189:23
<b>kidnapping</b>	80:22	14,20	198:5	162:6	190:3
7:11	81:10	224:9,13	<b>large</b>	165:13	<b>legally</b>
<b>kind</b>	92:1	225:22	133:1	170:20	178:15
27:13	93:15	226:25	135:16	204:15	<b>legislati</b>
39:15	109:6	228:21,23	<b>largest</b>	215:9	<b>on</b>
48:2	112:1	229:7,14	55:22	217:11	226:11
49:8,17	115:13,14	<b>knowing</b>		<b>latter</b>	
60:9	116:15,16	62:2		25:5	
87:16	117:15	223:13		<b>law</b>	
	118:12	<b>knowledge</b>		6:9,12,15	
	119:16,	7:15,17		55:9	
	20,21	<b>Known</b>		137:24	

<b>legislative</b>	162:6 165:19 167:23 185:20 188:19 209:12	182:24 183:1 187:20 188:24 190:8,20	77:8 81:2 90:12,14, 16,17 91:19,25 92:22 96:7 109:20 112:17 116:1 119:14 122:9,11 125:17 127:6,25 128:10 132:18 133:13,25 134:2 136:5,19 137:12, 22,25 140:16 144:13 160:16 171:12,13 172:13 178:23 189:6,7 196:5 199:13 215:25 224:13 226:19 229:20	<b>list</b>	9:22 33:3 36:9 47:15 52:15 55:4 60:1,5 61:6 65:5 69:1 71:21 77:1 80:5 84:9 139:25 140:16 143:13 150:22 220:5 227:6
225:21 226:5				74:6 87:7 91:7,10 94:23 98:16 101:14 102:21,24 103:7 117:22 118:18 121:15,18 122:19 123:7,8, 18 124:18 146:12 170:13,18 171:22 172:3 185:9 188:4 189:18	60:1,5 61:6 65:5 69:1 71:21 77:1 80:5 84:9 139:25 140:16 143:13 150:22 220:5 227:6
<b>Leland</b>	23:11 24:11 28:4,13, 14,16 29:17	<b>licensed</b>			
<b>length</b>	62:25	<b>licensee</b>			
<b>less</b>	43:8 193:7	<b>licensees</b>			
<b>lesser</b>	175:15	<b>licensing</b>			
<b>let</b>	41:3 81:25 98:11 109:6 118:12 135:24 138:18,25 174:19 189:13	<b>license</b>			
<b>let's</b>	89:13 120:3 133:22 182:5 183:22 221:5	5:14,16 7:19,22 19:14,15, 16,24,25 20:1 22:15,16 26:11,12 27:25 29:23 31:22 34:23 45:23,24, 25 46:25 47:16 51:12,13, 14 52:16 54:1,3 58:15,16, 18 60:6, 19 62:11 63:12,14 65:6,10 66:19 67:12,13, 14 69:2, 10,11 70:22,24 71:1,22, 24 75:24 77:2,5,7 78:25 79:1,2 80:6 83:12 84:10,23 89:11 149:8,11	4:1 10:25 12:13 17:9 69:22 187:16,22 224:4	<b>life</b>	
<b>letter</b>	33:13,21 34:4 61:21,22 69:18,20 70:1 98:7 130:6 147:25 149:15 152:19,21 157:3 159:7	<b>life-saving</b>			
		<b>like</b>			
		<b>limited</b>			
		<b>limits</b>			
		<b>Linda</b>			
		<b>line</b>			
		<b>linked</b>			
		<b>Lino</b>			
				<b>listed</b>	
				<b>live</b>	
				<b>lived</b>	
				<b>lives</b>	
				<b>living</b>	
				<b>LLC</b>	
				<b>lists</b>	
				<b>litigation</b>	
				<b>little</b>	
					<b>location</b>
					221:10,24

<b>locations</b> 140:7	158:23 165:12	147:6 148:20	92:6,16 93:21	97:14 101:15	19:12 22:3
<b>Lombardo</b> 223:10	<b>lose</b> 16:20,22	154:7 158:16	121:19 123:9,16	105:5,8 109:13	24:19 27:10
<b>long</b> 48:23 57:15 81:1 88:2 110:20 115:11 134:24 154:12 155:18 166:1 171:15 226:18	<b>loss</b> 53:1	160:24 161:6 165:3 167:5,7 168:23 177:7 180:12 182:1 192:4 197:15 207:8 209:1 217:23	131:22 133:21 134:23 136:1,7, 24 137:9, 18,21,23 139:5,13, 16 141:10, 15,23 142:2 165:23 166:4 178:18 180:19	114:21, 23,25 117:21 118:18,24 121:7 125:20, 22,23 127:7 130:3,6 131:16 142:24 148:1 149:15 157:3 159:7 162:7 164:5 165:19 167:24 205:18 209:15 212:9 216:19,22 220:8 229:12	30:9 43:16 50:19 51:10 60:20 69:17 70:21 76:24 81:7 82:9 87:9 89:7 96:6 98:25 103:8 106:24 117:4 124:2 138:5 139:17 141:8 221:4,22 225:15 228:3
<b>longer</b> 74:9 96:15	<b>lost</b> 138:1 218:12 220:1	<b>Lutz</b> 23:11,16 24:11,14 25:12,16 26:6,9 27:8 28:4,13 29:9,17, 20	<b>mad</b> 151:22	164:5 165:19 167:24 205:18 209:15 212:9 216:19,22 220:8 229:12	<b>makes</b> 43:17 50:2
<b>look</b> 56:13 57:19,23 115:20 124:18 146:19 186:17 224:13	<b>lot</b> 41:11,12 42:13 47:19,20 61:9 85:15 141:12 143:17 174:9 219:9 223:24	<b>Luz</b> 52:11 54:5	<b>Madam</b> 4:8 11:16 14:8,25 16:3 17:3 18:1,2 21:7,23 23:22 24:7 25:9 30:11 33:15 59:17,22 69:15 70:10 99:22 107:25 186:14 198:10 199:22 204:19 223:7 229:5	167:24 205:18 209:15 212:9 216:19,22 220:8 229:12	<b>making</b> 12:10 38:21 56:7 74:22 219:12
<b>looked</b> 160:16	<b>loud</b> 169:22 170:1	<b>LVMPD</b> 10:24 18:20,21, 24 138:16	<b>mail</b> 98:8 179:4	212:9 216:19,22 220:8 229:12	<b>managemen</b> <b>t</b> 55:14 56:2 114:22
<b>looking</b> 6:6 33:10 49:19 51:2 62:3 66:10,12 84:15 89:20 171:24 224:3	<b>low</b> 127:25	<b>Loyola</b> 20:4	<b>main</b> 187:3	212:9 216:19,22 220:8 229:12	<b>Managemen</b> <b>t's</b> 115:1
<b>looks</b> 122:9 125:17 132:17 133:12,25 134:1	<b>luck</b> 21:5 35:14 52:5 54:19 64:4 68:6 71:16 76:21 79:17 84:2 85:11 93:18 96:12 99:21 108:18 120:2 124:20 141:17	<b>M</b>	<b>maintaini</b> <b>ng</b> 36:16	212:9 216:19,22 220:8 229:12	<b>manager</b> 52:22 55:20 80:10
<b>Los</b> 60:11		<b>ma'am</b> 5:10 7:2 27:17 47:9 48:8 55:6 56:9 58:2 60:3,4 62:8,16 64:24 68:8 88:6 91:8	<b>made</b> 20:24 46:20 87:6 94:14 96:15	<b>major</b> 91:22 102:17 132:5,23, 24 <b>majority</b> 6:3 59:8 202:14 <b>make</b> 17:24	

102:8	<b>mark</b>	<b>maybe</b>	143:11	<b>medicine'</b>	9,15
<b>manner</b>	49:20,24,	72:9	146:1,11	<b>s</b>	25:9,10,
152:10	25 50:4	129:2	150:3,5	47:22	14,18
<b>Mansfield</b>	132:1	155:16	151:6,7	<b>meet all</b>	26:1,3,7,
68:11,16,	<b>marked</b>	227:6,8	152:22,23	7:22	14,20
20 69:13,	127:7	<b>me</b>	157:12	<b>meeting</b>	27:5,12,
16,23	<b>marketing</b>	7:18 8:2	161:3	4:5 5:1	16,18,24
70:2,15	48:9,16	9:21 19:1	171:12,	7:25 9:24	28:9,15,
71:2	<b>Marquart</b>	26:13	13,16	10:2	18,20,24
<b>manufactu</b>	23:12,14,	29:14	174:4	12:5,17,	29:4,5,6
<b>rer</b>	15 24:11	37:22	178:25	24 18:4	30:23
95:6	25:13	38:5,18	179:2	23:25	31:5,10,
<b>many</b>	27:15,17	39:6,7,9,	184:23	69:17	17,21,24
6:15	28:4,11,	12 40:9	188:4	70:11	32:5,10,
52:21	14 29:10,	41:5,6,23	189:13,21	139:2	11,12,22
91:23	18,21	42:17	190:8	198:1,19	34:2,10,
92:1	<b>Marshall</b>	43:21,23	195:18	219:12	19,22,24
135:3	14:13	46:19	202:3	220:12,	35:5,10,
<b>Mar-</b>	21:21,22	56:6,16	203:24	19,23	11,12
23:11	22:6,13,	57:18	204:18	221:21	37:5,8,
<b>March</b>	19	60:10	206:15	222:2,17	11,13,15,
23:20,24,	<b>Marvin</b>	61:20	207:3	230:3	18,21
25 32:18	36:6	65:13	213:17	<b>member</b>	38:8,14,
<b>Maria</b>	45:23	74:16	214:1,6	4:12,13,	18,23
210:22	46:2,5	77:10,22	216:14	14,15,16,	39:13,19
215:7	<b>Maryland</b>	88:18	229:13	18,19	40:8
<b>Marie</b>	47:23	91:5,19,	<b>mean</b>	5:23	41:1,9,18
210:21	<b>Maston</b>	25 94:18	50:25	8:20,24	42:3,11,
<b>Marietta</b>	207:10,11	98:7,11	57:21	9:7 12:22	19,22,25
195:7	<b>match</b>	102:8,9	143:7,21	13:3,4,5,	43:5,11,
<b>marijuana</b>	138:25	105:16	150:1	10,11,12	18 44:24
193:7,10	<b>matched</b>	106:9,10,	186:12	14:8,9,	45:3,8,20
194:22	217:3	11 109:3	219:21,24	18,25	46:1,4,
195:6	<b>matter</b>	112:17	220:6,24	15:5,10,	10,15,16,
<b>Marina</b>	98:15,16	117:16	<b>means</b>	16 16:1,	17 50:11,
52:12,13	99:18	118:11	134:8	6,10,12,	14,18,21
54:5,6	121:25	120:22	230:2	13,20,22	51:9,20
<b>Marine</b>	123:1,14	122:23	<b>meantime</b>	18:18,25	52:1,2,3
60:8	139:6	123:12	206:15	19:3,8,	53:24
65:18	<b>matters</b>	126:12	<b>Medford</b>	11,20,22	54:10,15,
<b>Marines</b>	4:23,25	127:20,24	134:14,	20:6,12,	16,17
47:18	5:1,2	130:3,6	17,20,21	18,19,20,	56:5,21,
	43:23	132:11,12	<b>medically</b>	23 21:1,	24 57:3,
	219:15	135:24	47:8,11,	4,7,8,11,	5,8,10,
		137:5	12,13,14,	17 22:11,	12,25
		138:1,18	23 23:3,	23 23:3,	58:3,13,
		139:8	4,5 24:7,	47:23	22 59:2,
		140:7	<b>medicine</b>	48:4 50:8	3,5,16
		142:9	47:23		61:18
			48:4 50:8		62:5,9,



13,17 63:4,10, 19,25 64:1,2 66:2,5,7, 16,21,24 67:5,10, 15,20,25 68:1,3 70:7,20 71:1,6, 12,13,14 72:13,16, 21,25 73:3,4,6, 9,14,17, 20,23 74:3,13 75:21 76:4,9, 10,11 77:15,18, 20,24 78:3,6,8, 17,23 79:7,13, 14,15 80:15,18, 21 81:11, 16 82:4, 13,22 83:5,9, 11,16,21, 22,23 84:21 85:2,7,8, 9 86:9 87:23 88:1,5,7, 11,14,19, 22,24 89:2,10, 13,16 90:6 92:14,17, 19,23 93:2,6, 11,12,13 94:22 95:13,18,	23,24,25 97:18,21 98:24 99:4,10, 11,12,22, 24 100:3, 7 101:19, 22 102:3, 12 103:2, 13,18 104:1,2,3 105:15, 21,25 106:3,6, 13,16,18, 23,25 107:1,5, 12,13,14 109:16, 19,21 110:17, 20,24 111:3,8, 13,19,20, 22 112:4, 15 113:5, 11,16,17, 18 115:5, 8 116:11, 17 117:1, 14,20 118:16,22 119:6,7,8 120:3 121:11, 17,20,22 122:1,4, 11,16 124:1,6, 12,13,14 126:2,6, 8,14,18, 20,23,25 127:4,10, 23 128:2, 8,14,18, 20 129:5, 12,17,22, 23,24 131:24	132:13,19 133:2 134:12, 22,24 135:2,5, 9,12,14, 18,24 136:2,5, 8,10,13, 21 137:10, 16,19,22 138:4,17, 21 139:3, 9,14,17, 19,21 140:12,21 141:1,2, 3,20,24 143:3,21, 25 144:2, 4,7,15,17 145:5,10, 16,17,18 146:4 148:6,11, 16,17,18 149:19, 20,23,25 150:5,8, 11,15,18, 21,25 151:8,15, 18,23 152:1,4, 7,12,15, 17,21 153:14, 20,21 154:1,2, 3,25 155:6,11, 12,13,16 157:10, 11,19,24 158:4,9, 10,11 159:11, 16,19,24 160:4,9,	10,11 162:11, 17,22 163:4,10, 11 164:14, 20,25 165:1,2, 25 166:3, 5,7,13, 18,23,24, 25 168:5, 12,17,18, 19 170:17 171:18 172:1,6, 8,11,15, 21 173:1, 6,7,8 174:8 175:22 176:1,5, 11,16,21, 22,23 177:25 178:3,7, 11,13,15, 19,22,25 179:10, 13,18,23 180:3,4,5 181:8,14, 19,20,21 182:6,10, 14,21 183:2,7, 12,13,14, 22 184:4, 10,15,16, 17 185:16,24 188:13 189:2,11, 13 190:1 191:11, 16,21,22, 23 194:11, 13,24 195:4,11,	20,24,25 196:8,14, 19,24 197:4,5,6 199:22,24 200:13, 17,21,23, 25 201:2, 13,17,19, 22 202:5, 8,11,13, 17,25 203:7,12, 13,14 204:19 205:12 206:4,12, 18,21,24 207:1 208:8,13, 18,19,20 209:24 210:4,9, 10,11,22 211:1,6, 9,12,18 215:6,13, 18,19,20, 23 217:9, 15,20,21, 22 218:8, 12,15,17, 19 219:5, 8,23 220:1,4, 7,9,10, 13,17,18, 20 221:13, 18,19 222:5,10, 11,12,18, 24 224:21,25 225:4,9, 11,13,14, 17,25 226:2,19 227:12, 19,21	228:2,6, 7,8,14, 15,16,22 229:1 230:1  <b>members</b> 4:7,22 9:17 15:21 20:3 32:17 34:4 51:16 63:15 227:11 228:20  <b>mentor</b> 84:14  <b>merchandi sing</b> 48:10  <b>Meriwethe r</b> 17:22,24 18:24 19:14,24 20:3  <b>Meriwethe r's</b> 18:19  <b>message</b> 132:8,25 135:20 136:20  <b>messed</b> 17:13,18 218:10  <b>messed</b> 105:20 110:10  <b>met</b> 60:12  <b>Metro</b> 48:20
--	--	---	---	--	---

50:15	38:13	<b>mom</b>	<b>more</b>	101:20,21	83:4,14,
<b>Michael</b>	41:25	33:8,11	7:15,17	109:1,2	17,24
68:10	42:10	97:24	48:1 50:2	115:6,7	84:20,25
71:1	44:1,3	159:14	60:21	120:9,10	85:3,10
93:22	105:1	<b>moment</b>	73:23	<b>most</b>	93:1,4,7
163:14	118:1	117:2	84:15	6:12	95:12,16,
167:8	125:13	185:24	115:21	40:16	19 98:23,
<b>Miguel</b>	147:20	<b>Monday</b>	116:10,	87:4	25 99:2,
86:8,10	149:3,7,	17:6 18:3	21,23	90:13	5,6
112:23	10	<b>money</b>	117:3,4,	<b>motion</b>	103:12,
<b>Mike</b>	156:20,24	38:24	5,15	13:1,6,13	14,16,19,
13:18	159:2	150:2	119:12	15:25	22 104:4
28:7	161:22,25	<b>monies</b>	120:3	16:4,7,14	106:22,24
39:17	165:15	224:1,4,	122:5,12	19:10,12,	107:3,6,9
212:19	167:17	17	126:12	22 20:10,	111:7,11,
213:6	177:19	<b>month</b>	140:16	13,14,21	15,25
214:12	212:7	62:25	141:21,25	22:3,10,	113:4,9,
221:15	<b>misdemean</b>	100:23	145:23	21,24	12,19
<b>military</b>	<b>ors</b>	226:10	150:22	23:6	118:15,
30:4	117:23	<b>months</b>	190:23	24:19,21	20,23
47:18	207:4	62:25	198:2	25:7	119:2
50:7 55:7	<b>misfortun</b>	63:1 77:5	200:9	27:23	123:25
<b>mind</b>	<b>ate</b>	97:9,11	216:3	28:22,25	124:2,4,
66:11	143:11	110:23	225:24	29:7	7,8
<b>mine</b>	<b>misinform</b>	125:10,14	226:20	31:16	129:11,
32:24	<b>ed</b>	131:8,13	227:6	32:3,6,13	15,18,25
58:7	191:7	149:12	<b>morning</b>	34:9,21	140:11,
<b>minimum</b>	<b>misinterp</b>	153:9	5:10	35:3,6,13	13,19,22
227:6	<b>reted</b>	161:20,23	25:11,12,	45:19,21	145:4,8,
<b>minute</b>	74:11	165:17	13 36:7,8	46:8,11	11,12,19
49:25	<b>Miss</b>	167:19	37:6,7	51:7,8,	148:5,9,
55:9	131:19	175:16	52:10,14,	10,21,22	12
<b>minutes</b>	<b>missed</b>	177:16,20	17 56:6	53:23	153:13,
5:3 42:23	77:4	192:9	59:24,25	54:8,11,	15,18,22
43:13	<b>missing</b>	193:8	61:19	18 58:12,	154:23
49:11,18	12:4	204:15,18	64:8 65:3	20,23,24	155:4,7,
112:17	34:13,17	207:20	66:3,4	59:9,10	14 157:23
155:15	<b>mistyped</b>	212:4,5	68:12,13,	63:9,11,	158:2,5,
182:3	80:3	<b>Mora</b>	14 71:19,	17,20,21	12 159:23
<b>misconduc</b>	<b>misunders</b>	147:10,11	20 72:14,	64:3	160:2,5,
<b>t</b>	<b>tanding</b>	154:19	15 73:7,8	67:9,18,	12 162:21
185:7	62:12	<b>moral</b>	79:22,23	70:19,21	163:2,5
<b>misdemean</b>	106:5	185:4	80:16,17	71:4,7,8,	164:13,
<b>or</b>		187:22,23	86:16	15 75:20,	18,21
		188:1	87:24,25	22 76:2,5	166:12,
			94:1,3	78:22	16,19
			96:19,20	79:5,8,9,	168:4,10,
			97:19,20	16 82:9	13
			100:12,13		172:20,24
					173:2,9

176:10, 14,17 179:17, 21,24 181:7,12, 15 182:20 183:5,8, 15 184:1, 8,11,18 191:10, 14,17,24 196:18, 22,25 202:24 203:1,5,8 205:5 208:7,11, 14 209:23 210:2,5, 12 215:5, 10,11,14, 21 217:8, 13,16 220:22 221:4,11 222:3,6, 17,22 227:24 228:1,3, 9,10	166:14 168:6 176:12 179:19 181:9 182:22 184:5 191:12 208:9 215:7 217:10 221:19 222:1,19	67:3 <b>Mr</b> 5:10 7:2, 5 8:6,16, 22 9:1 13:15,18 14:4,13 17:2,19, 23 18:11, 14,16,17, 23 19:1,5 20:5,25 21:3,6 22:13,19 23:16 24:14 25:12,13, 16 26:6,9 27:8,15, 17 28:2, 4,6,11 29:9,10, 12,16,17, 18,20,21 30:1,3,8, 19,22,24 31:1,13, 19,20,23 32:15,20 33:5 34:7,11 36:7,11, 20 37:1, 3,6,7,10, 12,14,16, 20,23 38:11,17, 19 39:2, 17,24 40:7,13 41:2,10, 17 42:12, 17,21,24 43:4,10, 17 44:11, 18 45:7 47:9,17 48:19 50:15,16,	20 52:6, 17,24 53:16 54:2,20 55:6 56:4,6,9, 23 57:2, 4,6,9,11, 13 58:2, 10 59:8, 22,25 60:3,4,7, 23 61:12, 13,15,17, 20,22 62:8,10, 14,16 64:8,18, 22,24 65:1,3,7, 15 66:4, 5,6,9,20, 23 67:1, 12,16 68:8,13, 16,20 69:3,13, 16,23 70:2,6,9, 15 76:24 77:3,12, 16,17,18, 19,23 78:1,5,7 79:18 85:20 86:4,15, 18 87:13, 19,24,25 88:3,6,9, 13,18,21, 23 89:1, 8,12,15 90:5,9 91:5,8,15 92:6,9,16 93:3,17, 21,25 94:2,6,8, 13,17,21,	23,25 96:9,11, 18,20,24 97:17,19, 20,23 98:13,19 99:15,20 108:20,23 109:1,3, 6,8,15, 17,18,23, 25 110:19,22 111:1,4,9 112:2,6, 8,10 113:22,24 114:6,9, 11 115:4, 6,7,10 116:5,14 117:8 118:6,9, 18 119:1, 9,13,16, 19,25 120:6,10, 12,14 121:10, 12,14,19, 21,24 122:3,20 123:2,4, 9,16,19, 21 124:22,25 125:2,4 126:1,14, 17,19,22, 24 127:13 128:3,6, 13,16 129:13 130:2,9, 11,13,15, 19 133:5 142:8,11, 13 143:2, 4,6,24 144:1,3,	6,8,13, 19,22 145:2,25 146:6,8, 16,18,21, 24 147:3, 8,11,15, 18 148:3, 7,22,24 149:1,18, 19,22,24 150:1,7, 10,14,17, 20 151:4, 14,16,19, 25 152:3, 6,11,14, 16,19,23 153:2,8 154:6,14, 16 156:3, 13 158:18,21 159:10, 12,14,17, 25 160:14, 18,20,23 161:1,8, 12,16 162:23 163:9,15, 17,19 164:9,11, 15 165:6, 9,22,23, 24 166:1, 2,4,6,14 167:3,6, 9,12,15 168:2,6, 22,24,25 169:4,7 170:16, 18,20 171:5,25 172:4,7, 9,12,16, 18 173:11,
<b>motioning</b> 12:23 16:2 22:12 27:25 31:14,18 34:23 53:25 67:11 83:6 84:22 93:3 113:6 129:13 148:7 155:1 159:25 162:23 164:15	<b>motions</b> 219:16 <b>move</b> 9:11 12:15,21 21:20 23:24,25 35:18 36:2 58:14 78:24 95:14 111:9 113:20 118:17 130:1 145:6,20 154:10 157:25 172:22 181:23 196:20 209:25 <b>moved</b> 55:19,24 60:11 97:23,24 157:14 179:3 195:18 <b>moving</b> 24:15 33:9 36:4 47:6 55:11,16				

18,22,25 174:14, 17,20 175:21, 23,25 176:3 177:6 180:17, 19,22 181:5,9, 25 182:6, 7,24 183:3,17, 19 184:21, 22,23 185:2,15, 23 186:4 188:15,17 189:3,12, 22 190:3, 7,13,15, 18,21,24 191:1,4 192:8,14, 18,21 193:17, 18,23 194:7,10, 11,12,16 195:1,9, 15,22 196:3,9, 16 197:11, 14,17,21 198:14, 20,23 199:1,8, 11,13,18 200:1,11, 16,19,22, 24 201:1, 5,7,11, 15,18,20 202:2,6, 9,12,16, 20 203:16,23 204:1,3,	13,17 205:11,23 206:1,7, 10,14,20, 23,25 207:3,9, 13,15 208:5,9, 24 209:3, 5,21 210:15 212:19,23 213:5,12, 15,18,25 214:12, 17,25 215:3 219:14,20 220:24 221:3,15 226:22 227:2,25 228:4 230:4  <b>Mrs</b> 33:25 215:2  <b>Ms</b> 39:20 40:8 47:13 48:9 71:19,21, 23 72:6, 8,12,14, 15,19,22 73:2,8, 12,15,19, 22,25 74:11,24 75:12,16 76:18,20 79:23 80:1,7, 14,17,20, 22 81:13, 18,22 82:2,7, 11,19,24	83:6,7,10 84:1,3,7, 11,18,22 85:12 100:10, 13,15,17 101:20, 21,24 102:5 103:1 104:11, 13,14 105:14, 16,17,24 106:1,4, 8,15,17 107:7,18, 21 108:4, 9,13,16 130:25 131:3,5, 20,22,25 132:4,23 133:5,14, 21 134:6, 13,14,17, 20,23 135:1,4, 8,11,13, 15,19 136:1,4, 7,9,12, 15,24 137:9,14, 18,21,23 139:3,5, 13,16,18, 20 140:18 141:10, 15,18,23 142:2,5 156:18 157:9,11, 14,21 158:15 177:10, 12,24 178:1,2, 5,9,12, 14,18,21,	23 179:2, 11,19 180:7,11, 13 210:18,24 211:15,24 212:24 213:25 214:2,4, 14,18 215:2,7, 24 216:6, 8,11,16, 18 217:6, 10,25 218:3 221:12, 22,25  <b>much</b> 8:16 24:17 31:10 38:6 48:21 52:6 53:10 69:6 78:17 108:16 110:5 119:1,9, 25 122:17 158:15 160:21 168:9 171:17 178:20 180:11 199:22 201:2 208:22,24  <b>multiple</b> 7:10 11:19 38:1 87:3 150:13  <b>murders</b> 6:17	<b>Murphy</b> 174:12, 14,17,20 175:21, 23,25 176:3 177:6  <b>Murrieta</b> 195:9  <b>my</b> 5:11,14, 16,18 6:14,15 7:14,19, 20,22,23, 24 12:7 14:25 15:13 18:19,20 20:6,24 28:9 30:19 33:5,8,11 36:11,16 37:23 42:3,14 43:11 44:18 45:2,13, 21 47:17, 22 48:9, 10,14,19, 25 49:13 51:2 52:19,20 55:10,15, 25 57:16 60:7,12, 18,22,23 61:23 62:5,10 65:7,10, 15 67:1,2 73:13 74:12 75:1 77:4,7,21 78:8 80:8 84:14	89:9 92:1 95:1 97:24 99:5 102:8 106:9 110:3,11, 13 115:20 118:6 121:15,16 127:18,22 129:5 135:11,22 136:2,23 137:10 138:8 139:9,11 143:8,11, 14 144:14,19 146:2 150:1 157:14 159:14,17 170:21 171:2,8 172:5,13 178:14 179:6 188:3,19, 24 189:1, 23 190:8 191:1 194:19 195:18 196:4 199:15 200:24 201:8 205:4 206:2,16 223:13, 14,19 227:7,8 229:6  <b>myself</b> 32:24 46:20 55:2
---	---	---	--	---	--

151:12 215:25 224:12,16	<b>need</b> 15:21 23:7 24:7,18 36:2 40:17 45:4 65:12,13 69:10 74:5 89:23 90:1 99:18,19 102:21,24 108:5 112:14 139:14,15 141:18 142:1 144:17 146:13 152:22 155:15 171:14,22 178:5 202:20 211:2,13 212:25 220:21	27:14,15, 16 28:10, 21 31:6, 18,25 34:25 35:24 51:19 68:22 178:17	166:1 169:17 170:12 174:25 175:3,6 177:15 185:6 187:2 190:16	186:6 <b>next</b> 9:11 12:7,11, 16 14:6 22:8 29:22 32:16,18 35:18 42:23 47:6 59:19 78:8 79:19 84:4 85:14 107:16 119:23 146:4,11 154:10 158:14 160:25 163:13 165:4 167:2 168:21 180:10 181:24 208:23 219:11,25 220:11, 18,23 221:3,16, 21 222:1, 25 226:24 229:18	76:18,20 <b>nine</b> 48:21 125:9 <b>nine-</b> 16:19 <b>Nineteen</b> 15:16 <b>Nixon</b> 4:4,10, 11,21 8:5,7,11, 18 9:2,10 11:12 12:6 13:1,6, 13,16 14:5 15:3,6, 13,18 16:4,7, 11,14,21, 23 17:5, 10,15,20, 25 18:6, 9,15 19:6,9 20:10,14, 21 21:5, 16,20,25 22:5,21, 24 23:6, 13,15,18, 21 24:1, 5,18,22 25:23 26:21,24 27:2,21 28:13,16, 22,25 29:7,11, 22 30:2, 7,10,14, 17,21 31:12 32:3,6, 13,16 33:1,12
<b>N</b>					
<b>NAC</b> 33:18					
<b>name</b> 5:9,11 18:12 20:7 23:8 25:15,17, 19 26:1, 18,19 27:9 28:1 29:14,24 30:18,19, 25 31:4, 7,22 33:5 47:17 48:19 52:19 60:7,23 65:7,15 80:8 108:11 127:25 212:20 227:3	<b>needed</b> 12:18 18:4 62:1 76:15 114:2 119:21 139:12 157:15 186:17	<b>negativel y</b> 178:3 <b>neglect</b> 101:3,5 <b>negligenc e</b> 147:21 150:3 <b>netted</b> 135:19 <b>Nevada</b> 4:1 5:20 7:16,18, 22 10:25 26:17 29:23 31:1,3,8, 21 33:6, 9,10,21 36:23 53:13 55:17,22, 23 65:12, 22 66:19 67:4 69:4 77:4,9,11 88:2,3 89:9,11, 14,20 90:3 92:2 98:4,12, 15 105:24 123:15 134:15, 18,22,25 138:6 156:22	<b>Nevada's</b> 192:2 <b>never</b> 19:1 97:7,13 105:18,19 121:7 142:20,23 188:18, 20,21 189:9 195:2 196:10 <b>new</b> 19:23 22:14 25:17 26:13 45:12,22 48:11 51:11 53:25 63:11 67:11 69:19 75:23 78:24 88:9 89:8,9,17 90:2,23 91:16,17 92:2,10 95:2 182:22 207:18 217:3 221:7 <b>news</b> 82:22		
<b>narcotic</b> 105:3 142:17					
<b>narcotics</b> 156:25					
<b>Navy</b> 55:7	<b>needs</b> 25:17 27:6 65:11,12				
<b>Nay</b> 68:3					
<b>NDOC</b> 177:16	<b>negate</b> 200:7				
<b>necessari ly</b> 219:18	<b>negative</b> 22:3,9, 12,18 25:6,19				
				<b>niche</b> 60:10 <b>Nichols</b> 71:19,21, 23 72:6, 8,12,14, 15,19,22 73:2,8, 12,15,19, 22,25 74:11,24 75:12,16	

34:5,20	13 78:19	19,23	154:4,7	11 189:25	5 222:3,
35:3,6,	79:5,9,	114:5,7	155:4,7,	190:6,11,	6,13,22,
13,17	16,19,24	115:3	14,17,22	14,16,19,	25 224:19
36:8,18,	80:4,13	116:4,6,	156:14	22,25	225:12,15
24 37:4	81:20,24	18,25	157:5,8,	191:3,6,	227:10,
39:23	82:3,5,8,	117:21	20 158:2,	14,17,24	19,23
40:20,24	12,17,21	118:2,13,	5,12,16,	192:7,11,	228:1,10,
43:19	83:1,8,	20 119:2,	19 159:9,	15,19	17,21
44:2,9,	14,17,24	10,14,18,	21 160:2,	193:15,20	229:3,18
16,20	84:2,4,8,	22 120:2,	5,12,17,	194:8	230:2
45:16	17,25	4,11	19,21,24	195:10	
46:8,11,	85:3,10,	121:9	161:5,9,	196:15,	<b>no</b>
18 47:4,	13 86:5,	122:18,25	13 162:8,	22,25	7:14,16
10,14	10,16	123:3,5,	18 163:2,	197:7,12,	9:8,9
48:8,18	87:9,18,	14,17,20,	5,12,18	15,18	12:15,20
50:12	22 90:10,	22 124:4,	164:7,10,	199:5,10,	14:7,10
51:4,22	18,21,24	8,15,23	18,21	12,17,20	15:11,23
52:4,7	91:6,12	125:1,25	165:3,7,	201:3,6,9	16:19,25
53:14,17	92:4,7,25	128:4,7,	21,24	202:4,7,	17:21
54:8,11,	93:4,7,	17,19,21,	166:9,16,	19,21	19:8,9,10
18,21,25	14,18,22	24 129:7,	19 167:1,	203:5,8,	21:3,9,
56:3	94:1,4,20	15,18,25	5,7,10,13	15,17,25	21,24
58:9,20,	95:9,16,	130:8,10,	168:1,9,	204:2,5,	22:16
24 59:4,	19 96:1,	12,14,16,	13,20,23	14 205:24	23:8
6,9,18,23	10,12,19,	23 131:1,	169:2,5	206:3,9,	25:7,22
60:1,5	21 97:16	18,21,23	170:15	13,17	26:23
61:1,5,	98:11,14,	133:7,11,	172:17,24	207:6,10,	27:20,22,
14,16	20 99:2,	16,19,22	173:2,9,	14,24	25 28:14,
62:18	6,13,16,	134:3,7	12,19	208:4,11,	16,19
63:5,17,	21,23	137:7	174:7,10,	14,21	29:23
21 64:3,	100:5,8,	139:23	15,18	209:1,17,	31:8,10,
19,23,25	11,14	140:4,8,	175:20	20 210:2,	15,22
65:2,4,	101:17	19,22	176:7,14,	5,12,16,	32:17,19
14,25	103:9,16,	141:4,11,	17,24	23 211:2,	34:8,23
67:7,18,	22 104:4,	16 142:3,	177:7,11,	13,16,19,	36:4 39:8
21 68:2,	12 105:8,	6,10	23	21	40:22
4,9,14,	10,13	143:1	179:14,	212:11,17	42:1
21,23	106:19	144:11,	21,24	213:2	45:15,18
69:12	107:3,8,	16,21	180:6,8,	215:1,4,	47:7 49:6
70:5,12,	15,19,22	145:1,8,	12,14,18,	10,14,21	52:7
17 71:4,	108:17	12,19	20 181:4,	216:1,7,	53:22
8,15,20	109:2,5,	146:7,17,	12,15,22	10,12,15	57:15
72:4,7,11	14,20	19,22,25	182:1,16	217:5,13,	58:8,11,
73:5	110:16	147:5,16	183:5,8,	16,23	18 59:21
74:15,20	111:5,11,	148:2,9,	15,24	218:1,4,	62:17
75:4,9,	15,21,24	12,19,23	184:8,11,	14,16,21	63:6,8
14,17	112:3,5,	149:17	18,22,25	219:1,7,	64:20
76:2,5,	7,9,11,	152:25	185:14,25	19,21,25	67:8
12,19,21,	16,20	153:3,10,	186:5	220:3,16,	68:10
25 77:10,	113:9,12,	18,22	188:2,7,	21 221:2,	69:14

70:18	15,22	207:10	176:13	38:3,5,9	138:25
71:1,18	144:6,11	208:6	191:12	39:7,9,	140:15
72:1,6	145:3	209:2,22	196:20	12,21	141:5,12
74:8,13,	147:7,13,	210:16,	203:2	40:21	144:4,5
14 75:19	17 148:4,	19,20,21,	<b>none</b>	42:6	145:20
77:12,17	21 149:24	24 211:4	90:23	43:6,14,	147:25
78:1,17,	150:17,	214:4,7,9	102:16	15 45:8,	149:9,13,
21 80:4	18,20	215:4	120:25	9,10	14,15
83:3	152:3,11,	216:1	137:23	46:2,4,25	151:5,10,
84:19	14,16,21	217:7	171:8	48:3,5	13 153:4,
88:21,23	153:12	218:22	<b>nonethele</b>	56:7	8,16
89:8	154:13,	219:1,3,	<b>ss</b>	57:20,21	155:25
90:9,20,	15,17,19	4,11	200:6	62:2	157:3
21,22	156:15	221:9	<b>noon</b>	66:14,22,	159:7,14
92:6,12,	157:22	222:19,20	184:2	25 68:15	162:7
25 93:22,	158:17	223:2	<b>Nope</b>	69:23	164:5
24 95:11	159:14,	229:3,24	176:1	73:10,13	165:19
96:13,14,	16,17,22	230:1	<b>north</b>	74:1	167:24
15,17	161:7	<b>no-call</b>	9:4,9	75:3,6,16	170:13
97:1,6	162:20	155:2	27:21	76:24	171:13,16
98:15,22	163:14	184:6	128:25	77:16	172:9,12
99:18,25	164:12	222:20	155:24	80:7	173:10
101:1	165:5	<b>no-show</b>	198:3,5,	82:18	176:24
103:11	166:3,4,	155:2	21 221:6	85:16	177:1,16
104:9	7,11	184:6	224:25	87:6,10,	178:8,21
106:18,21	167:8	222:20	225:2	22 88:21	185:4
108:19,	168:3,24	<b>noise</b>	229:25	92:6	187:4,10,
22,25	170:4,5,6	169:22	230:1	94:14,17,	11,12,13,
111:6	171:16	170:1	<b>not</b>	23 95:15	18,20,23
112:22,	172:16,19	<b>non</b>	4:23,25	96:2,3	189:18,20
23,25	173:21,24	153:16	5:1,4	97:5,14	190:4,16,
113:1,6,	174:2,12	<b>non-</b>	8:2,7	98:12,18	20 191:4,
21 118:14	176:9,12	<b>verbal</b>	11:19	100:25	25 193:21
120:4,8	177:8	105:12	12:2,9,11	101:15	195:2,16
121:5	179:16	<b>non-</b>	14:13	102:4,23	196:13
122:14	180:15	<b>working</b>	17:9 18:8	103:4,5	199:22
123:24	181:6	218:20	23:24	105:6	200:3,7
124:21	182:5,9,	<b>nonappear</b>	24:15	106:11,12	201:18
129:10	17,19	<b>ance</b>	25:21	109:13	202:9
130:18,	183:16,	219:17	26:12,16	110:14	203:21
21,24	18,20	<b>nondisclo</b>	27:13	113:3	205:21
133:21	184:2,19	<b>sure</b>	30:3	121:3	206:6,9
136:7,9,	189:9	103:15	31:8,13	122:6,7,	207:5,7
10,12,15,	191:9	145:6	32:18	19 124:16	209:15
24	192:16	172:22	33:22	125:20,	212:9
137:18,	193:17	<b>nondisclo</b>	34:18	22,23	216:19,22
19,21,23	196:17	103:15	35:25	126:4,19	217:2
139:5,22	197:18	145:6		130:3	218:23,24
140:10	202:3,23	172:22		131:16	219:14
142:7,14,	204:24			137:12	221:10,

24,25	221:22	203:3	<b>obviously</b>	15 40:16	4,6,21,
222:16	<b>novel</b>	204:3,15	58:3	41:3,4,	22,25
223:15	50:24	206:7	143:18	11,12,16	90:7
224:14	<b>November</b>	216:25	189:24	42:5,9,	91:22
226:1,14	53:4 63:2	218:7	190:4	13,16	92:6
227:2	72:17	219:10	211:10	43:23	93:16,19
<b>Notably</b>	132:20	222:21	<b>occupatio</b>	44:3,7,9,	95:4,6
6:9	185:10	226:22	<b>nal</b>	23 45:4	96:4
<b>note</b>	<b>now</b>	229:7	187:16	47:19,20,	97:22
51:8	10:16	<b>NTA</b>	23 48:2,	23 48:2,	98:7,17
66:17	17:8	10:25	5,22,25	5,22,25	101:11,23
96:6	24:24	<b>number</b>	49:8,9,	49:8,9,	102:15,
103:19	26:5	15:11,15	11,17	11,17	16,20,22,
119:11	27:6,9	86:6	50:7,16,	50:7,16,	24 103:6,
174:3	30:6	102:15	18,22,23	18,22,23	14
187:15	35:20	103:6	52:20	52:20	104:16,
193:11	42:5 51:3	171:7	40:16	53:4,5,8,	19,21,22
<b>noted</b>	55:25	192:5	63:2	9,13,19	105:3,19,
198:17	63:3	216:3	<b>of</b>	55:8,17,	23 106:9
<b>notes</b>	66:8,10	219:3	4:1,22,24	19,21,22,	107:2
15:13	69:4,24	<b>numbers</b>	5:4,15,19	23 56:2,	108:6
151:11	74:9	132:17	6:1,3,14,	7,10,11	109:11
<b>nothing</b>	81:11	<b>numerous</b>	15,17	57:3,15,	110:5,12
13:24	82:1 88:4	6:7,9,12	7:11 9:24	20 58:7	112:1
40:3	90:2,9	<hr/>	10:2,10,	59:14	114:1,12,
64:13	91:1 92:6	<b>O</b>	11,16,24	60:10,12	16,17
85:24	102:19	<hr/>	11:4,7	61:9	115:9,18,
117:12	108:11	<b>o'clock</b>	12:3,11	62:7,24,	23 116:19
122:14	110:23	182:2	15:19	25 63:1	117:5,17
139:18	113:8	<b>Oakland</b>	16:15,16	64:9	118:24
153:5	115:18	121:14	17:9,14,	65:11,19,	119:21
156:7	116:23	<b>oath</b>	19 18:3,	23 66:13,	120:9,20,
194:2	124:17	60:2	5,24 19:2	17,18	21
205:20	134:13	123:1	20:24	69:7,23	121:12,
217:3	136:21,23	<b>objection</b>	21:15	70:7	15,25
<b>notice</b>	145:22	27:6,7,8,	22:8,19	72:20	122:18,22
8:2 17:7	151:14,15	13 32:24,	23:8,9,16	73:1,10	123:1
<b>noticed</b>	154:23	25 33:6,	26:12	74:5,10,	126:6
138:25	155:3	7,8,19,	27:6,7,8,	18,20,25	127:20,22
<b>notificat</b>	159:18	20,21,22,	13 32:24,	75:2,3,4,	128:1,11,
<b>ion</b>	166:5	23 34:25	25 33:6,	12,14,25	20 130:6,
221:9	177:5	36:12,13	7,8,19,	78:1,15	7 131:7
<b>notify</b>	182:2,4	37:9,16,	20,21,22,	80:9,23	132:2,5,
138:16	183:16	23,24	23 34:25	81:9,14	10,18,19,
220:10	184:1,3,	38:2,4,	36:12,13	82:20	20 133:3,
	7,19	20,23,24	37:9,16,	85:15,23	5,13,21
	192:1	39:4,5,9,	23,24	87:1,2,5,	134:1,7
	199:3	<b>obstructi</b>	38:2,4,	10,16	136:10,18
		<b>ng</b>	20,23,24	88:12,15,	137:1,16,
		72:17	39:4,5,9,	22 89:3,	19,25



138:6,8, 13,17,19 139:4,6, 10,15 140:14 141:8,13, 22 142:1 143:13, 19,22 144:22 145:7 146:12, 15,23 147:21, 22,25 149:4,5, 15,21 150:12, 16,18 151:2,8, 10 152:19 155:18 156:4,21 157:3,17 158:1,23 159:3,7 161:18 162:6,8 163:21,22 165:11, 16,19 167:17,23 169:9,11, 13,17,18 170:9,13, 14,22 171:8 172:23 174:22, 24,25 175:3,6, 8,9,14,18 176:13 177:14, 15,16,18, 19,21 178:16,17 180:24,25 181:10 185:6,7,	10,25 186:3 187:3,10, 13,19,21, 24 188:1 189:17 191:12 192:10, 13,23,25 193:3,7, 13,25 194:15, 16,18,19, 22 195:7, 13 196:4, 21 197:23 198:3,5, 6,18,25 199:8 200:4,5 201:9 202:14,15 203:2,19 204:11, 15,16,23 207:18 209:7,13 210:1 212:3,5, 6,13 213:7,8 216:24 217:12 219:12, 14,16 221:4 222:25 223:19, 23,24,25 224:7,9 225:19 226:7,12, 17,23 227:1,14 229:8  <b>off</b> 8:9 12:11 16:16 21:18	24:24 35:15 43:13 44:25 54:23 59:11 61:4 88:25 89:2,5, 20,25 90:12 102:25 103:3 111:22 112:18 130:4 140:14 143:22 155:21 184:6 186:2 195:13 203:2 219:11,17 229:6  <b>offenders</b> 187:13  <b>offending</b> 89:21  <b>offense</b> 11:5,7 100:22 116:13 118:1 175:1,3, 4,7,15 187:18,24 209:10  <b>office</b> 17:19 19:15 59:19 62:6 76:13 93:15 96:15 98:9 99:16,25	100:5 104:7 107:15 119:23 139:6 141:8,24, 25 145:23 158:13 160:25 163:12 167:2 168:21 177:3 180:10 181:23 197:12 198:14 200:4 208:23 218:1,2  <b>officer</b> 19:14,15, 24,25 22:17 23:23 24:10 32:17 45:22,24 48:17,24 51:12,13 52:21 54:1,3 69:4,25 72:24 125:9 127:16, 17,21 130:5 135:22,25 137:12 182:23,25 185:7  <b>officer's</b> 58:16 63:12,13 190:20  <b>officers</b> 28:3	35:19 54:4 79:3  <b>officers'</b> <b>s</b> 58:15  <b>often</b> 220:24  <b>Ohio's</b> 55:11  <b>Oklahoma</b> 122:21 123:15  <b>old</b> 48:22 56:12,14 196:5 198:25  <b>Oldham</b> 120:8,10, 12,14 121:10, 12,14,19, 21,24 122:3,20 123:2,4, 9,16,19, 21  <b>Oldham's</b> 124:3  <b>omitted</b> 69:22  <b>on</b> 4:23,24, 25 5:1,2 6:10,11, 18 7:11, 24 8:14 10:16 11:12,14, 18,23 12:13,14 13:21 15:8 18:3,21, 24 20:24	21:20 22:2,6,7 24:2 25:3,6,19 27:13 30:5 31:7 33:7,9,19 35:18,22 38:9,10 40:19 44:23 45:11 47:6 49:15 50:25 54:25 55:19,21, 24 56:11 57:20 58:6 62:14,19 72:19 73:10,13 75:3,24 76:1 82:15 87:2 88:20 89:13 90:8,16 91:1,4,6, 20,23 95:14 96:7,15 98:6,9,16 102:1,20 103:2 106:6,7,9 108:7 110:4,23 111:1,10 113:20 114:14,19 115:11, 14,20,25 116:2,6, 20,23 117:9 118:4,17 120:9
---	--	---	---	---	---

121:1,24	17,21	34:13	187:3,12	109:12	60:12,17
122:1,3, 8,15	191:12	39:5	188:17	110:4	<b>opinion</b>
123:20	192:13,25	49:9,18	189:17	117:24	7:14
124:19	193:13	53:8,19	192:1,3	122:8	<b>opportuni</b>
126:23	195:16	54:25	193:8,11	138:11	<b>ties</b>
127:8	196:20	56:11,18	194:16, 17,25	144:5	72:9
129:14	200:3	59:7	195:1,21	187:5,7	<b>opportuni</b>
130:3	201:15,20	68:4,23	197:9	188:3	<b>ty</b>
132:10,12	203:16,21	73:14,23	200:9	194:17,21	22:7
133:6,22, 25 134:6	204:5	75:1,11, 12,13,15	201:11, 15,16,18, 22,23	195:1	35:25
135:1,5	205:5,12	84:4 91:6	204:7,8, 10 209:7	199:13,14	52:25
136:17,20	207:21,23	96:5,11	216:3	200:3	57:22
138:1	208:2,10	99:14	225:6,11, 12,13,14, 24 226:24	201:11	72:10
140:3,4	209:25	100:25	227:17	<b>onto</b>	76:12
143:13	211:4,8	101:24	230:1	97:14	92:5 96:5
145:6	214:1	102:4,5,7	<b>one-year</b>	121:7	99:13
148:8	215:8	103:2	159:4	201:25	104:6
151:7,12, 13,20	217:3,11	104:6,23	<b>ones</b>	<b>open</b>	145:21
152:5	219:12,15	106:7	11:24	10:23	154:5
153:15	220:22	106:7	12:4 18:7	57:12,24	173:14
154:10	221:7,21	111:24	87:11,13	72:8	177:2
155:2,22	222:20	112:22	117:22,24	75:13,15	192:1
157:25	223:3,6, 12,13	114:2	120:22	178:8	197:9
160:1	228:21	116:1,15	154:23	<b>open-</b>	204:22,25
162:5,24	229:8	118:11	170:13,19	<b>carry</b>	205:3,6, 15 206:5
164:3,16	<b>on-base</b>	122:4,5	175:10	110:5	212:25
166:15	151:11	124:17,18	202:3	<b>opening</b>	216:8
167:22	<b>onboard</b>	126:17, 18,23	<b>online</b>	36:20	219:22
168:7	6:7	127:3,12, 14,21	61:3	<b>operate</b>	<b>oppose</b>
170:4,7, 20 171:1, 5,8,10, 11,14,16, 20 172:22	<b>once</b>	128:4,10, 11,25	122:1	26:17	59:5
176:12	14:24	129:1	<b>only</b>	<b>operated</b>	<b>Opposed</b>
177:18,21	44:14	130:2,3	11:19	26:11,12	59:4 68:2
178:6	67:3 68:7	132:20	20:24	27:9	111:21
179:8,20	82:8	134:1,6	24:1,10	<b>operates</b>	<b>opposite</b>
181:10	94:16	135:5,15	40:18	33:8	150:9
182:3	144:19	136:8	42:7,9	<b>operating</b>	<b>order</b>
184:1,19	204:7	138:22	44:6 48:3	26:1,16	4:5 49:17
185:8,10	<b>one</b>	141:6	63:1	27:10	56:16
186:12,16	6:24	143:11	68:23	<b>operation</b>	69:9
187:15,17	10:22	144:5	92:3 98:3	30:6	169:20
188:3,4, 19 189:2, 3,9,14,	11:5,7	145:25	101:24	226:23	225:7,8
	12:10	150:13	102:3,5	<b>operation</b>	227:14
	16:15	169:22		<b>s</b>	<b>orders</b>
	20:23	170:4,7, 12 175:9, 14 177:2		25:16	30:5,13, 16 42:14
	24:1	182:6		38:21	
	28:6,8				
	32:18				

<b>Oregon</b> 175:9,14, 18	67:7 70:6 80:8 83:1,3 87:10 98:14,21 101:14	123:17 127:22 151:11 157:15 186:12 188:3	131:7 132:10,18 133:5,13 134:7 135:23 136:18	175:24 176:25	166:14 168:6 179:19 181:9 187:10
<b>organized</b> 6:19	105:17 106:19,21 118:2 126:13, 15,17 136:8	200:4 205:17 221:24 223:11 224:2,9 226:20	138:14,24 139:7 141:13 142:9 147:21 149:4	<b>outcomes</b> 49:23	208:9 215:7 217:10
<b>original</b> 25:19 87:15 129:3 133:17	139:23 162:18 191:8 195:12 196:11 202:3 206:18 222:14 223:1 224:22 227:10,15 229:8	<b>ourselves</b> 61:12	155:23 156:21 158:23 161:18 163:21 165:11 167:17 169:11, 13,17,18 170:9,13 171:13 174:24,25 175:3,6, 9,14,18 177:4,15, 19 179:3, 5,11 180:25 182:6 185:6 187:2 192:25 193:3,7, 13 195:7, 13,16 198:3,5,6 201:4 203:18 207:18 213:7 224:1,4	<b>outlets</b> 38:1	<b>outside</b> 38:2 218:15
<b>originall y</b> 53:15 101:2 135:15 212:12	<b>otherwise</b> 16:18 82:12	<b>out</b> 8:12,13 11:23 12:2 15:19 18:3 26:5 31:3 41:11 44:4,8 46:21 47:2,3 48:12,23 50:5 55:12 57:7,17 62:4 66:9,17, 20 75:11 76:16 81:12 92:22 93:19 94:17 98:11 101:2,3, 7,11 102:1,6 104:8 109:11 110:4,12 112:1 115:18 117:3,4, 16 126:11 127:20	159:25 162:23 164:15	<b>outstandi ng</b> 28:11,20 39:1,13, 14 40:10, 14 46:7 58:6 74:17 75:25 228:25 229:10	<b>overturni ng</b> 107:1
<b>originati ng</b> 132:18	<b>ounce</b> 193:8			<b>over</b> 9:18,19 10:18 15:13 30:5 34:3 72:23 77:6,7 87:13 95:7 132:9 135:16,21 136:20 143:15 171:15 186:17 205:14 214:21 224:5	<b>owe</b> 43:8 178:5
<b>Ortega</b> 113:21, 22,24 114:6,9, 11 115:4, 6,7,10 116:5,14 117:8 118:6,9, 18 119:1, 9,13,16, 19,25 167:8,9, 12,15 168:2,6, 22	<b>our</b> 11:14,22 17:8 22:7 25:17 42:23 48:3 49:10,16 50:3,4 53:2,3,4, 10 65:22 69:7,25 88:11 89:24 96:2 98:15 101:23 102:13 103:3 108:7			<b>owed</b> 41:16,25 43:15	<b>own</b> 15:13 41:3 48:14 53:2 60:22 69:5 110:3 200:15
<b>Osama</b> 6:5				<b>owned</b> 95:5	<b>owner's</b> 209:8
<b>other</b> 8:18 15:15,21 18:7 24:5 34:14 45:15,16, 18 53:6 59:14 65:19				<b>overturn</b> 96:4 106:25 107:6 129:13 148:7 159:25 162:23 164:15	<b>oxycodone</b> 131:8,12
			<b>out-of- district</b> 134:5		<b>P</b>
			<b>out-of- state</b>		<b>p.m.</b> 154:22 155:3 184:3,7 222:15,21 230:7
					<b>page</b> 17:2,19 102:20 171:20

182:24	187:13,	<b>partial</b>	<b>past</b>	150:2	7:10
183:3	18,21,23	120:22	10:21	156:22	<b>people</b>
189:14	188:4	<b>particula</b>	46:7 89:9	178:16	49:14
<b>Pahrump</b>	189:1	<b>r</b>	187:19	201:3	80:8 81:6
130:4	<b>pardoned</b>	54:25	<b>path</b>	206:16	85:15
<b>paid</b>	187:18	66:17	138:2	224:22	91:20
41:17,25	<b>pardons</b>	<b>partner</b>	<b>patience</b>	226:6	100:3
42:2,6,10	187:3	60:13	29:11	227:5	135:19
43:3,7,	<b>park</b>	159:13	61:6	<b>pay-for-</b>	146:19
10,20	91:18	<b>parts</b>	79:24	<b>stay</b>	153:6
75:1	<b>parking</b>	81:3	154:11	37:25	155:23
110:11	143:17	<b>pass</b>	155:18	<b>paycheck</b>	202:14
170:1	174:8	111:25	167:4	226:13	203:19
200:24	218:17	<b>passage</b>	210:14	<b>payed</b>	<b>PEP</b>
201:5,8,	219:9	72:18	216:7	46:22	91:17
14	220:6	<b>passed</b>	<b>Patriot</b>	<b>paying</b>	<b>per</b>
<b>Pakistan</b>	<b>parks</b>	152:24	23:10	62:25	5:4 16:3
6:6,17,	48:23	156:20	25:17,19,	81:7	36:11
19,21	91:17,25	157:12	21 26:18	178:6	66:19
<b>Palameric</b>	<b>parole</b>	<b>passes</b>	27:1,8,9,	<b>payment</b>	97:6
<b>an</b>	87:3,5,14	13:13	25	44:3	125:15
55:25	88:8,10,	16:14	<b>patrol</b>	62:15,20,	142:15,
58:17	17 89:3,	20:21	19:13,15,	24 75:3	16,18
<b>Palo</b>	25 90:14	23:6 29:7	24,25	<b>payments</b>	227:14
127:19	131:14	32:14	35:19	56:7	<b>perceived</b>
<b>paper</b>	207:21	35:13	36:21	74:23	220:25
90:16	<b>part</b>	54:18	45:22,24	75:2 81:7	<b>percent</b>
116:7	16:16	59:9,10	51:12,13	<b>payroll</b>	49:23
122:2,3	20:24	64:3 68:5	54:1	46:20	50:1,3
<b>paperwork</b>	33:7	71:15	58:15,16	<b>PC</b>	146:15
38:12	37:23	79:16	63:12,13	74:8	223:11,15
78:4,14	38:4	83:24	91:18	126:22	225:5
98:15	48:2,22,	85:10	182:23,25	158:25	226:8,9,
102:11	25 60:12	104:4	<b>patrols</b>	161:21	20 227:2,
123:6	69:23	113:19	47:19	165:14	5,7,8,14
133:23	91:22	129:25	<b>Paul</b>	171:7,23,	229:3
141:14	95:4	145:19	147:13	24	<b>percents</b>
185:10,	98:14	155:14	182:24	209:11,14	227:15
12,22	103:8	158:12	183:3	<b>penal</b>	<b>perceptio</b>
188:18	132:4	160:12	<b>Pause</b>	38:9	<b>n</b>
189:7	178:16	173:9	215:3	125:11	62:2
<b>pardon</b>	190:2	183:15	<b>pawn</b>	<b>pending</b>	<b>perfect</b>
123:2	194:18	184:18	110:19	74:8	27:20
185:10,	196:3	210:12	<b>pay</b>	<b>Penh</b>	50:6
13,22	208:1	215:21	43:24		53:17
186:11,23	214:1				62:9,13

78:8	<b>phenomena</b>	203:21	104:7	15 7:8,	193:4,7,
82:21	<b>l</b>	<b>placed</b>	109:6	14,18,20,	10
108:16	51:1	5:2 19:16	112:1	21,22	194:18,22
139:21	<b>Philippin</b>	20:2	114:8	84:5,12,	195:7
159:19	<b>es</b>	45:25	120:12	23	197:23
206:24	7:11	51:14	131:2	<b>polygraph</b>	<b>possible</b>
207:1	<b>Phnom</b>	54:3	142:11	<b>ed</b>	12:21
216:12	7:10	58:16	145:22	6:4,5,7	49:16
<b>perform</b>	<b>phone</b>	63:14	156:1,5,	7:8,10	223:4
66:14	87:13	67:14	17 158:19	<b>polygraph</b>	<b>possibly</b>
<b>period</b>	117:14,	70:24	161:10,15	<b>s</b>	7:15
10:5,13	17,18	79:2	163:19	6:4	<b>posted</b>
11:4	127:15,	183:1	173:17	<b>porter</b>	62:1
57:15	18,23,24	189:19	174:19	206:23	<b>postpone</b>
177:16	132:9	<b>places</b>	185:1	<b>portion</b>	204:22,25
198:18	135:21	65:19	187:15	74:5	205:19
<b>permit</b>	171:11	66:10	192:2	85:14	221:16,20
98:1	<b>phrase</b>	<b>plan</b>	193:22	222:25	222:1
109:10	7:3	33:7,9	203:18	<b>position</b>	<b>postponed</b>
110:8,9	<b>physicall</b>	57:19	207:15	55:16,25	23:20,23
170:25	<b>y</b>	62:15,20,	211:23	57:16	32:17
187:21	188:21	24 72:2	213:16	114:15	93:23
<b>PERS</b>	<b>PI</b>	<b>pleasant</b>	216:15	<b>positions</b>	198:1
224:10	7:18	151:5	<b>plus</b>	55:14	<b>postponin</b>
<b>person</b>	69:10	<b>please</b>	36:16	<b>positive</b>	<b>g</b>
5:4 18:22	77:7	5:7,9	37:25	224:8	221:14
38:19	<b>piece</b>	8:11 9:13	170:4	<b>possess</b>	<b>postwar</b>
91:1	143:13	13:16,22	<b>PO</b>	131:8,12	6:22 7:5
102:7	<b>pieces</b>	15:17	138:8	<b>possessin</b>	<b>potential</b>
112:22	114:1	35:24	<b>pocito</b>	<b>g</b>	14:7
138:1,13	<b>PILB</b>	36:9	211:1	189:10	15:22
140:16	47:2	37:22	<b>point</b>	<b>possessio</b>	16:2
171:10	141:24	47:10,14,	41:6 44:8	<b>n</b>	<b>potential</b>
187:14	150:6	15 52:15	55:19	104:16,	45:12
188:1	173:15	55:4	56:1	19,21,22	49:22
192:25	224:22	59:19	<b>police</b>	105:3	<b>PPO</b>
204:9	<b>Pinnacle</b>	60:1,5	11:1	114:12,	53:3
<b>personal</b>	60:24	64:6,10	39:10,11	15,17	<b>practical</b>
15:12	<b>place</b>	65:4	48:24	142:17	<b>ity</b>
<b>personall</b>	66:10	71:21	69:3	163:21	220:17
<b>y</b>	97:4	76:16	72:24	169:9,18	<b>Prekop</b>
52:19	127:19	80:5,21	179:7	174:22	96:17,18,
<b>personnel</b>	169:12	84:9	198:20	177:19	19,20
49:16	193:5	85:21	<b>polygraph</b>	192:23	
		96:6,22	5:14,16,		
		99:16	25 6:1,2,		
		100:15	10,11,14,		

97:17,19, 20,23 98:13,19 99:15,20 <b>Prekop's</b> 96:24 99:1 <b>Premier</b> 15:14 16:25 182:18,22 <b>present</b> 23:17 64:9 66:18 85:22 156:4 194:1 <b>presentin g</b> 13:20 <b>pretty</b> 16:23 38:6 48:21 143:8 151:22 171:17 174:6 <b>preventio n</b> 53:1 <b>previous</b> 77:8 122:12 137:11 175:10 191:6 199:13 224:2 <b>previousl y</b> 26:1 70:11 77:4	102:6 162:2 164:1 167:19 214:15,22 216:20,23 <b>printed</b> 187:2 <b>printout</b> 121:23,24 <b>prints</b> 14:24 <b>prior</b> 36:13 65:16 69:9 138:14 146:14 192:25 <b>prison</b> 131:9,13 161:20 163:23 165:13 181:1 207:20 212:5 <b>prisoner</b> 125:18 <b>private</b> 4:1 19:13,15, 24,25 22:14 35:19 45:22,24 47:21,22 51:11,13 52:20 54:1,2 58:15 63:12,13 65:9,16 67:12,13 70:22,23 71:23	75:23 77:3,6 78:25 79:1,20 83:12 182:23, 24,25 <b>probably</b> 12:3 141:12 174:8 218:13 219:10 <b>probation</b> 97:10,11 101:1 104:17, 20,23 114:13 115:13 125:9,14 132:10 133:20 135:22,25 136:16,17 137:11,17 147:23 149:12 157:1 158:25 161:20,23 165:17 167:19 169:21 175:17 177:16,18 178:4 193:1,8,9 209:10 212:7 <b>problem</b> 41:2,3 172:16 189:9 207:7 216:1 <b>problems</b> 46:22	49:9 <b>proceed</b> 68:16 <b>proceedin g</b> 125:17 230:6 <b>process</b> 33:8,11 39:2,10 44:5 49:7 79:20 80:11 83:12 111:2 126:13 151:2 186:20,22 198:7 199:2 200:15 213:21 224:2 <b>processed</b> 10:14 <b>processin g</b> 11:15 <b>profanity</b> 150:12 <b>program</b> 121:2 142:19 <b>programs</b> 39:15 <b>prohibite d</b> 193:4 <b>prominent</b> 96:2 <b>promise</b> 112:6 <b>promises</b> 40:18	<b>promoting</b> 142:14,21 175:12 <b>proof</b> 42:8 43:23 44:7,9, 16,20,23 82:9 <b>proper</b> 31:4 <b>properly</b> 38:9 <b>property</b> 104:25 170:3 209:9 <b>prostitut ion</b> 175:10,12 <b>protect</b> 91:25 <b>protectio n</b> 25:24 27:19 28:1 29:23 31:1,3,9, 22 47:24 60:10,16, 20,21,24 <b>Protectiv e</b> 36:5 45:21 <b>proud</b> 225:20,25 226:4 <b>prove</b> 80:23 153:4,7 190:9	<b>provide</b> 34:3 41:23 42:22 47:25 48:6 78:4 81:10 94:18 117:10 120:17 125:12 146:13,14 150:22 164:4 212:24 213:12 <b>provided</b> 8:2 42:1, 8 44:23 45:1 62:23 122:22 126:12 181:3 182:7 185:9,22 198:7 205:13 209:12 213:4 <b>provides</b> 48:1 <b>providing</b> 181:11 <b>provision al</b> 10:12,15 87:6 94:14 97:14 101:15 105:6,8, 20 109:13 114:21, 24,25 117:22 121:7 125:21,
--	---	---	---	---	---

22,24	115:21	<b>Quarles</b>	189:8	103:9,11	217:5,7
131:16	116:20,23	36:6,7,	198:13	105:14	224:19
142:24	143:23	11,20	199:4	106:18,	227:20
148:1	146:6	37:2,3,4,	219:5	20,21	229:12
149:15	151:12	6,7,10,	<b>questions</b>	109:14	<b>quick</b>
157:3	152:23	12,14,16,	8:6,19,22	111:5,6	11:12
159:7	171:16	20,23	12:13,14,	115:3	54:22
162:7	189:3,9	38:11,17,	15,18,20	118:3,14	56:21
164:5	206:15,23	19 39:2	15:9	121:9	91:14
165:19	207:5	40:13	18:15	123:23,24	110:1
167:24	211:7	41:2,10,	19:7,10	125:25	112:13
209:15	219:11,15	17 42:12,	25:8	129:8,10	113:25
212:9	224:12	17,21,24	27:20,21,	131:18	154:10
216:19,23	<b>puts</b>	43:4,10,	22 30:21	139:22,24	155:19
<b>public</b>	46:23,24	17 44:11,	31:11,15	140:9,10	186:9
4:22 5:3,	<b>putting</b>	18 45:7,	34:7,8	143:1	189:14
6 9:5,6,7	227:3	23 46:2,5	37:1	145:2,3	<b>quite</b>
97:3		<b>quarter</b>	45:15,17,	146:23,25	16:17
108:7		10:22	18 47:1	148:2,4	38:25
169:12	<b>Q</b>	<b>quarterly</b>	50:13	149:18	45:3 53:6
185:7		9:19	51:4	153:11,12	84:14
193:5	<b>QA</b>	226:11,14	53:18,22	157:8,20,	103:6
204:23	60:24	<b>Quast</b>	56:3	22 159:9,	132:16
229:23,	61:23	84:5,7,8,	58:8,9,11	21,22	221:8
24,25	<b>qualified</b>	11,18,22	59:18	162:10,	
230:4	48:3,4	85:12	61:16	18,20	<b>R</b>
<b>pull</b>	60:15,18	<b>quest</b>	62:17	164:11,12	
15:21	<b>qualify</b>	173:16	63:6,7,8	165:21	<b>raid</b>
<b>pulled</b>	221:16	<b>question</b>	65:25	166:7,9,	143:17
15:11	<b>qualifyin</b>	11:12	67:7,8	11 168:1,	<b>raise</b>
28:16	<b>g</b>	12:7	69:13	3 170:15	13:22
72:23	20:2	14:10,25	70:14,18	172:17,19	64:10
103:4	22:17	21:8	72:12	175:20	85:21
143:16	23:9 28:3	25:10	74:14	176:7,9	156:5
182:6	31:24	30:24	75:17,19	177:23	193:19,23
<b>purchase</b>	33:19	31:6	76:16	179:14,16	213:15
26:9	38:15,19	34:11	77:13	181:4,6	224:23
<b>purchased</b>	45:5 46:1	41:10	78:18,19,	182:9,17,	226:6,12
186:7	51:15	42:4,14	21 80:14	19 185:15	<b>raised</b>
<b>pursue</b>	54:4	54:22	83:2,3	186:1	138:1
49:3	58:4,17	74:16	84:18,19	191:8,9	<b>raises</b>
<b>push</b>	59:13	77:10	87:18	194:9	226:7
220:11	63:15	78:9	91:12	195:10	<b>raising</b>
<b>put</b>	67:15	126:3	92:8 93:1	196:15,17	40:1
98:6	70:25	136:2	94:20	199:21,22	<b>Ram</b>
102:6,9	79:3	186:9	95:10,11	202:22,23	124:21,
	183:2	188:3,22	97:17	208:4,6	
			98:21,22	209:21,22	
			101:17	212:18	
				215:1,5	

22,25	44:24	26:8	120:25	62:19,22	<b>red</b>
125:2,4	188:4	36:10	121:4	68:18	102:20
126:1,14,	<b>real</b>	46:6 73:9	139:8	75:1	<b>Redlands</b>
17,19,22,	50:24	88:14	142:20,23	78:13	147:22
24 127:13	56:21	91:15	200:14	86:20	<b>reduce</b>
128:3,6,	91:14	92:3	217:1,2	95:4	41:24
13,16	113:25	123:10	223:12	108:1	<b>reduced</b>
129:13	154:10	189:21	224:1,4,	112:19	38:12
130:2,9,	189:14	<b>reasonabl</b>	14 226:18	116:7	42:9
11,13,15,	<b>realize</b>	<b>e</b>	<b>receiving</b>	145:7	43:7,14
16	94:25	118:24	11:20	155:21	44:3
<b>ranch</b>	95:4 98:5	220:8	22:2	158:1	209:8
199:15	<b>really</b>	221:22	104:25	172:23	<b>reduction</b>
<b>rated</b>	41:11	<b>reasons</b>	209:9	186:15	50:1
72:1	89:8	26:5	<b>recent</b>	194:14	<b>Reef</b>
<b>rather</b>	115:22	<b>recall</b>	87:4	196:21	47:21
150:11	132:11	87:13	90:13	198:11,25	<b>refer</b>
<b>Raymond</b>	138:1	94:17	<b>recently</b>	209:14	186:17
120:4	143:9	118:24	6:12	210:1	<b>reflect</b>
154:14	146:22	151:14,15	<b>rechecked</b>	211:5,8	43:25
<b>re-rent</b>	150:10	200:1	198:8	212:1,19	<b>reflected</b>
81:5	164:8	<b>receipts</b>	<b>reckless</b>	213:6	226:13
<b>reach</b>	176:3	42:1,15	149:7	214:13	<b>reflectio</b>
8:12	205:20	<b>receive</b>	150:3	221:15	<b>n</b>
47:1,3	215:25	30:13	<b>recollect</b>	223:9	45:11
69:25	224:3	33:21	<b>ion</b>	228:22	<b>regard</b>
76:16	229:14,16	68:19	150:16,18	229:6	30:8
94:17	<b>reapplica</b>	70:1	<b>record</b>	<b>records</b>	187:16
138:14	<b>tion</b>	78:14	4:9 8:10	25:4	<b>regarding</b>
<b>reached</b>	92:10	82:18	9:15	36:11	5:15 6:17
12:2	<b>reapplied</b>	186:16	11:17	43:12	40:14
75:11	77:5	223:15	13:19	56:14	41:10,20
126:11	214:23	226:9	14:15	121:15	138:16
138:24	<b>reapply</b>	<b>received</b>	18:2	<b>recovery</b>	150:22
170:9	76:13	5:18	21:19	49:23	<b>regardless</b>
<b>reaching</b>	96:6	10:11	23:19	50:3	102:22
92:22	104:6	11:25	28:7	<b>recreatio</b>	<b>s</b>
<b>read</b>	145:25	12:4	30:12,18	<b>n</b>	48:23
43:14	146:11	14:16,22,	33:17	<b>recruited</b>	<b>regards</b>
171:21	197:10	24 17:7	35:16	48:12,15	9:17
172:10,	204:7	34:18	38:10	<b>recuse</b>	69:18
12,13	<b>reapplyin</b>	53:3	39:17	32:24	226:16
188:21	<b>g</b>	69:19	40:12	55:2	<b>register</b>
<b>reading</b>	216:25	94:16	41:22	<b>recused</b>	136:3
42:12	<b>reason</b>	97:8,13	54:24	59:6	
	25:14	114:20	61:4		
		117:12			



138:10, 13,21	<b>release</b> 88:16 89:22 212:5	<b>remind</b> 189:14	<b>repairs</b> 81:3	70:8 74:19	<b>requestin g</b> 7:25 19:16 20:1 45:25 51:14 70:23 117:7
<b>registere d</b> 10:8 140:16	<b>released</b> 87:2 88:16 90:14 118:1 207:21	<b>reminder</b> 31:12 35:23 51:6 68:15	<b>repeat</b> 6:25 11:11 17:16 122:5	86:23 91:9 94:10 104:21 107:20 109:24 114:23 125:6,22 134:16, 19,21 169:15 170:5 171:3 182:12 185:12 187:7 207:25 211:3,7, 10 214:5, 9 216:21 225:22 226:1	<b>require</b> 90:16
<b>registrat ion</b> 85:14 86:7 99:1 221:21	<b>relieve</b> 187:12	<b>remove</b> 24:20,22 91:25 187:19 188:9 224:16	<b>reply</b> 185:9	<b>report</b> 39:10,11 82:15 90:12,13 97:2,7 103:3 121:2,6 140:3,4 142:18 146:2 164:5 193:11 195:21, 22,23 196:2 198:17 200:10 201:25 204:24 205:3 214:21 217:1,4	<b>requireme nt</b> 66:18 102:17 187:20 219:14
<b>registry</b> 136:11 137:20	<b>relist</b> 170:10	<b>removed</b> 15:19 39:3,6	<b>removes</b> 187:4	207:25 211:3,7, 10 214:5, 9 216:21 225:22 226:1	<b>requireme nts</b> 7:23 8:2 20:9 22:20 28:5 32:2 35:2 46:6 51:18 54:7 58:19 67:17 71:3 83:13 84:24 110:10 183:4
<b>regulatio n</b> 219:18	<b>relocate</b> 67:2	<b>removes</b> 187:4	<b>Rena</b> 80:2,8 83:6,7,8, 9	10 214:5, 9 216:21 225:22 226:1	<b>requireme nts</b> 7:23 8:2 20:9 22:20 28:5 32:2 35:2 46:6 51:18 54:7 58:19 67:17 71:3 83:13 84:24 110:10 183:4
<b>regulator y</b> 22:20 28:5 32:1 35:1 46:6 51:18 54:7 58:19 67:17 71:2 83:13 84:24 183:3	<b>relocated</b> 66:22,25	<b>Renecia</b> 216:3	<b>Rene</b> 79:21 83:6	<b>reports</b> 9:12 198:20	<b>requireme nts</b> 7:23 8:2 20:9 22:20 28:5 32:2 35:2 46:6 51:18 54:7 58:19 67:17 71:3 83:13 84:24 110:10 183:4
<b>regulatio n</b> 219:18	<b>relocated</b> 66:22,25	<b>Renecia</b> 216:3	<b>Rene</b> 79:21 83:6	<b>reports</b> 9:12 198:20	<b>requireme nts</b> 7:23 8:2 20:9 22:20 28:5 32:2 35:2 46:6 51:18 54:7 58:19 67:17 71:3 83:13 84:24 110:10 183:4
<b>regulator y</b> 22:20 28:5 32:1 35:1 46:6 51:18 54:7 58:19 67:17 71:2 83:13 84:24 183:3	<b>relocatin g</b> 66:20,21, 24	<b>renewal</b> 77:4 109:9 224:1	<b>Renecia</b> 216:3	<b>repossess ion</b> 57:18	<b>requireme nts</b> 7:23 8:2 20:9 22:20 28:5 32:2 35:2 46:6 51:18 54:7 58:19 67:17 71:3 83:13 84:24 110:10 183:4
<b>rehabilit ation</b> 187:13	<b>remain</b> 28:2 31:24	<b>renewing</b> 109:8	<b>Rene</b> 79:21 83:6	<b>represent</b> 18:5	<b>requireme nts</b> 7:23 8:2 20:9 22:20 28:5 32:2 35:2 46:6 51:18 54:7 58:19 67:17 71:3 83:13 84:24 110:10 183:4
<b>related</b> 6:16 100:21 120:23 125:18 127:2	<b>remember</b> 53:15 68:6 115:12,22 116:8,10, 15,23 117:16,18 119:11 144:8 149:22 199:5,11 200:12,13 201:9,11	<b>renewing</b> 109:8	<b>Renecia</b> 216:3	<b>reputatio n</b> 187:12	<b>research</b> 110:3
<b>relations</b> 5:20	<b>remembere d</b> 201:23,24 202:2	<b>renewing</b> 109:8	<b>Reno</b> 10:25	<b>request</b> 5:14 97:7 114:19 117:11 120:22 125:14 142:20	<b>reserve</b> 127:17,21
<b>relay</b> 212:25	<b>remembers</b> 197:25	<b>rent</b> 66:11	<b>renewal</b> 77:4 109:9 224:1	<b>reputatio n</b> 187:12	<b>reside</b> 66:15 68:7
		<b>rental</b> 81:6,8	<b>renewing</b> 109:8	<b>request</b> 5:14 97:7 114:19 117:11 120:22 125:14 142:20	<b>residence</b> 66:7
		<b>reoffendi ng</b> 88:16	<b>REPORTER</b> 6:23 7:3 9:22 10:6 11:9 14:21 17:16 18:12 19:18,21 28:19 29:13,19 46:3 47:3 52:23	<b>request</b> 5:14 97:7 114:19 117:11 120:22 125:14 142:20	<b>resist</b> 125:5,8
				<b>requested</b> 97:12 120:24 121:3 142:22	

<b>resolution</b> 8:15	<b>restrictions</b> 149:9	<b>retroactive</b> 227:4	40:1 42:5 46:21 47:5 50:23 51:3 57:9,13 60:2 64:11 65:14 69:12 73:3 74:13 82:1 85:20,21 90:9 91:1 92:6 98:13,19 99:20 107:23,24 109:21 110:10 112:7 115:18 116:23 120:9 126:18 130:5,12 132:19 133:2 136:23 138:17 139:21 141:9 144:4,7 147:5 155:20 156:5 161:1,5 168:23 171:20 172:11 173:19 182:4 186:4 188:11 190:18,21 193:19,24 197:15,17 203:25 204:12	205:24 211:12 213:15 218:6,16 225:1 228:17	<b>rooms</b> 222:17
<b>resolved</b> 40:21 62:11	<b>resubmitted</b> 170:11 11:24	<b>reunion</b> 199:15	<b>rights</b> 187:5,9, 17	<b>Ross</b> 104:9,11, 13,14 105:14, 16,17,24 106:1,4, 8,15,17, 24 107:2, 7,18,21 108:4,9, 13,16	
<b>resolvent</b> 40:23	<b>result</b> 120:18 131:14 133:9	<b>revealed</b> 205:9	<b>rise</b> 187:25	<b>roster</b> 94:15 97:15 105:6 115:1 121:8 142:25	
<b>respond</b> 48:5 152:9	<b>results</b> 10:17 11:13,21 14:17,23 22:4,13, 19 23:7 28:10,21 31:13,19, 25 34:18 35:1 36:2 40:19 68:19 94:16 198:13 205:20 217:2	<b>revoked</b> 149:11 193:10	<b>rival</b> 91:24	<b>rough</b> 151:5	
<b>respons-</b> 45:5		<b>Rezentes</b> 142:7,8, 11,13 143:2,4, 6,24 144:1,3, 6,8,13, 19,22 145:2,25 146:6,8, 16,18,21, 24 147:3	<b>Riverside</b> 167:18	<b>Roughly</b> 178:22	
<b>response</b> 49:10 105:12 211:20		<b>Ribbon</b> 55:9	<b>road</b> 72:20	<b>Roye</b> 207:11, 13,15 208:5,9, 24	
<b>responsibility</b> 38:16		<b>Rick</b> 4:20 84:14	<b>robbery</b> 120:16,20 180:25 207:18		
<b>responsible</b> 178:16		<b>ride</b> 127:16,24	<b>Robert</b> 68:10 70:21 173:24 183:18		
<b>rest</b> 115:23 116:19		<b>right</b> 9:23 10:16 13:22 17:8 19:20 21:4 24:24 30:6 36:24 38:14	<b>rock</b> 143:13		
<b>restating</b> 214:15	<b>retention</b> 226:12,14		<b>rocket</b> 6:18	<b>rude</b> 151:24 153:1 171:12	
<b>restitution</b> 41:16,20, 25 42:1 43:3,15 125:10 156:23 178:5,6, 8,16,20	<b>retire</b> 37:13 38:5 41:15		<b>roll</b> 4:6 48:12	<b>Ruiz</b> 210:21	
<b>restore</b> 187:5,9	<b>retired</b> 37:11,16 49:3 50:18 55:7 69:3		<b>Ronald</b> 124:21 129:13 158:17 180:15	<b>Ruiz-fregosa</b> 211:24	
<b>restrict</b> 5:5	<b>retirement</b> 37:17		<b>room</b> 64:5 85:16 155:24 193:21 203:19 222:16	<b>Ruiz-fregoso</b> 210:22, 23,24 211:15 214:4 215:8,24	

<b>rule</b> 123:17 204:6	152:1 184:5 190:3,14 196:5,6, 11 199:13 200:11 214:7,15	<b>sales</b> 81:9,14 104:16	19:4 20:16 23:1 29:2 32:8 35:8,20, 22 43:1 46:13 51:24 54:13 59:1 63:23 64:25 67:23 71:10 76:7 79:11 81:16 83:19 85:5 93:9 95:21 99:8 103:24 107:10 111:17 113:14,24 118:6 119:4,19 121:17 124:10 129:20 134:3 140:24 141:18 145:14 148:14 153:24 155:9 158:7 160:7 161:10 163:7 164:23 166:21 168:15 173:4 176:19 178:23 180:1 181:17 183:10	184:13 185:23 191:19 197:2 201:13 203:10 204:13 208:16 210:7 215:16 217:18 220:7,14 222:8 223:18 228:12	98:6 <b>SCOPE</b> 138:12,16 170:10 <b>scream</b> 226:25 <b>screamed</b> 151:1 <b>screw</b> 161:10 <b>sealed</b> 74:1,7 111:2 186:7 194:19,23 196:7 <b>seamless</b> 226:24 <b>seamlessl y</b> 228:23 <b>search</b> 6:20 108:11, 13,15 <b>seat</b> 18:9 47:14 86:5 158:19 <b>second</b> 11:8 13:2,3,7 16:5,8 20:11,13, 15 22:22, 25 28:23 29:1 32:4,7 35:4,5,7 45:2 46:9,12 51:21,23 54:9,10, 12 58:21,
<b>rules</b> 192:2		<b>salesman</b> 81:19			
<b>run</b> 81:4 82:19 186:11	<b>sake</b> 221:4	<b>Salisbury</b> 32:20,21 33:5,25 34:7,23, 24,25			
<b>running</b> 34:2 38:21 46:19 71:24,25 72:4 226:23	<b>Saks</b> 48:11	<b>Salisbury</b>			
<hr/> <b>S</b> <hr/>	<b>Saladino</b> 4:8,9,12, 14,16,19 8:12 9:14,15 11:16 17:3,6, 12,18 18:1,7 21:23 22:1 23:22 24:3,20 30:11,15 33:15 69:15 70:10,13 87:21 94:3 107:24 108:5,10, 14 130:22 186:14 198:10,24 223:7,9 224:24 225:2 226:16,22 227:2 228:4,19 229:5	<b>s'</b> 32:23			
<b>Saddam</b> 6:4		<b>same</b> 10:4,13 11:3 21:9,11, 13 30:24 31:6 45:2 55:14 132:15, 21,25 152:9 162:3 188:24 195:15 203:3,20 205:5,13, 20 228:25		<b>saying</b> 25:5 39:8 41:24 55:3 59:16 90:2 115:15 116:16 190:15 220:13	
<b>Safe</b> 114:21 115:1		<b>San</b> 55:11 56:13,17 57:1		<b>says</b> 38:8 44:6,22 57:20 98:15 102:21 123:6,7, 15,20 133:7,8, 23 134:4 150:9 171:21 186:6 187:3,15 188:5 225:18	
<b>safety</b> 204:23 221:4		<b>Sandals</b> 97:25 98:2			
<b>said</b> 7:4 18:23 37:8 40:14 42:16,25 43:7 44:15 69:9 77:16 90:13,14 95:3 98:17,20 102:1,3 116:1,9 117:5 136:19 138:19 144:13 151:20	<b>salary</b> 223:3,13, 14 <b>sale</b> 80:23	<b>Santa</b> 209:13		<b>scanned</b> 98:2 <b>scheduled</b> 43:22 114:6 <b>school</b>	
		<b>satisfied</b> 75:13			
		<b>satisfy</b> 65:12 76:14			
		<b>say</b> 13:8 16:9			

23,25	175:11,15	<b>section</b>	89:23	89:7	<b>September</b>
63:18,20,	176:15,	4:21	90:1,3	139:17	6:3 9:24
22 67:19,	16,18	56:14	110:7	<b>sent</b>	10:2,10
22 71:5,	179:22,25	154:10	133:22	30:16	12:17,24
7,9 76:3,	180:25	229:18,22	143:15	98:7	43:22
4,6 79:6,	181:13,	<b>Secured</b>	146:4	105:17	44:12
8,10	14,16	51:10	160:15,16	117:6	62:24
83:15,16,	183:6,9	<b>securing</b>	171:11,14	118:9	151:17,20
18 85:1,4	184:9,12	226:6	173:17	121:25	197:25
91:6	191:15,	<b>Securitas</b>	192:3	170:22	198:18
93:5,6,8	16,18	55:19	220:15	171:6	204:11,
95:17,18,	193:4	<b>Securitie</b>	224:12	174:4	16,20
20 99:3,	196:23,24	<b>s</b>	227:15	185:20	205:6,13,
5,7	197:1	152:20	228:24	<b>sentence</b>	18 206:6
100:22	203:6,9	<b>seeing</b>	<b>seeing</b>	97:10	216:24
103:2,17,	207:18	113:2	113:2	101:12	223:25
19,23	208:12,	124:19	124:19	120:17	224:15
107:4,6,9	13,15	<b>seem</b>	<b>seem</b>	149:6	<b>sequentia</b>
111:12,	210:3,4,6	119:14	119:14	159:4	<b>l</b>
14,16	212:8	219:16	219:16	194:19	11:6,8,10
113:10,	215:12,	<b>seems</b>	<b>seems</b>	195:18	<b>served</b>
11,13	13,15	128:25	128:25	196:4	105:18
118:21,23	217:14,17	141:11,13	141:11,13	<b>sentenced</b>	175:7
119:3	222:4,5,	<b>self</b>	<b>self</b>	147:23	<b>server</b>
122:4	7,23,24	106:12	106:12	149:5,8,	79:20
124:5,7,9	228:9,11	134:6	134:6	11	83:12
126:23	<b>secondary</b>	<b>sell</b>	<b>sell</b>	156:22,25	<b>service</b>
127:3,12	33:10	156:25	156:25	158:24	7:20
129:16,19	<b>seconds</b>	<b>selling</b>	<b>selling</b>	159:3	36:21
132:4,10,	13:4 16:6	67:2	67:2	161:19,23	37:25
20 135:5	22:23	<b>sells</b>	<b>sells</b>	162:1	48:7
140:1,14,	28:24	67:3	67:3	163:22	53:12
20,21,23	32:5	<b>Senate</b>	<b>Senate</b>	165:13,16	55:8
145:9,11,	46:10	7:12	7:12	167:18	80:11
13	67:20	<b>send</b>	<b>send</b>	175:16	101:12
148:10,13	85:2	49:14	49:14	177:15	109:12
153:19,	129:17	107:21	107:21	181:1	110:12,25
20,23	148:11	108:2,6	108:2,6	193:1,8,9	149:6
155:5,6,8	153:21	114:3	114:3	195:19	159:4
158:3,4,6	163:4	170:22	170:22	207:20	175:8
160:3,4,6	164:20	<b>sends</b>	<b>sends</b>	209:9	177:20
162:10	166:18	30:8	30:8	212:4	226:17
163:3,6	168:12	<b>sense</b>	<b>sense</b>	<b>separate</b>	<b>services</b>
164:9,19,	179:23	43:16,17	43:16,17	140:5	15:14
22	183:7	<b>see</b>	<b>see</b>	<b>separatel</b>	17:1
166:17,20	184:10	9:4	9:4	<b>y</b>	33:22
168:11,14	203:7	17:13,19	17:13,19	15:2,4	34:23
169:4	217:15	18:21	18:21		
172:25		33:12	33:12		
173:1,3		85:15	85:15		

36:15	81:1	210:19	<b>sir</b>	17,19	<b>SLS</b>
37:25	<b>shortly</b>	219:3	5:7 8:5	207:6,12	15:18
47:20	53:2	<b>sign</b>	9:1	210:13	17:21
51:11		98:16	18:10,13	224:24	19:12,22
60:21	<b>show</b>	102:21	19:5,19	<b>sit</b>	<b>Smith</b>
65:23	38:12,25	130:6	32:14	38:1 39:4	216:4,6,
69:6	49:3	189:15	35:14	44:18	8,11,16,
182:18,22	70:15	<b>signed</b>	36:9	184:23	18 217:6,
213:13	75:7,12	81:14	38:14	<b>situation</b>	10,25
<b>serving</b>	82:15,20	115:20	47:5	46:23	218:3
30:4	102:19	225:21	48:18	81:12	<b>snowstorm</b>
33:8,11	108:11	226:5	50:20	109:22	<b>s</b>
65:21	188:18	<b>significa</b>	52:10	110:4	55:11
214:3	<b>showed</b>	<b>nt</b>	66:6	144:23	<b>society</b>
<b>session</b>	75:3	6:14	72:19	<b>situation</b>	89:24
182:2	91:19	226:6	81:13	<b>s</b>	<b>sold</b>
225:21	102:9	<b>signing</b>	85:21	91:20	186:8
226:5	123:6	66:11,12	86:5,14	<b>six</b>	<b>Solutions</b>
<b>seven</b>	170:10	<b>signs</b>	88:24	5:21 11:4	25:24
11:4	189:1	206:21	91:6,14	74:18,20	28:2 52:8
118:10	<b>showing</b>	<b>simplifie</b>	92:16	177:20	53:25
189:15,16	42:1,15	<b>d</b>	94:1	<b>six-</b>	60:14,25
<b>several</b>	140:5	60:21	96:1,19	<b>figure</b>	61:23
12:8 98:2	<b>shown</b>	<b>since</b>	98:11	57:15	<b>Somalia</b>
173:13	152:12	5:20 7:21	109:2	<b>Sixty-</b>	47:19
176:25	<b>shows</b>	30:5	110:19	<b>three</b>	<b>some</b>
<b>sex</b>	38:10	48:15	111:1	147:10	6:14
187:12	75:2	60:14	118:4,5	<b>Skahill</b>	10:23
<b>share</b>	87:2,5	63:2	146:7,17,	68:10,13	18:3
40:18	90:14	65:16	19 147:14	69:3,13	25:16
45:2	<b>shred</b>	69:24	148:19	70:21	35:21
<b>sheet</b>	125:16	70:15	160:13	<b>skill</b>	38:25
101:13	<b>Shyloh</b>	74:17,19	161:6	49:15	39:3
<b>shelter</b>	47:12	88:3 95:5	167:1,11	<b>skip</b>	41:23
55:23	48:9	99:25	168:20	80:11	48:14
102:2,8	51:17	100:4	169:3	<b>skirting</b>	56:6
<b>sheriff</b>	<b>sic</b>	110:12,13	180:16	41:13	57:12
143:17	51:16	136:25	182:13	<b>slash</b>	58:5
<b>sheriff's</b>	52:11	137:15,24	184:25	156:25	59:11
150:2	82:14	138:2	190:11	165:16	69:21,22
<b>shop</b>	154:22	219:9	192:3,7,	221:20	84:14
110:19	<b>side</b>	<b>sincerest</b>	12	<b>slow</b>	87:10
<b>short</b>	72:20	5:11	193:15,	6:24,25	89:23
65:18	229:8	<b>single</b>	18,23	226:1	90:3
	<b>Sigmon</b>	204:9	197:16		120:22
			198:23		122:18
			202:17		
			204:20		
			205:8,12		
			206:6,9,		

126:12	28:19	<b>sounds</b>	<b>specifica</b>	213:17,18	223:11,15
139:15	29:13	43:24	<b>lly</b>	<b>standard</b>	226:6,8
182:6	34:11	188:9	74:5	187:22	227:16
<b>somebody</b>	39:23	<b>south</b>	<b>sped</b>	<b>standpoin</b>	<b>State's</b>
45:12	40:24	5:6 9:3	10:19	<b>t</b>	187:2
103:5	41:19	225:1,2	<b>speed</b>	45:14	<b>stated</b>
152:8	46:3	229:24	165:16	<b>stands</b>	57:25
210:25	56:22	<b>Southern</b>	223:6	43:9	62:23
<b>somebody'</b>	61:1,3,10	5:19	<b>spell</b>	<b>start</b>	113:7
<b>s</b>	64:21	55:22	18:12	36:1	118:1
48:6	66:23	<b>Spanish</b>	<b>spent</b>	46:24	121:2
<b>someone</b>	70:8	210:25	5:23	53:2	122:25
49:20	71:13	211:4,11	47:18	59:15	123:5
135:21	73:6,19	<b>Sparks</b>	48:14	77:8 92:2	142:18
136:18	74:19	10:25	50:25	113:25	186:6
<b>someone's</b>	77:20	<b>speak</b>	<b>spiel</b>	182:5	213:1
49:21,22	82:12	5:11 8:8	35:22	<b>started</b>	214:14
<b>something</b>	84:6	9:22	229:23	4:5 48:23	<b>statement</b>
39:11	86:23,24	18:24	<b>spoke</b>	50:5	191:7
45:11	91:9	19:19	18:23	52:20	<b>states</b>
91:14	93:23	33:19,25	56:10	55:12	7:21
128:11	94:10,12	34:1	62:6 91:3	60:14	53:11
185:23	100:6,8	62:11	117:3	61:23	69:20
187:2	107:19,20	86:23	171:10	101:2,3,7	74:5 77:7
211:8	109:24	94:10	<b>spot</b>	135:16	96:7
223:20	114:15,23	210:25	220:6	<b>starting</b>	135:3
227:6	125:6,7,8	<b>speaker</b>	<b>Sprinter</b>	61:6	<b>stating</b>
<b>sometimes</b>	134:16	6:11	81:1	226:9	70:2
10:18	142:15,16	<b>speaking</b>	<b>squared</b>	<b>starts</b>	209:13
<b>somewhere</b>	143:22	87:12	139:1	45:5 58:5	<b>stats</b>
174:9	144:10	205:12	<b>staff</b>	<b>state</b>	9:17,19
178:23,24	154:21	<b>special</b>	150:6,13,	4:1 5:9	<b>status</b>
219:9	169:15	5:15 7:25	25 151:12	11:20	34:24
221:23	171:3	8:8	153:1	29:14	74:25
<b>soon</b>	182:12	60:12,17	199:3	30:18	140:15
174:6	189:16	<b>specialis</b>	223:12	33:6,14,	<b>status-</b>
<b>sorry</b>	192:17,19	<b>t</b>	229:6	22 53:13	<b>name</b>
6:23 10:6	194:9	11:22	<b>stand</b>	55:17,23,	23:9
12:23	205:21	17:9 53:1	13:22	24 65:11,	<b>statute</b>
14:21	207:25	<b>Specialis</b>	61:8 64:7	23 66:14,	125:15
17:16	210:23	<b>ts</b>	85:18	18 110:5	187:16
19:18	212:20,21	69:5	156:1	116:7	219:18
20:6	213:3	70:7,25	193:22	122:24	<b>statutory</b>
21:1,23	214:12	<b>SOT</b>	200:11	136:14	7:23 8:1
26:15	216:21	95:6		137:1	20:8
	225:22			138:6	

22:20	208:23	<b>sting</b>	<b>studied</b>	<b>subsequen</b>	133:14
28:5 32:1	<b>Stern</b>	132:5, 23,	47:24	<b>t</b>	135:9, 13
35:1 46:5	5:10, 11	24 135:17	<b>stuff</b>	13:21	136:15
51:18	7:2, 5	<b>stipulati</b>	47:22	87:16	178:8
54:6	8:6, 16, 22	<b>ons</b>	92:22	182:7	212:5
58:19	9:1	137:16	98:3, 9	<b>Subsequen</b>	<b>supervisi</b>
67:16	<b>Steve</b>	<b>Stobie</b>	115:13, 23	<b>tly</b>	<b>on</b>
71:2	17:23	47:12, 13	141:8	48:14	89:6
83:13	<b>Steven</b>	48:9	157:15	<b>subsidiar</b>	135:20
84:23	17:22, 23	51:17	171:15	<b>y</b>	136:13,
183:3	19:14, 24	<b>stolen</b>	188:20	27:8	23, 25
<b>stay</b>	20:3, 4	81:4	198:22	<b>substance</b>	137:13, 14
16:17	<b>still</b>	104:25	<b>stumbling</b>	105:4	<b>superviso</b>
89:13	10:15, 22	209:9	109:19	114:12,	<b>r</b>
101:11	21:14	<b>stop</b>	<b>stupid</b>	16, 18	5:24
109:11	26:25	98:16	110:2, 3	131:8	36:13
112:1	27:2	102:21	115:14	142:18	<b>Superviso</b>
<b>stayed</b>	35:21	123:6	<b>subject</b>	163:21	<b>ry</b>
110:12	36:1	189:15	20:8	169:19	9:18
199:15	38:10	190:11	22:19	177:20	<b>supplied</b>
201:7	42:5	<b>stopped</b>	28:5 32:1	<b>substance</b>	186:20
<b>staying</b>	43:2, 8,	61:11	35:1 46:5	<b>s</b>	<b>support</b>
102:2, 7	14, 15	<b>story</b>	51:18	212:4	70:15
227:13	55:3 59:8	81:1	54:6	<b>substitut</b>	173:16
<b>steady</b>	74:2, 25	144:18	58:18	<b>e</b>	177:3
138:2	75:13	<b>straight</b>	67:16	187:11	<b>supportin</b>
<b>stemmed</b>	77:24	41:2	71:2	<b>such</b>	<b>g</b>
87:15	81:4	110:2	83:13	53:5 78:4	59:14
<b>step</b>	90:16	138:18	84:23	<b>sudden</b>	84:15
29:13	95:4	<b>straighte</b>	183:3	192:10	<b>supports</b>
<b>Stephen</b>	98:17	<b>ned</b>	<b>submit</b>	<b>suffocati</b>	224:13
30:2 32:1	127:25	26:5	39:11	<b>ng</b>	<b>supposed</b>
<b>steps</b>	129:3	<b>strangula</b>	121:20, 22	106:9	134:8
12:12	132:10	<b>tion</b>	198:15	<b>suggestio</b>	139:7
59:19	133:6	101:4	199:3	<b>n</b>	151:16, 19
69:11	138:15	<b>street</b>	<b>submitted</b>	227:9	152:17
107:16	139:25	51:1	38:11	<b>Sun</b>	154:22
119:23	159:12	115:14	39:10	55:24	184:2
158:14	178:5, 8,	<b>streets</b>	147:25	<b>Superior</b>	188:20
160:25	15 195:20	115:11	149:15	209:12	194:19
163:13	199:8	<b>stroke</b>	157:2	<b>supervise</b>	<b>supposedl</b>
165:4	200:11	49:22	159:6	<b>d</b>	<b>y</b>
167:2	203:2		162:6	132:10	195:2
168:21	205:20		165:18		
180:10	214:10		167:23		
181:24	218:12				
	224:1				

<b>sure</b> 18:20 29:16 38:21 50:19 75:16 77:23 85:16 87:9 96:6 103:8 119:13 138:5 140:15 141:8 146:15 155:19 178:21 195:16 207:9 219:7 226:14 227:8 229:13	11:10 169:6,8, 16 170:6 174:3,19, 21 177:11,13 180:21,23 185:1,3, 13,17,19 187:1,9 188:6,8 192:20,22 195:4,6, 12,14 197:20,22 207:14,16 208:2 218:10, 13,24 221:23 229:1	<b>sworn</b> 14:2 40:5 53:15 60:2 64:6,17 79:25 85:17 86:3 123:3 155:25 156:12 167:10 169:3 174:16 180:18 193:16,21 194:6 213:23 216:10	<b>take</b> 7:24 34:3 45:13 57:3 61:2 112:12,13 113:4 139:15 142:1 155:19 172:12 223:21 224:9	105:21,22 106:1 192:6 194:24	13:23 33:2 36:9 38:18 40:2,9 47:15 52:15 55:4 60:1,5 64:12 65:4 69:1 71:21 76:25 80:5 84:9 85:23 86:17 94:5 96:22 100:15 114:8 115:10 119:10 120:12 125:2 131:3 142:11 146:1 147:17 148:25 150:3 156:7,17 161:15 163:19 165:8 167:14 169:6 171:13 177:12 180:21 185:2 192:12,20 194:1 197:20 204:17 207:15 209:4 211:23 216:16
<b>Surprise</b> 98:12	<b>SWAT</b> 5:23 127:23	<b>system</b> 151:11	<b>taken</b> 27:6,7 45:4 72:25 78:15 82:20 141:22	<b>Tammy</b> 55:18	
<b>surprised</b> 198:24	<b>swear</b> 13:16,23 39:22 40:2 61:8 64:7,12 85:23 156:2,6 194:1 201:11 213:9,19	<b>table</b> 220:25 221:16,19	<b>takes</b> 204:7,8	<b>Tano</b> 76:22,24 77:3,12, 16,17,18, 19,23 78:1,5,7, 25 79:4, 18	
<b>surrender ed</b> 134:6		<b>tabling</b> 221:13	<b>taking</b> 10:17 26:10 38:23,24 41:3,4,12 48:5 209:7	<b>tax</b> 179:4	
<b>surveillance</b> 69:8	<b>Swendra</b> 52:9,13, 17,19,24 53:16 54:2,6,20	<b>TACMED</b> 47:7 49:9 51:1,10	<b>talk</b> 56:6,18 61:20 77:22 105:16 150:5 157:12 178:25 229:7	<b>team</b> 5:23 9:4 48:15 60:12 92:1 127:23 229:8	
<b>suspects</b> 7:10	<b>switch</b> 104:16	<b>tactical</b> 47:22 50:8 60:16	<b>tactical</b> 47:22 50:8 60:16	<b>teams</b> 60:16	
<b>suspended</b> 97:10 101:12 120:17 149:6,11 159:4 169:21 177:16	<b>swoop</b> 136:19	<b>tacticall y</b> 48:3 49:17	<b>talked</b> 50:6 56:14 98:4 102:7 137:4 160:18 188:25	<b>technical</b> 61:6	
<b>Swarthout</b> 9:19,20, 23 10:8	<b>swore</b> 39:21 213:9	<b>Taifia</b> 156:15	<b>talking</b> 73:17	<b>technical ity</b> 26:4	
		<b>tailored</b> 219:17		<b>technical ly</b> 42:5 90:15	
				<b>Ted</b> 108:22 113:1	
				<b>telephone</b> 136:20	
				<b>televisio n</b> 49:3	
				<b>tell</b> 6:14	<b>telling</b> 39:6,7



88:25	<b>testimony</b>	52:6,14,	161:13	43:1	170:3
<b>tells</b>	45:1	17 54:20	162:8,17	44:14	177:15
43:21,23	56:24	59:16,20	163:13	45:10	<b>theirs</b>
<b>temporary</b>	176:2	61:5	164:7,9	46:20	68:24
100:17	200:14	62:13	165:4	50:9	<b>them</b>
<b>ten</b>	<b>tests</b>	63:5	166:8	55:18,22	10:19
95:7	6:15	64:18,19	167:3,6	67:5 72:2	11:5,7
112:17	<b>Texas</b>	65:2 67:5	168:8,9,	73:22	22:2
169:20	71:24	68:8,9,25	22 169:2,	75:15	34:18
171:15	131:7	70:17	5 172:15	76:15	39:3,7
<b>ten-</b>	132:11,18	71:17	173:19	82:22	40:15
<b>minute</b>	133:5	73:3	174:11,18	89:9	42:17,19,
61:2	135:6,11	74:14	176:6	90:2,3	21 49:15,
112:13	136:16	76:19,20	177:6,7	91:18	24 50:2
<b>terminate</b>	<b>Thailand</b>	78:17	179:13	92:3,17,	56:18
225:6	7:7	79:18,24	180:7,8,	19 98:10	62:2,4
<b>terminate</b>	<b>than</b>	84:1,3,8	11 181:25	99:24	80:24
<b>d</b>	7:16,17	85:12,13	188:2	102:5,10	81:8,15,
44:15,17,	43:8 48:1	86:4 88:1	192:3,15	106:16	17,18
21 89:3	145:23	92:23	194:7,8	119:16,	98:6
90:7	193:8	93:17,18,	195:24	18,19	102:16,24
<b>terms</b>	<b>thank</b>	21 96:8,9	197:14	123:11	114:1,20
59:14	8:4,5,16	99:20,21	201:2	126:11	116:19
<b>Terrance</b>	9:1,2,10	104:8	205:24,25	128:8	117:12
96:17	13:15,18	107:8	206:1	129:5	121:16
98:25	14:4,5	108:16,17	208:22,24	130:3	122:18
<b>terrorism</b>	18:11	110:16	209:1,20	132:9	125:16
6:20	19:21	111:3,4	210:13	133:14	126:6
<b>terrorist</b>	21:5,6	112:8,10	212:17	136:2	141:20,23
6:4	23:15	116:4	214:25	137:3,7,8	142:20,23
126:22	24:17	119:1,9,	216:2,7,8	144:15,17	147:1
<b>terrorize</b>	27:20	25 120:2	217:25	171:24	149:22
169:25	29:8,9,	122:16	218:3	178:9	150:7
<b>test</b>	10,11,12,	124:20	222:13	179:11	151:13
152:24	19,20,21	130:13,14	223:8	185:21	170:22,25
<b>testified</b>	30:10,17	142:8	228:19	187:15	171:1,5
7:12	31:10	144:7,12	229:15,17	194:17,22	186:8,21
205:8	32:15	147:3,5	<b>Thanks</b>	195:15	188:25
<b>testify</b>	33:2	148:19	21:4 52:4	203:23	189:1,17
64:10	34:6,19	149:17	<b>that's</b>	204:8,9	194:16
85:22	35:17	153:10	16:23	205:22	199:9,11
156:4	36:24	154:4,7,	19:21	206:12	200:12,14
193:25	39:24	11	22:2	214:20	217:2
	40:7 41:8	155:14,20	26:12	223:20	229:14,15
	47:5	156:13	36:22	224:9,25	<b>then</b>
	48:19	157:19	37:10,12,	227:8	11:2
	50:12	158:15	20 38:17,	<b>theft</b>	14:24
		159:19	20 39:12	161:18,	15:22
		160:14,	41:14	23,25	
		21,23			

16:19	179:6	<b>these</b>	32:24	12:3,22	91:21
17:20	186:8	18:3 25:8	38:11	14:8	92:9,10,
24:5	189:6	39:13	41:14	15:10	12 93:2,
35:20	192:9,10	40:9 53:9	56:12	16:1	19 94:22
39:9	195:16	61:7	59:11,12	17:11	95:13
47:11	201:5,7	81:11	73:15	18:5,18	97:18
49:16	214:5	92:15	81:14,25	19:11	98:12,24
55:19,21,	219:4	100:3	88:10	20:8	99:4,22
23 56:19	220:5	112:21	90:17	22:11,19	100:19,25
57:10	221:5	115:23	105:21	23:25	101:2,7,
59:6	227:23,24	154:21	106:2	24:9 25:9	19
60:14	<b>there's</b>	170:13	107:22	26:4	103:13,18
61:7	11:19	195:12	110:5	28:6,8	105:1,4,
62:14	25:1,3,7	199:6	115:24,25	32:22	15 106:23
65:22	31:15	200:3,5	118:10	33:20	107:5
69:24	33:18	202:11	121:21	34:22	109:16
70:5	39:8	219:16	126:21	35:20	110:14,17
74:15	40:22	229:10	135:23	37:5	111:8,13
80:19	47:11	<b>they'll</b>	136:17	41:6,9	114:2,3
82:8	49:25	40:18	152:25	44:8	115:5,18
87:13,16	52:12	108:13,14	182:5	45:20	117:1
94:18	53:22	141:25	186:11	46:5,6,24	118:16,22
95:5 98:7	57:13	165:4	190:22	48:15,16,	120:18,23
101:4	63:8	197:12,13	194:17,20	22 50:7,	121:11
102:2,7	70:18	<b>they've</b>	195:15	9,13,14,	123:15
106:11	74:4	229:12,13	201:7	23 51:9,	124:1,6,
112:13	92:25	<b>thing</b>	211:17	18,20	15
114:17	98:21	42:9	212:24	53:9	125:10,18
115:16,	100:24	48:14	218:7,21	54:25	126:2
17,23	115:21	122:8	219:21	56:1,5	128:11,
116:13,18	116:1,20	130:2,3	225:12	57:3,19	14,25
117:11,25	117:5,15	137:3	227:3,5	58:13,18,	129:12
121:5,20	120:3	138:11	228:23	22 61:18	130:5,7
122:9,10	135:6	188:17	<b>third</b>	62:24	131:9,14,
125:10	139:15	193:11	11:5,8,10	63:10,19	24 134:1
126:11,21	140:10	194:17,21	114:2	66:2	135:16,24
127:6,14	159:16	<b>things</b>	116:1	69:9,20	137:25
132:20	166:11	38:24	129:2	70:20	138:8,18
134:10	171:20	91:19,23	175:11	71:2,6	139:8,18
135:9,21	187:19	92:1	193:5	72:1,13	140:6,12
136:25	202:23	171:8	<b>Thirty-</b>	73:4	141:4,8
137:24	204:24	187:3	<b>five</b>	75:21	143:3,14
138:2,15,	205:20	189:6	10:22	77:15	145:5,10
24 139:8	206:19	<b>think</b>	<b>this</b>	78:12,23	149:9,12
141:25	211:4	8:20,24,	4:21 5:1,	80:9,15	150:23
142:19	217:3,7	25 15:3	12 8:7	81:11	151:1
143:10	229:23,24	26:10,11	10:21	82:14	153:14
146:1,4,	<b>Therefore</b>		11:4,7	87:21,23	154:21,
6,8 150:5	7:18			88:15	22,25
154:10				89:9	155:24

157:1,11, 24 159:4 161:23 162:1,5, 11,13,16 164:3 165:17,25 167:20,22 169:4 171:20 172:21 174:8 175:9,14 177:18,25 179:18 185:8,16 186:22 188:13 190:14,16 195:11 196:19 198:12,19 199:2,24 200:1 201:4,10 202:15, 16,25 204:21 205:17 207:7 208:2 209:18,24 212:8,13 213:21 214:1 219:8,20, 23 220:20 221:7,11, 19 223:16 224:11,21 225:4 226:3,5, 9,10,11, 13,20,23 227:12, 21,22,23 228:2,8 229:13 230:3	<b>thorough</b> 102:14 <b>those</b> 10:16,19 13:20 15:8,19 57:23 64:9 68:24 74:22,25 81:6,10 82:15,20 85:22 113:4 151:12 156:4 171:8 186:19 193:25 199:3 <b>though</b> 24:2 90:18 123:8 128:25 134:3 <b>thought</b> 114:4 121:15 171:17 175:25 176:3 179:4 194:21,23 196:3,9 223:24 224:5 227:1 <b>thousand</b> 136:17 <b>threat</b> 126:22 <b>threaten</b> 127:16 <b>threatene</b> <b>d</b>	127:23 169:24 <b>three</b> 5:21 11:8,9,11 23:16 50:23 51:7 57:14 66:10 68:4 104:16 111:24 113:4 114:13 115:24 125:9 126:9 127:5 128:5 129:1 147:23 157:1 158:24 161:19 169:21 204:15,18 209:10 212:7 <b>through</b> 8:21 12:1,10 14:7 15:7 39:9,15 49:1,4,7 69:11 76:14 81:6 84:12 91:4 112:12,21 114:3 152:24 186:7 199:2 200:15 218:6 224:1,4 225:19	229:13,23 <b>throughou</b> <b>t</b> 6:10 87:3 126:13 143:8 <b>ticket</b> 95:3 <b>tight-run</b> 36:16 <b>till</b> 21:15 55:15 220:22 <b>time</b> 8:4,7,17 10:4,13 11:4 22:8 26:10 30:5 38:12 46:25 48:14,23 49:11 50:4 52:18 54:20 55:12 57:7,15 69:23 72:1 73:23 74:2 84:14 92:13 95:2 98:8 103:20 105:19 110:11,18 111:22 115:11 117:13 121:16 122:6 123:7 124:15 127:7	131:10 132:11,12 133:3 137:25 141:4 154:8 162:4,13, 16 167:4, 23 169:4 186:3 198:12 199:13,14 200:9,24 202:15 203:24 212:8,13 217:1 219:16,20 221:11 225:6,11, 12,13,14, 24 227:3 <b>times</b> 66:10 91:24 98:2 <b>tired</b> 146:23 <b>TM</b> 69:19 <b>to</b> 4:5,24 5:3,5,7, 11,13,14, 15 6:14, 16 7:9,20 8:3,8,12, 13,14,22, 25 9:11, 16,17,18, 19 10:18, 19,20 11:23,25 12:2,7, 16,18,23 13:20,23 14:11,19, 23,25	15:1,11, 21 16:2, 16,18,19, 25 17:4, 7,9,11, 13,19 18:4,5,21 19:12,22 20:3,8 21:1,5,20 22:8,12, 18,19 23:7,20, 24,25 24:10,11, 18,19,20 25:17 26:10,13, 17 27:7, 9,13,25 28:1,3,5 29:14,24 30:15 31:4,18, 23,24 32:1,24 33:9,25 34:1,3,4, 23 35:1, 14,18,19, 20,25 36:2,3, 13,22 37:6,17, 19,21,24 38:2,3,5, 12 39:3, 5,22 40:2,15, 17,19,20 41:1,6, 14,24 42:10,11, 22,23 43:1,5, 22,25 44:3,4,13 45:4,9, 10,11,12, 13,21
---	---	--	--	---	---

46:1,4,5, 18,20,21, 24,25 47:1,2,3, 6,23,25 48:2,4, 12,15,16, 21 49:3, 7,12,14, 17,20,24 50:2,4,5, 6,19,23 51:2,8, 10,16,18 52:5,25 53:2,11, 12,25 54:2,4,6, 19 55:1, 2,11,13, 19,21,24 56:6,9, 15,16,17, 25 57:3, 15,19,21, 23 58:19, 23 59:7, 8,15 60:11,18, 19,20,22 61:1,20 62:1,3,4, 6,18 63:15 64:4,9,12 65:12,16, 19,23 66:11,14, 18 67:2, 3,11,13, 15,16 68:4,6 69:9,10, 16,17,19, 20,25 70:15,21 71:1,2,16 72:2,8, 10,14 73:24	74:1,6,9 75:1,11, 22,24 76:12,16, 21 77:8, 16,22 78:7,16 79:3,17 80:16,18, 23,25 81:4,5,7, 10,17,21, 25 82:3, 5,9,23,24 83:6,13 84:2,12, 15,22,23 85:11,15, 22,23 86:6,22 87:1,7,16 88:11 89:4,11, 20,22,23, 24 90:1, 4,9,16 91:14,15, 19,24 92:22 93:3,18 94:10,15, 17,18,19 95:3 96:3,5, 12,14,24, 25 97:15, 21 98:4, 5,8,9,25 99:14,19, 21 100:17, 18,21,24 101:6,11, 13,15,22, 24 102:7, 9,18,21, 24 103:7, 8,14,19, 20,21 104:5,6	105:6,16 106:24 107:6,21 108:5,6, 13,14,18 109:10, 13,23,25 111:2,24 112:12, 13,14,16, 20 113:3, 6,7,20,24 114:11, 21,22,24 115:1,8, 18 116:5, 14,15,20 117:3,10, 16 118:6, 11,18,23, 24 119:15, 19,20,21 120:2,15, 23 121:8, 12,14 122:11 123:8,10, 18 124:2, 3,16,17, 18,19,20 125:12, 18,21 126:11 127:2,15, 16,20,21, 23,24 128:24 129:13 130:2,3 131:6,7, 9,12,17 132:2,7, 12 134:8 135:25 136:3,8 137:4,5 138:4,10, 13,14,16, 21,24	139:1,6, 7,10,12, 14,15 140:2,13, 14,15 141:5,6, 7,8,17, 19,20,21 142:1,13, 25 143:4, 14,16,21, 23 144:8, 18,23 145:20, 21,23 146:1,11, 12,13,14 147:1,6, 23 148:1, 7,20 149:5,8, 11,16,21 150:2,3,5 151:2,16, 19,21 152:9,12, 17,22 153:1,4, 5,6,7,15, 17 154:5, 7,9,10,22 155:1,2, 19 156:4, 7,21,22, 25 157:4, 5,12,13, 16,17 158:16,24 159:3,8, 25 160:13, 15,16,18, 24 161:19,23 162:1,7, 12,14,23 163:1,23 164:1,4, 5,15,17 165:3,13,	16,20 166:14 167:19, 20,24 168:6,23 169:3,10, 24,25 170:9,12, 22 171:1, 5,12,13, 14,16,19, 22 172:3, 12 173:14,16 174:4,15 175:16,23 176:12 177:2,3, 7,15,16 178:5,16, 23,25 179:4,8, 19 180:9, 12,13 181:1,9, 23 182:1, 7,22,24 183:2,3, 16,21 184:2,5, 6,23 185:4,10, 21 186:17,18 187:5,13, 16,25 188:4,5, 15,18,20, 25 189:9, 11,21,24 190:4,9 191:6,12 192:1,3, 24 193:1, 8,9,11, 15,25 194:1,15, 19,20,21 195:18 196:9	197:8,9, 15,24 198:1,14, 15,19,21, 22 199:3 200:7,9, 10,20 201:14,25 203:1,23 204:16, 18,22,25 205:4,6, 14,15,19, 21 206:12, 15,16,22 207:2,4, 8,19,20, 23 208:3, 9 209:1, 7,9,11, 14,15,17 211:3 212:2,4, 9,10,12, 23,24,25 213:3,8, 12,17,19, 21 214:2, 10,14,23 215:7 216:24 217:4,10, 23 218:8 219:15, 16,17,18, 21,25 220:5,7, 10,11,15, 18,21,22, 25 221:3, 10,16,19, 21,22,25 222:1,15, 19,21 223:5,6, 17,18,20, 24 224:6, 8,12,16 225:15,
--	---	--	--	---	--

20, 23, 25 226:4, 17, 19, 24 227:8, 17 228:24 229:6, 8, 15, 20 230:5	79:4 <b>together</b> 49:13 87:14, 17 128:15 159:15 <b>told</b> 19:1 110:4 113:3, 7 123:12 135:22 137:5 139:7 155:2 160:20 161:3 184:6 191:5 202:3 204:6, 9 222:15, 20 <b>tomorrow</b> 8:12 47:2, 4 147:1 218:2 <b>ton</b> 146:23 <b>tons</b> 150:12 <b>too</b> 110:5 123:10 130:15 142:6 144:20 146:23 153:16 173:20 180:14 <b>took</b> 127:18 128:1 132:12 157:17	173:14 229:3 <b>top</b> 45:6, 9 58:5 106:9 <b>Torrance</b> 161:18 <b>total</b> 9:25 10:11 41:15 227:8 <b>totally</b> 115:12 143:6, 24 144:9 <b>touch</b> 17:4 <b>tour</b> 65:18 <b>toward</b> 151:5 <b>towards</b> 56:8 150:13 <b>trace</b> 80:11 <b>track</b> 62:14, 20 111:2 <b>traffic</b> 116:12 117:25 170:12 <b>trafficki ng</b> 7:7 <b>trail</b> 17:11, 13 22:8 82:1 86:12 108:21, 24	112:12, 21 120:7 130:20 147:9, 12 154:8 173:23 174:1, 11 183:22, 24 219:25 220:18, 22 <b>trailed</b> 82:23 154:24 218:6 <b>trailing</b> 21:14 <b>trails</b> 154:9 182:4 <b>train</b> 49:15 72:2 <b>trained</b> 6:9 49:17 <b>training</b> 6:22 7:6 30:6 72:5 <b>trainings</b> 49:14 <b>transcrip ts</b> 12:16, 24 <b>transfer</b> 125:19 <b>transferr ed</b> 131:9 <b>transitio n</b> 228:23 <b>transitio ned</b> 127:21	<b>translate</b> 211:6 213:19 214:1 <b>transport</b> 52:22, 24 156:25 <b>Transunio n</b> 82:15 <b>Tribal</b> 10:25 <b>trickle</b> 45:9 <b>tried</b> 144:8 219:22 <b>trouble</b> 11:20 89:25 101:11 109:11 110:12 112:1 144:24 <b>Troy</b> 120:8 124:2 <b>true</b> 138:15 <b>trust</b> 27:12 152:18 <b>truth</b> 13:23, 24 40:3 64:12, 13 85:24 115:10 156:7, 8 192:12 194:2 <b>truthful</b> 213:12	<b>truthfull y</b> 213:20 <b>try</b> 10:19 50:4 56:16 111:2 171:14 220:5 <b>trying</b> 7:9 11:25 39:3, 5 47:25 51:2 59:15 89:22 90:4 115:18 116:3, 5, 14 119:15, 19, 20 127:20 132:7 144:23 151:2 153:6 160:15 174:4 221:10 225:23 <b>TSA</b> 152:24 <b>Tubbs</b> 54:21 55:1, 6 56:4, 6, 9, 23 57:2, 4, 6, 9, 11, 13 58:2, 10, 14 <b>Tucker</b> 130:18, 19 154:15, 16 <b>turn</b> 9:18
<b>today</b> 4:20 5:12, 13 8:13 12:5 13:21 30:4 43:7 45:1 65:24 69:17 70:3 97:15 101:16 104:6 105:7 109:13 114:22 115:2 121:8 131:17 142:25 148:1 149:16 153:4, 7 157:4 159:8 162:7 164:6 165:20 167:25 191:25 205:5 206:13 209:16 212:10 228:6 <b>today's</b> 7:25 12:5 <b>Todd</b> 76:22 78:25					

205:16	206:10	60:2	152:25	96:1	66:15
<b>turned</b>	209:10	62:10	171:19	98:17	90:15
37:19	212:3	72:20, 22	190:15	100:6	130:7
121:15,	216:3	73:12	192:2, 14	102:13, 17	151:21
16, 17	<b>two-week</b>	74:8 75:7	199:3	103:6	157:16
205:16	117:13	123:1	202:13	104:5	179:6
<b>twelve</b>	<b>Tyiska</b>	125:11	203:22	124:15	204:16
49:18	130:21	127:14, 25	206:1	139:11	219:11
<b>twenty</b>	<b>Tyler</b>	135:20	215:23, 24	145:20	<b>up</b>
55:8	59:21	136:13,	221:7	172:1	9:4, 5, 7,
137:15	60:7	23, 24	<b>understan</b>	176:24	22 10:19
<b>twenty-</b>	63:12, 16	137:12, 14	<b>ding</b>	197:7	12:10
<b>three</b>	<b>type</b>	158:25	26:4	200:3, 18	19:19
15:16, 18	53:9 81:6	161:21	34:20	201:22, 25	23:18
<b>Twenty-</b>	<b>Typically</b>	165:13	43:6, 11	202:14	27:21
<b>two</b>	108:2	171:23	62:5, 7	203:2, 15	34:2
88:6	186:16	186:11	128:9, 22	205:17, 19	41:2, 6
<b>two</b>	<hr/> <b>U</b> <hr/>	196:5, 6	129:5	207:6	48:21
11:7		198:6	188:23	<b>unit</b>	49:8
15:19		<b>undercove</b>	189:22	91:21	55:11, 15
52:12	<b>U.S.</b>	<b>r</b>	<b>Understoo</b>	<b>United</b>	56:13, 16
59:6	6:10, 18	5:24	<b>d</b>	7:20	61:8
71:25	7:9, 12, 15	<b>underlyin</b>	15:5	<b>Universal</b>	69:18
74:25	52:24	<b>g</b>	17:10	55:13, 18	70:3 72:8
78:1	53:6	187:17	31:5	<b>Universit</b>	75:3 80:9
88:20	<b>ultimatel</b>	<b>underneat</b>	34:19	<b>y</b>	81:5
89:5	<b>y</b>	<b>h</b>	57:8 96:9	5:19	86:6, 23
101:3	48:24	<b>undersher</b>	100:7	47:23	88:15, 20
104:20, 23	49:8, 19	<b>iff</b>	122:16	<b>unlawful</b>	91:24
105:22	<b>Um-hmm</b>	186:3	144:2, 11	193:4	94:11
110:22, 23	80:20	190:23	145:1	<b>unlicense</b>	99:25
114:1	117:8	<b>understan</b>	171:18	<b>d</b>	100:1
115:25	<b>Un</b>	<b>d</b>	176:5	11:2	102:19
117:10	211:1	7:24	178:19	<b>unreasona</b>	105:20
126:9, 15,	<b>under</b>	20:25	200:25	<b>ble</b>	110:2, 10
17 127:4,	18:20	35:25	<b>undisclos</b>	169:22	117:15
11 129:2	19:2	36:3	<b>ed</b>	170:1	127:18
136:17	20:24	38:15	94:8, 13	<b>unregist</b>	128:25
139:8	26:16, 18,	43:2	<b>unfortuna</b>	<b>red</b>	132:9, 24,
140:5, 7	25 27:18	78:15	<b>te</b>	69:21	25 135:20
143:11	31:1, 25	89:19	144:23	<b>unregiste</b>	139:7
160:18	33:18	90:5	<b>unfortuna</b>	<b>red</b>	144:24
175:7	36:1	103:8	<b>tely</b>	43:3, 7	151:7
181:1	41:15	110:14	24:25	<b>until</b>	155:24
192:9		137:3	43:12	22:8	161:11
199:8		139:14	46:24	23:24	170:10
203:3			55:10, 24	32:18	171:12
				43:3, 7	196:10
					206:12

218:14	<b>upset</b>	203:18	10,11	<b>verifying</b>	219:4
219:10	152:4,9	204:21	87:19,22	203:3	<b>Vincent</b>
221:6	205:14	207:15	112:23	<b>versus</b>	18:23
223:6	<b>us</b>	209:4	<b>various</b>	59:14	<b>Vinny</b>
225:15	10:20	211:23	55:14	<b>very</b>	69:8
227:8	18:24	216:16	84:13	19:19	<b>violation</b>
229:21,25	23:16	223:5,6	<b>Vegas</b>	27:5,10	<b>s</b>
230:1	33:2 36:9	<b>USA</b>	10:24	33:23	10:23
<b>update</b>	47:15	29:24	36:23	42:13	87:15
6:8 14:24	48:19	31:23	48:21	48:22	<b>violence</b>
38:9	52:15	<b>USC</b>	55:20	49:1 52:6	100:21
40:16	53:10,11	5:19	72:2	53:5	105:23
<b>updated</b>	55:4	<b>USDC</b>	134:14,17	76:17	106:8
108:7	60:1,5	134:1	136:18,22	92:21	159:3
140:16	62:3 65:5	<b>use</b>	156:21	96:2	<b>vote</b>
<b>updates</b>	69:1,9	174:22	<b>vehicle</b>	99:17	14:7
9:13,17	71:21	192:23	169:13,	106:4	15:22
12:13	76:25	197:23	15,16	160:21	16:2,16
<b>upheld</b>	80:5,18	<b>used</b>	174:24	168:9	55:3 59:8
191:24	84:9	37:24	193:6	171:12	<b>vulgar</b>
<b>uphold</b>	86:17	55:1	209:7	199:1	151:6
95:14	89:5 94:5	127:15,	<b>vehicles</b>	208:22	
98:25	96:22	16,22,23	186:7	218:4	<b>W</b>
103:14	100:15	135:25	<b>Velasquez</b>	<b>veteran</b>	
113:6	108:5	139:10	52:13	55:8 60:8	
124:2	109:6	151:6	54:5,6	<b>veterans'</b>	
140:13	112:5	224:18	<b>Venetian</b>	199:15	<b>wait</b>
145:6	114:8	<b>using</b>	137:1,5	<b>via</b>	56:21
153:15	120:12	151:7	<b>Venti</b>	138:25	136:21
155:1	125:2,12	<b>Utah</b>	21:22	<b>vicinity</b>	138:18
162:3	131:3	188:24	22:7,15	220:11	151:21
164:2	142:11	190:8,9,	<b>verbally</b>	221:24	152:1
167:21	144:18,22	17	150:12	<b>Victor</b>	183:21
172:22	147:17	<b>v</b>	<b>verificat</b>	64:21	185:24
176:12	148:25	<b>vacation</b>	<b>ion</b>	65:3,7	201:13
184:5	153:4	151:20	108:7	66:5,6,9,	204:16
191:12	156:17	<b>van</b>	<b>verified</b>	20,23	220:15
196:20	161:15	80:19	39:6,8	67:1,13	221:25
203:1	163:19	<b>vans</b>	44:14	68:8	<b>waiting</b>
222:19	165:8	81:1,2	<b>verify</b>	<b>view</b>	10:16
<b>upon</b>	167:14	<b>Vargas</b>	39:12,14,	74:1	134:12
22:3,9,	169:6	86:8,9,	15 40:17	<b>viewpoint</b>	218:18,
12,18	173:17		44:13	5:5	19,20
28:10,21	174:19		62:18	<b>Vince</b>	219:12
31:18,25	177:12			218:5	<b>Walker</b>
43:24	180:21				108:22,23
109:8	185:2				113:1
	192:3,20				
	197:20				

<b>want</b>	55:8	11,12,13, 18,19,20	65:10,24	124:4,5, 8,18	186:16, 17,18,20
14:11	<b>Warner</b>	18:3,4	67:18,19,	126:12	187:1
15:1	122:21	20:10,11,	21 68:15,	127:4,25	191:14,
17:11	<b>warrant</b>	14 21:20	16,19,24	129:15,	15,17
29:23	114:14	22:2,3,6,	69:5,11	16,18	192:7
30:15	120:19,20	21,22,24	70:1	131:25	196:20,
36:3 41:1	122:10	23:6,20	71:4,5,8	138:7,12	22,23,25
45:13	131:14	24:1,15,	72:1	140:19,	197:1
46:21	133:9,13,	18,20,24,	73:17	20,22	198:14,17
48:2 72:8	25 134:5	25 25:2,	74:22	143:14,16	199:15
91:14	135:7,23	3,5,16,25	75:4,22	145:6,8,	200:6
102:18	179:9	26:5,10,	76:1,2,3,	9,12,13,	203:1,5,
103:7	<b>warrants</b>	11,12	5,22	20 146:23	6,8
138:4	151:23	27:9,10	77:24	148:9,10,	204:6,21,
139:1	152:2	28:22,23,	78:10,14,	12 149:21	25 205:3,
141:21	<b>Washingto</b>	25 29:1	15,24	150:25	6,18
152:21	<b>n</b>	30:13,24	79:5,6,9,	153:18,	206:4,5
162:12	149:4	32:3,4,6,	10,21	19,22	208:11,
171:19	<b>watched</b>	18,20	80:11	154:8	12,14
178:23	173:13	33:20	82:8	155:4,5,7	209:25
183:21	<b>water</b>	34:13	83:14,15,	157:16,25	210:2,3,5
184:23	65:13	35:3,4	17 84:25	158:2,3,	211:17
193:11	<b>way</b>	36:1	85:1,3	5,20	215:9,10,
213:2,17	27:6 34:2	39:21	86:10	160:2,3,	11,12,14
218:8	39:8	41:5,19	90:6,10	5,13,22	216:3
219:21	43:5,12	43:19	91:4,17,	162:9	217:1,2,
223:5,6, 18,20	57:23	45:11	22,23,24,	163:1,2,	3,12,13,
<b>wanted</b>	98:5	46:8,9,	25 92:1	3,5	14,16
14:19	146:14	11,21	93:4,5,7	164:8,17,	218:6,21
18:21	188:8	48:1,5,6	95:14,16,	18,19,21	219:11
44:13	<b>we</b>	49:9,10,	17,19	166:16,	220:1,14,
50:19	6:6 8:8,	13,15,20,	97:24	17,19	22 221:8,
62:1	13 9:7,24	22,24	99:2,3,6,	168:10,	13 222:1,
69:16	10:2,10,	51:6,22	7 100:1,5	11,13	3,4,6,7,
82:24	13,18,22,	53:2,3,4,	101:22	11,13	16,22,23
113:24	23 11:18,	5,9,12	103:3,16,	172:22,	223:23,
115:25	23,24	54:8,9,11	17,20,22,	24,25	24,25
116:2	12:3,4,5,	55:3,11	23 104:13	173:2,3	224:4,5,
118:6	8 13:1,2,	57:10	107:3,4,	176:14,	9,11,12,
130:2	6 14:16,	58:5,14,	9,16	15,17	15 225:9
143:14	22 15:1,	20,21,24	111:9,11,	179:21,	226:25
204:4	2,3,6	60:14	12,15	22,24,25	227:5,14
206:21	16:4,5,7,	61:1,2,6,	112:14,21	180:9	228:3,10,
229:15	8,15,17,	11,12,23,	113:12,25	181:12,	11,23
<b>wanting</b>	20,22,24	24,25	116:19	13,15	229:7,11
24:11	17:4,7,	62:1,2,	117:3,10	182:3	<b>we'd</b>
<b>War</b>		11,14	118:10,	183:5,6,	65:12
		63:17,18,	17,20,21	8,9,20	
		21 64:21	119:2,10,	184:8,9,	
			22 122:25	11 185:20	



<b>we'll</b> 4:4,5 8:24 9:11 12:9 16:19,24, 25 21:20 27:22 34:21 61:7,8 64:7 82:9 85:18 86:12 108:2,21, 24 120:7 130:20 146:4 147:12 154:10 155:20 156:1 182:3 183:16,24 189:4	112:11, 12,13,20 113:20 114:8 120:12 124:16 125:2 131:3 134:12 140:15 141:4 142:11 147:18 148:25 153:3 154:9 155:19,22 156:18 159:14 161:16 163:19 165:9 167:15 169:7 174:4,20 177:12 180:22 181:22 182:2 184:19 185:2 197:8,21 207:15 209:4 211:24 216:16 224:7,8	101:9,10, 25 109:9, 22 110:6 120:21 127:8,9 149:4 165:11 167:17 169:9 174:23 189:10 190:20 192:23 197:24 198:4 <b>weapons</b> 98:1 104:15 111:23 125:4 126:19 189:6 <b>website</b> 108:8 187:3,15 <b>WEDNESDAY</b> 4:2 <b>week</b> 12:3 93:16 108:6 118:11 226:13 <b>weekend</b> 114:3 <b>weeks</b> 78:2 117:10 160:18 <b>welcome</b> 13:14 108:17 218:4 <b>well</b> 36:11,20, 24 42:14	46:19 48:15 52:22,23 53:5 72:3,10 75:25 77:7 81:7 90:2 101:10,13 104:25 109:11 114:18,20 119:22 120:15,20 121:14 122:20 128:9,22 129:6 140:7 143:6 146:12 150:7 151:5,6, 12 152:23 160:21 161:25 170:20 171:14 186:8 189:1 190:6 194:16 200:19 202:1,2 204:2 205:11 206:4 215:25 219:23 <b>Wells</b> 53:5 <b>went</b> 9:16 23:23 47:23 48:25 55:21 57:14 69:10	91:4 95:3 98:5 102:9 121:14 139:6 143:14,16 151:5,20 170:21 172:5 188:25 198:8 200:15 201:14 214:21 226:23 228:23 <b>Westech</b> 36:14 <b>what</b> 6:23 7:2 10:6 11:9,18 12:9 15:15 23:11,13, 21 25:23 26:8 36:18 38:15,18 39:15 42:14 43:7,13 44:12,25 46:3 47:25 51:2 52:23 57:14,20, 21 62:7 66:7 72:2,21 74:19 78:15 81:10 88:10,25 89:20,22 90:10 91:4,9 98:17	99:18 104:21 113:24 114:1 115:10, 12,14,18, 19,20 116:14, 16,23 117:14 118:7,10 119:10 123:14 125:6 128:8,21, 22 130:3, 6 132:8 133:11,23 134:3,16, 19 136:4 139:10, 12,19 140:15 141:18,25 144:14 146:10,12 151:8 154:8 160:16 162:25 164:17 168:8 170:5,12 171:4,7, 11,21 182:12 185:12 187:6,8 188:4,9 189:16 190:15 191:5 199:18 203:23 204:3,6, 8,20 205:22 206:14 207:19,25 214:10,
<b>we're</b> 8:25 10:16 11:18,25 21:14 23:17 26:4 27:13 31:3 34:17 35:18 43:1 46:25 47:25 48:5 49:11,19 53:8 63:3 65:23 81:25 86:6,17 88:19 94:5 96:3,22 100:15 105:21 109:6	<b>we've</b> 71:24,25 99:24 155:23 168:8 198:12 203:19 223:23 <b>weapon</b> 73:21 94:9,13 97:5				

14,15,20 215:9 216:21 217:3,12 223:23 224:5,13 225:5,15, 24 226:14 227:15	98:4,16 99:18 102:1,6, 10,18 110:6 115:23 116:18 117:2,3 121:17 126:11 136:6,16 137:4 138:11,24 139:7 141:7 143:14,16 146:11 151:1,2 170:8,11, 21 171:10 172:4,5 179:2 181:2 185:20,21 186:18 188:20, 23,25 189:7 190:8 194:18 195:16,17 196:1,3 198:17 199:14 201:3 202:2 206:5,10 223:25 224:11,15 225:10	60:12,15 61:11,15 74:22 89:17 90:3 91:24 98:15 110:7 133:14 134:8,13 174:4 179:7 187:16 196:11 198:21	220:5 <b>who</b> 6:5 7:9 13:20 28:19 29:15 45:12 47:3 50:6,9 51:11 64:9 70:5,8 82:3 85:22 102:7 114:24 137:4 150:25 151:1 156:4 173:13,15 193:25 200:2,5 205:2	88:14 94:5,23 96:22 97:21 98:10 100:15 101:22 104:12 106:10 109:6 114:8 115:8 119:16,19 120:12 121:12 123:11 125:2 126:14 127:11 131:3 132:2 142:11 143:4,21, 22 147:17 148:25 149:21 156:17 158:20 161:15 163:19 165:8 167:14 169:6 170:19 174:20 175:23 177:12 178:3,10 180:21 185:2 188:15 189:21 192:8,12, 21 194:15,22 196:2 197:21 200:9 204:17 206:1	207:15 209:4 211:24 214:19 216:16 <b>wife</b> 49:22 55:10 <b>Wildlife</b> 33:6,21, 23 <b>William</b> 184:19 <b>Williams</b> 218:5 219:4 <b>willing</b> 145:23 <b>window</b> 49:18 <b>Wings</b> 80:8 <b>wish</b> 101:15 <b>wishes</b> 87:7 97:15 105:6 109:13 114:22 115:1 121:8 125:21 131:17 142:25 207:23 208:3 <b>with</b> 8:1,14 10:18,24 11:14,18, 23 17:4 18:19,23 19:3 24:16				
<b>what's</b> 8:13 11:23 25:14 41:15 89:14 146:2 150:22 171:14 201:20 221:7,14 224:3	121:17 126:11 136:6,16 137:4 138:11,24 139:7 141:7 143:14,16 146:11 151:1,2 170:8,11, 21 171:10 172:4,5 179:2 181:2 185:20,21 186:18 188:20, 23,25 189:7 190:8 194:18 195:16,17 196:1,3 198:17 199:14 201:3 202:2 206:5,10 223:25 224:11,15 225:10	<b>whether</b> 74:7,8 102:23 122:6 188:1	<b>which</b> 26:18 27:3,5 35:19 41:17 69:5 73:14 80:24 87:3 96:2 102:14 103:4 127:3,25 143:19 163:24 182:2,18 194:18 198:9 205:15 222:14	<b>Who's</b> 206:15,16 <b>whole</b> 13:24 18:5 40:3 48:6 64:13 72:1 85:24 136:19 143:8 156:7 194:2 <b>why</b> 8:3 14:21 22:2 26:7,19 30:24 37:13,15 61:2 73:9,24 75:3 86:17 87:3	<b>whatever</b> 119:20 121:23 146:2,3 150:4 219:10 <b>when</b> 6:6 17:7 18:21 31:14 37:8,14 39:21 41:2 44:14 47:21 48:5,21 50:15,16 55:15 56:9 57:16 61:23 74:4 80:24 82:19 87:7 88:8 91:10,16, 18 92:21	<b>where</b> 5:7 25:5 26:12 33:18,22 43:1 49:15,20 50:9 55:11,18 56:18	<b>while</b> 61:2 66:12 100:20 102:2 134:12 152:5 167:13 200:6	<b>Who's</b> 206:15,16 <b>whole</b> 13:24 18:5 40:3 48:6 64:13 72:1 85:24 136:19 143:8 156:7 194:2 <b>why</b> 8:3 14:21 22:2 26:7,19 30:24 37:13,15 61:2 73:9,24 75:3 86:17 87:3	<b>wife</b> 49:22 55:10 <b>Wildlife</b> 33:6,21, 23 <b>William</b> 184:19 <b>Williams</b> 218:5 219:4 <b>willing</b> 145:23 <b>window</b> 49:18 <b>Wings</b> 80:8 <b>wish</b> 101:15 <b>wishes</b> 87:7 97:15 105:6 109:13 114:22 115:1 121:8 125:21 131:17 142:25 207:23 208:3 <b>with</b> 8:1,14 10:18,24 11:14,18, 23 17:4 18:19,23 19:3 24:16

30:4 31:2	16 120:21	223:21,24	<b>wondering</b>	188:24	<b>worries</b>
33:3,6,11	124:19	227:13,22	192:8	191:25	74:13
34:2	126:13	228:22	<b>word</b>	192:2	80:4
36:19	127:24	229:11	221:14	197:12	144:11
39:4,5	128:10	<b>withdrawn</b>	224:3	202:20	<b>worry</b>
40:13	129:1	10:1,3,	<b>work</b>	208:9,22	89:16
41:2,4	131:12	12,15	8:14	209:25	<b>write</b>
42:17,25	132:6,7,	63:2	10:4,8,9	215:8	50:5
43:1,12	9,24	96:13	11:25	217:11	157:17
44:25	133:20	<b>withdrew</b>	38:2 39:4	229:16	171:1,5
46:18,22	138:14	130:22,23	53:9	<b>worked</b>	225:23
47:16,18	140:1	<b>within</b>	55:1,25	18:24	<b>written</b>
48:15,16,	141:8	25:1 38:4	59:19	19:2 33:6	12:25
23 49:5,	143:11	42:23	62:1,3	36:12,13,	122:15
9,16	145:23	117:12	66:14	14,15	147:25
50:15	147:21	186:19	76:13	37:9 39:5	157:3
51:3	149:11	227:15	77:9 80:8	47:21	159:7
52:16	150:6,7,	<b>without</b>	89:11,20	48:20	165:19
55:12	23 151:7	12:8	93:3,14	52:21	167:23
56:10,18	153:5	26:1,12	99:1	55:13	172:13
59:19	156:21	89:24	103:15	61:25	<b>wrong</b>
60:6	157:13,17	109:10	104:5,7	91:16,17	74:12
61:7,25	159:12	110:8	107:7	97:23,25	189:24
62:14,19,	161:3	186:23	108:2,12	136:25	190:5
20,25	162:16	209:8	109:8	137:1	200:19
65:5,10	163:13	<b>witness</b>	110:13,19	150:7	<b>wrongfull</b>
69:2,8	164:4	7:12	111:9	190:9	<b>Y</b>
71:22	165:4,11	<b>witnesses</b>	118:17	192:9	75:1
72:17	167:17	13:17	124:3	<b>working</b>	<b>wrote</b>
73:21	169:24	14:2	129:14	10:18	15:13
74:22	171:10	64:16	130:1	33:10	119:16
76:13	173:14	86:2	137:5	36:1 38:5	130:5
77:1,7	177:3	156:11	141:5,7	47:18	<b>Wynn</b>
80:2,6	181:23	194:5	145:21,23	48:11,14	60:12
81:2	182:5,9,	<b>wobbler</b>	148:8	49:11	
84:10,13	10,14,25	209:11	150:25	55:12,18	<b>Y</b>
87:12	186:19	<b>won</b>	152:8	84:13	
91:3,19	187:16,24	55:14	157:25	95:6	<b>y'all</b>
93:19	191:4	<b>won't</b>	158:13	102:8	110:1
94:18	192:25	104:5	160:1,13	133:6	112:10
95:7 97:5	197:12	112:6	162:24	188:25	160:20
99:17	198:13,16	211:4	164:3,16	193:12	<b>Y2k</b>
101:9,25	204:21	<b>wonderful</b>	166:14	<b>world</b>	6:21
102:8	205:13,21	53:13	168:7	6:10 7:15	<b>Yakuza</b>
103:1	208:23		173:10	48:9	
104:7	212:5		177:3		
106:5	213:18		179:20		
109:22	219:8,23		180:9		
110:6	220:14		181:10,23		
117:5,15,	221:16				

6:20	202:6,9	<b>yearly</b>	212:7	86:19,24	191:7
<b>yeah</b>	203:23	227:18	226:17	89:12	195:6,14
7:5 16:23	204:1	<b>years</b>	<b>yell</b>	91:3,8,15	198:23
21:16	206:20	5:21,22,	226:25	92:16	200:16
23:20	211:15	23,25	<b>yelled</b>	93:21,25	201:7
28:13,16	213:11,14	33:7	151:1	96:23	204:14
41:1	216:1	36:12	<b>yeoman's</b>	99:23	207:5
44:22	219:19	47:18	226:22	100:16	214:7
47:13	220:3,9	48:20,22	<b>Yep</b>	102:5	216:11,17
56:23	225:2,17	49:2	96:10	104:14	223:7
57:11	227:21	50:25	105:25	106:15,17	224:24
61:13	229:15	55:8,14,	180:12	108:15	<b>yesterday</b>
66:16	<b>year</b>	20 56:2,	<b>yes</b>	109:7	68:20
73:19,25	11:4,7	12 65:8,	4:8 5:7,	110:19	81:9,19
86:16	50:5	10,18	8,10 9:14	111:1	<b>yet</b>
88:4 90:5	62:24	69:4	14:14	114:10	7:23 12:3
92:18	66:13,14	71:25	18:17	116:9	14:13,16
94:7 96:9	88:17	77:6 80:9	19:5	118:8	40:21
100:5,8	90:1 96:6	84:13	21:25	119:13	66:25
106:3,6	99:14	86:22	24:4,13	120:13	85:17
112:4	104:7,23	87:1,3	26:6	121:19	193:21
116:22	105:18	88:4,20	27:17	123:4,9,	224:18
117:24	124:17,18	89:5 95:7	30:1	16 125:3	<b>York</b>
118:9	141:7,22	97:25	33:15	128:8,20	48:11
126:10,24	145:22,25	98:4	34:15	131:4,22	69:19
127:13	146:5,11	101:1	36:7	132:6	88:9
128:3,6,	154:5	104:16,	39:23	133:10	89:8,9,17
13,16	166:2	20,23	40:11	134:23	90:2,23
130:11	173:14,17	114:13	42:18,21,	135:8	91:16,17
133:22,24	177:2	125:9,15	24 44:11	136:1	95:2
144:6,16,	192:1,3	132:21	45:7 47:9	139:13,	207:18
21 150:11	197:9	133:4	50:20	16,20	<b>yourself</b>
151:16	204:7,8,	135:1	53:16	141:10,	33:3
152:3,6	10	137:1	55:6 56:9	15,23	36:10
154:6	206:11,13	147:23	57:2 58:2	142:2,12	47:15
168:9	215:9	157:1	60:3,4	146:7	48:8 55:4
173:18	217:11	158:24	62:8,11,	147:19	65:5 69:2
174:10	219:12	161:19	16 64:24	149:2	71:22
179:12	220:15	163:23	66:6 68:8	153:2	80:5 84:9
183:22	221:25	165:13	72:19	156:19	87:25
184:23	223:10,	169:21	73:2,19	165:23	<b>yourselfe</b>
187:1	16,18,19	171:16	77:19	166:6	<b>s</b>
188:6	224:2,7,	177:17	78:14,16	167:12	52:16
189:25	11 226:23	181:1	80:22	169:4	60:6
190:13,16	227:15,	190:10	81:13,22	172:7	
194:22	17,18,22	193:1	82:25	174:17	
195:1,9,	229:13	196:5	83:10	178:18	
22 200:19	<b>year's</b>	206:10		180:19	
201:1	226:7	209:10		184:21,25	
				190:24	

---

**Z**

---

**Zach**

69:9

186:25

**Zachary**

9:19

**Zappos.  
com**

48:12

**zero**

10:11